
Environment, Climate Emergency and 
Transport Committee
Date: Tuesday, 7 September 2021
Time: 6.00 p.m.

Venue: Floral Pavillion

Contact Officer: Mike Jones
Tel: 0151 691 8363
e-mail: michaeljones1@wirral.gov.uk
Website: Wirral.gov.uk

Members of the public are encouraged to view the meeting via the webcast,
(see below). All those wishing to attend in person will be asked to wear a 
face covering (unless exempt) and are encouraged to take a Lateral Flow 
Test before attending. You should not attend if you have tested positive for
Coronavirus or if you have any symptoms of Coronavirus.

This meeting will be webcast at: https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

AGENDA
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

2. APOLOGIES 

3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

4. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To approve the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 
Monday 14 July 2021.

5. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS 

Public Document Pack

https://wirral.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


5.1 Public Questions

Notice of question to be given in writing or by email by 12 
noon, Thursday 2 September 2021 to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer (committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to be dealt 
with in accordance with Standing Order 10.

5.2 Statements and petitions

Notice of representations to be given in writing or by email by 
12 noon, Thursday 2 September 2021 to the Council’s 
Monitoring Officer (committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk) and to 
be dealt with in accordance with Standing Order 11.1.

Petitions may be presented to the Committee. The person 
presenting the petition will be allowed to address the meeting 
briefly (not exceeding one minute) to outline the aims of the 
petition. The Chair will refer the matter to another appropriate 
body of the Council within whose terms of reference it falls 
without discussion, unless a relevant item appears elsewhere 
on the Agenda. Please give notice of petitions to 
committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk in advance of the meeting.
.

5.3 Questions by Members

Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8.

SECTION A - KEY AND OTHER DECISIONS

6. ROAD SAFETY PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 11 - 280)

7. WEED CONTROL OPTIONS APPRAISAL (Pages 281 - 328)

SECTION B - BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

8. QUARTER 1 BUDGET MONITORING (Pages 329 - 342)

SECTION C - WORK PROGRAMME / OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

9. APPOINTMENT TO HILBRE ISLAND NATURE RESERVE 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (Pages 343 - 348)

10. WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE (Pages 349 - 356)

mailto:committeeservices@wirral.gov.uk


ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND 
TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
Monday, 14 June 2021

Present: Councillor EA Grey (Chair)

Councillors H Collinson
S Foulkes
C O'Hagan
I Williams
B Berry

M Collins
S Mountney
L Rowlands
C Cooke
A Brame (In place 
of A Corkhill)

1 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

The Chair opened the meeting and reminded everyone that the meeting was 
being webcast and a copy is retained on the Council’s website. 

2 APOLOGIES 

Councillor Andy Corkhill had given apologies for absence and had been 
substituted by Councillor Allan Brame. 

3 MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interests.

4 MINUTES 

The Chair proposed an amendment to the minutes and requested that in the 
Hoylake Beach management update (minute 47) resolution (3), the words ‘the 
specification for the continuation of non-vegetation management activities at 
Hoylake beach, as set out in Appendix C to this report be approved, and’ be 
removed as they were intended to be removed and replaced by an 
amendment made at the meeting so leaving them in was an error and 
misleading. 
This was seconded by Councillor Steve Foulkes. 

Resolved (by assent) – That the minutes of the meeting of the 
Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee held on 16 
March 2021 be approved and adopted as a correct record subject to the 
words ‘the specification for the continuation of non-vegetation 
management activities at Hoylake beach, as set out in Appendix C to 
this report be approved, and’ in the Hoylake Beach management update 
(minute 47) resolution (3) being removed.

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



5 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

There were two questions from the public.

Question from Charlotte Smith: 
Access to Hoylake Beach via the slipways is severely restricted by the build-
up of grass, weeds, dandelions and watercress. This is particularly noticeable 
at King Gap entrance to Hoylake Beach and the old lifeboat slipway with 
excess sand blocking safe access to the beach. Wirral Council is in breach of 
the Equality Act 2010 (Section 149, schedule 12) by not providing safe access 
to the beach for disabled people, myself included. Will the Environmental 
Chair commit to legal obligations by clearing all slipways to allow safe access 
immediately within the next month?

Answer from Councillor Liz Grey:
Thank you for your observations regarding Kings Gap Slipway and the 
slipway at Alderley Road.  For information the slipways do not form part of the 
adopted highway and therefore do not have the same maintenance standards 
as exist for the highway. The slipways act as an interface between the natural 
and man-made environment and users are made aware of the hazards 
present through the adjacent signage. This is the standard approach taken at 
all locations on the Wirral coast. The slipways are all inspected regularly, the 
most recent inspection on 2nd June 2021 identified that whilst sand and some 
vegetation growth at Kings Gap Slipway was observed, the conditions on the 
slipway were similar to those that would be encountered on the foreshore. 
I do agree with you that disabled access should be a priority and we as a 
Council voted to aim for Blue Flag status on our beaches. This will require us 
to ensure that we have good quality disabled access and I’m sure this will 
inform our plans when we reach that stage of the engagement and 
consultation process.
Officers have assessed your allegation and in their view they do not believe 
that the Council has breached the Equality Act 2010.  The build up of sand will 
continue to be reviewed during future inspections however we are currently 
unable to remove or move any sand on the foreshore as we no longer have 
permission from Natural England to do this. A new application for assent, with 
supporting Habitat Regulations Assessment, is being prepared for submission 
to Natural England. We need to do this as Hoylake beach forms part of North 
Wirral Foreshore Site of Special Scientific Interest.
Basically we need permission to move sand. 

Supplementary Question 
Will the chair agree to designate a section of Hoylake Beach made available 
for local events to be exempted from SSI restrictions to continue on the beach 
such as the Tug of War, Bonfire Night and the Volley Ball team and 
organisers can make the area safe for recreational use.  Natural England has 
stated after all that an Amenity Beach can be raked. 

Page 2



Supplementary answer 
I’m glad you refer to the Natural England report and their references to an 
amenity beach and I would urge all interested parties to read that Natural 
England report especially the references to an amenity beach which you do 
seem to have interpreted differently from most other people. 
Natural England is the Government’s statutory nature conservation adviser 
and is responsible for enforcing laws that protect wildlife and the natural 
environment which includes North Wirral Foreshore Site of Special Scientific 
Interest (SSSI) covering Hoylake Beach. As such Wirral Council has no 
powers to exempt areas of the SSSI from the regulations that cover it. 
Permission must be sought from Wirral Council for any activities which have 
the capacity to harm the SSSI and before the Council grants permission they 
must in turn obtain consent from Natural England having assessed any 
request in accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species 
regulations 2010. 

The second question was from asked by the Chair on behalf of Gillian 
Homeri who could not attend.

Question from Gillian Homeri:
Could you please confirm that when deciding the future if Hoylake Beach, this 
Council will stick to the science and the evidence and not be swayed by 
negative campaigning and bombardment from those who wish to ignore the 
facts and mislead the public? Can you promise to abide by the advice of 
Natural England and do what's right by the people of Wirral in an environment 
and climate emergency and protect both nature and residents from the threats 
they face.

Answer from Councillor Liz Grey: 
Hoylake beach is changing naturally and it is becoming increasingly difficult 
for it to be effectively managed in a way that would gain assent from Natural 
England. The Council, as landowner, also has a statutory duty to further the 
conservation and enhancement of the SSSI. Through the work we are doing 
and with the findings of the independent Ecology and Geomorphology study 
later in the year – combined with public consultation – we will find the most 
effective solution, taking into account advice already received from Natural 
England and the regulations in place to protect the SSSI, to manage Hoylake 
beach in the long-term.

6 STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS 

One petition had been received from Alex Lomas regarding traffic safety in 
Alfred Road, Oxton.
I’m here representing the families and residents of Alfred Road in Oxton.

Page 3



Over the past two years we’ve seen the number of cars, vans and even HGVs 
using our residential street as a thoroughfare increase tenfold to avoid the 
lights on Oxton Road. A major catalyst we believe was the building of the Lidl 
supermarket which is situated on the cross road of Balls Road and Oxton 
Road. The street has become home to a growing number of families over the 
past few years. It changed from predominantly being flats before. Those 
families have children at toddler age and school children age and we strongly 
believe that if we don’t act soon there could be disastrous consequences as 
the speeding traffic travelling down the road is in our opinion at a critical point 
and needs to be addressed. Following a number of near misses and 
numerous damaged vehicles on the street I decided that it was time that I 
reached out to the residents and we set up a petition and of a street of 
approximately 24 houses I think it speaks in volumes that there is over 46 
supporters that everyone had the same growing concerns. We’d love for our 
street to be considered for a pilot for the low traffic neighbourhood or Play 
Street Scheme. A simple bollard at one end would cost very little but would 
transform our street and the lives of the families and the children. I’ve seem 
this happen in many other parts of the country but unfortunately in Wirral it 
seems it is very slow for it to happen and I’d like to ask could we please have 
a bollard?

The Chair reaffirmed that the Committee took road safety very seriously and 
would ensure that he got a full response.

7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS 

There were no questions by Members. 

8 CAR PARKING CHARGES OPTIONS REPORT 

The Director of Neighbourhoods, Nikki Butterworth, introduced this report 
which consider alternative options for parking charges in 2021/22 and beyond. 
At the Budget Policy and Resources Committee on Wednesday 17th February 
2021, budget proposals included a further £1 million to be achieved through 
‘additional and increased parking charges and whole scale car parking 
review’. During this Committee Members resolved that further work be 
undertaken by the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee in respect of car parking charges to develop and implement 
proposals in line with the agreed Budget and for the Policy and Resources 
Committee to be updated accordingly. Full Council, at its meeting of 1 March, 
unanimously agreed the saving of £1m from additional and increased parking 
charges and whole scale car parking review as part of the 2021/22 annual 
budget. 

Members debated whether there was sufficient information in the report to 
enable them to come to a decision. They noted that it was a challenging target 
and any change would upset some residents and could increase parking in 

Page 4



residential areas to avoid charges, but the alternative saving options included 
reductions in staffing, golf courses, refuse collection and leisure centres. 
There was a specific requirement from Government to comply with budget 
plans in order to gain funding to offset Covid-19 income losses.

Councillor Chris Cooke made a proposal for agreeing options 1, 3 and 4 
which were:

1. Introduce charges into off-street car parks that are currently Free i.e.;
Bromborough, Bebington, Irby, Hoylake, New Brighton etc.

3. Introduce parking charges into coastal locations e.g.
New Brighton, West Kirby, Leasowe, Hoylake.

4. Standardised Charges. to implement a new and standardised tariff 
structure across all existing and any new charging locations, both on 
and off-street.

And also to standardise charges across the Borough.

Councillor Liz Grey seconded the proposal.

Resolved (6:4 with one abstention): 
That this Committee 

(1) agrees to adopt car parking charging options 1,3 and 4 and to 
standardise charges at: £1 for up to one hour, £2 for up to two 
hours, £3 for up to three hours, £4 for up to four hours and £5 for 
over four hours or all day parking; and 

(2) delegates authority to the Director of Neighbourhood Services to 
implement the decision of this Committee and the parking 
charges options selected as soon as is reasonably practicable.

9 CARBON BUDGETS: 2019/20 BASELINE TO 2027/28 

The Head of Environment and Climate Emergency, Mike Cockburn, 
introduced this report which detailed proposals for reinstating the Carbon 
Budget and proposed annual emissions limits (the Carbon Budgets) to allow 
the Council to measure its progress towards carbon net zero by 2030 as 
included in the Environment and Climate Emergency Policy. 

Members were reassured that the target was difficult but was regarded as 
achievable by the external expert. The pandemic had helped in 2020 but 
future performance would require changes in many aspects of Council work 
such as building use, fleet operations, staff journeys, energy source. 

Resolved – That 
(1) the proposed Carbon Budgets from 2020/21 to 2027/28 be 

approved;
(2) the Annual Carbon Budget Performance Reports are tabled in 

June each year.

Page 5



10 CARBON BUDGET PERFORMANCE REPORT 2020/21 

The Head of Environment and Climate Emergency, Mike Cockburn, 
introduced this report which was the first annual Carbon Budget Performance 
Report and covered the 2020/21 financial year. It showed actual emissions 
compared against the 2020/21 Carbon Budget Target. This allowed the 
Council to measure progress towards its target of carbon net zero by 2030 as 
included in the Environment and Climate Emergency Policy. The Carbon 
Budget Target for 2020/21 was 10,349 tonnes CO2e and actual emissions 
were 9,424 tonnes CO2e. The reduction in emissions was achieved because 
of reduced use of Council assets due to the pandemic. Emissions associated 
with use of electrical energy had also reduced because of continuing 
‘decarbonisation’ of national grid electricity. 

Resolved – 
That Carbon Budget Performance Report 2020/21 be noted.

11 PROGRESS UPDATE ON BIODIVERSITY ACTIONS 

The Director of Neighbourhoods introduced this report. The Committee had 
approved the Council’s Environment & Climate Emergency Policy at its 
previous meeting in March and since then officers had been developing the 
arrangements to progress the Policy’s objectives and commitments. This 
report provided the Committee with an update on progress being made with 
the biodiversity, the biological variety and variability of life, aspect of the 
Policy. The report focused on 2 of the Council’s biodiversity commitments 
within the policy, the ‘Tree, Woodland and Hedgerow Strategy,’ which was 
launched in July 2020 and ‘Transforming our Open Spaces and Enhancing 
Biodiversity,’ including the current position with the development of the 
Council’s pollinator plan for roadside verges and parks green spaces and the 
new approach to grounds maintenance with a blend of reduced grass cutting 
and cessation of maintenance regimes being implemented during 2021-2022. 

Members had noted messages of approval from residents about the policy 
and actions but had particular concerns, notably the rewilding of residential 
areas near river banks which made movement difficult and appeared to be 
attracting pests. 

The Chair thanked officers who had undergone a compete change in how 
their work was judged, from aiming at neatness to encouraging insects and 
wild flora. 

Councillor Bruce Berry proposed an additional resolution that ‘this 
Environment, Climate Change and Transport Committee requests officers to 
revisit the rewilding policy with a view to reintroducing maintenance programs 
in residential areas and in particular areas close to river banks such as the 
Arrowe Brook and the River Birkett both of which have seen an increase in 

Page 6



rodent activity and dogs plagued by ticks from the long grass since the 
cessation of grass cutting. We also seek assurance that long grass once cut 
is collected and removed off site.’  

This was seconded by Councillor Michael Collins.

In response to questions officers confirmed that there would be a budget 
implication for this and there was no machine to collect and remove grass 
cuttings off site but they could revisit the issues as part of the review.

The proposal was put to the vote with four for, six against and one abstention 
so was declared lost.

Councillor Liz Grey proposed an additional recommendation:
“(3) Learning from the work in this report, Committee requests regular 
engagement and consultation in Communities through their elected 
representatives.”

This was seconded by Councillor Steve Foulkes.

Resolved (10:1) - That 
(1) the contents of the report on the progress being made against the 

Council’s biodiversity commitments be noted. 
(2) note the development of the Council’s Pollinator Plan and request 

that the Director presents the Plan to Committee for approval this 
autumn. 

(3) learning from the work in this report, Committee requests regular 
engagement and consultation in Communities through their 
elected representatives.

12 2021/22 BUDGET MONITORING AND 22/23 BUDGET PROCESS 

The Director of Resources presented this report which highlighted the 
processes for monitoring the 2021/22 budget and the budget setting process 
for 2022/23. The Committee was accountable for ensuring that the committee 
budget remained within the relevant envelope and was to take collective 
responsibility via the Policy and Resources Committee to ensure that the 
whole Council budget remained in balance at all times, by agreeing mitigating 
actions to bring the budget back in line, should a deficit be forecast.

One of the key documents required to enable the Council to receive approval 
for exceptional financial support was a balanced five-year medium term 
financial plan (MTFP).  This document was prepared by Officers and required 
committee oversight and approval, with proposals being taken to workshops 
and then in further report to Committee. 

Page 7



Resolved - That 
(1) the content of the report and the current forecast position of 

savings for 2021/22 and the ongoing work being undertaken to 
mitigate any under-achievement be noted. 

(2) the current proposals within this report from the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan from 2022/23 – 2025/26 be included and the 
Director of Neighbourhoods to develop them into full business 
cases, where appropriate, for inclusion in the 2022/23 budget 
proposals to Policy and Resources Committee at its October 
meeting for approval. 

(3) a series of budget workshops be convened to identify any 
alternative savings/income/reductions in pressures to ensure that 
a full suite of costed and deliverable proposals can be 
recommended to the Policy and Resources Committee at its 
October meeting for approval.

13 CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING QUARTER 4 

The Director of Resources introduced this report which provided Members 
with an overview of budget performance for the Committee’s area of activity. 
The financial information detailed the year-end revenue and capital outturn 
position, as reported at quarter 4 (Apr-Mar) 2020/21. 

The revenue position was a £4.3 million overspend mainly due to the loss of 
car parking income. Also, major capital schemes had been paused so the 
Council couldn’t charge capital salaries to them, and officers were diverted 
from their oral duties to help deal with the emergency response to the 
pandemic. The total was a portion of the total council overspend going to 
Policy and Resources Committee on 30 June. There had been some grant 
support centrally from Government but not all income had been eligible, so of 
£16 million losses around £11 million was compensated.

Resolved – 

That the year-end revenue outturn position of £4.345m adverse and the 
performance of the capital programme, as reported at quarter 4 (Apr-
Mar) of 2020/21 be noted.

14 APPOINTMENT OF PANELS, STATUTORY / ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
AND WORKING PARTIES 2021/2022 

The Head of Legal Services presented this report which was to enable the 
Committee to review the need for various panels, statutory / advisory 
committees and working parties, and to arrange for the appointment of 
Members to them.

Page 8



Resolved – 
That the Monitoring Officer as proper officer be authorised to carry out 
the wishes of the Group Leaders in allocating Members to membership 
of the Active Travel Forum and the Wirral Climate Change Group to 
appoint those Members with effect from the date at which the proper 
officer is advised of the names of such Members. 

15 APPOINTMENTS TO WIRRAL FLOOD & WATER MANAGEMENT 
PARTNERSHIP 

The Head of Legal Services presented this report which was to enable the 
Committee to appoint members and possibly named deputies to the Wirral 
Flood and Water Partnership for 2021/2022. 

Resolved – 
That the Monitoring Officer as proper officer be authorised to carry out 
the wishes of the political group leaders in allocating Members to 
membership of the Wirral Flood and Water Partnership and to appoint 
those Members with effect from the date at which the proper officer is 
advised of the names of such Members.

16 WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE 

The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee was 
responsible for proposing and delivering an annual committee work 
programme. This work programme was to align with the corporate priorities of 
the Council, in particular the delivery of the key decisions which are within the 
remit of the Committee.  

Councillors suggested the following updates to the Programme:
 Tree contract qualitative presentation following the awarding of the 

contract in 2020, to include criteria for decisions to remove trees, 
processes and volumes. 

 update on road safety strategy and road safety recommendations 
made by the Road Safety Working Group

 ‘No Mow May’ review 
 Recycling and upcycling updates
 Active travel items to return subject to discussions with the Chair of 

Economic, Regeneration and Development Committee 
 update on the collaboration between the Council and litter pickers

Resolved – 
That the work programme for the remainder of the 2021/22 municipal 
year be noted with the suggested items added.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 7 September 2021 

REPORT TITLE: ROAD SAFETY UPDATE
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES

REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides an update on the Council’s ongoing road safety programme, strategy 
and policy as well as progress with resolutions agreed by the Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee on 16 March 2021 which included:

 Consideration of the final report and recommendations of the road safety working 
group;

 Update on the introduction of widespread 20mph speed limits on non-major 
residentials roads.

The services carried out will take place across all Wards. 

This report does not involve a key decision.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is requested to:

Note the various workstreams included within the Council’s programme of road safety 
improvements and the proposed mechanisms for the delivery of this programme in 2021-22 
and beyond. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To ensure the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee are 
updated on the Council’s ongoing initiatives to help improve road safety in the 
borough and the delivery of road safety-related transport capital programme 
schemes.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Options considered in order to deliver the resolution made by the Environment, 
Climate Emergency and Transport Committee on 16 March 2021 are detailed under 
section 4.0 of this report.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Wirral Council has a Statutory Requirement under the 1988 Road Traffic Act – 
Section 39, to investigate, design and promote engineering and educational 
measures, giving road safety information and training resulting from road traffic 
collisions to prevent further injury. Within Neighbourhoods directorate this statutory 
function is delivered across teams comprising of civil and transportation engineers as 
well as road casualty reduction, transport safety education, and community safety 
practitioners.

3.2 On the 16 March 2021 the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee approved the recommendations from the Road Safety Working Group 
and the Combined Authority Transport Plan Integrated Transport Block programme 
for 2021/22 which supports the statutory requirement outlined under 3.1 in addition 
to Liverpool City Region transport priorities and key outcomes from the refreshed 
Wirral Plan 2021 to 2026. 

3.3 Road safety workshops were held with a cross-party group of Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee Members on 28 January 2021 and 11 
February 2021 to update Members on the outcomes from Wirral’s previous Road 
Safety Plan and to provide an early opportunity to shape the content of the next 
plans and road safety strategy. A number of key outputs from the workshops were 
identified and this report is brought to Committee to provide an update on progress 
of these initiatives. 

3.4 Improving road safety continues to be an essential priority. Despite an overall 
ongoing trend of casualty reduction on our road network and improvements in our 
national position against other authorities as a performance indicator, there is still 
much more to be achieved. 

3.5 Travel on our road network is essential for our everyday lives. An effective and safe 
transport system is essential to support our communities, for people to access 
employment and education services, leisure activities and to assist driving economic 
growth and we need to continue to support the ongoing increase in active travel as 
part of our Climate Emergency.

Page 12



3.6 We are continuing to use and develop a range of sources of information to expand 
on our statutory duty to improve road safety, however it is important to recognise that 
the responsibility for road safety cuts across a range of council departments, partner 
agencies, businesses, educational settings and indeed, our community, as a whole. 
It is a shared responsibility, and everyone will need to play their part.

3.7 We aspire to an overarching goal that nobody should be hurt whilst using our 
highway network, unfortunately there are limits to the resources available. Using our 
ongoing analysis of road casualty types, listening to community concerns and 
working with partners we have identified a number of issues and road user groups as 
our strategic priorities:

 Set ambitious targets for casualty reduction and adopt a Vision Zero Approach
 Continue to seek funding opportunities 
 Develop & encourage key stakeholder partnership working to improve road 

safety, including communities and community concern groups.
 Continue to develop programmes of intervention, education, training & publicity 

for key casualty groups such as Children & Young People; Pedestrians; Cyclists; 
Motorcyclists; Young Drivers and Senior Road Users

 Introduce more widespread 20mph speed limits on non-major residential roads, 
roads near educational and shopping areas.

 Deliver further on active travel networks and Low Traffic Neighbourhoods with 
improved consultation of local communities 

 Support policies and schemes with education training programmes etc to assist 
the increase in active travel.

 Improve communications and marketing to engage with a wider audience.

4.0 KEY UPDATES

PERFORMANCE

4.1 There is still an ongoing improvement in road safety with 26 fewer injury collisions in 
2020 compared to 2019 and 63 fewer than the average of the previous 5 years 
(2015-2019). In 2020 Wirral had 105 KSI casualties (an increase of 21 compared to 
2019), however there were 10 fewer KSI casualties in 2020 compared to the same 5 
year average 2015-2019. It should be noted that the performance outturn for 2019 
was notably lower than the previous reductions with 84 KSI casualties recorded.

4.2 During 2020 with the Covid-19 pandemic significantly altering vehicle journeys and 
modes of travel with significant increases in the numbers of people choosing to walk 
and cycle for leisure and exercise during the various lockdowns and restrictions. 
Whilst there are increases in pedestrian and cycle casualties including KSIs in 2020 
compared to 2019, compared to the more stable averages of the previous 5 years 
Chart 1 shown in Appendix A shows the comparative breakdown of KSI casualties 
by mode of travel between the 5 year average and 2020.

Page 13



EDUCATION AND PARTNERSHIP WORKING

4.3 The wider road safety team within Neighbourhoods continue to develop and deliver 
programmes to reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured on the road 
network. 

4.4 Covid-19 brought about considerable changes in individuals’ travel choices and 
behaviours. In the UK, road traffic volumes fell by a UK nation-wide average of 85%, 
to levels not seen since the mid-1950s. With Government advice being to stay 
indoors and restrict unnecessary travel, the reduction in motorised traffic on the 
network led to reports of increased vehicle speeds. Simultaneously, a decrease in 
the numbers of people using public transport, an upsurge in active travel (walking 
and cycling) and a fast-growing gig economy changed the road network almost 
overnight.

4.5 This changing landscape has posed challenges in road safety and presented 
opportunities to modernise delivery mechanisms. Road Safety education 
programmes have historically been delivered via face-to-face engagement.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

4.6 In March 2020 the rolling education programme delivered in schools to pupils from 
Year 6, Year 7 and Year 10 was placed on hold. During this period the following has 
been provided:

 Additional teacher/parent led resources have been regularly provided to all schools 
in the borough. 

 Tailored support has been provided to schools in how they comply with social 
distancing regulations at the start and end of the school day, with School Crossing 
Patrols working extended hours to meet the demand. Temporary road closures 
have been implemented and coordination of enforcement and education with key 
stakeholders including the Council’s NSL Parking Enforcement contractor and 
Merseyside Police have targeted where concerns have been raised in addition to 
the rolling programme of parking enforcement.

 Partnership work with Bikeright, (the supplier for cycle training across Liverpool 
City Region (LCR) to encourage schools to book onto cycle training previously 
cancelled owing to Covid. Cycle Training has been delivered to 1141 pupils since 
March 2020.

 In July 2021 we piloted a new course combining practical and theory training at 
Ridgeway High School. Pending evaluation, this could see the introduction of a 
new delivery mechanism for Secondary Schools from September onwards. 

 A new delivery mechanism ensuring targeted resources to wider range of year 
groups is in development.

CYCLISTS

4.7 Wirral Council’s Road Safety Team led on the development of a Cycling Action Plan 
across the LCR. The team were awarded £40,000 to deliver programmes across the 
LCR in partnership with Sefton Council and colleagues from the Merseyside Road 

Page 14



Safety Officer Group (MERSOG).  In addition to the local support for schools, this 
action plan included the following benefits for Wirral:

 Provision of free adult cycle training across the Liverpool City Region (LCR).
 Bus back campaign, following the upsurge in the numbers of people cycling 

‘Imagine it is someone you know’ campaign raises awareness across the LCR of 
the importance of sharing the road safely with cyclists.

 Resources purchased for Merseyside Police to enable Close Pass operations to 
be set up (educating drivers about the minimum space needed when overtaking 
cyclists).

 Leaflets distributed to all Wirral bike shops to distribute at point of sale, promoting 
cycle training opportunities for residents. 

 Development of a cycling ambassador scheme (providing cycle training to 
Merseyside Police Officers) enabling accessible engagement in our public spaces.

 Support and promotion of Learn to Ride sessions over school holidays for children.
 Commissioned an audit of all existing cycling resources (training, bike shops, 

maintenance etc) to establish a central hub for residents to access local support 
and identify the gaps in provision for planning opportunities. This information will 
be hosted on the Combined Authorities web page.

 Sourced a training package for e-cargo bike to support the Council’s successful 
Energy Saving Trust bid.

 Funded targeted advertisements to promote free cycle training on Facebook and 
Twitter 

YOUNG DRIVERS

4.8 Wirral Council is the lead development partner in the multi-agency initiative Engage. 
Engage aims to reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured on the roads 
by training smarter drivers. The programme achieves this by providing enhanced 
training and resources to driving instructors, who then educate their learners on key 
casualty causation factors for the age group. 

 Over 70 Driving Instructors attended our February 2020 seminar, the following month 
driving instructors were unable to deliver due to Covid-19 restrictions.  The scheme 
underwent a full review with significant changes implemented to create an online 
delivery platform to future proof the development of the initiative. In addition, a suite 
of new in-car lesson plans has been developed to educate novice drivers for the 
benefit of all road users who share the network.

BUSINESS DRIVERS

4.9 Mind Your Business is Wirral Council’s award-winning project targeted at business 
owners and employees with the aim to raise awareness of the risks whilst driving for 
work through engagement, training, and seminars.

 Introduction of a quarterly newsletter for registered businesses. Feedback is 
positive and often the newsletter is shared to their employees.

 Submission to the National Transport Awards 2020. Organisers have put this on 
hold until restrictions are lifted.

Page 15

https://roadsafetygb.org.uk/news/merseyside-latest-partnership-to-launch-close-pass-initiative-5898/
https://engagedriving.co.uk/


 Partnership development with How’s My Driving following a successful bid to the 
Road Safety Trust. SME companies in Wirral have access for one year to a fleet 
management scheme with the aim of drivers self-regulating their driver behaviour.

 Two online seminars have been delivered for Wirral businesses in partnership 
with Agilisys, Transport Behaviour Consultants. 

 Drink and Drug campaign resources delivered to businesses including the Euro 
Football Campaign wall planner, breathalysers and morning after drink drive 
leaflets.

SENIOR ROAD USER EDUCATION (60+)

4.10 Wirral Council’s Road Safety Team was previously awarded funding to develop the 
Drive Safely for Longer initiative, providing driving assessments for residents aged 
60+ across the Liverpool City Region. 

4.11 In March 2020 driving instructors were unable to deliver driving assessments in line 
with Covid 19 Government. Senior road users were placed on the vulnerable group, 
the Road Safety Team was concerned about increased risks for this age group due 
to the increase in cyclists, pedestrians, faster speeds of traffic. In addition, a period 
of isolation for the target group could lead to a decrease in skills and confidence. 

 

 The Road Safety Team submitted a supplementary bid to access funding for the 
development of a virtual, interactive session. Initial evaluation is positive and the 
next virtual session will be held in September 2021. As restrictions allow, face to 
face engagement will be reintroduced.

SAFER ROADS WATCH 

4.12 Wirral Council are working closely with Merseyside Police to develop the Safer 
Roads Watch initiative. The Road Safety Team have identified a lead from within the 
team who will oversee local development including:

 the introduction of new promotional resources 
 commission and development of an online training procedure to streamline the 

recruitment of volunteers, providing a test pass and certificate of proof of completion 
 purchasing of equipment for Wirral volunteers 

COMMUNICATION AND MARKETING

4.13 A messaging campaign has been developed using behavioural science to inform our 
messages campaign which will commence from September 2021 onwards.

SCHOOL STREETS 

4.14 Wirral Council has been successful in securing funding from Department for 
Transport through the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority as part of Tranche 
2 of the governments Active Travel Fund (ATF). The purpose of the fund is to 

Page 16



implement measures that create an environment that is safer for both walking and 
cycling. 

4.15 In line with the funding criteria and with guidance from the Combined Authority three 
locations for school streets projects within Wirral were put forward for funding, 
subject to consultation. In addition to the ATF schemes, a further three locations for 
school streets projects are also being funded by the Combined Authority Transport 
Plan Capital Programme. 

4.16 Good progress has been made on finalising outline designs, collecting baseline 
traffic data, preparing consultation material, permit management and recruiting 
additional resource to support schools with these new initiatives. The ATF schemes 
have been developed and discussed in liaison with individual schools and Ward 
Members.  

4.17 Schemes will involve the introduction of experimental traffic regulation orders 
prohibiting motor vehicles during the relevant times, except for access by designated 
classes of vehicles (including but not limited to emergency services, utilities, 
residents) and those with specific permits. Preliminary consultation is anticipated to 
commence during the Autumn on the ATF schemes with a view to schemes ‘going 
live’ later in the year.

4.18 Utilising external funding, a dedicated School Streets Officer will be recruited into the 
Road Safety Team. Their role will be to support school communities in developing 
initiatives to encourage safer active travel on the journey to and from school. 

4.19 Modeshift provides a travel plan framework to promote safe, active, sustainable travel. 
A licence has been purchased for Modeshift Stars to formalise our approach across 
Wirral Schools. Schools will be required to survey the school community, identify the 
barriers to active travel, adopt an action plan, set targets and deliver evaluated 
initiatives, with the support of the dedicated School Streets Officer. Schools will submit 
their progress for accreditation via the National Accreditation scheme enabling Wirral 
Council to monitor the success across the borough

SPEED MANAGEMENT

4.20 Wirral Council and Merseyside Police have been working together to reduce speeds 
on selected routes across the borough through the use of education, enforcement, 
engineering and monitoring measures.  Other initiatives associated with speed 
management in Wirral include Community Speed Watch, Vehicle Activated Signs 
(VAS), Safety Camera Partnership, review of speed limits on selected routes and 
within selected areas, and highway improvement schemes. Speed management 
schemes will continue to be considered and prioritised as part of our annual Local 
Safety Scheme review.

WIDESPREAD 20MPH SPEED LIMITS

4.21 Members have requested officers to consider the introduction of 20mph in all areas 
that are predominantly residential, retail or educational. Officers have revisited the 
previous widespread 20mph speed limit project initiated during 2012 where wards 
were divided into areas varying from 7-14 for each ward. In total this split the 

Page 17



Borough down into 132 ‘zones’. The size and extent of the zones varied. Officers 
identified the zones using a variety of factors, including officers’ knowledge, schools, 
comments/concerns from residents/Members to ensure an ‘even spread’ across the 
Borough. It was considered that grouping roads together to form a 20mph speed limit 
area would achieve greater compliance and consistency. Isolating roads could 
potentially create additional traffic onto adjoining side roads and generate extra 
signage.

4.22 Since 2012 the Council has introduced approximately 12 zones out of the total 132 
through the former Area Forum / Constituency Committee programmes who selected 
and prioritised a list of schemes to be considered as part of their allocated budget for 
‘Improving Road Safety’ and ‘Promoting Active Travel and Health’. The 
recommendations were identified locally through consultation with a Road Safety 
Task and Finish Group which consisted of local Ward Councillors, the Constituency 
Manager and the Council’s Road Safety Manager. The group reviewed the list of 
proposals taking into account cost and feasibility considerations identified by officers.

4.23 To assist with identifying pilot areas, an analysis of existing casualty records 
involving vulnerable roads users including pedestrians, cyclists and motor cyclists 
has been undertaken across the borough during the last 5 year study period. The 
analysis shows a low proportion of collisions within residential areas with the main 
concentration of collisions having occurred on our main arterial network. 

4.24 In accordance with Department for Transport guidance, 20mph speed limits can be 
considered on residential roads in the Borough where it is anticipated that mean 
vehicle speeds are already at or below 24mph. This obviously excludes the small 
number of residential roads where 20mph Zones with traffic calming measures are 
already in place. 

4.25 The implementation of further widespread 20mph limits will need to follow a 
systematic process which includes the following stages:

 analysis of collision data;
 speed surveys;
 development of the proposal;
 consultation with Members, emergency services, residents, any other 

appropriate parties;
 formalisation of legal Road Traffic Regulation Order; and implementation 

(signs, lining and other works).

4.26 This project as a whole would require funding in the region of £1.5m and external 
support from specialist advisors to support delivery and prioritisation of schemes.

4.27 Officers are in the process of finalising a draft project brief which will be developed 
further with existing specialist advisors. This is expected to be completed by 
December 2021. 

4.28 An outline programme including details on phasing and delivery will be reported to 
the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee during early 2022 
for potential inclusion within the Integrated Transport Block of the new 5 year 
2022/23-2025/26 City Region Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS). Subject to 

Page 18



agreement and receiving the necessary funding, it is anticipated that commencement 
of this project would start from March 2022. 

LOCAL JOURNEY AND SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS

4.29 Officers are continuing the significant detailed design and consultation work required 
to facilitate the implementation of the programme of work approved by this 
committee in March 2021 as set out in Appendix A and will bring forward a full 5 year 
programme for consideration early in 2022 based on the indicative CRSTS 
allocation.

LINKS TO THE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY 2021-2026

4.30    Road Safety is now included as one of the ten priority themes in the new Wirral 
Community Safety Strategy 2021-2026, bringing all key safety concerns in the 
borough under one overarching strategy. 

4.31 It is anticipated that the Strategy will create improved synergies and understanding 
between all partners, creating mutual support and greater opportunities for joint 
working. In addition, a specific aim of road safety under the Strategy is to highlight 
and promote road safety as the responsibility of all our residents, communities and 
visitors, alongside the more obvious engineering solutions.

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.1 All approved schemes for 2021/22 are funded from the Combined Authority 
allocation for Integrated Transport Block (ITB), which is £1.15m, and the Department 
for Transport Active Travel Fund. It is anticipated that the new CRSTS allocation for 
Wirral over 5 years from 2022 will be between £5m and £11m. There are no direct 
revenue implications associated with this report but match funding may be necessary 
to secure maximum grant allocations in some cases.  Any team resource 
requirements will be met from the 2021/22 Neighbourhoods service review budget 
option savings. 

5.2 Where schemes listed under section 4.0 cannot be financed solely from Liverpool 
City Region Combined Authority grant funding, consideration will be given to 
supplementary Council Capital Programme submissions on safety related business 
cases.

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The Council has statutory duties as defined by the Highways Act 1980, Road
Traffic Regulations Act 1984, Road Traffic Act 1988, Local Government Act
and the Traffic Management Act 2004 to maintain, manage and improve the 
highway. 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

7.1 Existing staff resources will be used for the detailed investigation, design and 
supervision of these schemes, supplemented by external support where required. 

Page 19



7.2 Future revenue maintenance costs will be met from the Highway Maintenance 
Revenue Budget.

8.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

8.1 Failure to undertake the identified programme of works listed in Appendix A could 
result in the Council not meeting its Statutory Duties as set out in the Highways Act 
1980, Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984, Road Traffic Act 1988, Local Government
Act 2000 and the Traffic Management Act 2004.

8.2 Failure to undertake the identified programme of works would also result in a
failure to support the delivery of the priorities of the Liverpool City Region
Combined Authority Transport Plan. Consequently, this could result in the loss or 
clawback of funding.

8.3 The list of schemes identified has been prepared with initial estimates, however it 
should be noted that final schemes will be subject to the costing of detailed designs 
and statutory undertakers’ works and further detailed investigations will be required 
prior to any final scheme being designed. Some of these schemes may also be 
subject to the requirement of a Traffic Regulation Order(s), and delivery may be 
dependent on resolving objections to proposals during consultation.

9.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

9.1 Wirral Council has a statutory consultation processes that is required for the 
undertaking of work on the adopted highway which will require public consultation, 
objections to which would be considered under the Scheme of Delegation in the 
Council’s Constitution or by the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee once a level of objections have been reached exceeding the current 
scheme of Delegation number. 

9.2 Some of the identified schemes will be subject to the requirements of a Traffic 
Regulation Order (TRO) process.

9.3 The initial statutory advertising process for the TRO proposals will require publication 
of notices at all sites affected by the proposals and in the press with an appropriate 
objection period. All Party Spokespersons and Ward Councillors will be informed.

9.4 Legal notices and maps of the areas affected by the TRO will be prepared as part of 
the consultation process.

10.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The Council has an obligation under the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector 
Equality duty (Sect 149 2011) to show due regard to the duty and show due regard 
to mitigate any negative impacts that may affect people with protected characteristics 
under the Act.  

10.2 This report is concerned with updating Members on strategy and programmes, so 
there are no direct equality implications arising from this report and no impact 

Page 20



assessment is included. Equalities considerations are built into the design and 
procurement processes for any work commissioned to deliver the road safety strategy, 
and any equality implications and impact statements will be considered at the 
appropriate stage. 

10.3 As part of the development of Local Transport Plan 3, a comprehensive Integrated 
Assessment (IA) was carried out in accordance with Government LTP Guidance. The 
IA included a number of assessments, including an Equality Impact Assessment that 
can demonstrate that there are no negative implications associated with the 
implementation of these activities on the ‘protected characteristics’. The proposed 
programme of works that supports the Combined Authority Transport Plan programme 
includes measures to assist the transport needs of all sections of the community.

11.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The proposed programme of works set out in Appendix A of this report and schemes 
detailed under section 4.0 generally have environmental benefits. Many of the Local 
Journey and Network Management projects are aimed at improving access to the 
highway network which will help to support better air quality across the borough and 
also enable a greater number of journeys to be undertaken by sustainable modes, 
therefore reducing residents reliance on the private car and reducing carbon 
emissions. Other projects will improve environmental safety for highway users.

REPORT AUTHOR: Carl Amos
(Carl Amos, Senior Network Manager)
telephone: 0151 606 2004 
email:  carlamos@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix A – COMPARATIVE BREAKDOWN OF KSI CASUALTIES BY MODE OF 
TRAVEL BETWEEN THE 5 YEAR AVERAGE AND 2020

Appendix B - 2021-22 COMBINED AUTHORITY TRANSPORT PLAN CAPITAL 
PROGRAMME

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Transport Plan
https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/LCRCA-TRANSPORT-
PLAN.pdf

DFT Road Safety Research Report no.108 ‘Contribution of Local Safety Schemes to 
Casualty Reduction’: 
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20090417002224/http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/roads
afety/research/rsrr/theme5/rsrr108.pdf

LTP3 Integrated Assessment 
See attached document

Page 21

https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/LCRCA-TRANSPORT-PLAN.pdf
https://www.liverpoolcityregion-ca.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/LCRCA-TRANSPORT-PLAN.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20090417002224/http:/www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/roadsafety/research/rsrr/theme5/rsrr108.pdf
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20090417002224/http:/www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/roadsafety/research/rsrr/theme5/rsrr108.pdf


SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee – Combined Authority Transport Plan 
(Integrated Transport Block) Programme 2021 / 22

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee – Road Safety Working Group Final 
Report

16th March 2021

16th March 2021

Page 22



APPENDIX A - COMPARATIVE BREAKDOWN OF KSI CASUALTIES BY MODE OF 
TRAVEL BETWEEN THE 5 YEAR AVERAGE AND 2020

Child Pedestrian, 6, 5%

Adult Pedestrian, 25, 
21%

Adult Motorcycles, 29, 
25%

Child Motorcyles, 1, 
1%

Adult P/Cycle, 16, 14%

Child P/Cycle, 4, 3%

Adult Car, 32, 27%

Child Car, 3, 2%
Adult Bus, 0, 0%

Child Bus, 0, 0% Adult Other, 2, 2%

0, 0%

Average KSI Casualties 2015-19 

Child Pedestrian, 6, 6%

Adult Pedestrian, 19, 
18%

Adult Motorcycles, 18, 
17%

Child Motorcyles, 0, 
0%

Adult P/Cycle, 16, 15%

Child P/Cycle, 11, 10%

Adult Car, 26, 25%

Child Car, 3, 3%

Adult Bus, 0, 0%
Child Bus, 0, 0%

Adult Other, 6, 6%

Child Other, 0, 0%

KSI Casualties 2020

For those who experience difficulties in viewing the above charts please contact 0151 606 
2004 and arrangements can be made to provide this information in an alternative format.  

Page 23



APPENDIX B

2021-22 COMBINED AUTHORITY TRANSPORT PLAN CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

ITB BLOCK 
THEME

SCHEME OUTPUT / LOCATION
LCR COMBINED 

AUTHORITY TRANSPORT 
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES 

REFRESHED WIRRAL PLAN 
2021 to 2026

ALLOCATION

Local Journey & 
Safety 
Improvements – 
various locations

1. Bidston Link Road/M53 J1, 
Bidston & St James: VAS and 
junction warning measures;

2. Derby Road, Birkenhead & 
Tranmere: Pedestrian 
Crossing;

3. Hoylake Road (Borrowdale 
Road/Joan Ave), Moreton 
West and Saughall Massie; 
build out & junction 
improvements;

4. Kings Lane, Bebington: VAS 
and junction visibility 
improvements;

5. Mount Road, Bebington: 
signage and drainage 
measures;

6. Reeds Lane/Birkett Avenue, 
Leasowe and Moreton East: 
Pedestrian refuge and junction 
improvements;

7. Bedford Drive, Rock Ferry: 
Signage improvements;

8. Noctorum Avenue/Noctorum 
Way, Claughton: Pedestrian 
refuge, barrier railings and 
VAS measures;

Inclusive economic growth

Modern, safe, clean, 
healthy and inclusive 
journeys 

Air quality/zero carbon 

Well maintained and 
resilient 

A cleaner greener Borough that 
celebrates, protects and is an 
improved environment and 
urgently tackles the 
environment emergency

Safe vibrant communities 
where people want to live and 
raise their families

A prosperous, inclusive 
economy where local people 
can get good jobs and achieve 
their aspirations

£410,000

P
age 24



9. Market Street, Hoylake and 
Meols (Holy Trinity) pedestrian 
improvements;

10.Thingwall Road, Greasby, 
Frankby and Irby: Refuge;  

11.Village Road & Mill Lane, 
Bebington: Traffic 
management measures

Traffic Signal 
Improvements – 
various locations

1. Borough Road/Singleton 
Avenue, Prenton & Oxton: 
Traffic signal upgrade with 
improved pedestrian facilities;

2. Heath Road/Cross Lane, 
Bebington: Pedestrian 
crossing upgrade;

3. Hoylake Road/Hurrell Road, 
Bidston & St James: 
Pedestrian crossing upgrade;

4. Leasowe Road/Heyes Drive, 
Leasowe and Moreton East: 
Pedestrian crossing upgrade;

5. King Street/Trafalgar Road, 
Liscard: Pedestrian crossing 
upgrade

Well maintained and 
resilient 

Inclusive economic growth 

Modern, safe, clean, 
healthy and inclusive 
journeys 

Safe vibrant communities 
where people want to live and 
raise their families

A prosperous, inclusive 
economy where local people 
can get good jobs and achieve 
their aspirations

£350,000

Pedestrian Access 
Improvements – 
various locations

Dropped kerb facilities focusing on
key strategic routes to employment, 
healthcare, shopping areas etc.

Inclusive economic growth

Modern, safe, clean, 
healthy and inclusive 
journeys 

Air quality/zero carbon

A cleaner greener Borough that 
celebrates, protects and is an 
improved environment and 
urgently tackles the 
environment emergency

£150,000

P
age 25



Well maintained and 
resilient 

Safe vibrant communities 
where people want to live and 
raise their families

A prosperous, inclusive 
economy where local people 
can get good jobs and achieve 
their aspirations

Public Rights of 
Way Improvements 
– various locations

Various low-cost measures to
improve Wirral’s Footpaths,
Bridleways and ‘Byways Open to All 
Traffic’

1. Footpath 6, Acres Road, 
Meols, surface improvements;                             

2. Footpath 72, Dungeon Wood, 
revetment to repair;                                      

3. Dibbinsdale Bridge Repairs;                                                                         
4. Footpath 68 Harrock Wood / 

footpath 45, new bridge 
alongside steps;       

5. Telegraph Road Cycle Track: 
clean up and extra dual use 
signs;               

6. Bridleway 3, Park Lane, 
Meols, access point, new 
gates etc;                       

7. Footpath 3 Frankby – RAF 
Camp: new footbridge over 
Newton Brook;       

8. Footpath 43, new kissing gate 
and surface improvements;                         

Modern, safe, clean, 
healthy and inclusive 
journeys

Air quality/zero carbon

Modern, safe, clean, 
healthy and inclusive 
journeys 

A cleaner greener Borough that 
celebrates, protects and is an 
improved environment and 
urgently tackles the 
environment emergency

Safe vibrant communities 
where people want to live and 
raise their families;

£80,000

P
age 26



9. Footpath 12, Birch Heys – 
Grange Cross Lane path 
improvements;            

10.West Kirby beach RLGC 
Permissive Path & Board 
Walk;                            

11.Footpath 30, Thornton Manor 
replace sleeper bridges;                                

12.Wirral Circular Trail Signs 
audit & replacement if missing 
or damaged;      

13.B&Q Cycle Track: surface 
improvements re subsidence;                          

14.Riverview Road – Eastham 
Country Park Cycle Path 
improvements          

Transportation – 
General

Advanced design, forward planning 
and research monitoring

Inclusive economic growth

Modern, safe, clean, 
healthy and inclusive 
journeys 

Air quality/zero carbon

Well maintained and 
resilient 

A cleaner greener Borough that 
celebrates, protects and is an 
improved environment and 
urgently tackles the 
environment emergency

Safe vibrant communities 
where people want to live and 
raise their families

A prosperous, inclusive 
economy where local people 
can get good jobs and achieve 
their aspirations

£100,000

Road Safety 
Education & 
Promotion

Schemes to be supported by road 
safety education, training and 
publicity.

Inclusive economic growth A cleaner greener Borough that 
celebrates, protects and is an 
improved environment and 

£60,000

P
age 27



Modern, safe, clean, 
healthy and inclusive 
journeys 

Air quality/zero carbon 

Well maintained and 
resilient 

urgently tackles the 
environment emergency

Safe vibrant communities 
where people want to live and 
raise their families

A prosperous, inclusive 
economy where local people 
can get good jobs and achieve 
their aspirations

£1,150,000

P
age 28



Merseyside Local 
Transport Plan 3 

Sustainability Appraisal Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment

December 2010

Merseyside Transport Partnership

Page 71Page 29



Page 72Page 30



269445 EVT EMS 002 B

http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

17 December 2010

Merseyside Local 
Transport Plan 3 

Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic Environmental Assessment 

December 2010

Merseyside Transport Partnership

Mott MacDonald, Spring Bank House, 33 Stamford Street, Altrincham, Cheshire WA14 1ES, United Kingdom

T +44(0) 161 926 4000   F +44(0) 161 926 4100, www.mottmac.com

24 Hatton Garden
Liverpool
L3 2AN

Page 73Page 31



Page 74Page 32



Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Mott MacDonald, Spring Bank House, 33 Stamford Street, Altrincham, Cheshire WA14 1ES, United Kingdom

T +44(0) 161 926 4000   F +44(0) 161 926 4100, www.mottmac.com

Revision Date Originator Checker Approver Description
A 20.10.10 N Levy K Leather E Thomas Draft for comment

B 17.12.10 G Middleton N Levy K Leather Revision incorporating Consultee 
Comments

Issue and revision record

This document is issued for the party which commissioned it 
and for specific purposes connected with the above-captioned 

project only. It should not be relied upon by any other party or 
used for any other purpose.

We accept no responsibility for the consequences of this 
document being relied upon by any other party, or being used 

for any other purpose, or containing any error or omission which 
is due to an error or omission in data supplied to us by other 

parties

This document contains confidential information and proprietary 
intellectual property. It should not be shown to other parties 

without consent from us and from the party which 
commissioned it.

Page 75Page 33



Page 76Page 34



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Chapter Title Page

Abbreviations i

Glossary iii

Non-Technical Summary v

1. Introduction 1

1.1 Terms of Reference _________________________________________________________________ 1

1.2 Purpose of SA/SEA and the SA Report __________________________________________________ 1

1.3 Structure of the SA Report ____________________________________________________________ 1

1.3.1 Components that make up the SA Report_________________________________________________ 2

1.4 Limitations of the SA/SEA_____________________________________________________________ 2

2. Approach to the SA/SEA 4

2.1 Strategic Environmental Assessment Legislative Requirements _______________________________ 4

2.2 Sustainability Appraisal Legislative Requirements __________________________________________ 4

2.3 Integrating NATA into the SA/SEA Process _______________________________________________ 4

2.4 Integrated Assessment Project Team ____________________________________________________ 6

2.5 Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA Timetable ____________________________________________________ 7

2.6 SA/SEA Methodology ________________________________________________________________ 8

2.7 Scoping Consultation Results _________________________________________________________ 10

2.8 SA Report Consultation Results _______________________________________________________ 10

3. LTP3 Context 11

3.1 Context and Background_____________________________________________________________ 11

3.2 Merseyside LTP3 Vision and Goals ____________________________________________________ 12

4. Stage A Scoping Results 13

4.1 Relationship with other Plans and Programmes ___________________________________________ 13

4.1.1 Introduction _______________________________________________________________________ 13

4.1.2 Policy Context _____________________________________________________________________ 16

4.2 Baseline Conditions and Sustainability Issues ____________________________________________ 20

4.2.1 Baseline Conditions ________________________________________________________________ 20

4.2.2 Evolution of the Baseline_____________________________________________________________ 20

4.2.3 Key Issues _______________________________________________________________________ 21

4.3 Developing the SA/SEA Framework ____________________________________________________ 27

4.3.1 Developing SA/SEA Objectives _______________________________________________________ 27

4.3.2 Developing SA/SEA Indicators ________________________________________________________ 28

5. Compatibility of LTP3 and SA/SEA Objectives 31

5.1 Testing the LTP3 Objectives against the SA/SEA Objectives_________________________________ 31

5.2 Compatibility Summary ______________________________________________________________ 33

Content

Page 77Page 35



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

6. Development and Appraisal of LTP3 Strategic Options 34

6.1 Development of LTP3 Preferred Strategy ________________________________________________ 34

6.2 Appraisal of LTP3 Strategic Options____________________________________________________ 34

7. Appraisal of LTP3 Strategy 37

7.1 Assessment Workshop ______________________________________________________________ 37

7.2 Appraisal Results __________________________________________________________________ 38

7.2.1 LTP3 Goal One Appraisal ____________________________________________________________ 39

7.2.2 LTP3 Goal One Summary____________________________________________________________ 39

7.2.3 LTP3 Goal Two Appraisal ____________________________________________________________ 39

7.2.4 LTP3 Goal Two Summary____________________________________________________________ 40

7.2.5 LTP3 Goal Three Appraisal___________________________________________________________ 42

7.2.6 LTP3 Goal Three Summary __________________________________________________________ 42

7.2.7 LTP3 Goal Four Appraisal____________________________________________________________ 43

7.2.8 LTP3 Goal Four Summary ___________________________________________________________ 44

7.2.9 LTP3 Goal Five Appraisal ____________________________________________________________ 46

7.2.10 LTP3 Goal Five Summary____________________________________________________________ 46

7.2.11 LTP3 Goal Six Appraisal_____________________________________________________________ 47

7.2.12 LTP3 Goal Six Summary_____________________________________________________________ 48

7.3 Cumulative Assessment _____________________________________________________________ 48

7.3.1 Cumulative effects on each goal_______________________________________________________ 48

7.3.2 Cumulative effects on each SA/SEA objective ____________________________________________ 49

7.4 Assessment of the LTP3 Major Schemes ________________________________________________ 49

7.5 Risks, Uncertainties and Assumptions __________________________________________________ 57

8. SA/SEA Mitigation and Enhancement 58

8.1 Mitigation and Enhancement Measures _________________________________________________ 58

8.2 Major Schemes Mitigation and Enhancement_____________________________________________ 63

9. Conclusions 64

9.1 Overall Conclusions ________________________________________________________________ 64

9.2 Incorporating the Results of the SA/SEA into the LTP3 _____________________________________ 64

9.2.1 Informing development of the LTP3 ____________________________________________________ 64

9.2.2 Mitigation and Enhancement Measures following Implementation of the LTP3 ___________________ 65

10. Implementation and Monitoring 66

10.1 Links to Other Tiers of Plans, Programmes and the Project Level _____________________________ 66

10.2 Proposals for Monitoring _____________________________________________________________ 66

11. References 70

Appendices 71

Appendix A. Scoping Report Comments___________________________________________________________ 72

Appendix B. Policies, Plans, Programmes and Environmental Objectives relevant to the Merseyside LTP3 _______ 83

Appendix C. Baseline Conditions and Key Issues___________________________________________________ 114

Appendix D. Appraisal Tables __________________________________________________________________ 162

Page 78Page 36



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.1. Goal One Appraisal________________________________________________________________ 163

D.2. Goal Two Appraisal (Part 1) _________________________________________________________ 168

D.3. Goal Two Appraisal (Part 2) _________________________________________________________ 174

D.4. Goal Three Appraisal ______________________________________________________________ 181

D.5. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 1) _________________________________________________________ 189

D.6. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 2) _________________________________________________________ 194

D.7. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 3) _________________________________________________________ 198

D.8. Goal Five Appraisal________________________________________________________________ 203

D.9. Goal Five Appraisal (Part 2) _________________________________________________________ 214

D.10. Goal Six Appraisal_________________________________________________________________ 218

Appendix E. SA/SEA Consultation Reponses______________________________________________________ 222

Page 79Page 37



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

i

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

AMR Annual Monitoring Report

AONB Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty

AQMA Air Quality Management Area

BAP Biodiversity Action Plan

BC Borough Council

CHD Coronary Heart Disease

CO2 Carbon Dioxide

DaSTS Delivering a Sustainable Transport System

DCLG Department of Communities and Local Government

DEFRA Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

DfT Department for Transport

EC European Community

EqIA Equality Impact Assessment

EU European Union

HIA Health Impact Assessment

HRA Habitat Regulations Assessment

IA Integrated Assessment

IMD Index of Multiple Deprivation

LADs Local Authority Districts

LDF Local Development Framework

LTP Local Transport Plan

LTP2 Second Local Transport Plan

LTP3 Third Local Transport Plan

MBC Metropolitan Borough Council

NATA New Approach to Appraisal

NI National Indicator

NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide

NVQ National Vocational Qualifications

NW North West

NWDA North West Development Agency

ONS Office for National Statistics

PCT Primary Care Trust

PPG Planning Policy Guidance

PPS Planning Policy Statement

RIGS Regionally Important Geological and Geomorphological Sites

RPI Retail Price Index

Abbreviations

Page 80Page 38



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

ii

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

RSS Regional Spatial Strategy

RTS Regional Transport Strategy

SA Sustainability Appraisal

SAC Special Area of Conservation

SAM Scheduled Ancient Monument

SEA Strategic Environmental Assessment

SPA Special Protection Area

SSSI Site of Special Scientific Interest

SUDS Sustainable Urban Drainage System

TAG Transport Analysis Guidance

TaSTS Towards a Sustainable Transport System

Page 81Page 39



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

iii

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Baseline A description of the present and future state of an area, in the absence 

of any development, taking into account changes resulting from natural 

events and from other human activities

Consultation Body An authority which because of its environmental responsibilities is likely 

to be concerned by the effects of implementing plans and programmes 

and must be consulted under the SEA Directive. The Consultation 

Bodies designated in the SEA Regulations are Natural England, 

English Heritage and the Environment Agency

Climate Change 

Adaptation

Involves adjustments to natural or human systems in response to 

actual or expected climatic stimuli or their effects, which moderates 

harm or exploits beneficial opportunities

Climate Change 

Mitigation

Involves taking action to reduce the impact of human activity on the 

climate system, primarily through reducing greenhouse gas emissions

Indicator A measure of variables over time, often used to measure achievement 

of objectives

Local Development 

Framework (LDF)

Sets out, in the form of a ‘portfolio’, the Local Development Documents 

which collectively deliver the spatial planning strategy for the area in 

question. The LDF also includes the Statement of Community 

Involvement, the Local Development Scheme and the Annual 

Monitoring Report.

Mitigation Measures Refers to measures to avoid, reduce or offset significant adverse 

effects

Objective A statement of what is intended, specifying the desired direction of 

change in trends

Scoping The process of deciding the scope and level of detail of an SA, 

including the sustainability effects and options which need to be 

considered, the assessment methods to be used, and the structure and 

contents of the SA Report

SEA Directive European Directive 2001/42/EC ‘on the assessment of the effects of 

certain plans and programmes on the environment’. Transposed into 

UK law via The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes 

Regulations 2004

Strategic Environmental 

Assessment

Generic term used internationally to describe environmental 

assessment as applied to policies, plans and programmes. In this 

report, ‘SEA’ is used to refer to the type of environmental assessment 

required under the SEA Directive

Sustainability Appraisal Generic term used in this report to describe the form of assessment 

that considers environmental, social and economic effects. However, 

for this report it is not the formal process associated with the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004

Sustainability Appraisal 

Framework

This is the objectives and criteria developed for the project

Sustainability Objectives These are specific objectives that have been developed for this project. 

Glossary

Page 82Page 40



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

iv

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

They are also part of the SA Framework, against which the project 

objectives and design have been tested for the purposes of this SA

Page 83Page 41



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

v

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Introduction

Mott MacDonald was commissioned by the Merseyside Transport Partnership to 
undertake an Integrated Assessment (IA) of the Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 
(LTP3). Merseyside Transport Partnership is made up of Merseytravel (the passenger 

transport executive for Merseyside) and the Merseyside Local Authorities. An Integrated 
Assessment is made up of several different types of assessments as part of an 

integrated approach. The assessments are:
 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA);

 Sustainability Appraisal (SA);
 Health Impact Assessment (HIA);

 Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA);
 Habitat Regulations Assessment (HRA).

Separate reports have been produced for each element of the Integrated Assessment in 
order to comply with legislative requirements. This document is the Sustainability 
Appraisal (SA) Report which covers Stages A-C of the SA/SEA process as defined in the 

DfT Guidance (January 2010). The report should be read in conjunction with the
Merseyside LTP3 Strategy Document.

The Merseyside LTP3 Scoping Report was sent out for formal consultation in April 2010 
to the three statutory consultees (the Environment Agency, Natural England and English 
Heritage) and other key stakeholders. The comments received have been taken into 

consideration in preparation of the SA Report and the LTP3. The draft SA Report was 
sent out for formal consultation in November 2010 to the statutory consultees, 

stakeholders and the public. Comments received are highlighted and addressed in this 
final SA Report.

Merseyside Third Local Transport Plan

The current Merseyside Second LTP covers the period until 2011. The Merseyside LTP3 
is currently being prepared by the Merseyside Transport Partnership and will build on the 
aims and objectives of LTP2. 

The Merseyside LTP3 will consist of:   
 long term Transport Strategy – (covers period from April 2011 until March 2024); and
 short term Implementation Plan – every three years (first Plan covers period April 2011 

until March 2014).

Non-Technical Summary

Page 84Page 42



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

vi

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

The national framework for the third LTP is set by the DaSTS goals. These now replace 
the four ‘shared’ priorities that governed the second LTP. The new priorities for LTP3 

are:-
 Reduce transport’s carbon output and help tackle climate change;

 Support economic competiveness;
 Contribute to better safety, security and health;

 Promote greater equality of opportunity; and
 Improve quality of life and promote a healthy natural environment.

Scoping Results

The scoping process identified the relevant plans and programmes at International, 
National, Regional and Local level and their implications for the SA/SEA and LTP3. 
Scoping has also set the environmental, social and economic baseline context the LTP3 

area, and identified key sustainability challenges and opportunities. From an initial review 
of baseline it is likely that the following baseline trends and key issues will continue: 

 Air quality – it is likely that increased economic growth and development will lead to 
increased car use and congestion leading to localised air quality issues. National and 

local air quality targets and European Emission Standards for new cars should 
contribute to reducing this predicted increase;

 Biodiversity – it is likely that increased economic growth and development, and climate 
change effects will result in loss of habitats and species. Protection of designated 

areas should protected internationally and nationally important sites;
 Climate change – it is likely that climate change effects will continue including 

increased temperatures, gales, severe storms and flooding. It also likely that the 
number of renewable energy schemes and sites will continue to increase;

 Cultural heritage – heritage assets are likely to continue to be preserved through 
legislation. Development could put pressure on heritage assets and their setting;

 Water quality – increased economic growth is likely to cause an increase in run-off and 
potential contamination and disruption of flows for surface water and groundwater. The 

Water Framework Directive and River Basin Management Plan will help reduce this 
predicted effect on water quality as they plan on how to protect and improve 

watercourse;
 Landscape – it is likely that continued development and changing farming practices 

will affect the countryside character;
 Employment – economic growth and employment is likely to continue and the 

proportion of people of working age in employment is expected to continue to 
increase;

 Education - it is presumed that educational achievement would increase in line with 
that of the national average;

Page 85Page 43



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

vii

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

 Crime - it is likely that overall crime figures will continue to fall if current aspirations 
with respect of community are met;

 Health – obesity is a growing problem and is likely to continue. Active lifestyles and 
healthy eating campaigns will help reduce this trend;

 Waste – it is likely that current increases in recycling rates will continue.

An SA/SEA Framework consisting of sustainability objectives and indicators was 
developed for the Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA. The SA/SEA objectives for the LTP3 been 

taken forward from LTP2 to ensure consistency, and aligned to current Government 
guidance on transport including ‘Delivering a Sustainable Transport System’ (DaSTS). 

The proposed SA/SEA objectives are:
 1. To use energy, water and mineral resources prudently and efficiently, increase 

energy generated from renewable sources and reduce greenhouse gas emissions
 2. To minimise the production of waste and increase reuse, recycling and recovery 

rates
 3. To reduce poverty and social deprivation and secure economic inclusion

 4. To protect, enhance and manage Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, historical 
and built environment and archaeological assets

 5. To protect, enhance and manage biodiversity, the viability of endangered species, 
habitats and sites of geological importance

 6. To protect, enhance and manage the local character and accessibility of the 
landscape across the sub-region

 7. To protect, improve and where necessary, restore the quality of inland, estuarine 
and coastal waters

 8. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local air quality
 9. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local environmental quality

 10. To improve health and reduce health inequalities
 11. To improve safety and reduce crime, disorder and fear of crime

 12. To improve local accessibility of goods, services and amenities and reduce 
community severance

 13. To reduce the need to travel and improve choice and use of more sustainable 
transport modes

 14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate change including flood risk
 15. To protect, manage and restore land, soil quality and geodiversity

 16. To provide good quality, affordable and resource efficient housing

Assessment Results 

Options Appraisal

In developing Merseyside’s LTP3 strategy, four high level options were assessed:

Page 86Page 44



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

viii

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

 Low funding scenario;
 Strengthened low-carbon agenda;

 Concessions to motorists; agenda; and
 Strong economic recovery scenario.

Merseyside Transport Partnership took a number of factors into account when 
determining the preferred strategic option for the LTP3 strategy. The preferred option is a 
combined approach integrating ‘low funding’ and ‘low carbon’ in the short term, with a 

move towards ‘economic recovery’ in the medium term. This preferred option was taken 
forward by Merseyside Transport Partnership and developed into a detailed LTP3 

strategy document containing priorities, objectives and actions for transport in 
Merseyside. 

LTP3 Appraisal

The provisional LTP3 strategy was appraised against the sustainability framework by 
determining the level of sustainability performance of the LTP3 against each of the 
framework objectives. For each objective a score (where possible or appropriate) and 

record of decision was recorded in an appraisal matrix. A cumulative assessment for 
each LTP3 objective as a whole has also been assessed. 

Goal One Appraisal Summary

Goal One generally supports the SA/SEA objectives. The goal is mainly about 
partnerships and collaborative working. Partnership working was considered important to 
work towards national and strategic priorities such as a low carbon economy, sustainable 

waste management, improved water quality, and an integrated and fully accessible 
transport network. This would have positive effects on climate change, water quality, 

accessibility, sustainable transport, and waste. Partnership and collaborative working 
may also have social and health benefits through creating a joint approach between land 

use planning and transport integration. For example, linking deprived areas with new 
employment sites through good public transport. Wider engagement with residents will 

allow key local issues facing communities to be addressed and may encourage social 
cohesion. 

Goal Two Appraisal Summary

LTP3 Goal Two and its associated actions are likely to have either a positive or no 
interaction with the SA/SEA objectives. Infrastructure to support electric vehicles was 
considered to have positive effects on climate change, air quality and health. Several of 

the SA/SEA objectives were recorded as either having no interaction/neutral effect or the 

Page 87Page 45



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

ix

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

effect depended on implementation. Modal shift and the provision of a charging network 
for electric vehicles could have a positive effect on local accessibility if charging points 

are located where there are local services and amenities. Modal shift actions are likely to 
have positive effects on climate change, deprivation, air quality, environmental quality, 

health, accessibility and sustainable transport. Procurement policies to support the 
uptake of low emission freight vehicles were considered to positively contribute to the 

development of a low carbon transport system, having positive benefits for air quality, 
climate change and health. Measures to integrate sustainable transport planning and 

design and Low Emission Strategy principles into the planning process would produce 
positive outcomes for the majority of the SA/SEA objectives. Actions were considered to 

have potential to produce substantial measurable changes in emissions, and provide the 
opportunity to integrate climate change adaptation measures into design. However, 

stakeholders identified that such measures needed to be integrated into national, as well 
as local and regional planning policy. It was also considered that sustainable transport 

commitments made by developers may ensure that deprived social groups have better 
access to services, especially where there is affordable housing.

Goal Three Appraisal Summary

The level of support for the SA/SEA objectives varied according to the sub-topic being 
assessed. The cycling and walking sub-topic focused on increasing the network of cycle 
and walking routes, expanding cycle and rail, and cycle and bus integration, cycle 

parking, and examining funding streams for cycle training. These actions are likely to 
have positive effects on deprivation, air quality environmental quality, health, 

accessibility, sustainable transport and climate change. It was considered that the 
infrastructure required for new and improved cycle and walking routes could potentially 

negatively effect heritage assets, biodiversity and landscape, and involve landtake. 
However, walking and cycling infrastructure is likely to have less of a negative effect in 

comparison to other types of infrastructure such as roads. The road safety sub-topic 
focused on police partnerships within road safety, continued spending on road safety 

equivalent to 2010 levels, and expanding the network of low speed zones. These actions 
are likely to have positive effects for deprivation, air quality, environmental quality, health 

and safety. There may be negative effects in terms of accessibility depending on what 
road safety measures are implemented. The health and equality sub-topic focused on 

ensuring all actions are governed by the need to meet the Equalities legislation, and 
examining the potential for major development proposals to be subject to a 

transport/health impact assessment. It was considered that the majority of SA/SEA 
objectives would have no interaction/neutral effect. However, it is likely that there will 

positive effects on health and accessibility.

Goal Four Appraisal Summary

Page 88Page 46



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

x

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four and its associated actions are likely to have either a positive or no 
interaction with the SA/SEA objectives. Accessibility improvements are likely to increase 

access to local, key services and employment, helping to reduce levels of poverty and 
promote social cohesion. Such actions, if implemented are unlikely to have any effects on 

biodiversity, landscape and waste as little or no development of the existing 
transportation network will be required. Actions to improve ticketing, fares and 

information are likely to encourage a modal shift and in particular, benefit socially 
deprived areas through the provision of more affordable and discounted fares. It was, 

however highlighted that long-term commitment would be required from all operators and 
partners to ensure that the supporting actions are successfully implemented. For 

example, it is important that private bus operators work collaboratively with the health 
and education sectors to provide more efficient and reliable services. 

Goal Five Appraisal Summary

Overall the SA/SEA objectives perform well against Goal Five. A number of negative 
interactions were identified during the assessment for interventions relating to Public 
Transport and Cycling. These were mostly associated with infrastructure improvements 

to the road and rail network, for example the development of new Park and Ride sites is 
likely to have short-term construction impacts on biodiversity, water quality and heritage 

assets. Such impacts can, however be mitigated through, for example habitat creation, 
the aftercare and maintenance of landscaping and Sustainable Urban Drainage 

Techniques (SUDS). Actions to improve the movement of people and goods focus on 
promoting the use of more environmentally friendly modes. Smarter Choices and 

personal travel planning, if targeted correctly are likely to aid behaviour change and 
identify opportunities for more efficient travel patterns. Actions that address the 

maintenance of and capacity/efficiency improvements to the highways network will 
improve accessibility and environmental quality; and seek to develop the region’s 

economy. 

Goal Six Appraisal Summary

Overall, the LTP3 Goal Six and supporting actions perform neutrally or have no 
interaction against the SA/SEA objectives. The ‘Complete Asset Management’ action 

focuses on completion of the Highways Asset Management Plan/Transport Asset 
Management Plan, including the consideration of Climate Change. The ‘Produce 

effective asset management programme’ actions focus on the implementation of new 
transport projects, delivery of Liverpool’s Green Strategy and the consideration of the 

environment in planning maintenance schemes. Maintenance of the roads and rail 
network through the specified actions outlined in the Draft LTP3 strategy is likely to have 

positive effects on accessibility and efficiency. There may be some negative effects on 

Page 89Page 47



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

xi

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

climatic factors, landscape and environmental quality; however this will be dependant 
upon the specific actions that are implemented. 

Cumulative Assessment

Overall all the LTP3 goals will have positive cumulative effects in terms of reducing 
congestion and carbon emissions, encouraging healthy sustainable travel options such 
as walking and cycling, encouraging more public transport use, and providing a better 

transport network that is accessible and reliable.  Although some neutral and negative 
effects were recorded in the full assessment, it was considered that the positive effects 

have greater importance and benefits, and that some of the negative effects can be 
mitigated. Therefore, all the LTP3 goals were assessed as having a cumulative positive 

effect.

The cumulative effects of all the LTP3 goals on the individual SA/SEA objectives was 
also assessed. In general the LTP3 goals collectively support the SA/SEA objectives in 

terms of proposing actions and interventions to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, 
improving air quality and environmental quality, promoting economic inclusion, 

accessibility, sustainable transport, and safety and health benefits. There is likely to be 
both positive and negative effects on waste, heritage assets, biodiversity, landscape and 

water quality. Therefore, an overall neutral effect has been recorded. Whilst actions and 
intervention to reduce congestion and emissions may benefit biodiversity, landscape and 

water quality, they may also involve disturbance to these assets from new infrastructure. 
Land and soil has been recorded as a negative cumulative effect as many of the actions 

and interventions involve landtake.

Major Schemes Appraisal

The LTP3 includes several project specific major schemes that are either currently being 
investigated as part of the LTP3 or are proposed for implementation during the plan 

period. These major schemes have been assessed against the SA/SEA objectives to 
demonstrate their sustainability performance. 

Conclusions 

The SA/SEA process has demonstrated the predicted effects of implementing the 
Merseyside LTP3 Strategy. Overall the transport Goals and associated 
actions/interventions set out in the LTP3 are likely to have positive effects in terms of 

relieving congestion, encouraging modal shift, improving public transport, maximising use 
of the existing network, and increasing road safety, which will have positive effect on 

accessibility, health, safety, air quality, climate change, sustainable transport and 

Page 90Page 48



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

xii

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

economic development. Some measures outlined in the LTP3 are likely to have negative 
effects, such as landtake, habitat loss, waste generation, resource use and disturbance 

to heritage assets. 

Mitigation and enhancement measures have been suggested to help enhance and 
mitigate the predicted effects of implementing the LTP3. Mitigation measures include 

measures that can be used to inform the development of the LTP3 e.g. changes to 
strategy wording, addition of interventions etc; and measures to be taken following 

implementation of the LTP3 e.g. design, construction, operation and maintenance 
mitigation and enhancements.

Monitoring the significant sustainability effects of implementing the LTP3 is an essential 
ongoing element of the SA/SEA process. Monitoring ensures that the identified SA/SEA 
objectives are being achieved, allows early identification of unforeseen adverse effects 

and thus appropriate remedial action can be taken. Monitoring will be an important 
requirement to measure performance and ensure the LTP3 is being successfully 

implemented. Monitoring proposals have been developed based in the SA/SEA 
indicators and focus on predicted significant affects.

Page 91Page 49



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

1

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

1.1 Terms of Reference

Mott MacDonald was commissioned by the Merseyside Transport Partnership to undertake an Integrated 

Assessment (IA) of the Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3). Merseyside Transport Partnership 

consists of Merseytravel (the passenger transport executive for Merseyside) and the Merseyside Local 

Authorities). An Integrated Assessment is a process which involves several different types of assessments 

as part of an integrated approach. The assessments are:

 Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA);

 Sustainability Appraisal (SA);

 Health Impact Assessment (HIA);

 Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA);

 Habitat Regulations Assessment (HRA).

The Integrated Assessment was undertaken in accordance with the Department for Transport (DfT) Draft 

Guidance ‘Strategic Environmental Assessment for Transport Plans and Programmes – TAG Unit 2.11D’ 

(Janaury 2010), the SEA Directive and resulting Regulations, the Race Relations Act, and the Habitats 

Directive and Regulations. Separate reports are being produced for each element of the Integrated 

Assessment in order to comply with legislative requirements.

This document is the Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Report which covers Stages A-C of the SA/SEA process 

as defined in the DfT Guidance. The report should be read in conjunction with the Merseyside LTP3

Strategy Document. 

1.2 Purpose of SA/SEA and the SA Report

This SA Report is required as an output of the appraisal process by Article 5(1) of the SEA Directive, and 

Stage C of the Department for Transport (DfT) ‘Strategic Environmental Assessment for Transport Plans 

and Programmes – TAG Unit 2.11D’. The report presents information on the effects of the Plan, which 

forms the basis for formal consultation. This report also includes the findings from Stage A of the SA/SEA 

process as set out in the Scoping Report (April 2010).

1.3 Structure of the SA Report

The SA Report has been structured into the following Chapters:

 Chapter 1: Introduction – sets out the terms of reference for the project, purpose of the SA/SEA, 

components in the SA Report that are required by the SEA Directive and any limitations of the SA/SEA;

 Chapter 2: Approach to the SA/SEA – details the legislative requirements for SA and SEA, the project 

team and timetable, the methodology used and scoping consultation results;

 Chapter 3: LTP3 Context – presents information about the context and process of LTP3, and the LTP3 

objectives and priorities; 

 Chapter 4: Stage A Scoping Results – presents information from the Scoping Report including the 

review of plans and programmes, baseline information, evolution of the baseline, key challenges and 

opportunities, and the SA/SEA Framework;

 Chapter 5: Compatibility of LTP3 and SA/SEA Objectives – demonstrates whether the LTP3 and 

SA/SEA objectives support or conflict with each other;

 Chapter 6: Development and Appraisal of LTP3 Strategic Options – details the strategic options 

considered for LTP3, an assessment of the options, and the preferred option;

1. Introduction

Page 92Page 50



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

2

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

 Chapter 7: Appraisal of LTP3 Strategy – presents the results of the assessment of the LTP3 strategy, 

the assessment workshop methodology, and any assumptions, risk or uncertainties encountered in the 

assessment;

 Chapter 8: SA/SEA Mitigation and Enhancement – details the mitigation and enhancement measures 

proposed for the LTP3 as a result of the assessment;

 Chapter 9: Conclusions – provides an overall conclusions to the SA/SEA; and

 Chapter 10: Implementation and Monitoring – describes the implementation of LTP3 in relation to other 

plans and the project level, and sets out proposals for monitoring the effects of implementing the LTP3.

1.3.1 Components that make up the SA Report

This SA Report incorporates the requirements for an Environmental Report as required by the SEA 

Directive. Table 1.1 below indicates where specific requirements of the Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) Directive can be found within this report.

Table 1.1: SEA Directive Requirements Checklist

Environmental Report Requirements Section of the Report

a) an outline of the contents, main objectives of the plan or programme and 
relationship with other relevant plans and programmes;

Chapter 3

b) the relevant aspects of the current state of the environment and the likely evolution 
thereof without implementation of the plan or programme;

Chapter 4, Section 4.2 and 
4.3

c) the environmental characteristics of areas likely to be significantly affected; Chapter 4, Section 4.3

d) any existing environmental problems which are relevant to the plan or programme 
including, in particular, those relating to any areas of a particular environmental 
importance, such as areas designated pursuant to Directives 79/409/EEC and 
92/43/EEC;

Chapter 4, Section 4.2

e) the environmental protection objectives, established at international, Community or 
Member State level, which are relevant to the plan or programme and the way 
those objectives and any environmental considerations have been taken into 
account during its preparation;

Chapter 4, Section 4.1 and 
Appendix B

f) the likely significant effects on the environment, including on issues such as 
biodiversity, population, human health, fauna, flora, soil, water, air, climatic factors, 
material assets, cultural heritage including architectural and archaeological 
heritage, landscape and the interrelationship between the above factors;

Chapter 7 and Appendix C

g) the measures envisaged to prevent, reduce and as fully as possible offset any 
significant adverse effects on the environment of implementing the plan or 
programme;

Chapter 8

h) an outline of the reasons for selecting the alternatives dealt with, and a description 
of how the assessment was undertaken including any difficulties (such as technical 
deficiencies or lack of know-how) encountered in compiling the required 
information;

Chapter 6 and Chapter 7

i) a description of the measures envisaged concerning monitoring in accordance with 
Article 10;

Chapter 10

j) a non-technical summary of the information provided under the above headings. Prior to Chapter 1 
Introduction

1.4 Limitations of the SA/SEA

Merseyside Transport Partnership and Mott MacDonald have relied on published data and information 

provided by Merseyside Transport Partnership and other organisations in the production of this SA Report. 

The compiled baseline data has been used to provide a ‘snapshot’ of current key issues associated with 

the LTP3. 

Page 93Page 51



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

3

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

A number of specialists with no prior knowledge of the local area have been involved in the production of 

this SA Report and more specifically in the assessment process. However, the assessment was 

undertaken in a workshop with input from local stakeholders.

Page 94Page 52



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

4

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

2.1 Strategic Environmental Assessment Legislative Requirements

An SEA is required for the Merseyside LTP3 under the European Union Directive 2001/42/EC, more 

commonly known as the SEA Directive. The Directive was transposed into UK law via the Environmental 

Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004, which requires an assessment of the effects of 

certain plans and programmes on the environment. 

Some of the key objectives of the SEA process are to provide for a high level of protection of the 

environment and to contribute to the integration of environmental considerations into the preparation and 

adoption of plans with a view to promoting sustainable development. The SEA process also aims to inform 

the decision-making process through the identification and assessment of the significant and cumulative 

effects a plan or programme will have on the environment at the strategic level and to enable consultation 

on the potential effects with a wide range of stakeholders.

2.2 Sustainability Appraisal Legislative Requirements 

In additional to the SEA Directive, the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 has introduced a wider 

requirement for a SA to be undertaken for a range of planning policy documents. 

SA is a generic term used to describe the form of assessment that considers the social, environmental and 

economic affects of implementing a particular planning policy document. It is considered by the UK 

Government that the implementation of the SA process helps local planning authorities to fulfil the objective 

of contributing to the achievement of sustainable development when preparing their plans.

2.3 Integrating NATA into the SA/SEA Process

The New Approach to Appraisal (NATA) is an approach for improving the consistency and transparency 

with which transport decisions are made. It presents the key economic, environmental and social impacts 

of decision in a clear, consistent and balanced way. NATA is the basis for appraising multi-modal studies, 

Highway Agency road schemes, Local Transport Plans, major road and public transport schemes, Strategic 

Rail Authority schemes, seaports, and the Government’s airports strategy. The NATA approach aims to:

 Environment – to protect the built and natural environment;

 Safety – to improve safety;

 Economy – to support sustainable economic activity and get good value for money;

 Accessibility – to improve access to facilities for those without a car ad to reduce severance;

 Integration – to ensure that all decisions are taken in the context of the Government’s integrated 

transport policy.

The DfT Guidance (January 2010) (TAG Unit 2.11D) on the SEA process integrates SEA requirements with 

the existing NATA processes.  Therefore, this SEA will make reference to the links between SEA and 

NATA as defined in the Table 2.2. Table 2.3 shows how the NATA objectives and sub-objectives fit within 

the SEA Directive topics.

2. Approach to the SA/SEA

Page 95Page 53



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

5

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table 2.1: Stages, Decisions and Outputs of SEA

NATA stage (from TAG 
Unit 2.5)

SEA Stage Similarities/ differences 
between NATA & SEA

1.Setting objectives and 
problem definition

2.Understanding the 
current situation

3.Understanding the 
future situation

4.Consultation, 
participation, information

A: Setting the context and objectives, establishing 
the baseline and deciding on the scope

A1: Identifying other relevant plans, programmes and 
environmental protection objectives

A2: Collecting baseline information

A3: Identifying environmental problems

A4: Developing SEA objectives

A5: Consulting on the scope of the SEA

This SEA stage adds emphasis to 
the need to consider 
environmental issues at this stage 
of the process. SEA requires 
more information on the 
environmental baseline and 
identification of environmental 
problems.

5.Options for solutions

6.Appraisal framework

7.Appraisal tools and 
procedures

8.Costs

9.Options testing and 
appraisal

B: Developing and refining alternatives and 
assessing effects

B1: Testing the plan objectives against the SEA 
objectives

B2: Developing strategic alternatives

B3: Predicting the effects of the draft plan, including 
alternatives

B4: Evaluating the effects of the draft plan, including 
alternatives

B5: Considering ways of mitigating adverse effects

B6: Proposing measures to monitor the environmental 
effects of plan implementation

Plan alternatives should also aim 
to deal with environmental 
problems, or at least not make 
them worse.

NATA and SEA Directive topics 
are similar but not exactly the 
same.

Requirements regarding 
environmental mitigation are 
strengthened under SEA.

10.Distillation and 
comparison of options

C: Preparing the Environmental Report

C1: Prepare an Environmental Report in which the likely 
significant effects on the environment of implementing 
the plan, and reasonable alternatives taking into account 
the objectives and geographical scope of the plan, are 
identified, described and evaluated. The information to = 
be given is listed in Article 5 and Annex 1 of the SEA 
Directive.

The requirement to show how the 
environment has been taken into 
account in decision-making is 
more specific in the SEA Directive 
than in NATA.

11.Consultations

12.Outputs from the study

13.Funding sources

D: Consulting on the draft plan and the 
Environmental Report

D1: Consulting on the draft plan and Environmental 
Report

D2: Assessing significant changes

D3: Decision making and providing information

The Directive requires 
consultation on a draft plan.

14.Implementation 
programme

15.Monitoring and 
evaluation

E: Monitoring the significant effects of implementing 
the plan on the environment

E1: Developing aims and methods for monitoring

E2: Responding to adverse effects

NATA does not currently address 
monitoring.

Source: DfT (Januaryl 2010) Draft: Strategic Environmental Assessment for Transport Plans and Programmes - TAG Unit 2.11D

Page 96Page 54



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

6

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table 2.2: NATA Objectives and SEA Topics

NATA Objective NATA Sub-Objective SEA Topic (SEA Directive, Annex If)

Noise Human health, population, inter-relationships

Local air quality Air, human health, population

Greenhouse gases Climatic factors

Landscape

Townscape
Landscape

Heritage Cultural heritage including architectural and 
archaeological heritage

Biodiversity Biodiversity, fauna, flora, soil

Water environment Water

Environment

Physical fitness Human health, population

Accidents
Safety

Security
Human health, population

Community severance
Accessibility

Access to the transport system
Population

Public accounts

Business users and providersEconomy

Consumer users

Material assets

Source: DfT (January 2010) Draft: Strategic Environmental Assessment for Transport Plans and Programmes - TAG Unit 2.11D

2.4 Integrated Assessment Project Team 

Although this SA Report only covers the SA/SEA, it is important to understand the overall project team and 

interactions. The IA project team for the Merseyside LTP3 consists of transport, planning and sustainability 

officers from the Merseyside Transport Partnership (Merseytravel and the five Merseyside local authorities; 

Liverpool City Council, Sefton Council, Knowsley Metropolitan Borough Council, Wirral Metropolitan 

Borough Council, St. Helens Metropolitan Borough Council), and sustainability specialists and 

environmental planning consultants from Mott MacDonald (Figure 2 1). It was felt that it is important in the 

sustainability appraisal process to include both people who are involved in the production and development 

of the LTP3 as well as consultants, who can contribute a more independent view to the sustainability 

appraisal exercise.

Page 97Page 55



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

7

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure 2.1: Integrated Assessment Team Organogram

2.5 Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA Timetable

Table 2.3 establishes who carried out/will carry out each stage of the SA/SEA process. It also incorporates 

the SA/SEA and LTP3 process timetables into an integrated programme.

Table 2.3: Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA Timetable
LTP3 Process SA/SEA Stage Who carried / will carry this 

out
When

A: Setting the context and objectives, establishing the baseline and deciding on the scope

A1: Identifying other relevant plans, 
programmes, and sustainability objectives

MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Jan/Feb 2010

A2: Collecting baseline information MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Jan/Feb 2010

A3: Identifying sustainability issues and 
problems

MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Jan/Feb 2010

Evidence 
Gathering

A4: Developing the SA/SEA Framework MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 

Jan/Feb 2010

Nicola Levy – SA/SEA Specialist 
Kerry Schofield – EqIA Specialist
Ian Scott – HIA Specialist
Celia Figuiera – HRA Specialist
Richard Brown – LTP Specialist

CLIENT
Merseyside Transport Partnership 

John Smith - Transport STAKEHOLDERS 

Eddie Mellor – Client care
Eileen Thomas – Project Director and Technical Reviewer
Kevin Leather - Project Manager, Client Liaison, 
Sustainability Specialist

Project Management

Core IA Team

Statutory
Environment Agency

English Heritage
Natural England

Non-Statutory
To be agreed 

with Merseyside 
Transport 

Partnership

MOTT MACDONALD

LTP LOCAL AUTHORITIES

Liverpool City Council
Knowsley MBC
Sefton Council

Wirral MBC
St. Helens MBC 

Merseytravel

Page 98Page 56



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

8

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Partnership

A5: Consulting on the scope of the 
SA/SEA

Merseyside Transport 
Partnership / MM Consultancy 
Team

Mar/Apr 2010

Stage B: Developing and refining alternatives and assessing effects

B1: Testing the LTP3 objectives against 
the SA/SEA Framework

MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

May 2010

B2: Developing strategic alternatives Merseyside Transport 
Partnership / MM Consultancy 
Team

Jun 2010

B3: Predicting the effects of the draft 
LTP3, including alternatives

MM Consultancy Team/ 
Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Sep 2010

B4: Evaluating the effects of the draft 
LTP3, including alternatives

MM Consultancy Team/ 
Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Sep 2010

B5: Considering ways of mitigating 
adverse effects and maximising beneficial 
effects

MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Sep 2010

B6: Proposing measures to monitor the 
significant effects of implementing the 
LTP3

MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Sep 2010

Stage C: Preparing the SA Report

Preparation of 
draft LTP3

C1:Preparing the SA Report MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

May/Sep 2010

Stage D: Consulting on the draft LTP3 and SA ReportPublic participation 
on draft LTP3 D1: Public Participation on the draft LTP3

and SA Report
Merseyside Transport 
Partnership / MM Consultancy 
Team

Oct/Nov 2010

Representations 
and finalise LTP3

D2: Appraising significant changes MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

Nov/Dec 2010

Adoption D3: Making decisions and providing 
information

MM Consultancy Team with 
input from Merseyside Transport 
Partnership

TBC

Stage E: Monitoring the significant effects of implementing the LTP3

E1: Finalising aims and methods for 
monitoring

Merseyside Transport 
Partnership and Local 
Authorities

TBC

Implementing, 
monitoring and 
review

E2: Responding to adverse effects Merseyside Transport 
Partnership and Local 
Authorities

TBC

2.6 SA/SEA Methodology

The SA/SEA was carried out in accordance with the DfT Draft Guidance ‘Strategic Environmental 

Assessment for Transport Plans and Programmes – TAG Unit 2.11D’ (January 2010), and will meet the 

requirements of the SEA Directive (and resulting SEA Regulations). 

Page 99Page 57



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

9

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure 2.2: SA/SEA Process

Figure 2.3 shows how the SA/SEA methodology fits into the Integrated Assessment process.

Figure 2.3: Mott MacDonald Approach to Integrated Assessment Method Diagram

Page 100Page 58



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

10

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

2.7 Scoping Consultation Results

The Merseyside LTP3 Scoping Report was sent out for formal consultation in April 2010 to the three 

designated bodies with environmental responsibilities – the Environment Agency, Natural England and 

English Heritage, and wider key stakeholders. Comments were received from:

 Natural England;

 English Heritage;

 Environment Agency; and

 Liverpool First (Local Strategic Partnership)

The comments received have been taken into consideration in preparation of the SA Report and the LTP3. 

The comments received have been recorded in Appendix A.

2.8 SA Report Consultation Results

The Merseyside LTP3 draft SA Report was sent out for formal consultation in November 2010 to the 

statutory consultees, stakeholders and the public. Comments received are presented in Appendix E, along 

with how these have been addressed in the final SA Report. 

Page 101Page 59



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

11

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

3.1 Context and Background

The current Merseyside LTP2 is due to expire in March 2011. The Merseyside LTP3 will start in April 2011. 

Development of the LTP3 will be undertaken in line with guidance provided by DfT, which is itself driven by 

the framework provided within Delivering a Sustainable Transport System, (DaSTS), (DfT November 2008).

The Merseyside LTP3 will consist of:   

 long term Transport Strategy – (covers period from April 2011 until March 2024); and

 short term Implementation Plan – every three years (first Plan covers period April 2011 until March 

2014).

The national framework for the third LTP is set by the DaSTS goals. These now replace the four ‘shared’ 

priorities that governed the second LTP. The new priorities are:-

 Reduce transport’s carbon output and help tackle climate change;

 Support economic competiveness;

 Contribute to better safety, security and health;

 Promote greater equality of opportunity; and

 Improve quality of life and promote a healthy natural environment.

LTP3 will cover the five Merseyside Authorities of Sefton, Liverpool, St. Helens, Knowsley and Wirral. 

Figure 3.1 shows the geographical scope of the LTP3.

Figure 3.1: Geographical Scope of LTP3

Source: Merseyside Local Authorities

3. LTP3 Context

Page 102Page 60



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

12

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

3.2 Merseyside LTP3 Vision and Goals

The vision for the transport network in Merseyside set out in the LTP3 is:

‘A City Region, committed to a low carbon future which has a transport network and mobility culture which 

positively contributes to a thriving economy and the health and well being of its citizens and where 

sustainable travel is the option of first choice.’

The LTP3 recognises that it has a key role to play in delivery the high level city region objectives: 

 Create a city of opportunity where all sections of the community can make contact with as many goods 

and services as possible including jobs, training, education and social, leisure and recreational activities 

that increase quality of life;

 Create a resilient city that will support a strong and vigorous internationally competitive economy at the 

same time as increasing its ability to deal with challenges in the future from climate change, increases in 

oil prices, interruptions in oil supply and economic down turns;

 Contribute to a low carbon city that recognises the responsibilities of all cities to play a leadership role in 

carbon reduction and celebrates the opportunities this provides to create competitive and sustainable 

jobs in green technology industries and activities;

 Create a healthy city where all transport options including walking and cycling facilities link to spatial 

planning and send strong signals in support of high levels of physical activity; and

 Create a high quality liveable city that improves air quality, reduces noise levels and creates highly 

attractive public spaces and cultural offering building on the achievements of the capital of culture;

To achieve these ambitions the LTP3 sets out the following goals:

 Ensure the transport system supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region, the proposed Local 

Enterprise Partnership and the Local Strategic Partnerships;

 Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system;

 Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health and well-being;

 Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect 

easily with employment, services and social activities;

 Ensure the transport network supports the economic success of the LCR by the efficient movement of 

people and goods; and

 Maintain our assets to a high standard.

Page 103Page 61



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

13

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

4.1 Relationship with other Plans and Programmes

4.1.1 Introduction

Mott MacDonald reviewed the key International, European, National, Regional and Local policies, plans, 

programs and local documents relevant to the LTP3. Their implications for the SA/SEA have been 

assessed in order to comply with Annex 1(a) of the SEA Directive and Task A1 of the DfT Guidance (April 

2009). The findings are detailed in a Policy Register in Appendix B. The documents reviewed include:

Table 4.1: Plans and Programmes
International and European Plans and Programmes
Johannesburg Declaration on Sustainable Development  (2002)
Convention on Wetlands of International Importance 1971 (amended 1982)
Convention on Biodiversity, Rio de Janeiro, 1992 
United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change, 1994
Kyoto protocol 1997
EU Landfill Directive (1999) 99/31/EC
World Summit on Sustainable Development, 2002 (Johannesburg)
European Climate Change Programme
EU Environmental Noise Directive
EU Sustainable Development Strategy (2006)
EU Air Quality Framework Directive
EU Air Quality Directive (2008) 2008/50/EC
EU Directive on the Conservation of Wild Birds
EU Directive on the Conservation of Natural Habitats and of Wild Flora & Fauna
EU Waste Framework Directive  (2008) 2008/98/EC)
European Transport White Paper ‘European Transport Policy for 2010: Time to Decide’ 
Keep Europe Moving - Sustainable Mobility for our Continent - Mid term review of the White Paper
Water Framework Directive 2000/60/EC
Habitats Directive (1992) 92/43/EEC
Birds Directive (1979) 79/409/EEC
European Landscape Convention (1991) 91/676/EC
The Ramsar Convention
Copenhagen Accord (2009)
UNESCO World Heritage Convention of 1972
Zagreb Declaration for Healthy Cities: Health and health equity in all local policies (2009)
National Plans and Programmes
The UK Government Sustainable Development Strategy – Securing the Future (2005)
Climate change – UK Programme (2000)
The Public Health White Paper - Choosing Health: Making Healthy Choices, 2004
Ports: Draft National Policy Statement for England & Wales (2009)
The UK Government Low Carbon Transition Plan (2009)
Planning for a Sustainable Future (2007)
Land Use & Transport: Settlement Patterns and Demand for Travel (2009)
Tackling Health Inequalities. A Programme for Action, 2003 (Department for Health)
New Environmental Strategy for the NHS, July 2005
Energy White Paper: Our Energy Future – creating a low carbon economy (Feb 2003)
Walking and Cycling: An Action Plan (DFT, June 2004)
National Cycling Strategy (September 1996) and Modified (DFT, October 2004)
Encouraging Walking: Advice to Local Authorities (DETR 2000)
Power of Place (2000)
Transport 10 Year Plan 2000 
The Future of Transport: A Network for 2030, 2004
Delivering a Sustainable Transport System - Department for Transport (2008)
LTP and ROWIP Integration – Good Practice Note (2009)
Guidance on Local Transport Plans and the Natural Environment (2009)
UK Biodiversity Indicators in Your Pocket (2009)
Climate Change and Biodiversity Adaptation: The Role of the Spatial Planning System (2009)
Biodiversity by Design (2004)

4. Stage A Scoping Results

Page 104Page 62



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

14

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Open Space Strategies – Best Practise Guidance (2009)
NE176 – Natural England’s Green Infrastructure Guidance (2009)
Accessible Natural Green Space Standards in Towns and Cities (2003)
By All Responsible Means: Inclusive Access to the Outdoors for Disabled People – 2003 (the Countryside Agency)
The Countryside In and Around Towns - a vision for Connecting Town and Country in Pursuit of Sustainable 
Development (2005)
Transport in Tomorrows Countryside, 2003 (The Countryside Agency)
Towards a Sustainable Transport System (2008)
Active Travel Strategy (2010)
Planning for Sustainable Travel (2009)
Delivering Low Carbon Travel: An Essential Guide for Local Authorities (2009)
Strategic Environmental Assessment, Sustainability Appraisal and the Historic Environment
Land Use and Transport: Settlement Patterns and the Demand for Travel, 2009 (CfIT)
The UK Government Rural Strategy, 2004
UK Biodiversity Action Plan, 1994
Working with the Grain of Nature: A Biodiversity Strategy for England, 2002
Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales & Northern Ireland, 2007
Making the Connections: Final Report on Transport and Social Exclusion, 2003 (Social Exclusion Unit)
Sustainable Communities Plan - Sustainable Communities: Building for the future (2003)
UK White Paper - Our Towns & Cities: The Future - Delivering an Urban Renaissance, 2000 (ODPM)
Rural White Paper: Our Countryside: The Future (2000)
Landscape Indicators for Strategic Environmental Assessment of LTPs – issues to consider (2005) (Countryside Agency)
Treatment of Landscape, Biodiversity, Access & Recreation in Sixteen Provisional Local Transport Plans (2005) 
(Countryside Agency)
Heritage White Paper: Heritage Protection for the 21st Century (Consultation) (2007)
The Historic Environment - A Force for our future (English Heritage)
UK Sustainable Development Strategy
Waste Strategy for England, 2007
Low Carbon Transport: A Greener Future (DfT, 2009)
Climate change – UK Programme, 2000
UK Legislation
The Transport Act 2008
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
Countryside & Rights of Way Act 2000 (CRoW)
The Conservation (Habitats & c.) Regulations 1994 (Habitats Regulations)
Part IV Environment Act 1995 (England & Wales)
Air Quality Standards Regulations 2007
Air Quality Limit Values Regulations 2003
The Water Environment (Water Framework Directive)(England & Wales) Regulations 2003
Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and Regulations 2009
Ancient Monuments and Archaeological Areas Act 1979
Planning Policy
Minerals Planning Statement 1
PPG 2: Greenbelt
PPG 13: Transport
PPG 17: Planning for open space, sport & recreation
PPG 20: Coastal Planning
PPG 24: Planning & Noise
PPS 1: Delivering Sustainable Development
Draft PPS: Planning for a Natural and Healthy Environment
Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change – Supplement to Planning Policy Statement 1
Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3): Housing
Planning Policy Statement 4 (PPS4): Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth
PPS5: Planning for the Historic Environment
PPS 7: Sustainable Development in Rural Areas
PPS 9: Biodiversity & Geological Conservation
PPS 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management
PPS 12: Local Development Frameworks
PPS 22: Renewable Energy
PPS 23 Planning & Pollution Control
PPG 25: Development & Flood Risk
Regional Plans and Programmes
North West Strategic Health Authority Annual Report 2008/2009
Investment for Health: A Plan for North West England, 2003
Moving Forward - The Northern Way, 2004
Regional Sustainable Development Framework (Action for Sustainability)

Page 105Page 63



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

15

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

North West Sustainable Development Integrated Appraisal Toolkit (June 2009)
Regional Spatial Strategy for the North West,  including partial review, 2008
RS2010: Principles & Issues Paper
Wild about the North West: A Biodiversity Audit of North West England (1999)
North West Cultural Strategy (2002)
Investment for Health – A plan for North West England (2003)
Regional Funding Advice 
North West Economic Strategy (2006)
North West Regional Housing Strategy (2009)
Regional Waste Strategy for the North West (2004)
North West Sustainable Energy Strategy (July 2006)
North West Regional Freight Strategy (November 2003)
Operation North West England Programme under the Regional competitiveness and employment objective 2007-2013 
(2007)
Regional DaSTS Stage One Programme, 2009
The North West Climate Change Action Plan 2010-2012
North West Strategic Health Authority Annual Report 2008/09
Tourism Strategy
Water for Life and Livelihoods: River Basin Management Plan North West River Basin District (2009)
North West Green Infrastructure Guide (2007)
North West Biodiversity Forum
CCP536 - Countryside Character Volume 2: North West
North West Regional Landscape Character Framework 
Regional Sustainable Development Framework Integrated Appraisal Toolkit, 2009
Regional Employment and Skills Action
Sub-Regional Plans and Programmes
Merseyside Local Transport Plan 2, 2006-2011
City Region Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) Aims & Objectives Statements
Liverpool City Council Air Quality Action Plan
New Heartlands Housing Market Renewal Pathfinder
Heart of Merseyside Initiative, 2002
Merseyside Economic Strategy MESAP
Liverpool City Region Spatial Strategy
Liverpool City Region Housing Strategy
Liverpool City Region Multi Area Agreement, 2009
Liverpool Superport
Liverpool 2024: A Thriving International City – Sustainable Community Strategy
Knowsley: The Borough of Choice - Sustainable Community Strategy 2008 - 2023
A Vision for Sefton - Sustainable Community Strategy 2006-2011
St Helens Sustainable Community Strategy (Revised 2009)
Wirral 2025: More Equal, More Prosperous - The Community Strategy (2009)
Liverpool City Region Development Programme Update
Merseyside Noise Study, 2004
Code of Practice on Access and Mobility (2002)
Sefton Physical Activity Strategy 2001 – 2011 (Review 2009)
Heart of Merseyside Initiative 
City region ‘Mini-Stern’ report; The Economic Impact of EU and UK Climate Change Legislation on Liverpool and the 
Liverpool City Region, 2009
Knowsley UDP (2006)
St Helens UDP (1998)
Liverpool UDP (November 2002)
Sefton UDP (June 2006)
Wirral UDP (February 2000)
Wirral LDF Core Strategy Development Plan Document – Draft for consultation (2007)
Liverpool LDF Core Strategy Development Plan Document – Draft for consultation (2010)
Sefton LDF Core Strategy Development Plan Document – Draft for consultation (2009)
St. Helens LDF Core Strategy Development Plan Document – Draft for consultation (2009)
Knowsley LDF Core Strategy Development Plan Document – Draft for consultation (2009)
‘Liverpool First’ Liverpool Community Strategy 2005-2008
Code of Practice on Access and Mobility
Wirral's Biodiversity Action Plan 
North Merseyside Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP)
Liverpool PCT
Sefton PCT
Knowsley PCT
Wirral PCT

Page 106Page 64



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

16

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Halton and St. Helens PCT
Knowsley Council and Sefton Council Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2009)
Liverpool City Council Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2008)
St. Helens Council Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (2009)
The Knowsley Partnership: Local Area Agreement Pilot
Sefton Local Area Agreement 2008 -  2011
Liverpool Local Area Agreement 2008 - 2011
St. Helens Local Area Agreement 2008 – 2011
Wirral’s Partnership Agreement 2008/9 – 2010/11 (2008)
Liverpool World Heritage Site Management Plan and Supplementary Planning Document
The North Biodiversity Action Plan
Merseyside Local Geodiversity Action Plan

4.1.2 Policy Context

Details of plans and programmes listed in Section 4.1.1 are presented in Appendix B. A few key national, 

regional and local sustainability and transport plans have been reviewed in more detail below.

National Context

Delivering a Sustainable Transport System (2008)

At the national level the Government published ‘Delivering a Sustainable Transport System’ (DaSTS) in 

2008. This document describes how the Government will take ‘Towards a Sustainable Transport System’

(TaSTS) forward. In DaSTS, the Government continues its commitment to long term transport planning and 

identifies the priorities for transport investment in England from 2014 across all transport networks. The 

biggest challenge is considered to be tackling climate change and growth together. DaSTS builds on the 

goals identified in TaSTS and there is an expectation that there will be a strong synergy between goals, for 

example, measures encouraging a modal shift to public transport will help tackle congestion and are 

therefore likely to make a positive contribution to economic growth, cutting emissions and enhancing the 

local environment, as well as improving health. The five goals for transport are:

 to support national economic competitiveness and growth, by delivering reliable and efficient transport 

networks;

 to reduce transport’s emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases, with the desired 

outcome of tackling climate change;

 to contribute to better safety, security and health and longer life expectancy by reducing the risk of 

death, injury or illness arising from transport, and by promoting travel modes that are beneficial to 

health;

 to promote greater equality of opportunity for all citizens, with the desired outcome of achieving a fairer 

society; and

 to improve quality of life for transport users and non-transport users, and to promote a healthy natural 

environment.

The LTP framework is critical to the successful delivery of this strategy and should reflect the five goals 

contained within DaSTS.

Securing the Future, Delivering the UK Sustainable Development Strategy (2005)

The national strategy for delivery of Sustainable Development was published by the UK Government in 

March 2005, ‘Securing the Future, Delivering the UK Sustainable Development Strategy’. The strategy 

provides a set of shared UK guiding principles that the Government will use to achieve our sustainable 

Page 107Page 65



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

17

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

development purposes. The guiding principles bring together and build on the various previously existing 

UK sustainability principles to set out an overarching approach which will focus the basis for policy in the 

UK. These are identified below:

 living within environmental limits;

 ensuring a strong, healthy and just society;

 achieving a sustainable economy;

 promoting good governance; and

 using sound science responsibly.

The strategy also provides a set of ‘shared priorities for UK action’ which will also help to shape the way the 

UK works internationally in ensuring that the UK’s objectives and activities are aligned with international 

goals. The shared priorities are set out below:

 sustainable consumption and production;

 climate change and energy;

 natural resource protection and environmental enhancement; and

 sustainable communities.

Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development (2005)

Planning Policy Statement (PPS) 1 ‘Delivering Sustainable Development’ (2005) outlines the general 

principles under which the planning system operates following the introduction of the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. It sets out an overview and general statement on the objectives of the 

planning system. PPS1 follows the Government’s sustainable development themes of:

 social cohesion and inclusion;

 prudent use of natural resources;

 sustainable economic development; and

 integrating sustainable development plans.

PPS1 recognises the importance of reducing the need to travel and encouraging accessible public 

transport provision to secure more sustainable patterns of transport development; and ensuring that 

development makes the fullest use of public transport, focusing development in existing centres and near 

to major public transport interchanges.

Regional context

The North West of England Plan – Regional Spatial Strategy (2008)

Recent changes to the planning system were announced in May 2010 by the new coalition Government 

and on 6th July 2010 the new Secretary of State for Communities, Eric Pickles, announced the revocation 

of Regional Spatial Strategies (RSSs) with immediate effect. As such, RSS (in this case, the North West

Plan, 2008) no longer forms part of the ‘Development Plan’ and the policies are no longer relevant in 

making planning decisions. Local planning authorities must still have regard to the ‘Development Plan’ in 

making planning decisions, however, this now consists of adopted DPDs, ‘saved policies’ and any old style 

plans that have not yet lapsed. The new coalition Government may issue further changes to the planning 

system over the coming months and as such it would be advisable to regularly monitor any changes that 

may be relevant to any future development proposals. It was decided to include the RSS within the SA/SEA 

because much of the LTP3 development has been influenced by policies within the RSS.

Page 108Page 66



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

18

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

The Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) for the North West of England ‘The North West of England Plan’ was 

published in September 2008. The RSS provides a framework for development and investment in the 

region over the next fifteen to twenty years. It establishes a broad vision for the region and its sub-regions, 

priorities for growth and regeneration, and policies to achieve sustainable development across a wide 

range of topics – from jobs, housing and transport to climate change, waste and energy. The RSS contains 

the Regional Transport Strategy (RTS). 

RSS spatial policy DP6 is concerned with managing travel demand, reducing the need to travel and 

increasing accessibility.

The RTS embraces the spatial principles (DP1-9) and the regional and sub-regional spatial frameworks 

(policy RDF1) and sub regional policies. In particular it seeks to:

 maintain existing transport infrastructure in good order;

 improve journey time reliability, tackle congestion and overcrowding in the region’s main transport 

corridors, particularly within and between City Regions;

 secure a shift towards the use of more sustainable modes of transport;

 secure safe and efficient access between residential areas and key destinations, including centres of 

employment, schools, shops and other services;

 improve surface access and interchange arrangements at the international, national and regional 

gateways;

 reduce the adverse impacts of transport, in terms of safety hazards, climate change, environmental 

degradation, residential amenity and social exclusion;

 integrate the management and planning of transport systems.

As stated in the RSS the Liverpool City Region Vision is to:

 ‘…regain our status as a premier European city region by 2025. We will secure an internationally 

competitive economy and cultural offer; and outstanding quality of life; and vibrant communities contributing 

to and sharing in sustainable wealth creation.’

Furthermore, the RSS states that the ‘Liverpool City Region is already established as an important driving 

force in the North of England’s economy and as a strategic sea and air gateway to the European Union. 

The potential exists to expand the City Region’s strategic economic and cultural assets, the strength of its 

knowledge industries and its transport connections’. RSS aims to see it deliver its full potential by ensuring 

that policies:

 maximise the City Region’s economic potential and promotes urban renaissance, social inclusion and 

environmental sustainability;

 stabilise population;

 recognise and promote the role of Liverpool as the core city and major economic driver for its City 

Region, whilst also recognising and utilising the assets and potential of other locations throughout the 

City Region, including those in rural areas;

 connect areas of economic opportunity to areas of greatest need, with a particular focus on those areas 

in need of economic, social and physical restructuring and regeneration.

Local context

Merseyside Second Local Transport Plan (LTP2) (2006)

Page 109Page 67



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

19

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

The Merseyside LTP2 covers the period from 2006 to 2011. It is a statutory document, and sets out 

proposals for improving transport in Merseyside over the next five years within the context of the longer 

term strategy. The vision for LTP2 was:

“a fully integrated safe transport network for Merseyside which supports economic and social regeneration 

and ensures good access for all, and which is operated to the highest standards to protect the environment 

and ensure quality of life”.

The long term strategy is to support the continuing economic development of Merseyside by managing for 

growth in travel demand to ensure the efficient movement of goods and people. 

The LTP2 identified objectives to help achieve this vision:

 Provide the appropriate infrastructure to support social and economic growth and regeneration;

 Provide access for all to ensure an inclusive community;

 Manage demand to provide an efficient transport network;

 Support a healthier community by ensuring transport actively improves health, does not impair quality of 

life; and ensures the safety and security for all users;

 Protect and enhances the environment;

 Make best use of existing resources and strive to ensure value for money at all times.

Merseyside Local Authorities Sustainable Community Strategies

Environmental protection and sustainability is an important element of the local planning frameworks and 

the community strategies for all the Merseyside authorities. Table 4.2 below highlights the key sustainability 

objectives and themes from the community strategies.

Table 4.2: Community Strategy Objectives (Sustainability)

Community Strategy Community Strategy Objectives and Themes

Liverpool Sustainable 
Community Strategy

 Increased sustainable wealth creation, jobs and businesses, particularly in the knowledge 
economy

 Connecting Liverpool as an international gateway for goods, people and information

 Improving public transport, reducing congestion and enhancing pedestrian movement

 Cohesive open communities that value diversity

 A dynamic third sector, efficient, effective and responsive local services with a cleaner 
greener environment

Sefton Sustainable 
Community Strategy

 Safe Communities - Improve the quality of the local environment

 Prosperous Communities - Sustain business growth; Increase employment; Reduce waste

 Strong Communities - Increase levels of social capital and local guardianship; Encourage all 
people to participate in local democracy and decision-making; Increase the level of 
volunteering and the growth of the voluntary and community sector; Build respect within 
communities

Knowsley Sustainable 
Community Strategy

 Attractive, sustainable neighbourhoods with a wide choice of housing and excellent 
community facilities

 Vibrant and welcoming town centres

 High quality employment areas which help to drive economic growth in the Liverpool City 
Region

St Helens Sustainable 
Community Strategy

 A diverse, modern economy, offering a wide range of job opportunities and releasing the 
productivity and economic potential of our most deprived local areas and their residents

 Stronger, more inclusive communities with better opportunities for disadvantaged groups. A 
healthy, attractive and rich built and natural environment offering quality choices in transport, 
homes, leisure and sport facilities and a vibrant cultural life

Page 110Page 68



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

20

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Community Strategy Community Strategy Objectives and Themes

Wirral Sustainable 
Community Strategy

 A strong local economy for Wirral

 Safer, stronger communities in all parts of the borough

 Excellent life chances for children and young people

 A high quality living and working environment

 Sustainable, appropriate housing for all

4.2 Baseline Conditions and Sustainability Issues

4.2.1 Baseline Conditions

Task A2 of the DfT Guidance (April 2009) is concerned with the collecting of baseline information. Baseline 

information provides the basis for predicting and monitoring effects and helps to identify sustainability 

problems and alternative ways of dealing with them in respect of national, regional and local targets and 

trends including those set out in the Local Area Agreement. Baseline has been collected for the LTP3 area 

for each of the SA/SEA objectives under specific indicators. The baseline is presented in Appendix C. It 

should be noted that baseline information may be applicable under more than one SA/SEA objective. 

4.2.2 Evolution of the Baseline

The SEA Directive requires that ‘the relevant aspects of the current state of the environment and the likely 

evolution thereof without implementation of the plan or programme are identified’. Prediction of future 

trends is difficult because they depend on a wide range of global, national and regional factors and 

decision-making. A ‘Do Nothing’ or ‘Business as Usual’ scenario has been assessed and the results 

presented in Table 4.3.

From an initial review of baseline it is likely that the following trends will continue: 

 Air quality – it is likely that increased economic growth and development will lead to increased car use 

and congestion leading to localised air quality issues. National and local air quality targets and 

European Emission Standards for new cars should contribute to reducing this predicted increase;

 Biodiversity – it is likely that increased economic growth and development, and climate change effects 

will result in loss of habitats and species. Protection of designated areas should protected internationally 

and nationally important sites;

 Climate change – it is likely that climate change effects will continue including increased temperatures, 

gales, severe storms and flooding. It also likely that the number of renewable energy schemes and sites 

will continue to increase;

 Cultural heritage – heritage assets are likely to continue to be preserved through legislation. 

Development could put pressure on heritage assets and their setting;

 Water resources – increased economic growth is likely to cause an increase in run-off and potential 

contamination and disruption of flows for surface water and groundwater. The Water Framework 

Directive will help reduce this predicted effect on water quality. There is also likely to be an increase in 

demand for water;

 Landscape – it is likely that continued development and changing farming practices will affect the 

countryside character;

 Employment – Economic growth and employment is likely to continue and the proportion of people of 

working age in employment is expected to continue to increase;

Page 111Page 69



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

21

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

 Education - it is presumed that educational achievement would increase in line with that of the national 

average;

 Crime - it is likely that overall crime figures will continue to fall if current aspirations with respect of 

community are met;

 Health – obesity is a growing problem and is likely to continue. Active lifestyles and healthy eating 

campaigns will help reduce this trend;

 Waste – it is likely that current increases in recycling rates will continue.

Table 4.3: Evolution of the Baseline
Ref Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA Objectives

1 To use energy, water and mineral resources prudently and efficiently, increase energy 
generated from renewable sources and reduce greenhouse gas emissions

-

2 To minimise the production of waste and increase reuse, recycling and recovery rates 0

3 To reduce poverty and social deprivation and secure economic inclusion 0

4 To protect, enhance and manage Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, historical and 
built environment and archaeological assets

0

5 To protect, enhance and manage biodiversity, the viability of endangered species, 
habitats and sites of geological importance

-

6 To protect, enhance and manage the local character and accessibility of the landscape 
across the sub-region

0

7. To protect, improve and where necessary, restore the quality of inland, estuarine and 
coastal waters

0

8. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local air quality -

9. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local environmental quality (noise, 
light nuisance)

0

10. To improve health and reduce health inequalities 0

11. To improve safety and reduce crime, disorder and fear of crime +

12. To improve local accessibility of goods, services and amenities and reduce community 
severance

0

13. To reduce the need to travel and improve choice and use of more sustainable transport 
modes

0

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate change including flood risk -

15. To protect, manage and restore land, soil quality and geo-diversity 0

16. To provide good quality, affordable and resource efficient housing +

4.2.3 Key Issues

Task A3 in the DfT Guidance (April 2009) involves highlighting any key issues and concerns raised in the 

baseline data. Environmental ‘problems’ therefore signify any key findings within the SA/SEA indicators. 

Stage A3 also attempts to focus the SEA on local issues and streamline subsequent stages by highlighting 

specific objectives.

The key issues are presented with the baseline conditions in Appendix C. A summary of the key 

sustainability issues are identified in Table 4.4. They represent an outline of the possible transport related 

challenges and opportunities that the LTP3 and SA/SEA should consider addressing.

Page 112Page 70



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

22

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table 4.4: Key Sustainability Issues

Topic Sustainability Issue Opportunity Constraint

Resource 
Use, Energy, 
Greenhouse 
Gases

Transport and the demands it places on 
energy resources, as well as the pollutants 
the sector emits, are strongly linked to 
climate change. Global climate change is 
one of the most significant and complex 
cumulative effects arising from an
accumulation of multiple actions, each of 
which is of limited impact but together will 
have serious effects.

Per capita emissions for transport are 
highest in Knowsley (2.3t CO2) and lowest 
in Sefton (1.1t CO2) across Merseyside. 

Reducing carbon emissions

Use of renewable energy to power 
road signs, lighting, traffic lights etc

Making the best use of existing 
transport infrastructure.

Increase electric charging point 
network and infrastructure for low 
emission vehicles and fuels.

Reducing the need to travel

Shifting necessary travel to more 
sustainable modes (public rights of 
way and wider access network 
improvements) and behaviours, and 
locking in the benefits.

Climate change is a 
global issue. 

Difficulty in achieving 
significant modal 
shift.

Waste 
Management

Generally recycling rates in Merseyside are 
increasing. Transport can generate waste 
material through maintenance and 
construction or demolition of transport 
infrastructure. 

Opportunity to use recycled material 
in transport infrastructure, and 
opportunity to re-use waste material 
in other developments.

Cost of treating 
contaminated 
waste/soils for re-
use. 

Availability of 
appropriate recycled 
material for purpose.  

Deprivation, 
Economic 
Inclusion

Merseyside has seen considerable 
improvements in the relative deprivation 
ranking when comparing the Index of 
Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2004 and 2007. 
However, the gap between the most and 
least deprived SOAs in Merseyside seems 
to be widening.

Potential to improve accessibility of 
deprived areas to key centres, 
services, employment opportunities 
and goods. 

Potential to increase investment into 
the area through an improved, more 
efficient and more reliable transport 
network. 

The LTP3 could promote improved 
access to employment centres and 
educational facilities. 

Opportunity to link new employment 
development to existing or new 
transport infrastructure and 
particularly to locate such economic 
development close to existing urban 
population centres in order to 
reduce transport, especially that by 
private car.

Congestion can 
reduce the efficiency 
and reliability of the 
transport network, 
hindering economic 
growth.

Cultural 
Heritage

Sensitivities and due legal regard with 
respect to accessing and potentially 
harming cultural, historical, built 
environment and archaeological assets will 
continue to be applied.

Contributing to the social, cultural 
and economic life of the area by 
promoting improved public access to 
historic assets. 

Opportunity to enhance historic 
character by reinforcing the identity 
and character of an area e.g. by 
clearing street clutter, street 
maintenance, and improving street 
paving or furniture.

Development can be 
restricted by heritage 
assets such as 
conservation areas, 
listed buildings, 
scheduled ancient 
monuments and 
archaeology as 
inappropriate 
development which 
affects their setting is 
usually not permitted 
under planning.

Biodiversity Overall, Merseyside has a rich and diverse 
range of habitats and species, which are 
important to biodiversity and connections 
between habitats. The majority of SSSIs are 
favourable although some sites need better 

Potential exists to integrate sites of 
nature conservation into the LTP3. 
However, their protection should be 
borne in mind in any integration.

The LTP3 will be 
constrained by the 
existence of 
designated and non-
designated nature 

Page 113Page 71



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

23

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Topic Sustainability Issue Opportunity Constraint

management. All sites and connections 
between them need to be conserved.

It is important for indirect pressures on 
biodiversity and habitats to be considered, 
such as fragmentation of habitats, impacts 
of recreational use and water usage and 
loss of non- designated wildlife and 
landscape areas.

Other key issues include:

impacts on the natural environment from 
transport and associated infrastructure;

poor access to the natural environment; and

car based visitor pressure affecting 
protected landscapes and sites of 
biodiversity value.

The LTP3 could also promote public 
access to nature conservation sites, 
where this does not conflict with the 
nature conservation interest of a 
site. 

Opportunity to use transport 
infrastructure to provide wildlife 
corridors, through, for instances, 
native wildflower verge and
embankment planting. 

Maintaining and enhancing green 
infrastructure as part of the transport 
network for its wide ranging 
contribution to biodiversity; geo-
diversity; accessible recreation and 
associated health benefits; adapting 
to climate change (e.g. carbon 
storage, drainage and water 
conservation).

Protected sites becoming exemplars 
of sustainable transport.

conservation sites 
and the protection of 
these areas. 

Impact of 
implementing LTP3 
measures on 
compensation 
designated habitat 
created in 
Merseyside.

Landscape Merseyside has many important local 
landscapes and coastal landscape areas. 

Traffic infrastructure can affect the 
landscape through noise and visual 
intrusion. 

Conserving and enhancing local 
landscape (and townscape) 
character and quality, and local 
distinctiveness (including reducing 
noise and light pollution.

Maintaining and enhancing access 
to green and open spaces.

Maintaining and improving the public 
rights of way and wider access 
network (through integration with 
and implementation of the Rights of 
Way Improvement Plan). 

More sustainable access in rural 
locations that provide benefits for 
residents as well as visitors.

Protecting the 
tranquillity and 
openness of the 
countryside.

Water 
Resources

Road traffic management potentially has a 
significant role to play in water quality 
because of the amount of pollutants 
cumulatively entering the water system via 
surface discharges. 

Potential to improve and promote 
public access to the River Mersey 
and riverside routes. Opportunity to 
further improve existing ferry 
crossings and use of the River 
Mersey for transportation.  Location 
of transport infrastructure to avoid 
flood risk areas.

LTP3 constrained by 
the presence of 
nature conservation 
designations within 
and around the River 
Mersey. Existing 
developments on 
flood risk areas still 
need transportation 
links

Air Quality Transport emissions are a major contributor 
to air pollution at both the national and the 
local level. 

There are currently six AQMAs in the 
Merseyside. 

The total number of ‘air pollution days’ in 
Merseyside has been tracked since 1997. 
The latest information shows there were 30 
days in 2007 compared to 43 in 2006 and 
25 in 2005. 

Estimated traffic flows for all Motor Vehicles 
have been increasing since 1994 but 
appear to be levelling off in most districts 

Potential to help reduce air pollution 
through promotion of sustainable 
transport modes, park and ride sites, 
and deterrents to using the private 
car.

Opportunity to reduce freight 
movements and encourage 
alternative fuels and modes as 
freight is a significant contributor to 
air quality problems in certain areas.

Opportunity to encourage strategic 
freight networks to tackle congestion
and increase capacity.

Difficulty in changing 
people’s behaviour to 
use sustainable 
transport modes 
rather than the 
private car to create 
modal shift.

Page 114Page 72



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

24

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Topic Sustainability Issue Opportunity Constraint

during the two years to 2008.

Environmenta
l Quality

Transport is strongly linked to the local 
environmental quality by its impact on noise 
levels and traffic intrusion.

According to the Hepworth report ‘Ambient 
Noise on Merseyside’, road traffic, followed 
by neighbours, aircraft/airports and 
construction/renovation noise featured in 
the top four sources of noise nuisance. 
However, neighbours and other 
entertainment/leisure are the main sources 
cited.

Opportunity to include innovative 
noise screening and barriers as part 
of transport infrastructure. 
Encourage use of quieter transport 
modes such as walking, cycling and 
electric vehicles. Locate strategic 
and primary road routes away from 
villages. Ensure HGV’s use strategic 
road networks.

Roads need to be 
located near to 
residential properties 
for access.

Health Some transport impacts on health are better 
known and more direct than others, e.g. 
road traffic accidents or annoyance from 
traffic noise. 

Evidence of the direct effects of air pollution 
on mortality and respiratory diseases have 
also emerged in recent years. Children, the 
elderly, and those with pre-existing 
respiratory and cardiac conditions are the 
most susceptible to the health impacts of 
transport. 

Also car use (as a driver or as a passenger) 
is strongly associated with a sedentary 
lifestyle which is viewed as one of the most 
important risk factors for early mortality in 
western populations.  

The LTP3 provides a good 
opportunity to encourage healthy 
and active lifestyles through 
investment in cycle and pedestrian 
routes and facilities and public 
transport.  Aiming to encourage 
modal shift and reduce reliance on 
cars, this may have other health 
benefits in terms of air quality.

Difficulty in changing 
people’s behaviour 
and getting modal 
shift from car to non-
car modes of 
transport.

Safety, Crime Transport is an important contributor to the 
objective of improving safety and reducing 
crime and disorder at the national and local 
level. 

The risk people are exposed to varies from 
place to place and with mode of travel, (for 
example young pedestrians are particularly 
vulnerable). 

Transport’s links with safety are strongly 
associated with traffic accidents. Transport 
and crime are strongly linked by issues 
such as car related crimes, safe parking 
and crime on public transport.

Numbers of people killed/seriously injured in 
traffic accidents have fallen across 
Merseyside from 781 in 2003 to 545 in 
2007. By 2007, rates in all LADs except 
Wirral were better than the regional and 
national averages with St. Helens and 
Sefton sharing the lowest rates per 1,000 
population.

Potential to improve transport 
related crime and anti-social 
behaviour through improved safety 
and security measures. 

Potential to further increase road 
safety through road safety 
awareness campaigns and road 
safety measures.

Perception of crime 
in more deprived 
areas and town 
centres maybe 
difficult to change, 
even with increased 
measures.

Accessibility Transport is clearly linked with accessibility 
issues at the national and local level. For 
example, 89% of British households have a 
bus stop within a six-minute walk. It is also 
important to understand how much travel an 
individual should be prepared to undertake 
in order to access a service e.g. work. 
Given the current distribution of 
opportunities, some people need both the 
access to services and also to accept the 
need to travel more if they are to be 

Opportunity to increase accessibility 
via sustainable transport modes 
from residential areas to town 
centres and other key areas of 
employment, services and goods.

Cost of public 
transport for deprived 
areas, there needs to 
be concessions built 
into public transport 
ticketing, and bike 
hire schemes.

Page 115Page 73



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

25

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Topic Sustainability Issue Opportunity Constraint

economically included. 

Accessibility to local goods, services and 
amenities is strongly linked to transport 
especially in areas where community 
severance exists.

Sustainable 
Transport

To reduce the need to travel, and improve 
choice and use of more sustainable 
transport modes is an important national 
issue. It is now widely recognised that many 
urban areas cannot provide the road space 
in response to traffic growth projects. 
Demand management or the reduction of 
the need to travel is now widely accepted. 
Transport plays a central role in reducing 
the need to travel and improving the choice 
and use of more sustainable transport 
modes.

The most common purposes for trips are 
work, shopping and social/recreation. 
Driving a car and walking have continually 
been the most common mode of transport 
for trips over the years of the surveys 
(Countywide travel surveys from 1987-88). 
Walking is the most common mode of 
transport to school, decreasing only slightly 
since the 2006/07 baseline. Bus patronage 
has decreased in all metropolitan areas 
since 2001/02 except in Greater 
Manchester and also in London. 
Conversely, rail patronage has increased 
since the 1995/96 baseline in terms of 
millions of passenger trips per year
(although volumes are lower than they are 
for bus).

The LTP3 has the potential to make 
a large beneficial contribution to 
reducing congestion through 
improvements to public transport, 
cycle and walking routes. 

Promoting rail and water 
transportation for freight. Introducing 
deterrents to using the private car 
such as increased car parking fees 
in town centres. 

Travel planning and initiatives for 
schools, workplaces and individuals 
could be investigated.

Changing behaviour 
to get modal shift 
away from the private 
car.

Climate 
Change

Climate change effects such as increased 
temperatures, gales, snow and other severe 
weather conditions could have effects on 
the transport network.

Flood risk is a continued risk to particular 
areas and a constraint to be considered for 
new transport infrastructure.

Carbon emissions from transport.

Reducing carbon emissions.

Making the best use of existing 
transport infrastructure.

Increase electric charging point 
network and infrastructure for low 
emission vehicles and fuels.

Making use of green infrastructure 
associated with transport networks 
for climate change adaptation e.g. 
carbon storage, sustainable 
drainage, energy generation and 
water conservation.

Reducing the need to travel.

Shifting necessary travel to more 
sustainable modes (public rights of 
way and wider access network 
improvements) and behaviours, and 
locking in the benefits.

Climate change is a 
global issue. Cost 
involved in climate 
proofing transport 
infrastructure. 
Difficulty in achieving 
significant modal 
shift.

Land, Soil There are no direct links between transport 
and soil management at the local level. 
However, the location and extent of 
(potentially) contaminated land, and the 
proportion of development on previously 
used land, have prospective implications 
regarding any new transport-related works.

Upgrading of existing transport 
infrastructure in preference to new 
infrastructure.

Potential to remediate contaminated 
land as part of transport 
infrastructure works.

Housing There are few direct links between transport Link planned new housing 

Page 116Page 74



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

26

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Topic Sustainability Issue Opportunity Constraint

and the provision of good quality affordable 
and resource efficient housing. The location 
of housing in relation to provision of public 
transport, and the level of car parking 
provided with housing units, can help 
contribute towards use of more resource 
efficient modes of transport.

developments with new or existing 
transport infrastructure, especially 
public transport, and cycle and 
pedestrian routes.

Page 117Page 75



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

27

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

4.3 Developing the SA/SEA Framework

4.3.1 Developing SA/SEA Objectives 

A key stage in the appraisal process is the development of a range of SA/SEA objectives against which the 

effects of implementing the LTP3 can be assessed. SA/SEA objectives had been previously developed by 

the Merseyside Transport Partnership for use on the LTP2. Mott MacDonald has reviewed these objectives 

and will take them forward into the LTP3 to provide consistency. The objective on climate change has now 

been split into two objectives. One on climate change mitigation and one on climate change adaptation. 

The objective was split to align with current Government guidance on transport including ‘Delivering a 

Sustainable Transport System’ (DaSTS).

The paragraphs below show how the original LTP SA/SEA objectives were developed.

In response to the implementation of the SEA Directive in the UK, a task group of officers from each of the 

Merseyside local authorities, the Environmental Advisory Service (EAS) and Government Office was 

established to consider the implementation of SEA across Merseyside. One of the actions that was agreed 

would be valuable was to identify a common set of environmental objectives that could be used across 

Merseyside as a starting point for all SEAs. This was subsequently expanded to encompass additional 

objectives to make it suitable for full sustainability appraisal (SA).

The existing environmental objectives in the Action for Sustainability (AfS) Integrated Appraisal Toolkit, the 

national sustainable development strategy objectives and local UDP and community strategy objectives 

were all used to inform the process. An indicative list of objectives had already been developed for the SEA 

of the LTP and this list formed the starting point for the development of an agreed set of Merseyside 

SA/SEA objectives. The proposed Merseyside SA/SEA objectives were adopted for the SEA of the LTP.

The Merseyside SEA objectives were intended to be a generic set of objectives applicable to the SEA of 

any plan or programme, so it is inevitable that some of the objectives will be more relevant and applicable 

than others. As part of the scoping process it was decided to scope out SA/SEA objective 16 on housing. 

This was because it was not considered relevant for the LTP3. Accessibility of housing development to key 

centres and services was considered to be important but this was covered under SA/SEA objective 12 on 

accessibility. Table 4.5 presents the LTP3 SA/SEA objectives in the context of the SEA Directive topics, 

and NATA sub-objectives.

Table 4.5: SA/SEA Objectives

Ref LTP3 SA/SEA Objectives SEA Topic (Directive, 
Annex If)

NATA Sub-Objective

1 To use energy, water and mineral resources prudently 
and efficiently, increase energy generated from 
renewable sources and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions

Climatic Factors

Material Assets

Greenhouse gases

2 To minimise the production of waste and increase reuse, 
recycling and recovery rates

Soil

Material Assets

-

3 To reduce poverty and social deprivation and secure 
economic inclusion

Population

Human Health

Community severance

Public accounts

Business users and 
providers

Consumer users

Page 118Page 76



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

28

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Ref LTP3 SA/SEA Objectives SEA Topic (Directive, 
Annex If)

NATA Sub-Objective

4 To protect, enhance and manage Merseyside’s rich 
diversity of cultural, historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets

Cultural Heritage 
(including architectural 
and archaeological 
heritage)

Heritage

Townscape

5 To protect, enhance and manage biodiversity, the 
viability of endangered species, habitats and sites of 
geological importance

Biodiversity

Flora

Fauna

Biodiversity

6 To protect, enhance and manage the local character and 
accessibility of the landscape across the sub-region

Landscape Landscape

Townscape

7 To protect, improve and where necessary, restore the 
quality of inland, estuarine and coastal waters

Water Water environment

8 To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local 
air quality

Air 

Human Health

Local air quality

9 To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local 
environmental quality (noise, light nuisance)

Population 

Human Health

Noise

10 To improve health and reduce health inequalities Human Health Physical fitness

Accidents

11 To improve safety and reduce crime, disorder and fear of 
crime

Population 

Human Health

Accidents

Security

12 To improve local accessibility of goods, services and 
amenities and reduce community severance

Population

Material Assets

Community severance

Access to the transport 
system

13 To reduce the need to travel and improve choice and use 
of more sustainable transport modes

Population

Air 

Materials Assets

Physical fitness

Access to the transport 
system

14 To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate change 
including flood risk

Water

Climatic Factors

Greenhouse gases

15 To protect, manage and restore land, soil quality and 
geodiversity

Soil Landscape

16 To provide good quality, affordable and resource efficient 
housing

Material Assets -

4.3.2 Developing SA/SEA Indicators 

The second part of developing the SA/SEA framework is to develop indicators for each objective (Table 

4.6). This helps determine the criteria for each objective and allows the baseline to be more focused. 

The indicators will be used as the basis for monitoring proposals to monitor the implementation of the 

LTP3, but they may need to be more tailored to the LTP3 effects. Monitoring proposals and specific 

indicators chosen will depend on the results of the assessment. Monitoring should be focused where 

negative effects are identified. 

Table 4.6: SA/SEA Indicators

LTP3 SA/SEA Objectives Indicators

Quantity of electricity generated from renewable sources1. To use energy, water and mineral resources 
prudently and efficiently, increase energy 
generated from renewable sources and reduce Proportion (%) of electricity generated from renewable sources UK

Page 119Page 77



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

29

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 SA/SEA Objectives Indicators

Number of existing renewable energy schemes (by type)

Renewable Energy Potential (by type)

Estimated greenhouse gas emissions by sector

Amount of secondary/recycled aggregates used

greenhouse gas emissions

Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions

Total annual volume of waste generated, Municipal waste arisings2. To minimise the production of waste and 
increase reuse, recycling and recovery rates

Proportion of waste recycled/disposed by method of disposal

Indices of deprivation ranking

Percentage of working age population unemployed

3. To reduce poverty and social deprivation and 
secure economic inclusion

Percentage of population (or numbers) receiving state benefits

Merseyside Heritage Assets at Risk

Listed Heritage Assets in Merseyside

Number of listed buildings and percentage on English Heritage’s Buildings 
at Risk Register - BAR

4. To protect, enhance and manage the 
Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, historical 
and built environment and archaeological 
assets

Number and total area of conservation areas

Number and total area of internationally and nationally designated nature 
conservation & geologically important sites and reported condition

Reported levels of damage to designated sites

Progress against Biodiversity Action Plan targets

5. To protect, enhance and manage 
biodiversity, the viability of endangered 
species, habitats and sites of geological 
importance

Number of Locally Designated Sites

Total area of publicly accessible open land/green space and Total area of 
publicly accessible urban green space

Extent of Green Belt and areas of designated landscape value/importance

6. To protect, enhance and manage the local 
character and accessibility of the landscape 
across the sub-region

Total area of woodland/extent of tree cover

7. To protect, improve and where necessary, 
restore the quality of inland, estuarine and 
coastal waters

Water quality (chemical & biological) classification of rivers, canals, 
estuaries and coastal waters, Bathing water quality

Background pollutant concentrations

Number of ‘air pollution days’

Annual quantity of emissions by sector

Number and total area of Air Quality Management Areas and population 
living in AQMAs

Number of significant ‘point sources’ – Part A processes

8. To protect, manage and, where necessary, 
improve local air quality

Traffic volumes (annual average daily and peak hour) on main roads

Number of people reporting disturbance due to environmental noise

Percentage of population exposed to noise levels above acceptable 
thresholds (to be derived from DEFRA noise mapping).

Extent of (designated) tranquil areas

% of people who agree that their local area is a place where people from 
different backgrounds get on well together

% of people who are satisfied with their local areas as a place to live

9. To protect, manage and, where necessary, 
improve local environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

% people ages 65 and over who are satisfied with both home and 
neighbourhood

Coronary Heart Disease (CHD)

Model-Based Estimates of Current Smoking for LADs in England

10. To improve health and reduce health 
inequalities

Estimates of Obesity and of overweight children

Page 120Page 78



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

30

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 SA/SEA Objectives Indicators

Years of healthy life expectancy (NI 137 - healthy life expectancy age 65)

Mortality (standardised mortality ratios) by main cause

% people who think that drug use or drug dealing is a problem in their local 
area

% people who say their health is good or very good

% adult participation in sport and active recreation

Numbers of people killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents

Numbers of children killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents

Recorded crime per 1,000 population

Number of people reporting fear of crime

% people who think that anti-social behaviour is a problem in their local 
area

% people who agree that the police and other public services are 
successfully dealing with anti-social behaviour and crime in their local area

% people who agree that the police and other local public services seek 
people’s views about anti-social behaviour and crime in their local area

11. To improve safety and reduce crime, 
disorder and fear of crime

% people who think that drunk and rowdy behaviour is a problem in their 
local area

Travel time to key services by public transport/walk

Transport accessibility and mobility – Connectivity Score

12. To improve local accessibility of goods, 
services and amenities and reduce community 
severance

Access for disabled people to goods, services and amenities

Trends in public transport fares, motoring costs and the retail price index

Average commercial peak bus fare per mile and average commercial off-
peak bus fare per mile (in pence)

Personal Travel – distances, purposes and modes

Travel to school, work and shops by mode

Bus and Rail patronage

13. To reduce the need to travel and improve 
choice and use of more sustainable transport 
modes

Quality of Bus Fleet (age/engine standard

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate 
change including flood risk

Extent of flood risk areas – riverine and coastal

Agricultural land quality classification

Location and extent of (potentially) contaminated land - PCL

15. To protect, manage and restore land, soil 
quality and geodiversity

Proportion of development on previously used land

Page 121Page 79



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

31

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

5.1 Testing the LTP3 Objectives against the SA/SEA Objectives

Table 5.1 shows the compatibility of the Merseyside LTP3 principles, which underpin the LTP3 Strategy, and the SA/SEA objectives. 

Table 5.1: Compatibility of LTP3 and SA/SEA Objectives
LTP3 Principles

Policy Focus Delivery Focus

SA/SEA Objectives
E

n
su

re
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

ce
 o

f 
co

re
 a

ss
e

ts
 –

m
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d

 m
a

ke
 b

e
st

 u
se

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s,

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
a

 s
ys

te
m

 r
e

si
lie

n
t 

to
 c

h
a

n
g

in
g

 w
e

a
th

e
r 

p
a

tt
e

rn
s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 c

a
rb

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 –

ta
rg

e
t 

a
va

ila
b

le
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

ity
 

re
g

io
n

 p
ri
o

ri
tie

s 
a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 le

ss
 o

il 
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 s
ys

te
m

S
a

fe
 a

n
d

 in
cl

u
si

ve
–
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y 
o

f 
tr

a
ve

l o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
ity

, 
a

d
d

re
ss

in
g

 
d

is
a

d
va

n
ta

g
e

, 
h

e
a

lth
 in

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
 a

 
co

n
tin

u
in

g
 c

o
m

m
itm

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 r

o
a

d
 

tr
a

ff
ic

 a
cc

id
e

n
ts

P
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a

lth
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 –

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 
th

e
 p

ro
m

o
tio

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
, 

a
n

d
 

a
ct

iv
e

 m
o

d
e

s 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

cy
cl

e
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
in

g
 in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l h

e
a

lth
 a

n
d

 
re

d
u

ce
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s

M
a

ki
n

g
 m

a
xi

m
u

m
 u

se
 o

f 
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

–
 u

si
n

g
 I

n
te

lli
g

e
n

t 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 

S
ys

te
m

s 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
rt

ca
rd

s 
to

 m
a

ke
 e

xi
st

in
g

 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 w

o
rk

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

n
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 
g

re
e

n
 t

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

y

S
m

a
rt

e
r 

ch
o

ic
e

s 
–
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

st
a

in
a

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

e
h

a
vi

o
u

r 
ch

a
n

g
e

 li
n

ke
d

 t
o

 a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 
th

a
t 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
n

e
ss

, 
sa

fe
ty

, 
a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

ta
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 w
a

lk
in

g
, 

cy
cl

in
g

 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s,

 in
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

tio
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
tio

n
 –

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
ith

 p
la

n
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
rs

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 
e

xi
st

in
g

 a
ss

e
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

 r
e

lia
n

ce
 o

n
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 c
a

p
ita

l s
o

lu
tio

n
s

A
d

d
re

ss
 m

u
lti

p
le

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
–
 w

ith
 k

e
y 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 a

ss
is

t 
m

o
re

 
in

n
o

va
tiv

e
 a

n
d

 c
le

ve
r 

u
se

 o
f 

a
va

ila
b

le
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
o

o
lin

g
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
ri
n

g

M
a

xi
m

is
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
iti

e
s 

–
 w

o
rk

 
w

ith
 t

h
e

 p
ri
va

te
 s

e
ct

o
r,

 o
p

e
ra

to
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
u

r 
a

m
b

iti
o

n
s

1. To use energy, water and mineral resources 
prudently and efficiently, increase energy generated 
from renewable sources and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions

   

 

2. To minimise the production of waste and increase 
reuse, recycling and recovery rates

  

3. To reduce poverty and social deprivation and      

5. Compatibility of LTP3 and SA/SEA Objectives

P
age 122
P

age 80



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

32

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Principles

Policy Focus Delivery Focus

SA/SEA Objectives

E
n

su
re

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 o
f 

co
re

 a
ss

e
ts

 –
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 m

a
ke

 b
e

st
 u

se
 o

f 
e

xi
st

in
g

 
re

so
u

rc
e

s,
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 s

ys
te

m
 r

e
si

lie
n

t 
to

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 w

e
a

th
e

r 
p

a
tt

e
rn

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 c

a
rb

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 –

ta
rg

e
t 

a
va

ila
b

le
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

ity
 

re
g

io
n

 p
ri
o

ri
tie

s 
a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 le

ss
 o

il 
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 s
ys

te
m

S
a

fe
 a

n
d

 in
cl

u
si

ve
–
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y 
o

f 
tr

a
ve

l o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
ity

, 
a

d
d

re
ss

in
g

 
d

is
a

d
va

n
ta

g
e

, 
h

e
a

lth
 in

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
 a

 
co

n
tin

u
in

g
 c

o
m

m
itm

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 r

o
a

d
 

tr
a

ff
ic

 a
cc

id
e

n
ts

P
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a

lth
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 –

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 
th

e
 p

ro
m

o
tio

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
, 

a
n

d
 

a
ct

iv
e

 m
o

d
e

s 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

cy
cl

e
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
in

g
 in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l h

e
a

lth
 a

n
d

 
re

d
u

ce
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s

M
a

ki
n

g
 m

a
xi

m
u

m
 u

se
 o

f 
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

–
 u

si
n

g
 I

n
te

lli
g

e
n

t 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 

S
ys

te
m

s 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
rt

ca
rd

s 
to

 m
a

ke
 e

xi
st

in
g

 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 w

o
rk

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

n
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 
g

re
e

n
 t

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

y

S
m

a
rt

e
r 

ch
o

ic
e

s 
–
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

st
a

in
a

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

e
h

a
vi

o
u

r 
ch

a
n

g
e

 li
n

ke
d

 t
o

 a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 
th

a
t 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
n

e
ss

, 
sa

fe
ty

, 
a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

ta
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 w
a

lk
in

g
, 

cy
cl

in
g

 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s,

 in
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

tio
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
tio

n
 –

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
ith

 p
la

n
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
rs

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 
e

xi
st

in
g

 a
ss

e
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

 r
e

lia
n

ce
 o

n
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 c
a

p
ita

l s
o

lu
tio

n
s

A
d

d
re

ss
 m

u
lti

p
le

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
–
 w

ith
 k

e
y 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 a

ss
is

t 
m

o
re

 
in

n
o

va
tiv

e
 a

n
d

 c
le

ve
r 

u
se

 o
f 

a
va

ila
b

le
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
o

o
lin

g
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
ri
n

g

M
a

xi
m

is
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
iti

e
s 

–
 w

o
rk

 
w

ith
 t

h
e

 p
ri
va

te
 s

e
ct

o
r,

 o
p

e
ra

to
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
u

r 
a

m
b

iti
o

n
s

secure economic inclusion

4. To protect, enhance and manage Merseyside’s 
rich diversity of cultural, historical and built 
environment and archaeological assets




5. To protect, enhance and manage biodiversity, the 
viability of endangered species, habitats and sites of 
geological importance

  
 

6. To protect, enhance and manage the local 
character and accessibility of the landscape across 
the sub-region

 
 

7. To protect, improve and where necessary, restore 
the quality of inland, estuarine and coastal waters

   

8. To protect, manage and, where necessary, 
improve local air quality

  

9. To protect, manage and, where necessary, 
improve local environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

 

10. To improve health and reduce health inequalities   

11. To improve safety and reduce crime, disorder and 
fear of crime

 

P
age 123

P
age 81



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

33

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Principles

Policy Focus Delivery Focus

SA/SEA Objectives

E
n

su
re

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 o
f 

co
re

 a
ss

e
ts

 –
m

a
in

ta
in

 a
n

d
 m

a
ke

 b
e

st
 u

se
 o

f 
e

xi
st

in
g

 
re

so
u

rc
e

s,
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 s

ys
te

m
 r

e
si

lie
n

t 
to

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 w

e
a

th
e

r 
p

a
tt

e
rn

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 c

a
rb

o
n

 r
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 –

ta
rg

e
t 

a
va

ila
b

le
 r

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

ity
 

re
g

io
n

 p
ri
o

ri
tie

s 
a

n
d

 p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 le

ss
 o

il 
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 s
ys

te
m

S
a

fe
 a

n
d

 in
cl

u
si

ve
–
 e

n
su

ri
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

y 
o

f 
tr

a
ve

l o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
ity

, 
a

d
d

re
ss

in
g

 
d

is
a

d
va

n
ta

g
e

, 
h

e
a

lth
 in

e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
 a

 
co

n
tin

u
in

g
 c

o
m

m
itm

e
n

t 
to

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 r

o
a

d
 

tr
a

ff
ic

 a
cc

id
e

n
ts

P
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a

lth
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll 
b

e
in

g
 –

 f
o

cu
s 

o
n

 
th

e
 p

ro
m

o
tio

n
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
, 

a
n

d
 

a
ct

iv
e

 m
o

d
e

s 
in

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 t

o
 in

cr
e

a
se

 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

cy
cl

e
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
in

g
 in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 p

h
ys

ic
a

l a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l h

e
a

lth
 a

n
d

 
re

d
u

ce
 c

a
rb

o
n

 e
m

is
si

o
n

s

M
a

ki
n

g
 m

a
xi

m
u

m
 u

se
 o

f 
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 

im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t 

–
 u

si
n

g
 I

n
te

lli
g

e
n

t 
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 

S
ys

te
m

s 
a

n
d

 s
m

a
rt

ca
rd

s 
to

 m
a

ke
 e

xi
st

in
g

 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 w

o
rk

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a

n
d

 e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

 
g

re
e

n
 t

e
ch

n
o

lo
g

y

S
m

a
rt

e
r 

ch
o

ic
e

s 
–
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
u

st
a

in
a

b
ili

ty
 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

e
h

a
vi

o
u

r 
ch

a
n

g
e

 li
n

ke
d

 t
o

 a
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e

te
d

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 
th

a
t 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e
n

e
ss

, 
sa

fe
ty

, 
a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

ta
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 w
a

lk
in

g
, 

cy
cl

in
g

 
a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 t
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
s,

 in
 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

tio
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
tio

n
 –

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
ith

 p
la

n
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
rs

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 
e

xi
st

in
g

 a
ss

e
ts

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
ce

 r
e

lia
n

ce
 o

n
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 c
a

p
ita

l s
o

lu
tio

n
s

A
d

d
re

ss
 m

u
lti

p
le

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s 
–
 w

ith
 k

e
y 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 s

ta
ke

h
o

ld
e

rs
 t

o
 a

ss
is

t 
m

o
re

 
in

n
o

va
tiv

e
 a

n
d

 c
le

ve
r 

u
se

 o
f 

a
va

ila
b

le
 

re
so

u
rc

e
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
o

o
lin

g
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
ri
n

g

M
a

xi
m

is
e

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
iti

e
s 

–
 w

o
rk

 
w

ith
 t

h
e

 p
ri
va

te
 s

e
ct

o
r,

 o
p

e
ra

to
rs

 a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n

ci
e

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 o
u

r 
a

m
b

iti
o

n
s

12. To improve local accessibility of goods, services 
and amenities and reduce community severance

     

13. To reduce the need to travel and improve choice 
and use of more sustainable transport modes

    

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate change 
including flood risk

      

15. To protect, manage and restore land, soil quality
and geo-diversity

  

5.2 Compatibility Summary

In general the SA/SEA objective and LTP3 principles support each other. There is unlikely to be any conflict between objectives. LTP3 principles on carbon 

reduction, green technology, smarter choices and sustainable transport modes will support SA/SEA objectives on climate change, air quality, biodiversity, 

environmental quality, sustainable transport and health. LTP3 principles on safety, health and well being and smart choices will support SA/SEA objectives on 

health, deprivation, safety, and accessibility. Maximising use of existing assets will support SA/SEA objectives on resource use and land and soil.

P
age 124
P

age 82



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

34

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

6.1 Development of LTP3 Preferred Strategy

Development of the preferred strategy for the Merseyside LTP3 has taken place over a number of years

through a range of stages and consultation workshops which are explained below.

 Stage One – Clarify Goals – Based on the DaSTS goals and other regional and local priorities, the local 

goals for the Merseyside LTP3 were developed and consulted on.

 Stage Two – Specify Problems/Challenges – An evidence base report was prepared highlighting key 

emerging challenges and opportunities for Merseyside and the LTP3. A workshop was undertaken to 

categorise and prioritise the list of challenges and opportunities.

Stage Three – Generate Options – A package of options were developed to deliver the LTP3 goals in 

the context of the identified challenges and opportunities. Four different future scenarios were used to 

develop the strategy. Each option had a slightly different focus on the components and interventions 

that made up the option. Full details of the components under each option are presented in Annexe 

Three of the LTP3. The four options were:

 Low funding scenario – represents a package with a substantially constrained budget;

 Strengthened low-carbon agenda – provides for an accelerated policy response to tackle CO2

emissions;

 Concessions to motorists’ agenda – provides for a policy environment where the role and 

importance o the private vehicle is protected. However, this is interpreted as a move away from 

‘stick’ measures that actively penalise motorists, but continues to invest in ‘carrots’ to improve the 

alternatives;

 Strong economic recovery scenario – assumes a strong economic recovery is in progress driving 

accelerated local regeneration and associated increases in funding available to the transport sector.

 Stage Four – Strategy Appraisal – Each scenario was modelled to test variants of the strategy. A 

workshop was undertaken to determine which of the four scenarios the preferred strategy should be 

based on. The general consensus was that the strategy should be placed towards low funding and low 

carbon in the short term, with a move towards economic recovery in the medium term.

 Stage Five – Strategy Selection – Following the workshop, elements from the four scenarios were 

combined as per the workshop consensus in order to develop a Preferred Strategy.

 Stage Six – Preferred Strategy – Details of the Preferred Strategy were refined.

6.2 Appraisal of LTP3 Strategic Options

The four strategy options were appraised against the SA/SEA objectives to determine their sustainability 

performance. Table 6.1 summarises the results of the options appraisal. The ‘Do Nothing’ option has been 

previously appraised in the ‘Evolution of the Baseline’ section in this report. Due to the subtle differences

between the options the following key was used to differentiate between the significance of positive and 

negative effects. 

Key
+++ Significant positive effect
++ Moderate positive effect
+ Marginal positive effect
0 Neutral or no effect
- Marginal negative effect
-- Moderate negative effect
--- Significant negative effect
D Effect depends on implementation

6. Development and Appraisal of LTP3 
Strategic Options

Page 125Page 83



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

35

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table 6.1: Appraisal of LTP3 Options against SA/SEA Objectives

LTP3 Strategy OptionsSA/SEA Objective (Topic)

Low funding Strengthened 
low-carbon

Concessions 
to motorists

Strong 
economic 
recovery

1. Resource use, Renewable 
energy, GHG emissions

0 + 0 0

2. Waste D D D D

3. Poverty, Economic inclusion + +++ + +++

4. Heritage assets D D D D

5. Biodiversity D D D D

6. Landscape D D D D

7. Water Quality D D D D

8. Air Quality + +++ 0 ++

9. Environmental Quality + ++ 0 ++

10. Health + +++ + ++

11. Crime, Safety + ++ 0 ++

12. Accessibility + +++ + +++

13. Sustainable Transport + +++ + ++

14. Climate change + +++ 0 ++

15. Land, Soil - -- -- --

Low funding scenario

The ‘Low funding scenario’ option is likely to support most of the SA/SEA objectives. This option includes a 

reduced package of interventions to improve cycle, pedestrian, rail and bus networks; smarter choices 

training; public transport fares; increase parking charges. This is likely to have marginal positive effects on 

economic inclusion, air quality, environmental quality, health, safety, accessibility, sustainable transport and 

climate change. There may be a marginal negative effect on land and soil because improvements are 

proposed which are likely to involve some landtake. Effects on heritage assets, biodiversity, landscape and 

water quality will depend on the detail, location and implementation of interventions. A ‘D’ has been 

recorded in the appraisal under the SA/SEA objective on waste. This is because waste may be generated 

as a result of components and interventions set out under the option, but following current Council best 

practice re-use and recycling of materials would be undertaken.

Strengthened low-carbon agenda

The ‘Strengthened low-carbon agenda’ option is likely to significantly support most of the SA/SEA 

objectives. This option includes a range of rail, bus, cycle and pedestrian enhancements; green vehicle 

infrastructure; flexible working; park and ride; increased parking charges; public transport fares and smarter 

choices training. This is likely to have significant positive effects on economic inclusion, air quality, health, 

accessibility, sustainable transport and climate change. There is also likely to be moderate positive effects 

on environmental quality and safety. There may be a moderate negative effect on land and soil because 

road, rail, bus, cycle and pedestrian improvements are proposed which are likely to involve landtake. 

Effects on heritage assets, biodiversity, landscape and water quality will depend on the detail, location and 

Page 126Page 84



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

36

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

implementation of interventions. A ‘D’ has been recorded in the appraisal under the SA/SEA objective on 

waste. This is because waste may be generated as a result of components and interventions set out under 

the option, but following current Council best practice re-use and recycling of materials would be 

undertaken.

Concessions to motorists’ agenda

The ‘Concessions to motorists’ option is likely to have an overall neutral or marginal positive effect against 

the SA/SEA objectives. This option does include rail and cycle enhancements, and smarter choices 

training. However, its main focus is on highways and car parking. There is likely to be marginal positive 

effects on economic inclusion, health, accessibility and sustainable transport through rail, cycle and smarter 

choices interventions. Increasing parking availability in centres and relaxing parking allowances for out of 

town developments may encourage private vehicle use, reducing the benefits of the other interventions. 

Therefore, several of the SA/SEA objectives have been recorded as neutral. There may be a moderate 

negative effect on land and soil because road, rail, and cycle improvements are proposed which are likely 

to involve landtake. Effects on heritage assets, biodiversity, landscape and water quality will depend on the 

detail, location and implementation of interventions. A ‘D’ has been recorded in the appraisal under the 

SA/SEA objective on waste. This is because waste may be generated as a result of components and 

interventions set out under the option, but following current Council best practice re-use and recycling of 

materials would be undertaken.

Strong economic recovery scenario

The ‘Strong economic recovery scenario’ option is likely to support most of the SA/SEA objectives. This 

option includes a range of rail, bus and pedestrian enhancements; highway maintenance and freight 

infrastructure improvements; park and ride provision; public transport fares and smarter choices training. 

This is likely to have significant positive effects on economic inclusion and accessibility. The focus on public 

transport and pedestrian enhancements is likely to have moderate positive effects on air quality, 

environmental quality, health, safety, sustainable transport and climate change. Highway maintenance and 

freight network improvements will also have positive effects but they take some of the focus away from 

more sustainable modes of transport. There may be a moderate negative effect on land and soil because 

road, rail, bus and cycle improvements are proposed which are likely to involve landtake. Effects on 

heritage assets, biodiversity, landscape and water quality will depend on the detail, location and 

implementation of interventions. A ‘D’ has been recorded in the appraisal under the SA/SEA objective on 

waste. This is because waste may be generated as a result of components and interventions set out under 

the option, but following current Council best practice re-use and recycling of materials would be 

undertaken.

Page 127Page 85



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

37

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

7.1 Assessment Workshop

The provisional LTP3 strategy was appraised against the sustainability framework by determining the level 

of sustainability performance of the LTP3 in support of each of the framework objectives. It should be noted 

that the assessment was a high level, strategic evaluation of implementing policy. The appraisal took place 

in the form of a workshop with specialists from Mott MacDonald and Merseyside Transport Partnership to 

ensure a robust assessment with valuable, multi-discipline input.

The methodology used for the appraisal in the workshop was based on the DfT’s Tag Unit 2.11D guidance 

‘Draft: Strategic Environmental Assessment for Transport Plans and Programmes’ and Merseytravel’s own 

methodology, as adopted for the SEA of Merseyside’s LTP2. As well as predicting and evaluating the 

effects of the provisional LTP3 strategy, it also focused on identifying sustainability opportunities/mitigation

measures. To assess an objective a group discussion took place to gain views and opinions on effects. A 

consensus of opinion was then reached as to the predicted effects and the specialist in that area gave their 

expert views.  

During the workshop the six core goals and actions/interventions (described in Appendix D) were assessed 

in support of each of the fifteen SA/SEA objectives. For each objective a score (where possible or 

appropriate) and record of decision was recorded in an appraisal matrix. In making the evaluation it was 

assumed that no mitigation measures would be adopted. Where appropriate, mitigation measures were 

recommended and recorded during the workshop; and are discussed in Section 8 of this report. 

Prediction and evaluation of effects was undertaken based on three criteria:

 Interaction;

 Magnitude; and

 Importance.

Interaction

Predictions of effects were undertaken using an interaction matrix as outlined below. Where an interaction 

was identified commentary was provided to describe the nature of the interaction and how it would affect 

the SA/SEA objective.

LTP3 GoalSA/SEA Objectives

LTP3 Action/Intervention
Topic

LTP3 Action/Intervention
Topic

LTP3 Action/Intervention
Topic

Objective 1

Objective 2

Objective 3

Key

+ Potential positive interaction

0 Neutral or no interaction

- Potential negative interaction

D Dependent upon implementation

7. Appraisal of LTP3 Strategy

Page 128Page 86



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

38

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Magnitude

Having identified the effects of the LTP3, an assessment of the significance of these effects was then 

conducted. For each potential interaction identified in the interaction matrix, an evaluation of predicted 

impact magnitude was undertaken using the following criteria:

Magnitude Description

Negligible No measurable effect on the baseline. Effects would be one or more of the following: possible 
community/local, short-term, temporary or indirect

Minor Slight measurable change in the baseline. Effects would be one or more of the following: likely 
community/local, short term, temporary, direct or indirect

Moderate Measurable change in the baseline. Effects would be one or more of the following: definite, local 
borough, medium term, semi permanent or temporary, direct or indirect or reversible

Major Substantial measurable change in the baseline. Effects would be one or more of the following: 
definite, borough/regional/national/European, long term, permanent, direct or irreversible

Importance

For each potential interaction identified an evaluation of the sustainability value of the indicators affected 

was undertaken. The valuation was based on the statutory importance, sensitivity to change, vulnerability, 

degree of influence on health, quality of life and quality of the local environment. Information from the 

baseline study was used to inform the evaluation. Importance was measured using the following criteria:

Importance Description

High No statutory recognition/designations, not sensitive to change, not vulnerable, minor influence on 
human health, quality of life and/or local environment

Medium Local recognition/designations, sensitive to change, has moderate effects on human health, 
quality of life and/or local environment

Low International, national, regional statutory recognition/designation, highly sensitive to change, 
vulnerable, has major effect on human health, quality or life and/or local environment

Significance

For each potential interaction the significance was determined using the following criteria:

MagnitudeImportance

Negligible Minor Moderate Major

Low Not Significant Not Significant Not Significant Significant

Medium Not Significant Not Significant Significant Highly Significant

High Not Significant Significant Highly Significant Highly Significant

7.2 Appraisal Results

The full appraisal results matrices (including magnitude, importance and significance assessments) are 

presented in Appendix D. Tables 7.1 to 7.6 provide a summary of the appraisal results for each of the six 

LTP3 goals and associated actions/interventions. A cumulative assessment for each LTP3 goal as a whole 

has also been assessed.

Page 129Page 87



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

39

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

7.2.1 LTP3 Goal One Appraisal

Table 7.1: LTP3 Goal 1 Summary Appraisal

SA/SEA Objectives (Topic) LTP3 Goal One: Ensure the transport system 
supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region 

and its Local Strategic Partnerships

1.  Resource Use, Renewable Energy, 
GHG emissions

+

2.  Waste +

3.  Poverty, Economic Inclusion +

4.  Heritage Assets +

5. Biodiversity +

6. Landscape +

7. Water Quality +

8. Air Quality 0

9.  Environmental Quality 0

10. Health +

11.  Crime, Safety D

12.  Accessibility +

13.  Sustainable Transport +

14.  Climate Change +

15.  Land, Soil +

7.2.2 LTP3 Goal One Summary

Goal One generally supports the SA/SEA objectives. The goal is mainly about partnerships and 

collaborative working. Partnership working was considered important to work towards national and strategic 

priorities such as a low carbon economy, sustainable waste management, improved water quality, and an 

integrated and fully accessible transport network. This would have positive effects on climate change, water 

quality, accessibility, sustainable transport, and waste. Partnership and collaborative working may also 

have social and health benefits through creating a joint approach between land use planning and transport

integration. For example, linking deprived areas with new employment sites through good public transport. 

Wider engagement with residents will allow key local issues facing communities to be addressed and may 

encourage social cohesion. A full, detailed record of decision describing the effects of LTP3 Goal One is 

presented in Appendix D.

7.2.3 LTP3 Goal Two Appraisal

Table 7.2: LTP3 Goal 2 Summary Appraisal

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport systemSA/SEA
Objectives 
(Topic)

1.Traffic 2.Modal 
Shift

3.Public 
Transport

4. Fleet 
Vehicles

5. Freight
Traffic

6. Land-
Use 

Planning

7. Network 
Maintenance 

& 
Management

1. Resource Use, 
Renewable 
Energy, GHG 
emissions

+ + + + D + +

2. Waste 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Page 130Page 88



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

40

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport systemSA/SEA
Objectives 
(Topic)

1.Traffic 2.Modal 
Shift

3.Public 
Transport

4. Fleet 
Vehicles

5. Freight
Traffic

6. Land-
Use 

Planning

7. Network 
Maintenance 

& 
Management

3. Poverty, 
Economic 
Inclusion

0 + + 0 0 0 0

4. Heritage 
Assets

0 D 0 0 - + +

5. Biodiversity D D D 0 + D + +

6. Landscape D D D 0 + + +

7. Water Quality 0 D 0 0 0 + +

8. Air Quality + + + + + + 0

9. Environmental 
Quality

D + + + + + +

10. Health + + + 0 + + +

11. Crime, Safety 0 0 0 0 0 0 +

12. Accessibility D + D + 0 + +

13. Sustainable 
Transport

- + + + + + +

14. Climate 
Change

+ + + + + + +

15. Land, Soil 0 D 0 0 - + +

7.2.4 LTP3 Goal Two Summary

Goal two was split into seven sub-topics. The level of support for the SA/SEA objectives varied according 

to the sub-topic being assessed. 

Traffic

The traffic sub-topic focused on delivering the infrastructure to support electric and low emission vehicles 

and fuels. It was considered that this may have positive effects on climate change, air quality and health. 

Several of the SA/SEA objectives were recorded as either having no interaction/neutral effect or the effect 

depended on implementation. For example the contribution to the local environment depends on the design 

and placement of the infrastructure. Electric vehicles are likely to be cleaner and quieter and therefore 

contribute to a more pleasant environment. The provision of a charging point network and infrastructure for 

low emission vehicles and fuels could have a positive effect on local accessibility if charging points are 

located where there are local services and amenities. The promotion of electric and low emission vehicles 

will promote the use of more sustainable modes of transport. However, this measure will not reduce the 

need to travel and may still encourage the use of private, single occupancy modes.  

Modal shift

The modal shift sub-topic focused on increasing smarter choices, behavioural change programmes and 

marketing to encourage modal shift as well as ensuring infrastructure is in place to support higher levels of 

cycling, walking and public transport use. This was considered likely to have positive effects on climate 

change, deprivation, air quality, environmental quality, health, accessibility and sustainable transport. The 

successful implementation of Smarter Choices and behavioural change programmes was considered to 

require infrastructure improvement. Such infrastructure improvements, if implemented have the potential to 

negatively impact landscape, biodiversity and cultural heritage. However, infrastructure improvements and 

Page 131Page 89



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

41

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

public transport information provision may help improve access to the landscape, nature conservation sites, 

and cultural heritage assets.

Public transport

The public transport sub-topic focused on a range of public transport actions including partnerships with 

bus operators, use of low emission vehicles and alternatives fuels, smart ticketing, promotion of public 

transport, and funding for Merseytram Line 1. It was considered that these actions may have positive 

effects on climate change, sustainable transport, health, environmental quality, air quality and deprivation. 

Improvements to bus services could help to increase access to local services, if appropriately targeted at 

communities where accessibility is currently low.

Fleet vehicles

The fleet vehicles sub-topic is focused on working with bus, taxi and freight fleet operators to improve 

environmental performance, and investigating offset contributions from developers to fund low emissions 

infrastructure and vehicles. The majority of SA/SEA objectives were considered to have no 

interaction/neutral effect under this sub-topic. Positive effects may include climate change, sustainable 

transport, accessibility, environmental quality and air quality.

Freight traffic

The freight sub-topic focussed on working through Freight Quality Partnership to improve environmental 

performance, uptake of low emission vehicles through procurement policy, use of alternative fuels, and 

feasibility of consolidation centres. It was considered that the development of consolidation centres is likely 

to negatively affect cultural heritage as it may involve landtake and affect the setting of the landscape or of 

listed buildings. Procurement policies to support the uptake of low emission vehicles were considered to 

positively contribute to the development of a low carbon transport system, having positive benefits for air 

quality, climate change and health. A reduction in HGV traffic is likely to improve local environmental 

quality. A reduction in volume and frequency of large vehicles can help the urban and rural streetscape 

appear more attractive and safer to other road users. HGVs are also associated with air and noise 

pollution, especially in urban areas and this influences people’s perceptions of their local environment.

Land use planning

The land use planning sub-topic focused on engaging with planners to consider sustainable transport and

design including greening of routes, greater enforcement of existing sustainable transport commitments 

made by developers, and include low emission strategy principles within planning documents. Measures to 

integrate sustainable transport planning and design and Low Emission Strategy principles into the planning 

process would produce positive outcomes for the majority of the SA/SEA objectives. Actions were 

considered to have potential to produce substantial measurable changes in emissions, and provide the 

opportunity to integrate climate change adaptation measures into design. However, stakeholders identified 

that such measures needed to be integrated into national, as well as local and regional planning policy. It 

was also considered that sustainable transport commitments made by developers may ensure that 

deprived social groups have better access to services, especially where there is affordable housing

Network maintenance and management

The network maintenance and management sub-topic includes a range of actions including ensuring new 

transport projects take account of future climatic conditions, joined up working between transport and 

health sectors, consider options to reduce noise from transport, and provision for cycling and walking is 

embedded as an essential requirement. These actions may have positive effects for many of the SA/SEA 

objectives including cultural heritage, biodiversity, landscape, water quality, environmental quality, health, 

accessibility, sustainable transport and climate change.

Page 132Page 90



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

42

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

A full, detailed record of decision describing the effects of LTP3 Goal Two is presented in Appendix D.

7.2.5 LTP3 Goal Three Appraisal

Table 7.3: LTP3 Goal 3 Summary Appraisal

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and 
enables improved health well-being

SA/SEA Objectives (Topic)

1. Cycling and 
Walking

2. Road Safety
3. 

Health/Equality

1. Resource Use, 
Renewable Energy, GHG 
emissions

+ - 0

2. Waste 0 0 0

3. Poverty, Economic 
Inclusion

+ + D

4. Heritage Assets - D 0 0

5. Biodiversity + - 0 0

6. Landscape + - 0 0

7. Water Quality - 0 0

8. Air Quality + + 0

9. Environmental Quality + + 0

10. Health + + +

11. Crime, safety + Safety + Crime D D

12. Accessibility + - D +

13. Sustainable Transport + + - 0

14. Climate Change + - 0

15. Land, Soil - 0 0

7.2.6 LTP3 Goal Three Summary

Goal three was split into three sub-topics. The level of support for the SA/SEA objectives varied according 

to the sub-topic being assessed. 

Cycling and Walking

The cycling and walking sub-topic focused on increasing the network of cycle and walking routes, 

expanding cycle and rail, and cycle and bus integration, cycle parking, and examine funding streams for 

cycle training. These actions are likely to have positive effects on deprivation, air quality environmental 

quality, health, accessibility, sustainable transport and climate change. It was considered that the 

infrastructure required for new and improved cycle and walking routes could potentially negatively effect

heritage assets, biodiversity and landscape, and involve landtake. In relation to heritage assets, 

improvements to the walking and cycling network may affect the setting of, for example listed buildings. 

Also, the provision of new infrastructure could potentially disturb archaeological remains, however this is 

unlikely in urban areas as the ground will have already been disturbed by previous activities. The effects on 

Heritage Assets are also scheme dependent as some routes may aid accessibility to a cultural heritage 

site. Improvements to the walking and cycling network could also enhance the historic environment 

through sympathetic improvements to the public realm through maintenance and decluttering of the 

Page 133Page 91



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

43

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

streetscapes. The provision of walking and cycling infrastructure is likely to have less of a negative effect in 

comparison to other types of infrastructure, such as roads.

Road Safety

The road safety sub-topic focused on police partnerships within road safety, continued spending on road 

safety equivalent to 2010 levels, and expanding the network of low speed zones. These actions are likely to 

have positive effects for deprivation, air quality, environmental quality, health and safety. There may be 

negative effects in terms of accessibility depending what road safety measures implemented. 

Health/Equality

The health and equality sub-topic focused on ensuring all actions are governed by the need to meet the 

Equalities legislation, and examining the potential for major development proposals to be subject to a 

transport/health impact assessment. It was considered that the majority of SA/SEA objectives would have 

no interaction/neutral effect. However, it is likely that there will positive effects on health and accessibility.

A full, detailed record of decision describing the effects of LTP3 Goal Three is presented in Appendix D.

7.2.7 LTP3 Goal Four Appraisal

Table 7.4: LTP3 Goal 4 Summary Appraisal

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by 
ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities

SA/SEA Objectives 
(Topic)

1.Access to 
Employment

2.Access 
to 

Healthcare

3.Access 
to 

Education

4. Fares, 
Information 
& Ticketing

5. Taxis & 
Community 
Transport

6. Public 
Transport

7.Joint 
Working to 

address 
common 

objectives

1. Resource Use, 
Renewable Energy, 
GHG emissions

+ + + + 0 + +

2. Waste 0 0 0 0 0 0 +

3. Poverty, Economic 
Inclusion

+ + + D + + D +

4. Heritage Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 +

5. Biodiversity 0 0 0 0 0 + - +

6. Landscape 0 0 0 0 0 + - +

7. Water Quality 0 0 0 0 0 0 +

8. Air Quality + + + + + + +

9. Environmental 
Quality

0 0 0 0 0 0 +

10. Health + + + + + D +

11. Crime, Safety + 0 D + + + D

12. Accessibility + + + D + + +

13. Sustainable 
Transport

+ 0 0 + + + +

14. Climate Change + + + + 0 + +

15. Land, Soil 0 0 0 0 0 0 +

Page 134Page 92



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

44

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

7.2.8 LTP3 Goal Four Summary

The summary table above shows that on the whole the LTP3 Goal Four and its associated actions are 

likely to have either a positive or no interaction with the SA/SEA objectives. Accessibility improvements are 

likely to increase access to local, key services and employment, helping to reduce levels of poverty and 

promote social cohesion. Such actions, if implemented are unlikely to have any effects on biodiversity, 

landscape and waste as little or no development of the existing transportation network will be required. 

Access to Employment

Specific measures to increase access to employment focus on efforts to overcome transport barriers to 

employment, through programmes such as WorkWise. The provision of free cycles to those in 

disadvantaged communities is also recommended; along with the implementation of targeted action plans 

to identify where and what type of improvements are required to increase access. Specific actions to target 

workless residents and those living in disadvantaged areas (action plans and free cycles), would help to 

tackle social deprivation, secure economic inclusion and reduce unemployment. Actions are likely to 

produce positive effects for the local environmental quality. The asset management programme aims to 

improve environmental quality through fixing highway assets, maintaining and improving lighting (which can 

help reduce the fear of crime), providing safer pathways, highway cleaning regimes and facilitating 

recreational access (by maintaining public rights of way).

Access to Healthcare

Both short-term and long term proposals to improve access to healthcare include the promotion of 

sustainable access to local food shopping through walking and cycling, the promotion of health benefits 

associated with walking and cycling and the greater commissioning of joint services to improve access to 

healthcare and health food choices. Interactions identified were mostly positive, for instance the co-

ordination of resources and commissioning will help to match the needs of patients with the provision of 

transport. An opportunity was also identified for wider work with the PCTs. This could be to reduce the 

need for travel (by delivering services locally) or by influencing travel providers (e.g. operators of bus 

services). Equitable access to healthcare is likely to have a major, positive effect on areas where levels of 

poverty and social deprivation are already high.

Access to Education

Specific measures highlighted under this topic that will seek to improve access to education include the 

development of a joint actions programme to improve access to education in line with the agreed School 

Transport Policy, the promotion of cycling and walking through a coordinated School Travel Programme 

and investigations to install cycling facilities at all school sites. Proposals to improve pedestrian links to, 

and install secure cycle facilities at schools is likely to benefit those on lower incomes who tend to make 

fewer private car journeys. Examining pooled resources with education sector providers to assist with travel 

costs to schools for those on low incomes is likely to generate direct benefits for deprived groups.  Specific 

actions to promote more active forms of travel to schools, such as walking and cycling will help to promote 

healthier lifestyles and is also likely to provide a safe and healthy environment for children.

Fares, Information and Ticketing

Affordable ticketing opportunities, enhanced information provision at the neighbourhood level and a review 

of the range and availability of multi-operator pre-paid tickets will all help to support equality of travel. 

Actions to improve ticketing, fares and information are likely to encourage a modal shift and in particular, 

benefit socially deprived areas through the provision of more affordable and discounted fares. It was 

however highlighted that long-term commitment would be required from all operators and partners to 

ensure that the supporting actions are successfully implemented. For example, it is important that private 

Page 135Page 93



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

45

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

bus operators work collaboratively with the health and education sectors to provide more efficient and 

reliable services. The provision of information and education can also help people to understand how to 

use the bus, as well as make the best financial choices for public transport use, which is particularly 

important for those living in socially deprived communities.

Taxi and Community Transport

This sub-topic focuses on the development of a Taxi Quality Partnership for Merseyside and examines the 

potential for an expanded role for the taxi sector to help increase access to local goods and services. Such 

actions, if implemented are likely to have a positive effect on health, crime and safety, accessibility, 

sustainable transport and poverty. For example, greater use of community transport or multi-trip transport 

(such as taxis) could remove the need for some individual trips and therefore have a positive effect on local 

air quality. Taxis can also prolong independence and provide an alternative for those groups, particularly 

the elderly who may be considering giving up driving.

Public Transport 

Specific public transport measures that are likely to ensure that the transport system supports equality of 

travel opportunity include an examination of the budget to fund other solutions for improving access and to 

ring fence efficiency savings into funding for other accessibility improvements. Some of the actions set out 

were not specific enough to determine whether they will result in health benefits or tackle health inequalities

for example and so were dependent upon implementation. A long-term action is to share services with 

providers in other sectors. This is likely to improve accessibility across the Merseyside region and reduce 

community severance. Neighbourhood Travel Teams may also support people and consequently 

encourage them to use public transport. Travel Teams will also identify what services people require and 

give good advice on how to access local services and amenities.

Joint Working to Address Common Objectives

The integration of transport and land use planning is imperative to improve accessibility. Integration of 

accessibility with Local Strategic Partnerships should be encouraged to ensure that their priorities are 

delivered effectively. Other measures include development of joint approaches to ensure that transport 

helps to deliver the priorities of the City Region Child and Family Poverty Framework. The assessment 

revealed that joint working is likely to produce positive outcomes for the majority of the SA/SEA objectives. 

In relation to improving health and reducing health inequalities the coordination and integration of travel 

and accessibility with other strategies are likely to be fundamental in addressing influencing issues in order 

to achieve better health outcomes. Through joint working, the integration of transport and land-use planning 

is likely to be successful and thus, reduce the need to travel. It was noted that efforts should be focused to 

ensure that new development, particularly housing is centred on town centres to encourage a range of high 

trip generating uses in town centres. This is because town centres often tend to be the places with best 

access by public transport. Also, locating different uses together often reduces the number of different 

journeys that have to be made. Highlighting strategies such as the City Region Child and Family Poverty 

Framework will help to tackle existing social and health inequalities.

A full, detailed record of decision describing the effects of LTP3 Goal Four is presented in Appendix D.

Page 136Page 94



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

46

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

7.2.9 LTP3 Goal Five Appraisal

Table 7.5: LTP3 Goal 5 Summary Appraisal

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the 
LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods

SA/SEA Objectives (Topic)

1. Public 
Transport

2. Goods 3. Cycling 4. Maintenance 5. Traffic 6. Travelwise

1. Resource Use, Renewable 
Energy, GHG emissions

+ + + + + +

2. Waste + + 0 0 0 0

3. Poverty, Economic 
Inclusion

D 0 D 0 0 0

4. Heritage Assets - + + 0 0 0

5. Biodiversity + - + + - + + - 0

6. Landscape + - + + - + + - 0

7. Water Quality - + + 0 0 0

8. Air Quality + + + 0 + +

9. Environmental Quality + + + + 0 +

10. Health + + + + 0 +

11. Crime, Safety 0 0 + + 0 +

12. Accessibility + 0 + + 0 +

13. Sustainable Transport + + + 0 + +

14. Climate Change + + + + + +

15. Land, Soil - + 0 0 0 0

7.2.10 LTP3 Goal Five Summary

Overall the SA/SEA objectives perform well against Goal Five. The Goal was sub-divided into the following 

six sub-topics:

Public Transport

A number of interventions are proposed for modes including bus, rail, cycling and tram. Specific 

interventions for each focus on capacity improvements, flexible services and investment protection for the 

Merseytram. Specific measures, such as real time information and smartcards have been proposed to 

improve the ticketing system and provision of information. A number of negative interactions were identified 

during the assessment for interventions relating to Public Transport and Cycling. These were mostly 

associated with infrastructure improvements to the road and rail network, for example the development of 

new Park and Ride sites is likely to have short-term construction impacts on biodiversity, water quality and 

heritage assets. Such impacts can, however be mitigated through, for example habitat creation, the 

aftercare and maintenance of landscaping and Sustainable Urban Drainage Techniques (SUDS). Specific 

mitigation measures have been outlined in Section 8 of this report.

Travelwise

The Travel-Wise sub-topic focuses on the development and implementation of travel plans for visitors and 

local businesses. Smarter Choices and personal travel planning, if targeted correctly are likely to aid

behaviour change and identify opportunities for more efficient travel patterns. Many of the interactions 

identified are positive and such initiatives are likely to help people make environmentally friendly travel 

choices and make more use of the public transport system. This will, in turn reduce reliance on motorised 

Page 137Page 95



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

47

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

transport and consequently is likely to have a positive effect on air quality. A reduced reliance on motorised 

transport would have a positive impact on resource use, sustainable transport and climate change.

Traffic

This sub-topic focuses on the effective targeting of information through collaborative working and 

partnerships. This was considered to have positive effects on resource use, air quality, sustainable 

transport and climate change.  Working with partners to educate and provide information on sustainable 

vehicle choice and fuel efficient driving techniques is likely to produce measurable reductions in transport 

emissions. 

Goods

Specific measures under this action seek to identify and implement essential highways and Strategic 

Freight Network improvements and establish partnership working with the Freight Quality Partnership to 

improve environmental performance through the promotion of best practice examples. Again, most of the 

interactions identified were positive; with no interactions identified between three of the SA/SEA objectives. 

Interventions to improve the movement of people and goods are likely to promote the use of more 

environmentally friendly modes, reducing the need to travel by car. Actions to manage the volume of freight 

traffic are likely to have a positive effect on health. A targeted approach to addressing the issue within 

existing Air Quality Management Areas will help to improve air quality and improve the health of people 

already exposed to pollutants that could be damaging to their health.

Maintenance
Specific interventions under this action focus on the creation of links between maintenance planning and 
the planning of highway improvements, resilience to climate change and the establishment of partnerships. 
Interventions that address the maintenance of and capacity/efficiency improvements to the highways 
network will improve accessibility and environmental quality; and seek to develop the region’s economy.
There is also the potential for recycled aggregates to be used for the resurfacing of roads and footpaths, 
which will reduce the consumption of energy and water and increase recycling rates.

A full, detailed record of decision describing the effects of LTP3 Goal Five is presented in Appendix D.

7.2.11 LTP3 Goal Six Appraisal

Table 7.6: LTP3 Goal 6 Summary Appraisal

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High 
Standard

SA/SEA Objectives (Topic)

1. Complete Asset 
Management Register

2. Produce effective 
asset management 

programme

1. Resource use, Renewable 
Energy, GHG emissions

0 0

2. Waste 0 0

3. Poverty, Economic Inclusion 0 0

4. Heritage Assets 0 +

5. Biodiversity 0 +

6. Landscape 0 +

7. Water Quality 0 +

8. Air Quality 0 0

9. Environmental Quality 0 +

10. Health 0 +

Page 138Page 96



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

48

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High 
Standard

SA/SEA Objectives (Topic)

1. Complete Asset 
Management Register

2. Produce effective 
asset management 

programme

11. Crime, Safety 0 0

12. Accessibility 0 0

13. Sustainable Transport 0 +

14. Climate Change + +

15. Land, Soil 0 +

7.2.12 LTP3 Goal Six Summary

Overall, the LTP3 Goal Six and supporting actions perform neutrally or have no interaction against the 

SA/SEA objectives. The ‘Complete Asset Management’ action focuses on completion of the Highways 

Asset Management Plan/Transport Asset Management Plan, including the consideration of Climate 

Change. The ‘Produce effective asset management programme’ actions focus on the implementation of 

new transport projects, delivery of Liverpool’s Green Strategy and the consideration of the environment in 

planning maintenance schemes.

Maintenance of the roads and rail network through the specified actions outlined in the Draft LTP3 strategy 

is likely to have positive effects on accessibility and efficiency. There may be some negative effects on 

climatic factors, landscape and environmental quality; however this will be dependant upon the specific 

actions that are implemented. A full, detailed record of decision describing the effects of LTP3 Goal Six is 

presented in Appendix D.

7.3 Cumulative Assessment

7.3.1 Cumulative effects on each goal

Table 7.7 shows the overall cumulative effects of each goal. Overall the goals will have positive effects in 

terms of reducing congestion and carbon emissions, encouraging healthy sustainable travel options such 

as walking and cycling, encouraging more public transport use, and providing a better transport network 

that is accessible and reliable. Although some neutral and negative effects were recorded in the full 

assessment in Appendix D, it was considered that the positive effects have greater importance and 

benefits, and that some of the negative effects can be mitigated. Therefore, all the LTP3 goals were 

assessed as having a cumulative positive effect.

Table 7.7: Cumulative Assessment of Goals

LTP3 Goal Cumulative Assessment 

Goal One +

Goal Two +

Goal Three +

Goal Four +

Goal Five +

Goal Six +

Page 139Page 97



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

49

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

7.3.2 Cumulative effects on each SA/SEA objective

Table 7.8 shows the cumulative effects of all the LTP3 goals on the individual SA/SEA objectives. In 

general the LTP3 goals collectively support the SA/SEA objectives in terms of proposing actions and 

interventions to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, improving air quality and environmental quality, 

promoting economic inclusion, accessibility, sustainable transport, and safety and health benefits. There is 

likely to be both positive and negative effects on waste, heritage assets, biodiversity, landscape and water 

quality. Therefore, and overall neutral effect has been recorded. Whilst actions and intervention to reduce 

congestion and emissions may benefit biodiversity, landscape and water quality, they may also involve 

disturbance to these assets from new infrastructure. Land and soil has been recorded as a negative 

cumulative effect as many of the actions and interventions involve landtake.

Table 7.8: Cumulative Assessment against SA/SEA Objectives

SA/SEA Objectives Cumulative Assessment of all 
LTP3 Goals

1. Resource use, Renewable Energy, GHG 
emissions

+

2. Waste 0

3. Poverty, Economic Inclusion +

4. Heritage Assets 0

5. Biodiversity 0

6. Landscape 0

7. Water Quality 0

8. Air Quality +

9. Environmental Quality +

10. Health +

11. Crime, Safety +

12. Accessibility +

13. Sustainable Transport +

14. Climate Change +

15. Land, Soil -

7.4 Assessment of the LTP3 Major Schemes

The LTP3 includes several project specific major schemes that are either currently being investigated as 

part of the LTP3 or are proposed for implementation during the plan period. These major schemes have 

been assessed against the SA/SEA objectives to demonstrate their sustainability performance. It should be 

noted that this is a high level assessment and the schemes will be subject to further environmental 

assessment before they are constructed. Details of each of the major schemes can be found in the LTP3. 

The major schemes assessed were:

 Bidston Moss Viaduct;

 Edge Lane (West) / Eastern Approaches;

 Hall Lane Strategic Gateway;

 Merseytram Line 1;

 Thornton Switch Island Link;

Page 140Page 98



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

50

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

 Liverpool Central Station;

 Merseytram Line 2;

 St Helens Central – Junction Rail Link;

 Merseytram Line 3;

 Sandhills Lane Link;

 Kirkby Headbolt Lane Rail Extension;

 Bootle – Aintree – Edge Hill Link;

 Borderlands Electrification;

 Access to Port of Liverpool;

 Halton Curve; and

 Mersey Gateway.

It should be noted that the LTP3 includes six major schemes which have now been completed. Therefore, 

these schemes have not been assessed in the SA/SEA.

Page 141Page 99



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

51

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table 7.9: Major Schemes Assessment
SA/SEA ObjectivesLTP3 Major 

Schemes

1
. 
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 u

s
e
, 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

2
. 
 W

a
s
te

3
. 
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n

4
. 
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

5
. 
B

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y

6
. 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e

7
. 
W

a
te

r 
q

u
a
li
ty

8
. 
A

ir
 q

u
a
li
ty

9
. 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

q
u

a
li
ty

1
0
. 
H

e
a
lt

h

1
1
. 
C

ri
m

e
, 
s
a
fe

ty

1
2
. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y

1
3
. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

1
4
. 
 C

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

1
5
. 
L

a
n

d
, 
s
o

il

Comments

0 0 + 0 0 - 0 0 0 + 0 + + 0 0 0

Neg Mod Neg Min ModBidston Moss 
Viaduct

L H L M M

Strengthening will allow HGV to use the viaduct, creating more 
direct route. Potential for bats in the viaduct. There is unlikely to 
be any overall effect on air quality. However, there may be 
localised effects from moving HGV from Dock Road to the 
viaduct. Reduction of noise along Dock Road, with HGV moved 
back onto the strategic freight network. Taking HGV off Dock 
Road and back onto the strategic fright network may increase 
safety along Dock Road. However, this is unlikely to be 
significant because Dock Road is an industrial area. 

+ - 0 + 0 D 0 0 + - + - + + + + 0 -

Mod Mod Min Mod Neg Mod Mod Maj Min NegEdge Lane 
(West) / 
Eastern 

Approaches

L M M L M M H M L

Road improvements to Edge Lane will help reduce congestion, 
increasing traffic flow, which may reduce greenhouse emissions 
and improve local air quality. However, reducing congestion may 
encourage more vehicles onto the road. Road improvements and 
reduced congestion will help increase accessibility to local 
business and communities. Reduced congestion may benefit 
health through better air quality and reduced driver stress levels 
associated with queuing traffic. Reduced congestion will improve 
accessibility to goods and services, particularly Liverpool town 
centre, and will help reduce community severance. Reduced 
congestion may encourage use of buses along Edge Lane. Small 
amount of landtake may be necessary for road improvements.

+ - - + 0 D + 0 + - + - + + - + + 0 -
Hall Lane 
Strategic 
Gateway

Mod Mod Maj Min Min Mod Mod Mod Mod Maj Min Mod

Widening of the roadspace from single to dual carriageway will 
reduce congestion and therefore reduce emissions associated 
with congested traffic. A lot of waste is likely to be generated as a 
result of the proposed widening; however there is the potential for 
some of the waste material to be re-used or recycled. There are 
likely to be improvements in the efficiency of freight traffic 
movement and access improvement to local employment sites 
and Liverpool town centre. The volume of traffic is likely to 

P
age 142

P
age 100



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

52

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

SA/SEA ObjectivesLTP3 Major 
Schemes

1
. 
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 u

s
e
, 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

2
. 
 W

a
s
te

3
. 
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n

4
. 
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

5
. 
B

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y

6
. 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e

7
. 
W

a
te

r 
q

u
a
li
ty

8
. 
A

ir
 q

u
a
li
ty

9
. 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

q
u

a
li
ty

1
0
. 
H

e
a
lt

h

1
1
. 
C

ri
m

e
, 
s
a
fe

ty

1
2
. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y

1
3
. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

1
4
. 
 C

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

1
5
. 
L

a
n

d
, 
s
o

il

Comments

L M H L M M M H H M M

increase as a result of the widening scheme, therefore it is likely 
that this will contribute to an increase in localised emission levels; 
however free flowing traffic will reduce the emissions associated 
with stop/start driving. Moderate improvements to health may be 
experienced as access will be increased to the nearby Royal 
Liverpool Hospital. Widening of the road may encourage faster 
speeds and more overtaking which could result in an increase of 
road traffic accidents. Reduced congestion is likely to encourage 
the use of bus services. Areas of on-street parking are likely to be 
lost as a result of the widening scheme.

+ - - + - - - 0 + + + + + + D -

Mod Maj Mod Maj Maj Maj Mod Min Mod Mod Maj Maj Mod

Merseytram 
Line 1

M L H M M M H M M M H H H L

The Merseytram will use resources during the construction of 
Line 1. It is likely that some resources will also be used during the 
operation of Line 1 (energy and water).  Merseytram Line 1 is 
likely to add to carbon emissions from electricity use however it is 
likely to encourage a modal shift and reduce the number of cars 
on the road. Excavations and construction of Line 1 are likely to 
result in waste arisings. It is likely that temporary employment 
opportunities will be created during the construction phase which 
will help to tackle poverty and promote economic inclusion. The 
proposed Line 1 will run through a number of Conservation Areas 
within and on the outskirts of the city centre. It will also run within 
the vicinity of a number of Listed Buildings. It is likely that a 
number of trees and habitats will be lost/displaced as a result of 
the proposed Line 1. There will be landtake for the scheme, 
including public greenspace and open space. It is likely that, as a 
result of modal shift, transport related emissions will be reduced, 
improving local air quality. The new line may encourage people to 
walk and cycle, reducing the risk of developing illnesses, such as 
heart disease and obesity. If designed carefully and the potential 
impacts of climate change are considered within the design, 
Merseytram Line 1 could reduce the flood risk associated with the 
area.

Thornton 
Switch Island 

- - + D - - - + - + - + - - + - - -
The proposal of a new road is likely to lead to an increase in 
vehicle use and thus a decrease in local air quality levels; 

P
age 143

P
age 101



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

53

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

SA/SEA ObjectivesLTP3 Major 
Schemes

1
. 
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 u

s
e
, 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

2
. 
 W

a
s
te

3
. 
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n

4
. 
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

5
. 
B

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y

6
. 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e

7
. 
W

a
te

r 
q

u
a
li
ty

8
. 
A

ir
 q

u
a
li
ty

9
. 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

q
u

a
li
ty

1
0
. 
H

e
a
lt

h

1
1
. 
C

ri
m

e
, 
s
a
fe

ty

1
2
. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y

1
3
. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

1
4
. 
 C

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

1
5
. 
L

a
n

d
, 
s
o

il

Comments

Min Maj Min Mod Mod Mod Mod Mod Mod Mod Maj Min Mod Maj

Link

L M L H H M M M M M H L M H

however there are likely to be improvements in air 
quality/greenhouse gas emissions in areas surrounding the 
A5036, Green Lane, Lydiate Lane and the Northern Parameter 
Road. Waste will be generated as a result of the proposals, 
however it is likely that materials will be recycled or re-used 
within the scheme. A new road is likely to improve access to 
employment opportunities and key centres, such as Southport 
and the Ports. The effects on heritage assets will be dependant 
upon the location of the final route option. It is likely that green 
areas and fields may be lost due to the new road proposal, 
resulting in potential negative biodiversity effects. A new road is 
likely to negatively affect the character and setting of the existing 
landscape, which is a mixture of urban and rural areas. The new 
road may cross the Leeds/Liverpool Canal and the River Alt, 
which could potentially affect water quality. There may also be 
negative effects on groundwater supply. Health benefits for road 
users and local residents where congestion is relieved. However, 
negative effects on health will be experienced in areas 
surrounding the new road. The new road will increase 
accessibility to Southport and the ports, as well as the areas 
surrounding the new roads. A new road is likely to encourage car 
use. An increase in hardstanding is likely to result in more 
surface water run-off.

0 0 + 0 0 0 0 0 0 + + + + 0 0

Mod Min Min Mod Min
Liverpool 

Central Station

M L L M L

Improvements in facilities and a fully accessible station are likely 
to increase access to Liverpool city centre. Station improvements 
are likely to create a more attractive and safer environment for 
users and encourage the use of rail as a more sustainable mode 
of transport. The station is likely to become fully accessible to all 
users. 

+ - - + - - - 0 + + + + + + D -
Merseytram 

Line 2

Mod Maj Maj Maj Maj Maj Mod Min Maj Mod Maj Maj Maj

There are two indicative, proposed route alignments for Line 2 of 
the Merseytram scheme (Edge Lane and Wavertree Technology 
Park).  It is likely that the high level comments on the impacts 
made against Merseytram Line 1 (see above) will also apply to 
Line 2. However, the specific impacts of Line 2 will depend on 
which of the two proposed routes are taken forward. It is worth 

P
age 144

P
age 102



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

54

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

SA/SEA ObjectivesLTP3 Major 
Schemes

1
. 
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 u

s
e
, 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

2
. 
 W

a
s
te

3
. 
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n

4
. 
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

5
. 
B

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y

6
. 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e

7
. 
W

a
te

r 
q

u
a
li
ty

8
. 
A

ir
 q

u
a
li
ty

9
. 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

q
u

a
li
ty

1
0
. 
H

e
a
lt

h

1
1
. 
C

ri
m

e
, 
s
a
fe

ty

1
2
. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y

1
3
. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

1
4
. 
 C

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

1
5
. 
L

a
n

d
, 
s
o

il

Comments

M L H M M M H M H M H H L

noting that both the two proposed alignments for Line 2 will 
improve accessibility to Whiston Hospital. The Wavertree 
Technology Park alignment would also improve access to 
Wavertree Technology Park Rail Station as well as the Hospital.

+ 0 + 0 - - 0 + - + 0 + + + 0

Mod Min Mod Min Min Min Min Mod Mod Min

St. Helen’s 
Central –

Junction Rail 
Link M L H L M L L M M L

The reinstatement of the line is likely to increase capacity and 
thus, encourage a modal shift from private transport modes to rail 
and reduce the levels of greenhouse gas emissions associated 
with car use and help local air quality. Increased access to areas 
of employment opportunities and key business centres. 
Disturbance of an established habitat. 

+ - - + - - - 0 + + + + + + D -

Mod Maj Maj Maj Maj Maj Mod Min Min Mod Maj Mod Maj
Merseytram 

Line 3

M L H M M M H M L M H M L

There are three indicative options for the proposed third 
Merseytravel tram line, all of which link the city centre to 
Liverpool John Lennon Airport (Railway Route, Mather Avenue 
and Menliove Avenue). This particular proposed third line will 
also create links with the bus and rail interchanges, as well as the 
University.  As with Lines 1 and 2 (see above), the proposed 
route option is likely to have major negative effects on 
biodiversity and habitats due to land take, the removal of trees 
and disturbance during construction. It is likely that best practice 
urban design principals will be applied in order to enhance the 
environment, however there are still likely to be effects to the 
townscape as much of the Merseytram network will be 
segregated from the exiting highway.

0 - + D D 0 0 0 D D D + 0 0 -

Min Neg Min Mod
Sandhills Lane 

Link

L L M M

The exact route alignment for the new link road is not yet known. 
Therefore, many of the effects will be unknown at this stage 
because it will depend where the new road is located. Wherever 
the location of the road, landtake will be required, and excavation 
material will be generated. The new road will increase 
accessibility, especially for HGVs.

Kirkby 
Headbolt Lane 
Rail Extension

0 - + - - - 0 + - + 0 + + - 0

The Kirkby Headbolt Lane rail electrifications extensions are 
likely to have moderate to major positive effects on economic 
inclusion, health and accessibility. The network extension, with 

P
age 145

P
age 103



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

55

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

SA/SEA ObjectivesLTP3 Major 
Schemes

1
. 
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 u

s
e
, 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

2
. 
 W

a
s
te

3
. 
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n

4
. 
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

5
. 
B

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y

6
. 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e

7
. 
W

a
te

r 
q

u
a
li
ty

8
. 
A

ir
 q

u
a
li
ty

9
. 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

q
u

a
li
ty

1
0
. 
H

e
a
lt

h

1
1
. 
C

ri
m

e
, 
s
a
fe

ty

1
2
. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y

1
3
. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

1
4
. 
 C

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

1
5
. 
L

a
n

d
, 
s
o

il

Comments

Min Mod Min Mod Mod Min Min Mod Maj Mod Neg

L H L M M L L M H H L

proposals for a new park and ride site and a new station at 
Headbolt Lane, will improve accessibility to the rail network, 
serving a larger area of Kirkby than at present. It is also likely to 
encourage modal shift. The park and ride site will discourage car 
use in Liverpool city centre. Line improvements will increase the 
efficiency and capacity of the Merseyrail network, promoting 
economic inclusion.

+ 0 + 0 - - 0 + - + 0 + + + 0

Mod Mod Mod Min Min Min Min Mod Mod Min
Bootle –

Aintree – Edge 
Hill Link

M M H L M L L M M L

The reinstatement of the line from Aintree to Bootle and the re-
introduction of passenger services from Edge Hill to Bootle are 
likely to increase capacity and thus, encourage a modal shift from 
private transport modes to rail and reduce the levels of 
greenhouse gas emissions associated with car use. Increased 
access to areas of employment opportunities and key business 
centres. Disturbance of an established habitat. Reinstating the 
line and new passenger services will bring trains back onto it 
which may cause visual landscape and noise effects

+ 0 + 0 - - 0 + 0 + 0 + + + 0

Min Maj Neg Min Min Min Maj Mod Min
Borderlands 

Electrification

L H L L M L H M L

Electrification of this key cross-boarder line is likely to improve 
connections and the cross-boarder railway line’s capacity.  
Alterations or upgrades to the existing line and signals is likely to 
have minor negative effects on biodiversity and the landscape. 
The instillation of overhead lines to support the cabling is likely to 
alter the local setting. However, in comparison to diesel powered 
trains, electric trains produce less carbon dioxide emissions, less 
noise, lower maintenance requirements and more efficient 
operation of the network as there is no need to switch between 
methods of traction.

D D + D D D D D D D D + D D D

Mod Mod
Access to Port 

of Liverpool

M M

There are a number of options for improving access to the Port of 
Liverpool. Optioneering studies are still ongoing and the majority 
of the effects will depend what option is chosen. However, 
whichever option is chosen, it is likely that access and economy 
will benefit.

+ 0 + 0 - - 0 + - + 0 + + + 0Halton Curve

Mod Mod Mod Min Min Min Min Mod Mod Min

The reinstatement of the line is likely to increase capacity and 
thus, encourage a modal shift from private transport modes to rail 
and reduce the levels of greenhouse gas emissions associated 
with car use. Increased access to areas of employment 

P
age 146

P
age 104



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

56

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

SA/SEA ObjectivesLTP3 Major 
Schemes

1
. 
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 u

s
e
, 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
, 

G
H

G
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

2
. 
 W

a
s
te

3
. 
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
, 

e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n

4
. 
H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

s
s
e
ts

5
. 
B

io
d

iv
e
rs

it
y

6
. 
L

a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e

7
. 
W

a
te

r 
q

u
a
li
ty

8
. 
A

ir
 q

u
a
li
ty

9
. 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

q
u

a
li
ty

1
0
. 
H

e
a
lt

h

1
1
. 
C

ri
m

e
, 
s
a
fe

ty

1
2
. 
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y

1
3
. 
S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

1
4
. 
 C

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

1
5
. 
L

a
n

d
, 
s
o

il

Comments

M M H L M L L M M L
opportunities and key business centres. Disturbance of an 
established habitat. Reinstating the line will bring trains back onto 
it which may cause visual landscape and noise effects.

- - + + - - + - + - + + + + + - + - -

Neg Neg Mod Mod Mod Mod Neg Min Neg Mod Min Mod Min Min Min
Mersey 

Gateway

L L M M H M L L L M M M M M L

The project will decrease journey times for commuters and HGV, 
and enable the job creation from the Mersey Gateway and 
regeneration of the area. Tolling the Silver Jubilee Bridge and the 
new bridge may have negative effects for social deprived areas.
The proximity of the new crossing will alter the setting, including 
distant views of the listed Silver Jubilee Bridge, which is a 
prominent regional landmark. However, this landmark will be 
protected as essential maintenance will be possible and the 
excess loading of heavy traffic will be removed. The project will 
result in the temporary and permanent loss of habitats. However, 
new habitat and management strategies will be created as part of 
the scheme. Potential for contaminated run-off to enter the River. 
In areas where traffic is removed through de-linking and where 
peak-hour congestion is reduced, there is likely to be an 
improvement in local air quality. However, the introduction of a 
new 6 lane bridge may encourage more vehicles. Overall the 
project will reduce noise impacts to local residents. However, 
there may be increased traffic noise levels on the Central 
Expressway. There may be health benefits from reduced air 
pollution, improved and new walking and cycling facilities/routes 
and more reliable access for emergency vehicles. 

P
age 147

P
age 105



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

57

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

7.5 Risks, Uncertainties and Assumptions

The assessment has been undertaken at a high level on strategic policy. Where the LTP3 Strategy refers 

to a collective set of actions/interventions rather than specific details of individual schemes/actions, an 

assumption about the predicted effects has been taken based on the nature of the collective 

actions/interventions.

The assessment has been undertaken by independent consultants with specialist knowledge on 

environmental, social and economic issues. However, because of the nature of the assessment as a high 

level qualitative assessment a degree of subjectivity remains.

The assessment has assumed that all actions/interventions listed in the LTP3 Preferred Strategy under 

each transport goal will be implemented.

When grouping the actions under each goal into policy topic areas it was noted that an action could apply 

to more than one topic area. However, to avoid duplication the action was only mentioned under one topic 

area.

Page 148Page 106



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

58

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

8.1 Mitigation and Enhancement Measures

Implementation of the LTP3 will have both positive and negative effects. Tables 8.1 to 8.6 set out mitigation 

and enhancement measures that were suggested during the assessment workshop. Implementation of 

these measures could further enhance the sustainability performance of the LTP3 and help to mitigate 

against negative effects. The mitigation and enhancement measures suggested have been split according 

to which LTP3 Goal and action/intervention they apply to. Mitigation measures include measures that can 

be used to inform the development of the LTP3 e.g. changes to strategy wording, addition of interventions 

etc; and measures to be taken following implementation of the LTP3 e.g. design, construction, operation 

and maintenance mitigation and enhancements.

Table 8.1: LTP3 Goal One - Mitigation and Enhancement

LTP3 Goal One: Ensure the transport system supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region 
and its Local Strategic Partnerships

Mitigation/Enhancement Measures

 Biodiversity/Water - work in partnership with biodiversity/water quality organisations to secure funding opportunities;

 Landscape - consultation with citizen and voluntary groups to guide landscape impact management in Merseyside and 
support the Government Big Society approach;  

 Environmental Quality - liaise with the local development planning process to secure benefits to local environmental 
quality;  

 Health - undertake specific health impact assessments to ensure that health benefits are maximised and health inequalities 
are minimised e.g. for SuperPort, LEP, and Local Development Documents;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - steps should be taken to secure more access from deprived communities to employment 
locations;

 Climate Change - strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, 
government departments and non government organisations. Working in partnership with resource use organisations could 
also provide funding opportunities.

Table 8.2: LTP3 Goal Two - Mitigation and Enhancement

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system

Action/
Intervention

Mitigation/Enhancement

1.Traffic

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - ally the electric vehicle strategy with initiatives to promote and improve 
active modes of travel and public transport;;

 Crime, Safety - implement security measures, such as lighting and CCTV, as part of the modal shift 
measures to improve safety and reduce fear of crime;

 Accessibility – encourage local incentives for the use of electric vehicles, such as free parking at local 
centres to further improve access to amenities;

 Accessibility – replace poorly used services with alternative services that are more responsive to users’
needs (for example taxi services) to increase usage and local accessibility;

 Heritage Assets - ensure that all new transport projects are designed to be in keeping with their 
surroundings;

 Health - consider changes to the routeing of freight traffic to improve the local environmental and air 
quality;

 Resource Use, Renewable Energy - seek funds from developer offsetting.

2.Modal Shift

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion – an increase in the provision of education can help people to make more 
informed choices about their travel modes, increasing the likelihood that more sustainable (including 
less polluting) modes are considered;

 Health - achieve a ‘critical mass’ of those cycling and walking to help to ensure that potential safety 

8. SA/SEA Mitigation and Enhancement

Page 149Page 107



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

59

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system

Action/
Intervention

Mitigation/Enhancement

blackspots are addressed; 

 Landscape - public transport should provide options for travel to the natural environment as well as to 
other facilities and services;

 Links should be made to each of the Council’s Core Strategies to ensure that the soft measures set out 
in the smarter choices and behavioural change programmes are supported by infrastructure 
improvements, of which are fundamental to support the move towards a low carbon transport system
and low emission vehicles and fuels.

3.Public 
Transport

 Health - the cost of using public transport can sometimes be a barrier to those on lower incomes. 
Implement measures to facilitate access to low-income groups as the cost of using public transport can 
sometimes be a barrier to these groups;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - ensure that smart ticketing does not inadvertently discriminate against 
people from deprived backgrounds that do not have their own bank accounts;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - with regards to the smartcard system, a "top-up" style system could be 
introduced in order to militate against the issue of people not having a bank account.

4. Fleet Vehicles

 Climate Change – implementation of  the most appropriate scheme for each transport mode will ensure 
the success of this strategy;

 Climate Change - support of legislation and funding is essential to bring about measurable changes in 
emissions. Funds from developer offsetting may contribute to this goal.

5. Freight Traffic

 Air Quality –  promote and encourage the use of low emission vehicles;

 Health - Consider alternatives to freight use and changes to the routeing of freight traffic;

 Land, Soil - where possible, Consolidation Centres should be developed on brownfield/derelict sites to 
minimise the impact on local land and soil quality.

6. Land-Use 
Planning

 Environmental Quality - consider sustainable design measures to ensure that future transport provision 
contributes to environmental quality, rather than detracting from it;

 Climate Change – where possible, integrate climate change adaptation measures into design.

7. Network 
Maintenance & 
Management

 Heritage Assets - ensure that all new transport projects are designed to be in keeping with their 
surroundings;

 Water Quality - SUDS and other measures may act as mitigation measures if implemented for any new 
transport scheme/infrastructure.

Table 8.3: LTP3 Goal Three - Mitigation and Enhancement

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved 
health well-beingAction/

Intervention Mitigation/Enhancement

1. Cycling and 
Walking

 Health - cycle parking facilities should include dry cycle storage;

 Health - additional work should be undertaken to remove barriers at schools to help make School Travel 
Plans more successful. This could include safer cycling routes (not just walking routes);

 Health - more regular engagement between transport planners and schools should be encouraged;

 Health - cycling training for children should be comprehensive, taking users beyond being able, but not 
competent, at cycling on roads and to therefore mitigate a potential rise in accidents;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion – ensure that travel routes in socially deprived areas are linked to strategic 
centres to increase access to employment;

 Health – the promotion of walking and cycling through behavioural change programmes could raise 
awareness of the health benefits associated with physical activity;

 Accessibility - ensure links from remote/ inaccessible communities are prioritised and establish links to 
all relevant goods and amenity centres.  

 Accessibility - identify key problems with accessibility by foot and introduce measures designed to 
improve them;

 Accessibility - improvements to pavement surfaces may benefit disabled people and older people, who 

Page 150Page 108



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

60

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved 
health well-beingAction/

Intervention Mitigation/Enhancement
traditionally experience accessibility issues, by making them easier to traverse;

 Cultural Heritage/Biodiversity/Landscape – where possible, improvements to the cycling and walking 
network should efforts should avoid sensitive habitats/locations to reduce the impact on cultural 
heritage, biodiversity and landscape;

 Landscape - cycling and walking networks (including the Rights of Way network) should improve access 
to the local countryside and greenspace close to where people live;

 Health - recognise the mental and physical health benefits associated with access to the natural 
environment;

 Water Quality – opportunities should be sought to include Sustainable Drainage Systems (SUDs) to 
reduce surface water run-off in areas where there is an increase in paved areas.

2. Road Safety  Health - opportunities to consider road safety in the design of new development;

 Crime, Safety - combine safety measures with measures designed to promote personal security to 
reduce feelings of vulnerability and help to target crime and anti-social behaviour;

 Crime, Safety –engage local communities to further increase road safety;

 Crime, Safety – consider the implementation of lighting solutions, CCTV, safety awareness campaigns 
and road safety measures

 Climate Change – consider the introduction of traffic calming measures that take account the impact on 
emissions and that reduce stop/start driving cultures and congestion.

3. 
Health/Equality

 Health - explicitly consider the effects on ‘deprived areas’ in response to transport/health impact 
assessments to help to tackle existing social inequalities;

 Accessibility – ensure that any proposed investment priorities reflect a diversity of requirements. Cycling 
improvements are unlikely to be of significant value to social groups who do not use cycling extensively 
as a mode of transport. Disabled people and older people tend to cycle less than other members of the 
general public, for example;

 Crime, Safety - increased spending on cycling and walking could include enhanced personal security 
provision, benefiting users significantly;

 Crime, Safety – ensure the delivery of child pedestrian training and Bikeability cycle training includes 
personal security training and education in order to integrate fully personal security and road safety 
elements of training;

 Crime, Safety – ensure the Merseyside cycle network is properly monitored and maintained to promote 
a safer environment for cyclists. A poorly maintained network is likely to attract crime and anti-social 
behaviour.

 Accessibility - ensure that accessibility to appropriate goods and amenities is provided where 
concentrations of equality groups are high, particularly for those whose accessibility is usually more 
restricted.

Table 8.4: LTP3 Goal Four - Mitigation and Enhancement

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel 
opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and 
social activities

Action/
Intervention Mitigation/Enhancement

1.Access to 
Employment

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - ensure that targeted action plans for deprived areas and the Let’s Get 
Moving initiatives are accompanied by appropriate safety measures;

 Crime, Safety – incorporate best practice measures to improve security, such as CCTV and help points;

 Sustainable Transport - recognise the role that walking and cycling (including Rights of Way) can play 
in accessing employment, education and healthcare. 

2.Access to
Healthcare

 Health – ensure that the transport system is responsive to the health care system, and vice versa;

 Health – measures should be taken to increase access to healthcare facilities, such as the local 
provision of healthcare facilities close to public transport routes;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion – ensure the availability of information on public transport / non-vehicular 

Page 151Page 109



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

61

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel 
opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and 
social activities

Action/
Intervention Mitigation/Enhancement

access to health services is widely advertised, especially to those communities most out-of-reach e.g. 
ethnic minority groups, disabled people and older people;

 Accessibility/Health – the provision of public transport information should be provided in local 
healthcare facilities to make people aware of the services on offer;

 Accessibility/Health; encourage partnership working between transport and health providers to ensure 
coordination between public transport services and hospital appointments so that people without their 
own transport are able to meet their appointments;

 Accessibility/Health - work with bus operators to ensure that the services coincide with hospital 
appointments, particularly for older and disabled people and other vulnerable groups with limited 
accessibility and high healthcare needs;

 Sustainable Transport - recognise the role that walking and cycling (including Rights of Way) can play 
in accessing employment, education and healthcare.

3.Access to 
Education

 Health - additional emphasis should be placed on access to lifelong learning centres, including higher 
education and community centres;

 Health - additional actions for transport and education should be encouraged to work closely at the 
planning stages of educational facilities, with transport more involved in Building Future Schools 
initiatives;

 Health - prioritise actions in disadvantaged areas to help reduce a widening of health inequalities;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - examine the possibly of making the criteria for travel passes consistent 
across all areas of Merseyside, to help make access to education equitable for all;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion – work with educational institutions to encourage / provide reduced fares 
and season tickets for students;

 Accessibility – ensure that interventions are targeted in areas where there is currently little accessibility 
to education;

 Accessibility – seek to increase the provision of/frequency of night services to facilitate access to night 
and adult learning;

 Sustainable Transport - recognise the role that walking and cycling (including Rights of Way) can play 
in accessing employment, education and healthcare.

4. Fares, 
Information & 
Ticketing

 Health - Specific consideration would need to be given to those without access to technology (i.e.
internet) and equality groups; 

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - ensure that information on new ticketing systems is well publicised to 
socially isolated groups who may have specific communication needs;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - promote fares and services at a neighbourhood level.

5. Taxis & 
Community 
Transport

 Health – the expansion of community transport should be targeted towards those communities / 
populations most in need to address health inequalities.

6. Public 
Transport

 Health - Actions that target disadvantaged neighbourhoods would help to address health inequalities;

 Accessibility – channel efficiency savings into improvements in accessibility to/from areas where there 
are high levels of deprivation;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion – the appropriate targeting of travel training will successfully make public 
transport users more aware of all aspects of public transport use, including awareness of personal 
security and crime.

7.Joint Working to 
address common 
objectives

 Health – encourage more direct working between transport planning and the health and education 
sectors, of which are represented as part of Multi Area Agreements and Local Strategic Partnerships.

Page 152Page 110



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

62

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table 8.5: LTP3 Goal Five - Mitigation and Enhancement

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of 
the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods

Action/
Intervention Mitigation/Enhancement

1. Public 
Transport

 Accessibility - the use of flexible services to reduce the number of poorly used or marginal buses on 
some routes must take care not to withdraw services people in socially deprived areas are dependent 
on;

 Crime, Safety - develop a co-ordinated approach to travel training across Merseyside that includes
safety training;

 Crime, Safety - ensure that Park and Ride car parking facilities are well lit to ensure that people using 
the car park for daily commuting feel less vulnerable (particularly after dark, for example during winter 
months);

 Climate Change – Park and Ride sites should be strategically placed in areas of high private car use 
and in areas already well served by public transport, such as train stations

2. Goods

 Crime, Safety – adapt the maintenance of the Strategic Freight Network to include maintenance of 
security measures to reduce freight crime in the region;

 Crime, Safety – include security improvements in any essential highway improvements to the Strategic 
Freight Network

3. Cycling

 Landscape - cycling and walking networks (including the Rights of Way network) should improve 
access to the local countryside and greenspace close to where people live;

 Health - recognise the mental and physical health benefits associated with access to the natural 
environment;

 Crime, Safety – accompany improvements to the cycle network with enhanced safety and security
measures, both to encourage people to make use of the network and to protect them while they are 
using it;

 Accessibility – where possible, increase the network of cross-boundary cycle and walk routes and 
increase the provision of cycle parking facilities to ensure local journeys are made more accessible 
using more sustainable modes and to increase access to local routes for active travellers;

 Heritage Assets – ensure the Manual for Streets recommendations are applied in the development of 
cycling infrastructure to enable the consideration cultural heritage into design

4. Maintenance

 Crime, Safety – improvements in environmental quality can be achieved through continual maintenance 
and improvements in lighting (which can help reduce the fear of crime), the provision of safer pathways, 
highway cleaning regimes and the facilitation of recreational access (by maintaining public rights of 
way)

 Health - health benefits associated with each asset maintenance action should be explicitly identified 
and be taken into account in prioritising this particular programme

5. Traffic  No mitigation/enhancement measures were identified

6. Travelwise
 Poverty, Economic Inclusion - information on Smarter Choices should be targeted towards groups that 

are less informed and also to all local communities to increase access for all

Other 
Enhancement 
Measures

 It was highlighted that the LTP3 does not currently document any actions to support the intervention of 
walking under Goal 5 – the efficient movement of people and goods. Under this goal, specific measures 
should be developed to support the intervention of walking, as people often walk to connect to other 
public transport modes, particularly commuters. It is important that good pedestrian links are provided 
from office developments to local services; and that actions are developed to ensure that routes are 
created and maintained for active travellers.

Table 8.6: LTP3 Goal Six - Mitigation and Enhancement

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High StandardAction/
Intervention Mitigation/Enhancement

1. Complete Asset 
Management 
Register

 No mitigation/enhancement measures were identified

2. Produce 
effective asset 

 Accessibility - the needs of vulnerable members of society should continue to be considered, for 

Page 153Page 111



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

63

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High StandardAction/
Intervention Mitigation/Enhancement

management 
programme

example through the provision of crossing facilities that are accessible for all equality groups;

 Biodiversity – measures to make the transport network more resilient to climate change should ensure 
that the effects of such measures on biodiversity are considered;

 Biodiversity – measures to make the transport network more resilient to climate change should be 
designed to maximise ecological value e.g. enhancing wildlife connectivity through linear transport 
features such as canal tow paths, rights of way, road verges, cycle routes and railway embankments;

 Climate Change – consideration could be given to the type of surfacing used during highway 
maintenance to cope with warmer summers and colder winters;

 Climate Change – where possible, drainage solutions opportunities such as SUDS should be 
considered as part of the management programme;

 Poverty, Economic Inclusion – local demography of more vulnerable groups could be used to prioritise 
investment

8.2 Major Schemes Mitigation and Enhancement

The majority of the major schemes will be subject to a formal Environmental Impact Assessment or 

informal environmental appraisal at the project level. Therefore, specific mitigation and enhancement 

measures have not been detailed in this report. The mitigation and enhancement table below highlights 

some general measures to be considered for major schemes.

Table 8.7: Major Schemes – Mitigation and Enhancement

Major Schemes

 Resource Use, Renewable Energy and GHG Emissions – building materials should be sources locally and the 
Government’s Sustainable Construction Guide should be used to promote best practice. 

 Heritage Assets – promote opportunities to enhance the setting of any heritage assets that may be affected by the scheme, 
for example encourage sensitive design; and arrange construction work sites to keep the effects on listed buildings to a 
minimum.

 Waste – opportunities to re-use excavated material in the design; and opportunities for waste minimisation segregation on 
site.

 Landscape – use screen planting to improve visual amenity; provide aftercare and maintenance of landscaping; ensure 
that the character and setting of the existing landscape is an important consideration in the design and that the design is 
sensitive to the existing landscape; 

 Water Quality – store run-off water through drainage; use SUDS, e.g. permeable surfacing and where appropriate, 
attenuation ponds; and maintain drainage systems to avoid blockages; use vegetation to stop overland run-off.

 Climate Change – identify drains/watercourses at risk; improve highway drainage and use of porous road surfaces; and 
consider the use of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems and measures to divert flood water

 Land, Soil – ensure that areas of open space lost as a result of the widening are replaced.

 Access – ensure appropriate pedestrian signage for division to allow continued access of the station during the works.

 Biodiversity and landscape – acknowledge the need to recognise the importance of protecting and enhancing the natural 
environment, including biodiversity, landscape, geodiversity and soils by avoiding, mitigating or compensating for negative 
impacts of traffic and transport infrastructure; and where possible securing environmental gain from all activities affecting 
the maintenance, operation and improvement of the transport networks.

Page 154Page 112



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

64

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

9.1 Overall Conclusions

The SA/SEA process has demonstrated the predicted effects of implementing the Merseyside LTP3 

Strategy. Overall the transport Goals and associated actions/interventions set out in the LTP3 are likely to 

have positive effects in terms of relieving congestion, encouraging modal shift, improving public transport, 

maximising use of the existing network, and increasing road safety, which will have positive effect on 

accessibility, health, safety, air quality, climate change, sustainable transport and economic development. 

Some measures outlined in the LTP3 are likely to have negative effects, such as landtake, habitat loss, 

waste generation, resource use and disturbance to heritage assets. Mitigation and enhancement measures 

have been suggested to help enhance and mitigate the predicted effects of implementing the LTP3. 

Mitigation measures include measures that can be used to inform the development of the LTP3 e.g. 

changes to strategy wording, addition of interventions etc; and measures to be taken following 

implementation of the LTP3 e.g. design, construction, operation and maintenance mitigation and 

enhancements. Specific recommendations identified for changes to the LTP3 format and wording (taken 

from the mitigation tables in Section 8) are:

 it was highlighted that the LTP3 does not currently document any actions to support the intervention of 

walking under Goal 5 – the efficient movement of people and goods. Under this goal, specific measures 

should be developed to support the intervention of walking, as people often walk to connect to other 

public transport modes, particularly commuters. It is important that good pedestrian links are provided 

from office developments to local services; and that actions are developed to ensure that routes are 

created and maintained for active travellers.

 links should be made in the LTP3 to each of the Council’s Core Strategies to ensure that the soft 

measures set out in the smarter choices and behavioural change programmes are supported by 

infrastructure improvements, of which are fundamental to support the move towards a low carbon 

transport system.

 measures should be taken to market the benefits of low emission and electric vehicles and a strong 

business case should be developed to support the long-term action of the LTP3.

9.2 Incorporating the Results of the SA/SEA into the LTP3

9.2.1 Informing development of the LTP3

The provisional Merseyside LTP3, for which this SA/SEA has been undertaken, contains a number of 

interventions and major schemes that have been identified for implementation during the LTP3 period. The 

interventions and major schemes will be finalised and prioritised once the levels of funding are confirmed 

and following a further round of public and stakeholder consultation. The results of the SA/SEA has been 

used to identify whether the proposed interventions and major schemes, presented in the provisional LTP3, 

are acceptable in terms of their potential effect on the environment, society and the economy. Following 

consultation the results of the SA/SEA process will be used to inform the development of the Final LTP3 by 

assisting with the prioritisation of the interventions and major schemes. Once the LTP3 has been adopted a 

supplementary SA/SEA note will be produced outlining how the comments from consultation have been 

incorporated into the SA/SEA process and how the results from the SA/SEA has then been used to inform 

the development of the final LTP3.

9. Conclusions

Page 155Page 113



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

65

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

9.2.2 Mitigation and Enhancement Measures following Implementation of the LTP3

In addition to informing the production of the final LTP3 and assisting with the prioritisation of the 

interventions and major schemes, the SA/SEA process has also been used to develop measures that will 

seek to prevent, offset or reduce any potential adverse effects that the implementation of those 

interventions and major schemes presented in the LTP3 may have on the environment, society or the 

economy. The SA/SEA process has also identified opportunities for environmental, social and economic 

enhancement. These mitigation and enhancement measures should be taken forward following 

implementation of the LTP3 as they relate to design, construction, operation and maintenance.

Page 156Page 114



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

66

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

10.1 Links to Other Tiers of Plans, Programmes and the Project Level

The Merseyside LTP3 helps deliver and support several local national plans and transport priorities 

including the Local Development Framework and DaSTS. Improvements to the transport network including 

public transport, walking and cycling will have positive effects on tourism, accessibility, social inclusion and 

health which may help support strategies on tourism, culture and health. 

The LTP3 has been assessed at a high strategic policy level. Specific schemes detailed in the LTP3 may 

be subject to an Environmental Impact Assessment under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental 

Impact Assessment) (England and Wales) Regulations 1999 (as amended). Requirements for EIA will be 

determined on a scheme by scheme basis once the scheme is at the stage to be taken forward.

10.2 Proposals for Monitoring

Monitoring the significant sustainability effects of implementing the LTP3 is an essential ongoing element of 

the SA/SEA process. It is the responsibility of the Merseyside Transport Partnership to undertake LTP and 

SA/SEA monitoring. Monitoring ensures that the identified SA/SEA objectives are being achieved, allows 

early identification of unforeseen adverse effects and thus appropriate remedial action can be taken. 

Monitoring will be an important requirement to measure performance and ensure the LTP3 is being 

successfully implemented. The DfT guidance states that it is inappropriate to monitor everything. Therefore 

the monitoring proposals outlined in Table 10.1 have been selected from SA/SEA indicators presented in 

Table 4.6 and focus on significant affects including those which:

 Indicate a likely breach of international, national or local legislation, recognised guidelines or standards;

 May give rise to irreversible damage, with a view to identifying trends before such damage occurs; and

 Were subject to uncertainty in the SA/SEA and where monitoring would enable prevention or mitigation 

measures to be taken.

10. Implementation and Monitoring

Page 157Page 115



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

67

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table 10.1: Monitoring Proposals
Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA 
Objective

Goal & 
Action/Intervention

SA/SEA Indicators Type of Data Format of Data Monitoring Technique Data Source Review 
Timescale

To use energy, water and 
mineral resources prudently 
and efficiently, increase 
energy generated from 
renewable sources and 
reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions

Goal 3 – Road Safety

Goal 2 - Fleet 
Vehicles

Proportion of greenhouse gas 
emissions from transport 

Quantitative Statistics Review MAES statistics Merseyside 
Atmospheric 
Emissions 
Inventory

Annual

Accessibility of workless residents to 
employment locations (LTP PI 13)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

AnnualTo reduce poverty and 
social deprivation and 
secure economic inclusion

Goal 3 –
Health/Equality 

Goal 4 – Fares, 
Information & 
Ticketing

Goal 4 - Public 
Transport

Goal 5 – Public 
Transport

Goal 5 - Cycling

Affordability – Index of transport 
usage costs (LTP PI 12)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

To protect, enhance and 
manage Merseyside’s rich 
diversity of cultural, 
historical and built 
environment and 
archaeological assets

Goal 2- Freight 
Traffic

Goal 3 – Cycling & 
Walking

Goal 5 – Public 
Transport

Goal 2- Modal Shift

Number of applications for transport 
schemes identified as affecting 
scheduled monuments, listed 
buildings, SMR sites or Conservation 
Areas. Identify if applications 
approved or rejected and if approved 
identify planning conditions

Quantitative Statistics Collect and review 
transport planning 
applications from local 
authority Development 
Control departments

Local Authority 
Development 
Control 
departments

Annual

To protect, enhance and 
manage biodiversity, the 
viability of endangered 
species, habitats and sites 
of geological importance

Goal 5 – Public 
Transport

Goal 5 – Cycling

Goal 2 - Modal Shift, 

Goal 2 - Public 
Transport 

Area (ha) of medium and high value 
ecological land lost to transport 
projects (that has not been 
compensated for in additional habitat 
creation)

Quantitative Statistics Collect and review 
transport planning 
applications from local 
authority Development 
Control departments

Local Authority 
Development 
Control 
departments

Annual

P
age 158

P
age 116



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

68

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA 
Objective

Goal & 
Action/Intervention

SA/SEA Indicators Type of Data Format of Data Monitoring Technique Data Source Review 
Timescale

Goal 2 - Traffic 

Goal 2 - Freight 
Traffic

To protect, enhance and 
manage the local character 
and accessibility of the 
landscape across the sub-
region

Goal 5 – Public 
Transport

Goal 5 – Cycling

Goal 2 - Modal Shift 

Goal 2 - Public 
Transport 

Goal 2 - Traffic

Number of applications for planning 
for transport schemes with a 
accompanying EIA or similar 
assessment where landscape and 
visual issues have been identified as 
an issue. Identify if application 
approved or rejected and if approved 
identify planning conditions

Quantitative Statistics Collect and review 
transport planning 
applications from local 
authority Development 
Control departments

Local Authority 
Development 
Control 
departments

Annual

To protect, improve and 
where necessary, restore 
the quality of inland, 
estuarine and coastal 
waters

Goal 5 – Public 
Transport

Goal 2 - Modal Shift

Number of planning permissions 
granted contrary to EA advice on 
flooding or water quality grounds 
(major transport applications)

Quantitative Statistics Collect and review 
transport planning 
applications from local 
authority DC 
departments / EA 
website review

Local Authority 
Development 
Control 
departments

Annual

Environment standard of bus fleet 
(Euro III or equivalent) (LTP PI 18)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

Congestion (person delay) (LTP PI 
LTP7)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

To protect, manage and, 
where necessary, improve 
local air quality

No significant 
negative effects were 
identified from the 
appraisal on air 
quality; however this 
objective will 
continue to be 
monitored in order to 
ensure that the LTP 
does not give rise to 
significant effects on 
air quality.

Changes in peak period traffic flows in 
urban centres (LTP PI LTP6)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

Total number of people killed/seriously 
injured in traffic accidents (LTP PI 
BVPI199(x))

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

AnnualTo improve safety and 
reduce crime, disorder and 
fear of crime

Goal 1

Goal 3 – Road Safety 

Goal 3 -
Health/Equality

Number of children killed/seriously 
injured in traffic accidents (LTP PI 
BVPI199(y))

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

P
age 159

P
age 117



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

69

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA 
Objective

Goal & 
Action/Intervention

SA/SEA Indicators Type of Data Format of Data Monitoring Technique Data Source Review 
Timescale

Goal 4 – Access to 
Education

Goal 4 – Joint 
Working to address 
Common Objectives

Crime/fear of crime on and around 
public transport:
- number of broken window incidents 
recorded on public transport
- proportion of people who are 
discouraged from PT use at night
(LTP PI 15)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

Bus punctuality (LTP PI LTP5) Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

AnnualTo improve local 
accessibility of goods, 
services and amenities and 
reduce community 
severance

Goal 2 - Traffic 

Goal 2 - Public 
Transport

Goal 3 – Road Safety

Goal 4 – Fares, 
Information & 
Ticketing

Number of households within 800m of 
an hourly or better bus service

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

Mode share of journeys to schools 
(LTP PI LTP4)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

Public transport patronage:
- bus
- rail 
(LTP PI BVPI102(a) and (b))

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

Cycling  - Index of usage (LTP PI 
LTP3)

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

To reduce the need to travel 
and improve choice and use 
of more sustainable 
transport modes

Goal 2 - Traffic

Travel to work modal share indicator 
(LTP PI 20) 

Quantitative Statistics Review information 
collected for LTP 
monitoring

Merseyside LTP 
Annual Progress 
Reports

Annual

To protect, manage and 
restore land, soil quality and 
geodiversity

Goal 2 - Freight 
Traffic 

Goal 5 – Public 
Transport

Goal 2 - Modal Shift

Number of applications for transport 
schemes on greenfield sites

Quantitative Statistics Review planning 
applications for 
transport schemes

Local Authority 
Development 
Control 
departments

Annual

P
age 160

P
age 118



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

70

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Department for Transport (January 2010) Draft: Strategic Environmental Assessment for Transport Plans 

and Programmes – TAG Unit 2.11D

Department for Transport (2008) Delivering a Sustainable Transport System

Department of Communities and Local Government (November 2005) Sustainability Appraisal of Regional 

Spatial Strategies and Local Development Documents

Department of Communities and Local Government (September 2005) A Practical Guide to the Strategic 

Environmental Assessment Directive

Department of Communities and Local Government (2005) Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering 

Sustainable Development

Government Office for the North West (2008) Regional Spatial Strategy for the North West of England

HM Government (March 2005) Securing the Future – Delivering the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 

Liverpool First (2009) Liverpool 2024: A Thriving International City - Sustainable Community Strategy

Merseytravel (2006) Merseyside Local Transport Plan 2, 2006-2011

Merseytravel (2010) A New Mobility Culture for Merseyside: The Third Local Transport Plan Preferred 

Strategy – Draft for Consultation

Sefton Borough Partnership (2007) A Vision for Sefton - The Community Strategy

St. Helens Local Strategic Partnership (2009) St. Helens Sustainable Community Strategy

The Knowsley Partnership (2008) Knowsley: The Borough of Choice - Sustainable Community Strategy 

2008 - 2023

Wirral Local Strategic Partnership (2009) Wirral 2025: More Equal, More Prosperous - The Community 

Strategy

11. References 

Page 161Page 119



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

71

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Appendix A. Scoping Report Comments___________________________________________________________ 72

Appendix B. Policies, Plans, Programmes and Environmental Objectives relevant to the Merseyside LTP3 _______ 83

Appendix C. Baseline Conditions and Key Issues___________________________________________________ 114

Appendix D. Appraisal Tables __________________________________________________________________ 162

Appendix E. SA/SEA Consultation Reponses______________________________________________________ 222

Appendices

Page 162Page 120



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

72

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

General Comments

Natural England are pleased to see the SEA recognising that landscape and nature conservation are 
important issues in relation to transport planning, as well as countryside access and recreation. However
Natural England would like to see green infrastructure being recognised in the same light, and to see 
Rights of Way Improvement Plans (ROWIPs) being integrated into the LTP3 process

Green infrastructure will be considered as part of the 
assessment process and if not already incorporated 
into the LTP3 will be recommended in the SA/SEA as 
an enhancement measure.

The ROWIPs, although it is part of the LTP process it 
is in itself a separate document, and will developed 
by Merseytravel as part of the LTP preparation.  This 
SA/SEA focuses on the LTP strategy and 
implementation plan and will consider the ROWIP if it 
is sufficiently developed in time for the assessment. 

Natural England has set out its priorities for LTPs in its ‘Guidance on Local Transport Plans and the 
Natural Environment’, 2009 (http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/Images/local-trans-plans_tcm6-15159.pdf). 

Adoption of these priorities within the LTP will help to maximise the benefits for the natural environment 
as assessed in the SEA.

Section 4.1 and Appendix A in the Scoping Report 
have been amended to include ‘Guidance on Local 
Transport Plans and the Natural Environment’ 
(Natural England, 2009)

Natural England is pleased to see that there is detailed information on the SEA, LTP and HRA processes, 
and their integration. 

Natural England note that a separate scoping report will be provided for the HRA and Natural England
look forward to providing input into this process.

No action required

Natural England notes that reference is made to the DCLG Guidance ‘Sustainability Appraisal of Regional 
Spatial Strategies and Local Development Documents’ (pages ii, 1 and 9).  

This guidance is no longer current and for local development documents has been superseded by 
guidance now provided as part of the Plan Making Manual. This is hosted on the Planning Advisory 
Service website:

http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/core/page.do?pageId=109798

Reference to DCLG Guidance removed as 
appropriate.

Methodology

Natural England

Letter dated 12th April 
2010 from Clare 
Warburton, Senior 
Specialist, Transport 
Advocacy & 
Partnerships Team

Natural England are pleased to see the SEA Scoping report indicating how the LTP’s vision, aims, 
objectives, policies and proposals are to be assessed and documented. Natural England note that in 
Section 7.1.2 (Task B3) reference is made to the geographical scale of effects and Natural England would 
encourage you to ensure that this includes cross-boundary effects with other authorities. 

Similarly Natural England would encourage a full consideration of secondary, cumulative, and synergistic 

Report amended on page 37 to include cross-
boundary effects with other authorities.

Appendix A. Scoping Report Comments

P
age 163

P
age 121



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

73

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

effects.

Review of Relevant Plans, Policies and Programmes

Natural England welcome the comprehensive review of relevant plans, policies and programmes, and are 
pleased to see that the implications for the LTP are being considered. 

No action required

A full list of those plans, policies and programmes that Natural England consider most relevant for the 
SEA of a local transport plan are included in Appendix 1 and Natural England would like to see that all the 
documents are taken into account in the ongoing SEA. 

Appendix 1 provided by Natural England has been 
reviewed.  Section 4.1 and Appendix A in the 
Scoping Report have been amended to include these 
additional plans, policies and programmes as 
appropriate.

Natural England also see that although “Towards a Sustainable Transport System” is discussed on page 
15, it is not included within the plans, policies and programmes list in either the main report or appendix.

Section 4.1 and Appendix A have been amended to 
include “Towards a Sustainable Transport System”

Baseline Information

With regard to the Local Context for the LTP, Natural England would particularly like to see the SEA 
making links to the Local Area Agreement and showing how LTP3 will help deliver against the Authorities’ 
chosen indicators, specifically NI 175, 185, 186 and relevant health indicators.

Report amended on page 22 to note that the baseline 
information provides the basis for predicting and 
monitoring effects and helps to identify sustainability 
problems and alternative ways of dealing with them 
in respect of national, regional and local targets and 
trends including those set out in the Local Area 
Agreement.  

The baseline information in Appendix B has been 
updated with data on NI 186.  Data on NI 175 and 
185 was unavailable for the local authorities included 
in the Merseyside LTP3.

Natural England are pleased to see detailed baseline information has been included in Appendix B, 
however there are some gaps in some areas which Natural England consider to be important as detailed 
below:

 Whilst there is information provided on SSSIs and their condition, there is a lack of information on the 
internationally important biodiversity sites (SACs, SPAs and Ramsar sites) that are in and within the 
vicinity of the plan area. This information will be important in informing the Habitats Regulations 
Assessment that will be undertaken using the integrated assessment/appraisal. Information on locally 
designated sites is also currently missing from the baseline review.

The baseline data has been updated to include 
information on SACs. SPAs and Ramsar sites.  More 
information on these sites will be included in the 
Habitats Regulations Assessment.  Where possible 
information on locally designated sites has also been 
included in the baseline information.   

 Transport infrastructure can act as important wildlife corridors and therefore has particular relevance for 
enabling species movement to allow adaptation to climate change. In addition the soft estate controlled 
by local authorities can have considerable biodiversity value.

This will be a consideration at Stage B during the 
assessment of the LTP3 alternatives. 

 Natural England notice that geodiversity is not included within the section on environmental issues and 
without any baseline information Natural England are unable to determine whether this is because they 
have been discounted from the process on the basis of the baseline information reviewed, or whether 

Limited data relating to geodiversity is currently 
available, however this has been included in the 
baseline information and SEA objective 15 has been 

P
age 164

P
age 122



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

74

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

they have been omitted from consideration. updated to include geodiversity.

 Natural England also note that there is information included in the baseline over which the LTP can 
have very little or no influence, although Natural England appreciate that some of this information may 
be related to the HIA (e.g. levels of smoking). As the SEA develops Natural England would encourage 
the inclusion of further baseline information for assets/resources which could be potentially affected 
from the implementation of the LTP (both positive and negative effects).

This will be a consideration as the SEA develops, 
especially at Stage B, during the assessment of the 
LTP3 alternatives.  As appropriate further baseline 
information will be included. 

In relation to baseline information, Natural England would like the SEA to show how well the plan will: 

 conserve and enhance landscape (and townscape) character and quality;

 conserve and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity;

 conserve and enhance opportunities for sustainable public access to the natural environment;

 adopt a strategic approach to planning and provision of multi functional green infrastructure;

 ensure the natural environment can adapt to and mitigate for the effects of climate change.

This will be a consideration as the SEA progresses 
into Stages B and C.

Natural England would recommend including information on key environmental assets including:

 Landscape:

 NW Regional Landscape Character Framework

 Countryside Quality Counts;

 Protected landscapes - boundaries of National Parks, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONBs)
and the location of Heritage Coasts; 

 Biodiversity:

 Protected Areas and Species

 UK BAP information

 SSSI condition

 Geodiversity and soils

 Access:

 National Trails, 

 Open access 

 Coastal access

 Other access e.g. permissive access

 PROW

 Green Infrastructure

The baseline has been updated with information from 
these sources where appropriate.

In particular Natural England would recommend the following information sources:

National and Regional ‘State of the Natural Environment’ reports can be found on the Natural England 

The baseline has been updated with information from 
these sources where appropriate.

P
age 165

P
age 123



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

75

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

website.  

The national report presents evidence on the current state of the natural environment including: 

 Landscapes – characterisation, designated and defined landscapes; geodiversity, soils, and cultural 
landscapes;

 Biodiversity – SSSI condition, Biodiversity Action Plans (BAPs) for marine and terrestrial habitats, 
protected species.

 Enjoying the Natural Environment – volunteering, visitor activity, National Trails and Public Rights of 
Way (PROW), open access and coastal access, accessible green space,

 Pressures and Risks – climate change, invasive species and diseases, use and management of land 
and sea, pollution.

The regional report covers the key issues affecting the North West. These reports complement those of 
other agencies such as the Environment Agency, which cover other environmental issues including air 
and water quality.

The NW Regional Landscape Character Framework – which can be found on the Natural England 
website, brings together information about geology, landform, biodiversity, history and land use to provide 
an integrated geographic framework for the North West. See 
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/regions/north_west/ourwork/landscapecharacterframework.aspx 

The Countryside Quality Counts (CQC) project has developed an indicator of change in countryside 
quality based on landscape character. More information can be found at www.countryside-quality-
counts.org.uk.

www.magic.org.uk, is a web-based interactive map, bringing together geographic information on key 
environmental schemes and designations in one place.

www.natureonthemap.org.uk is one of Natural England's interactive map sites. In the MAPS tab you will 
discover a choice of maps about nature, including National Nature Reserves, SSSIs, European other 
protected sites and areas of semi-natural habitats.

North West Biodiversity Forum is a useful source of information on embedding Regional Biodiversity 
Targets into Local Development Frameworks.  

NW habitat targets by county: http://www.biodiversitynw.org.uk/page.asp?id=79.  

Habitats by local authority: http://www.biodiversitynw.org.uk/audit/habitats/; 

Species by local authority: http://www.biodiversitynw.org.uk/audit/species/

The baseline has been updated with information from 
these sources where appropriate.

The SEA report should include a variety of data concerning recreation and access to countryside, 
including data on Public Rights of Way and Access Land as both are relevant to the Local Transport Plan.  

Guidance on LTP and ROWIP integration can be found in Natural England’s good practice note: 
http://naturalengland.etraderstores.com/NaturalEnglandShop/Product.aspx?ProductID=a9f67df9-f61d-
40ae-9ed7-457b60b89394

Natural England has a statutory duty under the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 to prepare maps 
of all open countryside and registered common land in England, which have new rights of open access.  

The baseline has been updated with information from 
these sources where appropriate.

P
age 166

P
age 124



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

76

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

Further information on this process, and copies of maps, can be found on the following website: 
www.openaccess.gov.uk

The following website: http://www.wfh.naturalengland.org.uk/ includes information on Natural England’s 
Walking for Health project, for which Merseyside is a target area.

Useful information on green infrastructure can be found in NE176 - Natural England’s Green Infrastructure 
Guidance 2009 and the North West’s Green Infrastructure prospectus available from the following 
websites:

http://naturalengland.etraderstores.com/NaturalEnglandShop/Product.aspx?ProductID=cda68051-1381-
452f-8e5b-8d7297783bbd

http://www.greeninfrastructurenw.co.uk/resources/Prospectus_V6.pdf

Sustainability Issues & Problems

The key issues provided in Section 5.3 of the scoping report pick up on some of the areas where Natural 
England has identified potential issues and opportunities that could arise through LTP implementation. 
However given that the baseline information has not always been focused on areas where the LTP can 
have an influence, it is likely that further issues will be identified as additional baseline information is 
reviewed.

The additional baseline has been reviewed and 
further key issues maybe identified during the SEA 
assessment process  

In the methodology for SEA task B5 (p38) it is stated that the SEA team will look at opportunities for 
enhancement to gain added benefits for the LTP. At present however section 5.3 tends to focus on 
adverse effects, for example the issues linked to Objective 5 relate to damages to sites and species, 
without providing any information on the potential opportunities to enhance these resources. Natural 
England would encourage the SEA to consider not just measures to reduce the levels of such damage but 
also to consider opportunities for enhancing the situation.

As the SEA progresses to Stage B5, consideration 
will be given to potential opportunities for 
enhancement, as well as potentially adverse effects.

A further example is provided by Objective 10 where section 5.3 considers ‘impacts on health’ without 
providing an indication of how, through the SEA, the LTP can help to promote more healthy lifestyles, 
particularly around travel patterns and modes.

The LTP3 provides a good opportunity to encourage 
healthy and active lifestyles through investment in 
cycle and pedestrian routes and facilities and public 
transport.  Aiming to encourage modal shift and 
reduce reliance on cars, this may have other health 
benefits in terms of air quality.

Through the ongoing SEA and LTP3 development processes Natural England believe that the following 
sustainability issues and opportunities should be considered:

Issue:

Climate change and carbon emissions from transport

Opportunities:

Mitigation of and adaptation to climate change through: 

 reducing carbon emissions; 

 making best use of existing transport infrastructure 

 making use of green infrastructure associated with transport networks for climate change adaptation  

These issues and opportunities will be considered 
during Stage B of the SEA process.

P
age 167

P
age 125



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

77

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

e.g. carbon storage, sustainable drainage, energy generation, and water conservation.

 reducing the need to travel

 shifting necessary travel to more sustainable modes (public rights of way and wider access network 
improvements) and behaviours, and locking in the benefits.

Issue:

Impacts on the natural environment from transport and associated infrastructure.

Opportunities:

 Conserving and enhancing local landscape (and townscape) character and quality, and local 
distinctiveness (including reducing noise and light pollution);

 Conserving and enhancing biodiversity (habitats and species) and geodiversity;

 Maintaining and enhancing green infrastructure as part of the transport network for its wide ranging 
contribution to biodiversity; geodiversity;  accessible recreation and associated health benefits;  
adapting to  climate change (e.g. carbon storage, drainage, and water conservation);

Issue:

Poor access to the natural environment

Opportunities:

 Maintaining and enhancing sustainable access to green and open spaces, eg Ainsdale Sand Dunes, 
Ribble Estuary and Cabin Hill National Nature Reserves.

 Maintaining and improving the public rights of way and wider access network (through integration with 
and implementation of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan);

Issue:

Obesity and poor mental and physical health of adults and children

Opportunities:

 Improving health through active travel and improved access to the natural environment, for example 
through our Walking for Health project and our Green Exercise programme.

Issue:

Car based visitor pressure affecting protected landscapes and sites of biodiversity value.

Opportunities:

 More sustainable access in rural locations that provide benefits for residents as well as visitors.

 Protected sites  becoming exemplars of sustainable transport

P
age 168

P
age 126



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

78

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

Alternatives

The TAG Unit 2.11 guidance encourages authorities to identify LTP options at Stage A of the SEA 
process. However Natural England notice that apart from indicating that a ‘Do Nothing’ or ‘Business as 
Usual’ option will be included in the alternatives, there is no further information provided on other LTP 
alternatives.

At this stage the LTP options are still in early 
development and therefore have not been examined 
in detail in the Scoping Report and will be further 
explored in Stage B of the SEA/SA process.

The assessment of alternatives is at the heart of the SEA process and Natural England would encourage 
the authorities to consider alternative approaches to meeting the objectives of the LTP and make it clear 
through the reporting processes what alternatives have been considered and the reasons for taking 
forward the preferred options.

The alternatives and reasoning behind the preferred 
options will be given detailed consideration during 
Stage B of the SEA/SA process and will be clearly 
documented in SEA/SA report in Stage C of the 
process.

The Sustainability Appraisal Framework

Natural England support the use of SEA objectives in the assessment process and welcome the inclusion 
of a set of objectives in the scoping report. However there are some areas where Natural England would 
like to see amendments and additions to the framework of objectives:

 In relation to the objective “to protect, manage and restore land and soil quality” Natural England would 
like to see the addition of “and geodiversity” at the end of the objective. Geodiversity is an important 
component of the environment which is often not given due consideration within SEAs;

SEA Objective 15 amended to “To protect, manage 
and restore land, soil quality and geodiversity”

 Natural England note that there are objectives relating to the promotion of health and improving 
accessibility to jobs and services, and a HIA objective on promoting healthy lifestyles. However Natural 
England would like to see the inclusion of “promoting healthy lifestyles” within objective 10 “to improve 
health and reduce health inequalities”. The LTP3 can play an important role in helping to achieve this 
objective and it should therefore be given due consideration in the assessment of significant effects.

Healthy lifestyles will be covered as part of the HIA 
Objective 7 

With regard to the indicators proposed in Table 6.3 it is noted that, as with the baseline information, many 
of the indicators are not relevant for monitoring the SA/SEA of a transport plan. In order to streamline the 
assessment and monitoring processes it may be useful to reconsider the suite of indicators so that only 
those relevant to the LTP are used and more appropriate indicators identified as the baseline is updated 
(see comment above). For example in relation to Objective 10 the indicators are solely focused on human 
conditions and there are no indicators relating to take up of active travel modes or provision of access to 
open space. Natural England would like to see that the indicators suggested below in the monitoring 
section are included.

The indicators as they stand at the moment provide a 
baseline context of the area.  During Stage B6, these 
indicators will be reviewed and tailored to the LTP3.

Monitoring

As the SEA progresses, consideration should be given to the monitoring framework that will be used to 
monitor significant effects and identify any unforeseen effects resulting from the implementation of the 
LTP. Natural England would expect that such a framework would consider effects on both the natural 
environment and climate change.

Stage E monitoring will be undertaken annually by 
Merseyside Transport Partnership as part of their 
LTP Annual Monitoring Report (AMR).  The SEA/SA 
report will provide a monitoring framework for 
Merseyside Transport Partnership based on the 

P
age 169

P
age 127



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

79

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

SA/SEA and HIA indicators identified and will aim to 
take into consideration the natural environment and 
climate change.

To help address monitoring issues, Natural England would welcome the inclusion of indicators (such as 
those listed below) in any sustainability framework developed:  

 The use of Landscape Character Assessment and Countryside Quality Counts to provide baseline 
information, targets and indicators for 'landscape' and 'townscape'; (For further advice on landscape 
indicators for SEAs of LTPs see: 
http://www.naturalengland.org.uk/Images/landscapeindicators05_tcm6-10501.pdf )

 Biodiversity Action Plan targets;

 Habitat and species targets aligned to the work of the North West Biodiversity Forum;

 Use of our ‘Accessible Natural Greenspace Standards , (see ref below at Appendix A1.2.4);

 Quality and length of Public Rights of Way.  Natural England would specifically welcome a target 
on km of new access routes for walkers, cyclists and horseriders, that will be created as a result 
of the third Local Transport Plan; 

 National standards such as ‘Green Flag’ for parks and open spaces, and Country Parks accreditation 
scheme etc.

As above, monitoring of the LTP will form of Stage E 
of the SEA process and will be undertaken annually 
by Merseyside Transport Partnership as part of their 
LTP Annual Monitoring Report (AMR).  The SEA/SA 
report will provide a monitoring framework for 
Merseyside Transport Partnership based on the 
SA/SEA and HIA indicators identified and will aim to 
take into consideration those indicators identified by 
Natural England. 

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

1. Are there any additional plans or programmes at the international, national, regional or local level which have been excluded from Appendix A, which 
your organisation thinks are relevant to the LTP3 SA/SEA and HIA?

2009 Zagreb Declaration for Healthy Cities: Health and health equity in all local policies

http://www.euro.who.int/Document/E92343.pdf 

LFfHW is committed to promoting health and health equity in all local policies and feels that health equity 
should be an important principle for LTP3 development.

The 2009 Zagreb Declaration for Healthy Cities policy 
has been included in Section 4.1 and Appendix A in 
the Scoping Report.  

2. Do you think the environmental, social and economic baseline collected is appropriate and relevant?

Liverpool First for 
Health and Wellbring 
Strategic Issue 
Partnership

Email dated 16th April 
2010 from Alison 
Petrie-Brown,

Population Health 
Policy and Strategy 
Manager It should be clear that baseline information may be applicable under more than one SEA/HIA objective e.g. 

 Total area of publicly accessible open land/green space

 Total area of publicly accessible urban green space

 Number of children killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents

 Fuel poverty

would, among others, be directly relevant to SEA Objective 10 – to improve health and reduce health 
inequalities.

The Scoping Report has been amended on page 22 
to note that baseline information may be applicable 
under more than one SEA/HIA objective.  

P
age 170

P
age 128



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

80

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

3. Is any environmental, social and economic baseline information currently missing?

Place related indicators (other NIs included in Place Survey)?

LAA Local Indicators could be reviewed, not only for relevance, but for experience of barriers to 
implementation.

National Indicator data from the Place Survey (2008) 
have been added under SEA Objectives 9, 10 and 11 
and to HIA Objectives 3, 7, 8, 10 and 16.    

4. Is there any inaccurate environmental, social and economic baseline information?

Not inaccurate as such, but there is a reliance on national model estimated figures in some areas of health 
data e.g. smoking prevalence and adult obesity. Where there is relevant local data such as Liverpool's 
Household Survey of Smoking or NI 8 Adult participation in sport and active recreation, these should also 
be referenced.

The baseline has been updated with information 
relating to NI 8 under SEA Objective 10 and HIA 
Objective 7.  Data relating to the 

5. Do you agree with the review of the current key sustainability issues in the Merseyside area?

Overemphasis on obesity? Obesity has been considered a key issue in the area 
and where possible obesity has been split into adult 
and childhood obesity to breakdown this key issue. 
Also Knowsley, Liverpool and Sefton have all 
included NI 56: Obesity in primary school age 
children in Year 6 as one of their local priorities under 
the Local Area Agreement.  This information has 
been added to the baseline  

6. Are the SA/SEA and HIA and associated indicators suitable for the LPT3?

Possible lack of information on health and care systems and sustainability. Transport closely associated 
with changing health and care environment - currently 'closer to home' and 'personalisation'.

Indicator related to emergency planning? General serious incidents but also 'pandemic' effects?

No relevant indicators are currently available – this 
will be discussed in conjunction with Merseytravel 
and the local authorities.

7. Does the wording of any existing objectives need to be changed, added or removed?

HIA 6 – suggest physical health is reinstated under Objective 6 as there are aspects of physical health that 
are not relevant to healthy lifestyles e.g. long term conditions, mobility

HIA Objective 6 has been amended to state “To 
improve mental well-being and physical health”

8. Do the draft SA/SEA and HIA indicators provide a relevant measure for the objective? If not can you suggest appropriate alternatives?

HIA

Objective 3 – NI3, 4

Objective 4 – The NEETs population is currently a strong indicator of resilience to economic situation

Objective 7 – adult obesity is an estimate (see 4 above) – (NW lifestyles survey may be relevant if to be 
repeated within the life of LTP3)

Objective 9 – Child deaths/injuries in traffic accidents may be a stronger indicator as it is a clearer 
expression of inequalities

Objective 15 – respiratory disease (outcome indicator)

The HIA Objective baseline information has been 
updated where appropriate.

P
age 171

P
age 129



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

81

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

English Heritage

Email dated 7th April 
2010 from Judith 
Nelson, Regional 
Planner

English Heritage are unable to reply in detail, however reference should be made to English Heritage’s 
recently published guidance on SA/SEA and the Historic Environment which you can download from
www.helm.org.uk.

The” SEA/SA and Historic Environment” document 
has been included in Section 4.1 and Appendix A in 
the Scoping Report.  

Consultee Consultee Comment MM Response

The Environment Agency welcomes the SA/SEA and Merseyside LTP3 objectives as outlined in the 
Scoping Report.  The Environment Agency’s Corporate Strategy: Creating a Better Place 2010-2015 
supports this approach and the Environment Agency will work with people, communities, businesses and 
other organisations to achieve this.  The Environment Agency will work to protect and improve water, land, 
air and act to reduce climate change and its consequences.

No action required

With reference to the Water Framework Directive, the River Basin Management Plans are now complete 
and have been approved by the Secretary of State.  They plan on how to protect and improve the 
watercourse.  They can be downloaded from:

http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/33106.aspx

The Scoping Report has been amended on page 25 
to state that the River Basin Management Plans have 
now been approved by the Secretary of State.

The report “Water for life and livelihoods – River 
Basin Management Plan North West River Basin 
District” has been included in Section 4.1 and 
Appendix A in the Scoping Report.  

When considering flood risk, each of the LTP Local Authorities have now undertaken and completed 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessments (SFRA) as part of their Local Development Framework.  They go 
further than the Environment Agency flood maps to provide further details of flood risk and the (potential) 
impacts within their respective Authority.  Furthermore it should be noted that there are other sources of 
flood risk including groundwater, sewer and surface water run-off.  Many of these are picked up within the 
SFRAs.

Some Authorities are now starting to assess the impacts of surface water flooding by undertaking surface 
water management plans.

The Strategic Flood Risk Assessments for Knowsley 
& Sefton, Liverpool and St.Helens have been 
included in Section 4.1 and Appendix A in the 
Scoping Report for consideration during the SEA/SA 
assessment process  

Under LTP3 SA/SEA Objective 14 the wording should go further to mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate 
change, including flood risk.

SEA Objective updated to “To mitigate, reduce and 
adapt to climate change including flood risk”

Environment Agency

Letter dated 23rd April 
2010 from Stephen 
Sayce, Planning 
Liaison Officer

Under LTP3 SA/SEA Objective 15 (pg 33) an indicator could be considered to be formally contaminated 
land successfully brought back to use, as it may not necessarily be picked up by proportion of 
development on previously used land.

Consideration has been given to including an 
indicator on the amount of formally contaminated 
land that is successfully brought back into use, 
however as the LTP local authorities handle this 
information differently, it would be difficult to process 
this information into one general indicator. 

P
age 172

P
age 130



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

82

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

The report is broadly correct in its comments regarding when the Environment Agency will object to certain 
planning applications.  It should however be noted that the Environment Agency will review each planning 
application thoroughly and provide appropriate responses accordingly.  Therefore the reasons for 
objection may go further than those listed on page 105.

The Scoping Report has been amended on page 109 
to reflect this comment.

P
age 173

P
age 131



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

83

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
International and European 

Johannesburg Declaration on 
Sustainable Development  (2002)

The World Summit on Sustainable Development in Johannesburg, South Africa, from 2 to 4 September 
2002, reaffirms our commitment to sustainable development. The representatives committed themselves to 
building a humane, equitable and caring global society, cognizant of the need for human dignity for all 
through economic development, social development and environmental protection at the local, national, 
regional and global levels.

The LTP, SA/SEA should encourage the 
sustainable use of resources, energy 
efficiency and protect and enhance 
biodiversity

The Convention on Wetlands of 
International Importance 1971 
(amended 1982)

Requires signatory states to designate important wetlands for conversation in particular waterfowl habitats. 
Designation of Ramsar Sites to be protected from development.

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to protect 
designated sites

The Convention on Biological 
Diversity, Rio de Janeiro, 1992

The main driver of the SEA Directive. Article 6A of the Convention requires each Contracting Party to 
develop national strategies, plans and programmes for the conservation and sustainable use of biological 
diversity.

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to protect 
and where possible enhance biodiversity 
and geo-diversity

United Nations Framework 
Convention on Climate Change 
(1994)

Framework convention of which the UK is a signatory. Led to the adoption of the Kyoto Protocol in 1997. Transport is a significant contributor to 
climate change. The LTP, SA/SEA and 
HIA should aim to improve air quality and 
help reduce climate change through 
encouraging sustainable modes of 
transport and reduce reliance on the car

Kyoto Protocol (1997) Implemented measures to limit and / or reduce emissions of greenhouse gases. The protocol was ratified 
in 2004.

Transport is a significant contributor to 
climate change. The LTP, SA/SEA and 
HIA should aim to improve air quality and 
help reduce climate change through 
encouraging sustainable modes of 
transport and reduce reliance on the car

EU Landfill Directive (1999) 99/31/EC The landfill directive came into force in 1999. The directive aims to reduce the pollution potential from 
landfilled waste that can impact on surface water, groundwater, soil, air, and also contribute to climate 
change. In addition it sets demanding targets to reduce the amount of biodegradable municipal waste sent 
to landfill.

The SA/SEA should include objectives for 
sustainable waste management. 
Transport infrastructure will require 
excavation of materials and where 
possible this should be reused or 
recycled.

European Climate Change 
Programme

To combat climate change by means of various cross-cutting measure in the fields of energy, industry and 
transport.

Transport is a significant contributor to 
climate change. The LTP, SA/SEA and 
HIA should aim to improve air quality and 
help reduce climate change through 
encouraging sustainable modes of 
transport and reduce reliance on the car

EU Environmental Noise Directive To define a common approach intended to avoid, prevent or reduce noise on a prioritised basis including New developments and related transport 

Appendix B. Policies, Plans, Programmes and Environmental 
Objectives relevant to the Merseyside LTP3

P
age 174

P
age 132



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

84

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
the harmful effects of exposure to environmental noise in built-up-areas, public parks or other quiet areas. can affect levels of noise. The LTP, 

SA/SEA and HIA should aim to 
encourage cycling and walking, reducing 
noise from cars.

EU Sustainable Development 
Strategy (2006)

On 9th June 2006, the European Council approved the new EU Sustainable Development Strategy (EU 
SDS). It aims to achieve continuous improvement of quality of life both for current and for future 
generations, through the creation of sustainable communities able to manage and use resources efficiently 
and to tap the ecological and social innovation potential of the economy, ensuring prosperity, 
environmental protection and social cohesion.

The LTP, SA/SEA should encourage the 
sustainable use of resources, energy 
efficiency and protect and enhance 
biodiversity

EU Air Quality Directive (2008) 
2008/50/EC

This recent directive for ambient air quality and cleaner air for Europe came into force on 11 June 2008. 
The directive is one of the key measures outlined in the 2005 Thematic Strategy on air pollution adopted by 
the Commission in September 2005. It establishes ambitious, cost-effective targets for improving human 
health and environmental quality up to 2020.

Transport can affect air quality. The LTP, 
SA/SEA should aim to encourage forms 
of transport that do not contribute to 
reducing local air quality such as cycling 
and walking,

EU Air Quality Framework Directive 
96/62/EC

The Air Quality Framework Directive sets out the basic principals that detail how air quality should be 
assessed and managed in the Member States. A list is provided of the pollutants for which objectives and 
air quality standards will be developed and specified in legislation. The UK has been divided into zones and
agglomerations within which the identified pollutants will be monitored.

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to manage 
air quality in accordance with the 
objectives and standards detailed in the 
Directive and specified in legislation.

EU Waste Framework Directive  
(2008) 2008/98/EC)

This revised Directive replaces the existing Waste Directive, the Waste Oils Directive and the Hazardous 
Waste Directive. The new Directive clarifies the meaning of ‘waste’ and other concepts such as ’recycling’ 
and ’recovery’.  It applies a new waste hierarchy (prevention, re-use, recycling, recovery and as a last 
resort, environmental disposal), expands the ‘polluter pays’ principle by emphasising producer 
responsibility, applies more stringent waste reduction and waste management targets for Member States 
and requires enhanced content in waste management plans.

The SA/SEA should include objectives for 
sustainable waste management. 
Transport infrastructure will require 
excavation of materials and where 
possible this should be reused or
recycled.

European Transport White Paper 
‘European Transport Policy for 2010: 
Time to Decide’ (September 2001) 

The White Paper identifies a number of the key transport problems in the European Union (EU), which 
include an unequal growth in different modes of transport, congestion on main road routes and the harmful 
effects on the environment and on health. The White Paper sets out proposals for some 60 measures 
aimed at developing and enhancing the European transport system. The White Paper asserts that a 
modern transport system must be sustainable from an economic and social as well as an environmental 
viewpoint.

The LTP, SA/SEA should provide 
objectives to reduce congestion and 
encourage active modes of transport.

Keep Europe Moving - Sustainable 
Mobility for our Continent - Mid term 
review of the White Paper 
(September 2006)

This mid-term review of the White Paper considers achieving high levels of mobility at the same time as 
achieving environmental protection and advocates a European sustainable mobility policy which seeks to 
achieve shifts to more environmentally friendly modes of transport, especially long distance, in urban areas 
and in congested corridors.  The review also considers that all modes must become more environmentally 
friendly, safe and energy efficient. The review also considers the role of ‘co-modality’, that is the efficient 
use of different modes on their own and in combination, the outcome being an optimal and sustainable 
utilisation of resources.

The LTP, SA/SEA should provide 
objectives to reduce congestion and 
encourage active modes of transport

Water Framework Directive 
2000/60/EC

This Directive aims to establish a framework for the protection of inland surface waters, transitional waters, 
coastal waters and groundwater.

Surface water run-off from roads and 
hard surfaced areas can cumulatively 
pollute watercourses. The LTP and 
SA/SEA should consider the effects on 
groundwater, surface water and river 
water quality

P
age 175

P
age 133



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

85

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
Habitats Directive (1992) 92/43/EEC The aim of this Directive is to contribute towards ensuring bio-diversity through the conservation of natural 

habitats and of wild fauna and flora.
The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect habitats and species

Birds Directive (1979) 79/409/EEC The Birds Directive identified 181 endangered species and sub-species for which the Member States are 
required to designate Special Protection Areas (SPAs).

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect habitats and species

European Landscape Convention 
(1991) 91/676/EC

Council of Europe initiative to focus attention on landscape. Its main principles are that good landscape is 
everybody’s right; that everyone should be involved in landscape issues; all landscapes are important; that 
landscape will change; and that landscape can be created as well as protected and managed.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect landscape character

The Ramsar Convention (1971) The Ramsar Convention on Wetlands of International Importance especially as Waterfowl Habitat was 
ratified by the UK in 1976.The Convention signed in Ramsar, Iran, is an intergovernmental treaty which 
provides the framework for national action and international co-operation for the conservation and wise use 
of wetlands and their resources.  

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect habitats and species

The Copenhagen Accord (2009) The Copenhagen Accord is the document that delegates at the United Nations Climate Change 
Conference (UNCCC) agreed to "take note of" at the final plenary session of the Conference on 18 
December 2009 (COP-15). It is a draft COP decision and, when approved, is operational immediately.
The Accord underlines that climate change is one of the greatest challenges of our time and emphasises a 
"strong political will to urgently combat climate change in accordance with the principle of common but 
differentiated responsibilities and respective capabilities"

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
reduce transports contribution to climate 
change through reduction of greenhouse 
emissions from transport

UNESCO World Heritage Convention The 1972 World Heritage Convention links together in a single document the concepts of nature 
conservation and the preservation of cultural properties. It recognizes the way in which people interact with 
nature, and the fundamental need to preserve the balance between the two.

The Convention sets out the duties of States Parties in identifying potential sites and their role in protecting 
and preserving them. By signing the Convention, each country pledges to conserve not only the World 
Heritage sites situated on its territory, but also to protect its national heritage. The States Parties are 
encouraged to integrate the protection of the cultural and natural heritage into regional planning 
programmes, set up staff and services at their sites, undertake scientific and technical conservation 
research and adopt measures which give this heritage a function in the day-to-day life of the community.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect and conserve cultural and natural 
heritage sites.

Zagreb Declaration for Healthy Cities: 
health and health equity in all local 
policies (2009)

This Declaration expresses the commitment of political leaders of cities in Europe to strengthen and 
champion action on health, health equity, sustainable development and social justice. 
Healthy Cities principles and values include:

 Equity: addressing inequality in health, and paying attention to the needs of those who are vulnerable 
and socially disadvantaged; inequity is inequality in health that is unfair and unjust and avoidable causes 
of ill health. The right to health applies to all regardless of sex, race, religious belief, sexual orientation, 
age, disability or socioeconomic circumstance.

 Participation and empowerment: ensuring the individual and collective right of people to participate in 
decision-making that affects their health, health care and well-being. Providing access to opportunities 
and skills development together with positive thinking to empower citizens to become self-sufficient.

 Working in partnership: building effective multisectoral strategic partnerships to implement integrated 
approaches and achieve sustainable improvement in health.

 Solidarity and friendship: working in the spirit of peace, friendship and solidarity through networking and 
respect and appreciation of the social and cultural diversity of the cities of the Healthy Cities movement.

 Sustainable development: the necessity of working to ensure that economic development – and all its 

Health equity should be an important 
principles for the LTP3 development

P
age 176

P
age 134



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

86

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
supportive infrastructural needs including transport systems – is environmentally and socially 
sustainable: meeting the needs of the present in ways that do not compromise the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs.

National

The UK Government Sustainable 
Development Strategy – Securing the 
Future (2005)

Guiding principles are:
 Living within environmental limits

 Ensuring a strong, healthy and just society
 Achieving a sustainable economy
 Promoting good governance
 Using sound science responsibly
The UK priorities for immediate action are:

 Sustainable consumption and production
 Climate change and energy
 Natural resource protection and environmental enhancement
 Sustainable communities
New set of high level indicators are introduced – 20 UK Framework Indicators.  As headline indicators they 
cover key impacts and outcomes that reflect the priority areas.  There are a further 48 indicators related to 
the priority areas.  The indicators are to be reported annually.

Establishes the UK Government 
sustainable development objectives 
which should be incorporated into the 
LTP, SA/SEA 

Climate change – UK Programme 
(2000)

As the key UK document on Climate Change it contains a very broad range of issues covering the UK’s 
strategy for climate change, actions to reduce emissions and adaptation to climate change. The UK’s 
legally binding target under the Kyoto Protocol to reduce its greenhouse gas emissions to 12.5% below 
1990 levels by 2008-2012 and its domestic goal of a 20% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions below 
1990 levels by 2010. 
Emissions reductions are focussed in the following sectors:

 Energy supply;
 Business; 
 Transport;
 Domestic;
 Agriculture, forestry and land use; and
 Public sector.

Transport is a significant contributor to 
climate change. The LTP, SA/SEA should 
aim to improve air quality and help 
reduce climate change through 
encouraging sustainable modes of 
transport and reduce reliance on the car

Choosing Health: Making Healthy 
Choices Easier – The Health White 
Paper – Department of Health (2004)

Choosing Health sets out a starting point for national renewal of practical and acceptable action to make a 
difference to the health of people in England.  The aim is for everyone to achieve greater health and mental 
wellbeing by making healthier choices. That means ensuring that those people in disadvantaged areas and 
groups have the opportunity to live healthier lives. 

The environment we live in, our social networks, our sense of security, socio-economic circumstances, 
facilities and resources in our local neighbourhood can affect individual health. There are unacceptable 
differences in people's experience of health between different areas and between different groups of 
people within the same area. Action by local authorities working with local communities, businesses and 
voluntary groups to tackle local health issues makes a difference to the opportunities for both adults and 
children to choose healthier lifestyles. 

The commitments include that there will be new opportunities for people who want to be more active 

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to improve 
health through use of active modes of 
transport and improvements to public 
transport to facilitate modal shift. 

P
age 177

P
age 135



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

87

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
through cycling, walking, and easier access to sports facilities.

Ports: Draft National Policy 
Statement for England & Wales 
(2009) 

The draft National Policy Statement for ports sets out the broad need for ports capacity looking ahead to 
2030 and beyond, taking account in particular of our forecasts of port freight demand and the regional and 
local economic benefits of port activity.  It also restates the Government's long-standing policy that this 
need can be best be met by an efficient and competitive ports industry operating in a free-market 
environment. It further sets out, in the context of the Government’s overall objectives for sustainable 
development, including mitigating and adapting to climate change and the achievement of good design,
how the various potential adverse impacts of port development should be addressed by applicants with a 
view to avoiding, mitigating and where necessary compensating for such impacts.  It notes how ports can 
support the development of low carbon energy sources and a low carbon economy.

The LTP should aim to encourage port 
activity where it will bring about local and 
regional economic benefits. 

The UK Government Low Carbon 
Transition Plan (2009)

The UK Low Carbon Transition Plan indicates how the UK will meet the 34 percent cut in emissions on 
1990 levels by 2020, set out in the budget. It aims to transform the country into a cleaner, greener and 
more prosperous place to live is at the heart of our economic plans for 'building Britain’s future' and 
ensuring the UK is ready to take advantage of the opportunities ahead.

The LTP should include policies that aim 
to reduce CO2 emissions and encourage 
forms of transport that do not emit CO2

Planning for a Sustainable Future 
(2007)

The Planning White Paper sets out detailed proposals for reform of the planning system, building on Kate 
Barker's recommendations for improving the speed, responsiveness and efficiency in land use planning, 
and taking forward Kate Barker's and Rod Eddington's proposals for reform of major infrastructure 
planning.
It proposes reforms on how decisions should be taken on nationally significant infrastructure projects -
including energy, waste, waste-water and transport - responding to the challenges of economic 
globalisation and climate change.
It also proposes further reforms to the Town and Country Planning system, building on the recent 
improvements to make it more efficient and more responsive.

The LTP and SA/SEA should encourage 
the sustainable use of resources, energy 
efficiency and protect and enhance 
biodiversity

Land Use & Transport: Settlement 
Patterns and Demand for Travel 
(2009)

This background technical report on 'Land Use and Transport - Settlement Patterns and the Demand for 
Travel' considers the relationship between urban structure and travel.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to link 
urban development and transport 
infrastructure

Tackling Health Inequalities: A 
programme for action 2003

This sets out plans to tackle health inequalities over the next three years. It establishes the foundations 
required to achieve the challenging national target for 2010 to reduce the gap in infant mortality across 
social groups, and raise life expectancy in the most disadvantaged areas faster than elsewhere.

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to tackle 
health inequalities in the area through 
providing good public transport access to 
healthcare facilities

Sustainable Development: 
Environmental Strategy for the 
National Health Service (July 2005)

This document supersedes ‘New environmental strategy for the NHS’.  This Strategy explains how the 
NHS can achieve significant benefits, including cost savings and improving quality, by adopting an 
approach based on the sound principles of sustainable development, focusing on environmental issues, 
economic considerations and social impacts.

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
objectives and aims of the Health Service

Energy White Paper: Our Energy 
Future – creating a low carbon 
economy (Feb 2003)

White Paper which includes the following major objectives:

 Cutting carbon dioxide emissions by 60% by 2050

 Maintain the reliability of supplies

 Ensure that every home is adequately and affordably heated.

Carbon Dioxide (CO2) is one emission 
contributing to greenhouse gases emitted 
from vehicle exhausts. The LTP and 
SA/SEA should contain objectives for 
reducing CO2 emissions

Walking and Cycling: An Action Plan 
(DFT, June 2004)

The action plan sets out measures from across government to increase levels of active travel by creating 
places to walk and cycle in and influencing travel behaviour through training, education, marketing and 
promotion.

The LTP , SA/SEA should encourage use 
of cycling and walking through 
improvements to the cycle and footpath 
networks

P
age 178

P
age 136



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

88

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
National Cycling Strategy 
(September 1996) and Modified 
(DFT, October 2004)

Guidance for developing cycling as a key mode of transport at local level for all types of Journeys. Target 
to double cycling by 2002 and again by 2012 from the 1995 base.

The LTP, SA/SEA should encourage 
cycling

Encouraging Walking: Advice to 
Local Authorities (DETR 2000)

Government proposals to make walking easier, safer and more pleasant. There are four reasons for this:

 Walking is good for people. Getting out for a walk occasionally is better for most people than sitting in an 
armchair all the time.

 Walking is good for communities. Streets are safer with people in them.

 Walking is an essential part of most public transport journeys, and of some journeys mainly by car.

 Walking accounts for more than 25% of all journeys, and for some 80% of journeys less than a mile. 
Anything that makes those journeys easier, more pleasant, and safer is benefiting a lot of people.

The document is a working guide for the people who will put policy into action. It is based on the work of an 
advisory group drawn together from a wide range of organisations with interests in the issues to help 
improve the quality of peoples lives through walking.

The LTP, SA/SEA should encouraging 
walking and improving safety and 
security.

Power of Place (2000) English Heritage was asked by Government in February 2000 to co-ordinate a wide-ranging review of all 
policies relating to the historic environment. A steering Group, chaired by English Heritage Chairman Sir 
Neil Cossons, oversaw the work of the Review. Research was commissioned from MORI to accompany 
the report. Power of Place was submitted to the Government and published in December 2000.

Power of Place is about the future of England’s historic environment, its role in people’s lives, and its 
contribution to the cultural and economic well-being of the nation. It demonstrates that with, proper 
understanding and sensitive and open management, there can be desirable change without loosing the 
places we value.

Transport and new development 
schemes affects the historic environment 
in several ways including the ambience of 
the historical structures and features. The 
LTP and SA/SEA should ensure heritage 
assets are protected.

Transport 10 Year Plan (2000) Government strategy to reduce pollution and congestion levels by improvements to existing transport 
infrastructure through integrated transport initiatives, development of new projects and public and private 
partnerships.

Targets in England of relevance to this SA included increasing bus passenger journeys by 10%, the further 
introduction of park and ride schemes, bus priority schemes, the provision of integrated transport 
information and the introduction of Home Zones in housing areas.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
ensure reliability both for road and public 
transport user groups and consider land 
use opportunities to assist in the 
integration of transport and policies that 
seek to minimise the use of the private 
car.

Government Transport White Paper: 
The Future of Transport (2004)

The Future of Transport White Paper looks at the factors that will shape travel and transport over the next 
thirty years and sets out how the Government will respond to the increasing demand for travel, maximising 
the benefits of transport while minimising the negative impact on people and the environment. The White 
Paper states that a transport network that can meet the challenges of a growing economy and the 
increasing demand for travel is required, which also achieves the Government’s environmental objectives. 
This means coherent transport networks with: 

 the road network providing a more reliable and freer-flowing service for both personal travel and freight, 
with people able to make informed choices about how and when they travel; 

 the rail network providing a fast, reliable and efficient service, particularly for interurban journeys and 
commuting into large urban areas; 

 bus services that are reliable, flexible, convenient and tailored to local needs; 
 making walking and cycling a real alternative for local trips; and 

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
promote reliable and efficient public 
transport, encourage walking and cycling 
for local trips, reliable road transport 
network and recognise the need to 
improve international and domestic links 
from ports and airports.

P
age 179

P
age 137



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

89

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
ports and airports providing improved international and domestic links. 

Delivering a Sustainable Transport 
System - Department for Transport 
(2008)

The Goals are:

 to support national economic competitiveness and growth, by delivering reliable and efficient transport 
networks; 

 to reduce transport’s emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases, with the desired outcome 
of tackling climate change; 

 to contribute to better safety, security and health and longer life expectancy by reducing the risk of death, 
injury or illness arising from transport, and by promoting travel modes that are beneficial to health; 

 to promote greater equality of opportunity for all citizens, with the desired outcome of achieving a fairer 
society; and 

 to improve quality of life for transport users and non-transport users, and to promote a healthy natural 
environment.

The LTP and SA/SEA should encourage 
the sustainable use of resources and 
energy efficiency in new and existing 
transport infrastructure. Sustainable 
methods of transport aimed at cutting 
CO2 and improving quality of life should 
be promoted. 

LTP and ROWIP Integration – Good 
Practice Note (2009)

This document was developed in collaboration with DEFRA, Department for Transport and Natural 
England.
The publication of the Department for Transport’s Local Transport Plan (LTP) 2009 guidance offers an 
opportunity to local authority transport planning and rights of way officers to optimise the part that rights of 
way can play in the wider transport system. Linking statutory rights of way improvement plans to local 
transport plans will promote a shift to active travel, a more interesting and connected transport network and 
help lever funding for implementation schemes that meet several joint objectives. This good practice note 
gives advice on how to achieve these outcomes and make efficient use of funding through joined up 
working.

The LTP, SA/SEA should encourage 
integration of the transport system with 
public rights of way.

Guidance on Local Transport Plans 
and the Natural Environment (2009)

The purpose of this guidance is to provide advice to local transport authorities on how they might achieve
prioritisation and protection of the natural environment in the development and implementation of their
Local Transport Plans (LTPs). It is also intended to provide an early and clear indication of what Natural
England will be looking for when responding to LTP consultations.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to take 
into consideration the guidance from 
Natural England.

UK Biodiversity Indicators in Your 
Pocket (2009) 

The UK Government has committed to two important international targets to protect biodiversity:

 In 2001, European Union Heads of State or Government agreed that biodiversity decline should be 
halted with the aim of reaching this objective by 2010 

 In 2002, Heads of State at the United Nations World Summit on Sustainable Development committed 
themselves to achieve, by 2010, a significant reduction of the current rate of biodiversity loss at the 
global, regional and national level, as a contribution to poverty alleviation and to the benefit of all life on 
Earth

A suite of biodiversity indicators for the UK was first published in June 2007. The latest indicators were 
published in 2009, these indicators show changes in aspects of biodiversity such as the population size of 
important species or the area of land managed for wildlife. They provide part of the evidence to assess 
whether the targets set out above have been achieved.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider the impacts and opportunities 
for biodiversity

Climate Change and Biodiversity 
Adaptation: The Role of the Spatial 
Planning System (2009)

The purpose of the report is to help identify the role the planning system could play in assisting biodiversity 
adaptation to climate change. The key points addressed in the report are as follows:
 The context for Natural England’s engagement with Climate Change, including the likely impacts on 

biodiversity and  the barriers to adaptation; and

 The opportunities for facilitating biodiversity adaptation through spatial planning and development 
control, including regional and local plans and Sustainability Appraisal

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider climate change and biodiversity 
adaptation

P
age 180

P
age 138



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

90

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
The guidance uses the 12 interdependent guiding principles for effective biodiversity adaptation developed 
by Defra and the UK Biodiversity Partnership (2007) as a basis for identifying opportunities within the 
planning system.

Biodiversity by Design (2004) The purpose of the guide is to provide guidance on how to maximise the opportunities for biodiversity in the 
planning and design of sustainable communities. The guide includes best practise tools and techniques 
which can be tailored according to the scale of the development opportunity. The guide includes, for 
example:

 Core design principles  that form the basis of “biodiversity by design”;
 Tools and techniques for analyzing a site and context;
 How to master plan the green infrastructure for a sustainable community; and
 Long term management and stewardship of green infrastructure.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider biodiversity and where possible, 
maximise the opportunities for 
biodiversity enhancement.

Open Space Strategies – Best 
Practise Guidance (2009)

This document offers clear, practical guidance to local authorities and their stakeholders on how to prepare 
an open space strategy. Furthermore, the document gives guidance on delivering, monitoring and 
reviewing an open space strategy.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
opportunities to maximise open space.

NE176 – Natural England’s Green 
Infrastructure Guidance (2009)

This guidance provides a comprehensive overview of the concept of “green infrastructure” and signposts to 
other relevant information such as Natural England’s green infrastructure definition, policy statement and 
track record in driving delivery. It also maps out wider policy priorities and drivers for green infrastructure.
The guidance will help to:
 Facilitate a co-ordinated and consistent approach to green infrastructure strategies;
 Support colleagues and guide external partners in the effective delivery of sustainable green 

infrastructure;
 Promote the contribution of green infrastructure to ‘place-making’, in addition to other government 

agendas and links to spatial planning;

 Inspire through best practice examples and case studies of green infrastructure planning and delivery; 
and

 Demonstrate that green infrastructure adds hugely to the value of plans and projects.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider an appropriate level of green 
infrastructure

By All Responsible Means: Inclusive 
Access to the Outdoors for Disabled 
People – 2003 (the Countryside 
Agency)

The guide is designed to help countryside and urban green space managers and landowners improve 
accessibility of their sites, routes and facilities. Primarily, the guide focuses on work with and for disabled 
people, however improvements will benefit all visitors.

The LTP and SA/SEA should ensure that 
accessibility for disabled people is fully 
considered.

The Countryside In and Around 
Towns - a vision for Connecting 
Town and Country in Pursuit of 
Sustainable Development (2005)

This document presents a new vision for the countryside in and around England’s towns and cities. The 
vision, based on the idea of Sustainable Development, highlights the need for society to live within its 
means, to use resources efficiently and effectively and responsibly, and to ensure that urban areas evolve 
in harmony with the environment that surrounds them.
The vision is the result of widespread consultation with organisations and individuals across England. 
The vision presents ten key functions for the countryside in and around towns

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
how to maximise opportunities for 
sustainable development. 

Transport in Tomorrows Countryside 
2003 (The Countryside Agency)

This document sets out the Countryside Agency's vision of how transport should serve rural communities 
and those visiting rural areas. The document sets out our ten principles for tackling issues relating to 
transport in rural areas. These include:

 Transport policy should seek to make services and facilities more accessible and easier to reach, rather 
than simply increasing the amount and speed of travel.

 Services and transport should be linked together in a way that enhances quality of life and the economy 

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
provide an affordable, reliable and safe 
transport infrastructure in the countryside.

P
age 181

P
age 139



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

91

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
in rural areas.

 Roads, railways and associated construction should fit in with the character of the countryside and 
improve the quality of life for all.

 4Using public transport should not cost more than travelling by car, and government funding should 
favour non-car transport, supported by longer term funding to enable new transport provision to work 
over time.

 Alternatives to car and lorry travel should be found, in order to reduce the rate of traffic growth in the 
countryside.

 As rail is less damaging to the environment than road and air travel, its use should be encouraged for 
long distance travel.

 People should feel safe and secure when travelling in rural areas.

 More decisions affecting travel should be made locally.

 Good connections between different forms of transport should be available, so that people can use a 
combination of services with ease.

 Walkers, public transport users, cyclists and horse riders should be able to move around safely and 
freely, and be able to access services and the countryside easily.

Towards a Sustainable Transport 
System (2008)

The document has three aims:

 Firstly, to describes the Governments response to the recommendations in the Eddington study 
regarding improvements in transports contribution to economic growth and productivity, and describe 
how transport will play a big part in delivering reductions in carbon emissions recommended in the Stern 
Review;

 Secondly, to set out the Department for Transports policy and investment plans (2013-14); and

 Finally, to propose a new approach to longer term transport strategy & explains how key stakeholders 
will be involved as the process I developed and implemented.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
the aims and objectives documented in 
“Towards a Sustainable Transport 
System”.

Active Travel Strategy (2010) The Active Travel Strategy is the Governments strategy for getting more people walking and cycling more 
often. Thus, the report highlights the desire to place walking and cycling at the heart of local transport and 
health strategies and plans. 

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
promote active travelling modes such as 
walking and cycling.

Planning for Sustainable Travel 
(2009)

The plan-4-sustainable-travel website and related work (Summary Guide) gives expert advice on planning 
for a more effective location and form of development which can help achieve sustainable travel. Primarily, 
the guide helps practitioners more effectively use spatial planning tools in enabling greater sustainability in 
travel.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider sustainability and opportunities 
for sustainable travel.

Delivering Low Carbon Travel: An 
Essential Guide for Local Authorities 
(2009)

Sustainable low carbon travel is part of the solution to reduce carbon emissions. However, if planned 
correctly sustainable low carbon travel can provide more than simply a reduction in CO2 reductions, it can 
deliver tangible local benefits around health, air quality, access to education, housing, planning and social 
inclusion. Thus, this document provides examples of sustainable travel initiatives which have the potential 
to add real value to the next round of Local Transport Plans. The initiatives include:
 Active Travel Choices: Walking and Cycling
 Promoting Public Transport

 Sustainable Vehicle Use: Low Carbon Vehicle Use

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider sustainable low carbon travel 
options.

Strategic Environmental Assessment, This document provides information regarding consultation with English Heritage at the various stages of The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 

P
age 182

P
age 140



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

92

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
Sustainability Appraisal and the 
Historic Environment

an SA/SEA (screening, scoping, reporting and decision to act). Furthermore, the document provides 
information and advice on the following:

 Local historic environment issues and priorities;
 How a policy or proposal can be tailored to avoid / minimise potential adverse impacts on the historic 

environment

 The nature and design of any required mitigation measures; and
 Opportunities for securing wider benefits for the future conservation and management of historic assets

consider the impacts and opportunities in 
relation to the historic environment.  This 
is because the historic environment can 
be affected by transport in a number of 
ways, including inappropriate street 
furniture, road signs and paving, vibration 
from traffic and visual intrusion.

Biodiversity: The UK Action Plan 
(1994)

This document represents the first United Kingdom biodiversity action plan. It was produced to 
demonstrate UK commitment to the Convention on Biodiversity at Rio de Janeiro. The first section 
describes the UK’s biological resource and its importance in relation to Europe and the rest of the world. 
The second section describes the UK’s strategy and programmes, and examines threats, problems, and 
opportunities. The final section draws the components of the action plan together, and provides a forward 
work programme.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
biodiversity in terms of whole ecosystems 
rather than ‘islands’ of protected sites. It 
should aim to protect and enhance 
biodiversity and geo-diversity. 

UK Government Rural Strategy 
(2004)

The Rural Strategy 2004 builds on the findings of the Review of Rural White Paper (published in January 
2004) and in particular that: 

 three years of experience in delivery have demonstrated the need for new methodologies to be put in 
place to quantify targets and for new approaches to shared responsibility for meeting them, with clear 
accountabilities; and

 the main challenges include: clarifying objectives, achieving greater prioritisation and targeting need; 
improving governance and delivery arrangements; and continuing to develop a solid evidence base 
and evaluation framework.

The Strategy sets out the Government’s policy response in the light of the trends previously identified and 
provides the policy framework, tools and evidence base to help Government Departments, regional and local
partners work collaboratively.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
support and deliver the Government’s 
policies set out in the Strategy with 
regards to social and economic 
regeneration, social justice for all and 
enhancement of the value of our 
countryside.

Air Quality Strategy for England, 
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland 
(2007)

The aim of the Strategy is to set out air quality objectives and policy options to further improve air quality in 
the UK from now and into the long term. As well as providing direct benefits to public health, these options 
are intended to provide important benefits to quality of life and help to protect the environment.  sets out a 
way forward for work and planning on air quality issues, details objectives to be achieved, and proposes 
measures to be considered further to help reach them.

Transport can affect air quality. The LTP, 
SA/SEA should aim to encourage forms 
of transport that do not contribute to local 
air pollution such as cycling and walking

Making the Connections (2003) The report examines the links between social exclusion, transport and the location of services. It is 
particularly focused on access to those opportunities that have the most impact on life-chances, such as 
work, learning and healthcare. The report also sets out a range of policies across Government designed to 
address barriers to accessibility and the unequal impacts of traffic.

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to increase
accessibility.

Sustainable Communities Plan -
Sustainable Communities: Building 
for the future (2003)

The Plan is a programme of action to tackle issues in UK communities. The Plan identifies some of the key 
requirements of sustainable communities, these include:

 a flourishing local economy to provide jobs and wealth;
 strong leadership to respond positively to change;
 effective engagement and participation by local people, groups and businesses, especially in the 

planning, design and long term stewardship of their community, and an active voluntary and community 
sector;

 a safe and healthy local environment with well-designed public and green space;

The LTP and SA/SEA should encourage 
sustainable, vibrant and safe 
communities

P
age 183

P
age 141



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

93

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 

 sufficient size, scale and density, and the right layout to support basic amenities in the neighbourhood 
and minimise use of resources (including land); 

 good public transport and other transport infrastructure both within the community and linking it to urban, 
rural and regional centres; 

 buildings – both individually and collectively – that can meet different needs over time, and that minimise 
the use of resources;

 a well-integrated mix of decent homes of different types and tenures to support a range of household 
sizes, ages and incomes;

 good quality local public services, including education and training opportunities, health care and 
community facilities, especially for leisure;

 a diverse, vibrant and creative local culture, encouraging pride in the community and cohesion within it; 
 a ”sense of place“; and
 the right links with the wider regional, national and international community.

Urban White Paper: Our Towns & 
Cities: The Future (2000)

The vision is of towns, cities and suburbs which offer a high quality of life and opportunity for all. The 
Government wants to see:

 people shaping the future of their community, supported by strong and truly representative local leaders;
 people living in attractive, well-kept towns and cities which use space and buildings well;
 good design and planning which makes it practical to live in a more environmentally sustainable way, 

with less noise, pollution and traffic congestion;

 towns and cities able to create and share prosperity investing to help all their citizens reach their full 
potential; and

 good quality services – health, education, housing, transport, finance, shopping, leisure and protection 
from crime – that meet the needs of people and businesses wherever they are.

The LTP and SA/SEA should include 
objectives that provide an affordable, 
reliable and safe transport infrastructure 
in towns and cities. 

Rural White Paper: Our Countryside: 
The Future (2000)

The aim is to sustain and enhance the distinctive environment, economy and social fabric of the English 
countryside for the benefit of all. The vision is of:

 a living countryside, with thriving rural communities and access to high quality public services;
 a working countryside, with a diverse economy giving high and stable levels of employment;
 a protected countryside in which the environment is sustained and enhanced, and which all can enjoy;
 a vibrant countryside which can shape its own future and with its voice heard by Government at all 

levels.
The White Paper includes five objectives as follows:

 Objective 1 - To facilitate the development of dynamic, competitive and sustainable economies in the 
countryside, tackling poverty in rural areas;

 Objective 2 - To maintain and stimulate communities, and secure access to services which is equitable in 
all the circumstances, for those who live or work in the countryside;

 Objective 3 - To conserve and enhance rural landscapes and the diversity and abundance of wildlife 
(including the habitats on which it depends);

 Objective 4 - To increase opportunities for people to get enjoyment from the countryside. To open up 
public access to mountain, moor, heath and down and registered common land by the end of 2005; and

 Objective 5 - To promote government responsiveness to rural communities through better working 
together between central departments, local government, and government agencies and better co-
operation with non-government bodies.

The LTP and SA/SEA should include 
objectives that provide an affordable, 
reliable and safe transport infrastructure 
in the countryside. 

P
age 184

P
age 142



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

94

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
Landscape Indicators for Strategic 
Environmental Assessment of LTPs –
issues to consider (2005) 
(Countryside Agency)

This document discusses the development and application of landscape indicators in SEAs of Local 
Transport Plans (LTPs). It summarises the underlying requirements and considers baseline information 
that is likely to be available to most local authorities. The practical difficulties of quantifying the nature and
magnitude of landscape changes are acknowledged and the most promising areas of investigation are 
highlighted. The document stresses that for most authorities it will be necessary to develop individual and 
locally relevant indicators in the absence of national standards.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to take 
into consideration the impacts and 
opportunities in terms of landscape.

Treatment of Landscape, 
Biodiversity, Access & Recreation in 
Sixteen Provisional Local Transport 
Plans (2005) (Countryside Agency)

This report presents the findings of an evaluation of LTPs in their provisional form and an assessment on 
how landscape, biodiversity, access and recreation issues have been treated. The evaluation enabled the 
Countryside Agency and Natural England to highlight to the Department for Transport (DfT) good practice, 
identify weaknesses in the provisional LTPs and influence the way these issues are dealt with in the final 
LTPs.  This report was commissioned by the Countryside Agency’s Landscape, Access and Recreation 
division and Natural England (was English Nature).

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider landscape, biodiversity, access 
and recreation

Heritage White Paper: Heritage 
Protection for the 21st Century 
(Consultation) (2007)

The three core principles of the White Paper are:

 developing a unified approach to the historic environment;
 maximising opportunities for inclusion and involvement; and
 supporting sustainable communities by putting the historic environment at the heart of an effective 

planning system.

The historic environment can be affected 
by transport in a number of ways, 
including inappropriate street furniture, 
road signs and paving, vibration from 
traffic and visual intrusion. The LTP and 
SA/SEA should aim to conserve the 
historic environment in relation to 
transport impacts.

The Historic Environment: A force for 
our future (2001)

This document details the programme of action in support of the Government’s vision for managing the 
historic environment. It is a programme which the Government itself will lead, but its implementation will 
depend on the partnership and support of others, both individuals and organisations. It will involve making 
good use of all the available tools: legislation; funding; policy guidance; restructuring; and partnership 
working.

The LTP and SA/SEA should include aim 
to protect and where possible enhance
built heritage and cultural assets.

Waste Strategy for England (2007) This latest Waste Strategy builds on the Waste Strategy 2000. The Government’s key objectives are to:

 decouple waste growth (in all sectors) from economic growth and put more emphasis on waste 
prevention and re-use;

 meet and exceed the Landfill Directive diversion targets for biodegradable municipal waste in 2010, 2013 
and 2020;

 increase diversion from landfill of non-municipal waste and secure better integration of treatment for 
municipal and non-municipal waste;

 secure the investment in infrastructure needed to divert waste from landfill and for the management of 
hazardous waste; and

 get the most environmental benefit from that investment, through increased recycling

The SA/SEA should include objectives for 
sustainable waste management. 
Transport infrastructure will require 
excavation of materials and where 
possible this should be reused or 
recycled.

Low Carbon Transport: A Greener 
Future (DfT, 2009)

This strategy sets out how the Government intend to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from transport. It 
also shows how transport will make a major contribution to UK efforts to reduce CO2 emissions by 2022 
and 2050 in line with the Climate Change Act 2008.
The strategy recognises that decarbonising transport is an essential part of building a low carbon future for 
Britain.
The strategy is based on the following themes:

 supporting a shift to new technologies and fuels;

The LTP and SA/SEA should encourage 
the use of low carbon transport and 
ensure the infrastructure is in place to 
achieve this.

P
age 185

P
age 143



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

95

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 

 promoting lower carbon transport choices;

 using market-based measures to encourage a shift to lower carbon transport.

Minerals Planning Statement 1 
(2006)

MPS1 is the overarching planning policy document for all minerals in England. MPS1 includes a number of 
objectives, of particular relevance is the following “…to promote the sustainable transport of minerals by 
rail, sea or inland waterways.”
The objectives for bulk transportation are to:

 seek to promote and enable the bulk movement of minerals by rail, sea or inland waterways to reduce 
the environmental impact of their transportation;

 promote facilities at ports and rail links that have good communications inland, so that bulk minerals can 
be landed by sea and distributed from ports, as far as is practicable, by rail or water;

 safeguard and promote rail links to quarries where there is potential to move minerals by rail.

The LTP and SA/SEA should encourage 
sustainable movement of minerals and 
encourage the use of rail, sea and inland 
waterways. 

Draft Planning Policy Statement: 
Planning for a Natural and Healthy 
Environment (March 2010)

This consultation seeks views on the proposed Planning Policy Statement: Planning for a Natural and 
Healthy Environment, which sets out streamlined and consolidated planning policy relating to:

 biodiversity and geological conservation (currently set out in Planning Policy Statement 9: Biodiversity 
and Geological Conservation (PPS9)) 

 landscape protection, soil and agricultural land quality, and forestry (currently set out in paragraphs 21-
23, 28-29 and 33 of Planning Policy Statement 7: Sustainable Development in Rural Areas (PPS7)) 

 coastal access, heritage coast and the undeveloped coast (currently set out in paragraphs 2.9, 2.10 and 
3.9 of Planning Policy Guidance 20: Coastal Planning (PPG20)) 

 open space, sport, recreation and play (currently set out in Planning Policy Guidance 17: Planning for 
Open Space, Sport and Recreation (PPG17)) 

The LTP and SA/SEA should seek to 
following principles set out in the PPS

Planning Policy Statement 1 (PPS1): 
Delivering Sustainable Development 
(2005)

PPS1 outlines the general principles under which the planning system operates following the introduction 
of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  It sets out an overview and general statement on the 
objectives of the planning system. PPS1 requires planning to facilitate and promote sustainable and 
inclusive patterns of urban and rural development by:

 making suitable land available for development in line with economic, social and environmental 
objectives to improve people’s quality of life;

 contributing to sustainable economic development;
 protecting and enhancing the natural and historic environment, the quality and character of the 

countryside, and existing communities;
 ensuring high quality development through good and inclusive design, and the efficient use of resources; 

and

 ensuring that development supports existing communities and contributes to the creation of safe, 
sustainable, liveable and mixed communities with good access to jobs and key services for all members 
of the community.

PPS1 sets out the Government's overarching planning policies on the delivery of sustainable development 
through the planning system. In preparing development plans, planning authorities should seek to provide 
improved access for all to jobs, health, education, shops, leisure and community facilities, open space, 
sport and recreation, by ensuring that new development is located where everyone can access services or 
facilities on foot, bicycle or public transport rather than having to rely on access by car; and reduce the 
need to travel and encourage accessible public transport provision to secure more sustainable patterns of 

The LTP and SA/SEA should seek to 
achieve economic, social and 
environmental sustainability, as well as 
inclusive access for all and high quality 
design

P
age 186

P
age 144



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

96

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
transport development. 
Development plans should also reduce the need to travel and encourage accessible public transport 
provision to secure more sustainable patterns of transport development. Planning should actively manage 
patterns of urban growth to make the fullest use of public transport and focus development in existing 
centres and near to major public transport interchanges.

Planning Policy Statement: Planning 
and Climate Change – Supplement to 
Planning Policy Statement 1 (2007)

The key objectives of all spatial plans must be to deliver the Government’s Climate Change Programme 
and energy policies, and in doing so contribute to global sustainability. Also to deliver patterns of urban 
growth that help secure the fullest possible use of sustainable transport for moving freight, public transport, 
cycling and walking; and, overall, reduce the need to travel, especially by car; and securing new 
development and shaping places that minimise vulnerability, and provide resilience to climate change and 
in ways that are consistent with social cohesion and inclusion.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 
climate change mitigation (reducing 
greenhouse gases) and climate change 
adaptation

Planning Policy Guidance Note 2 
(PPG2): Green Belts (1995)

The fundamental aim of Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; 
the most important attribute of Green Belts is their openness. PPG2 states that there are five purposes of 
including land in Green Belts, as follows:

 to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;
 to prevent neighbouring towns from merging into one another;
 to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
 to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
 to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban land.
Paragraph 1.6 of PPG2 advises that once Green Belts have been defined, the use of land in them has a 
positive role to play in fulfilling the following objectives:

 to provide opportunities for access to the open countryside for the urban population;
 to provide opportunities for outdoor sport and outdoor recreation near urban areas;
 to retain attractive landscapes, and enhance landscapes, near to where people live;
 to improve damaged and derelict land around towns;
 to secure nature conservation interest; and
 to retain land in agricultural, forestry and related uses.

PPG2 states that when any large-scale development or redevelopment of land occurs in the Green Belt 
(including road and other infrastructure developments or improvements), it should, so far as possible 
contribute to the achievement of the objectives for the use of land in Green Belts.

PPG2 also acknowledges that the countryside immediately around urban areas will often be the preferred 
location for Park & Ride schemes. Government’s commitment to maintaining the openness of the Green 
Belt means that when seeking to locate P&R development, non-Green Belt alternatives should be 
investigated first. However, there may be cases where a Green Belt location is the most sustainable of the 
available options. PPG2 sets out a number of circumstances when P&R development is not inappropriate 
in Green Belts.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect the character if the landscape 
including protection of Green Belts

Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3): 
Housing (2006)

In support of its objective of creating mixed and sustainable communities, the Government’s policy is to 
ensure that housing is developed in suitable locations which offer a range of community facilities and with 
good access to jobs, key services and infrastructure.
At the regional level, PPS3 states that the Regional Spatial Strategy should identify broad strategic 
locations for new housing developments so that the need and demand for housing can be addressed in a 

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
transport infrastructure in relation to new 
housing developments to ensure 
accessibility

P
age 187

P
age 145



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

97

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
way that reflects sustainable development principles. Regional Planning Bodies should, working with 
stakeholders, set out the criteria to be used for selecting suitable broad locations for new housing, taking 
into account:

 Evidence of current and future levels of need and demand for housing, at the local, sub-regional, 
regional and national level, as well as the availability of suitable land; 

 The contribution to be made to cutting carbon emissions from focusing new development in locations 
with good public transport accessibility and/or by means other than the private car and where it can 
readily and viably draw its energy supply from decentralised energy supply systems based on renewable 
and low-carbon forms of energy supply, or where there is clear potential for this to be realised.

Planning Policy Statement 4 (PPS4): 
Planning for Sustainable Economic 
Growth (2009)

PPS4 sets out sets out planning policies for economic development. Policy EC2 of PPS4 relates to 
planning for sustainable growth and states that regional planning bodies and local planning authorities 
should ensure that their development plan plans for the delivery of the sustainable transport and other 
infrastructure needed to support their planned economic development and, where necessary, provides 
advice on phasing and programming of development.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
economic growth and transport 
infrastructure to achieve this

Planning Policy Statement 5 (PPS5): 
Planning for the Historic Environment 
(March 2010)

Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment (PPS5) sets out the Government's 
planning policies on the conservation of the historic environment.

This replaces Planning Policy Guidance 15: Planning and the Historic Environment (PPG15) published on 
14 September 1994; and Planning Policy Guidance 16: Archaeology and Planning (PPG16) published on 
21 November 1990.

The LTP and SA/SEA should protect the 
historic character of the area and heritage 
and archaeological assets

Planning Policy Statement 7 (PPS7): 
Sustainable Development in Rural 
Areas (2004)

PPS7 applies to rural areas, including country towns and villages and the wider, largely undeveloped 
countryside up to the fringes of larger urban areas. The Government has a number of objectives for rural 
areas as follows:

 to raise the quality of life and the environment in rural areas; 
 to promote more sustainable patterns of development;
 promoting the development of the English regions by improving their economic performance so that all 

are able to reach their full potential; and 

 to promote sustainable, diverse and adaptable agriculture sectors.

PPS7 requires that decisions on development proposals are based on sustainable development principles, 
ensuring an integrated approach to the consideration of social inclusion, recognising the needs of 
everyone; effective protection and enhancement of the environment; prudent use of natural resources; and 
maintaining high and stable levels of economic growth and employment.

The LTP and SA/SEA should protect the 
character of the landscape in rural areas 
and increase public transport accessibility 
to rural communities

Planning Policy Statement 9 (PPS9): 
Biodiversity and Geological 
Conservation (2005) including 
Planning for Biodiversity and 
Geological Conservation: A Guide to 
Good Practice (2006) and Circular 
06/05: Biodiversity and Geological 
Conservation - Statutory Obligations 
and Their Impact Within the Planning 
System (2005)

PPS9 confirms the importance that the planning system has in meeting the Government’s international 
commitments and domestic policies for habitats, species and ecosystems. The aim of planning decisions 
should be to prevent harm to biodiversity and geological conservation interests and ensuring that 
developments take account of the role and value of biodiversity in supporting economic diversification and 
contributing to a high quality environment. Where granting planning permission would result in significant 
harm to those interests, local planning authorities will need to be satisfied that the development cannot 
reasonably be located on any alternative sites that would result in less or no harm. In the absence of any 
such alternatives, local planning authorities should ensure that, before planning permission is granted, 
adequate mitigation measures are put in place and where adequate mitigation is not possible, appropriate 
compensation measures should be sought.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect and enhance biodiversity and 
geo-diversity

P
age 188

P
age 146



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

98

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
Circular 06/05 provides administrative guidance on the application of the law relating to planning and 
nature conservation as it applies in England.
The Guide to Good Practise complements PPS9 and Circular 06/05 and provides good practice guidance 
on ways regional planning bodies and local planning authorities can help deliver the national policies in 
PPS9 and comply with legal requirements set out in Circular 06/05.

PPS10: Planning for Sustainable
Waste Management

The overall objective of Government policy on waste, as set out in the strategy for sustainable 
development, is to protect human health and the environment by producing less waste and by using it as a 
resource wherever possible. Through more sustainable waste
management, moving the management of waste up the ‘waste hierarchy’ of reduction, reuse, recycling and 
composting, using waste as a source of energy, and only disposing as a last resort the Government aims 
to break the link between economic growth and the environmental impact of waste.

The SA/SEA should include objectives for 
sustainable waste management. 
Transport infrastructure will require 
excavation of materials and where 
possible this should be reused or 
recycled.

PPS12: Local Development 
Frameworks

The UK Government has four aims for sustainable development in its strategy ‘A better quality of life: a 
strategy for sustainable development in the UK’ (as set out in PPS12):

 Social progress which recognizes the needs of everyone;
 Effective protection of the environment;
 The prudent use of natural resources;
 Maintenance of high and stable levels of economic growth and employment.

The PPS goes on to examine the aims of the new planning system, including:

 The system should be flexible to enable plans to respond quickly to change

 The process should be front loaded to enable decisions to be made early in the process
 Plan preparation should follow the above sustainable development principles and SA should be 

undertaken
Plans should be based upon a robust evidence base. No precise targets or indicators established

The LTP should take into consideration 
guidance in PPS12

Planning Policy Guidance 13 
(PPG13): Transport (2001)

The objectives of PPG13 are to integrate planning and transport at the national, regional, strategic and 
local level to promote more sustainable transport choices for both people and for moving freight; to 
promote accessibility to jobs, shopping, leisure facilities and services by public transport, walking and 
cycling; and to reduce the need to travel, especially by car. PPG 13 states that in appropriate 
circumstances, park and ride schemes can help promote more sustainable travel patterns, both at local 
and strategic levels, and improve the accessibility and attractiveness of town centres. The guidance 
suggests that well designed and well conceived schemes should be given favourable treatment through the 
planning system. PPG13 advises that such proposals need to be developed as an integral part of the 
planning and transport strategy for the area. Where developments will have significant transport 
implications, Transport Assessments should be prepared and submitted alongside the relevant planning 
applications for development.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
ensure the transport network is 
accessible for all, safe, reliable and 
efficient, and help reduce transport 
emissions

Planning Policy Guidance 17 
(PPG17): Planning for Open Space, 
Sport and Recreation (2002)

PPG17 considers the importance of open spaces, sport and recreation in underpinning people's quality of 
life. Well designed and implemented planning policies for open space, sport and recreation are therefore 
fundamental to delivering broader Government objectives which include supporting an urban renaissance, 
supporting a rural renewal, promotion of social inclusion and community cohesion, health and well being, 
and promoting more sustainable development. It also states that local authorities should:

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to protect 
areas of open space and make them 
more accessible

P
age 189

P
age 147



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

99

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 

 avoid any erosion of recreational function and maintain or enhance the character of open spaces;

 ensure that open spaces do not suffer from increased overlooking, traffic flows or other encroachment;

 protect and enhance those parts of the rights of way network that might benefit open space; and

 consider the impact of any development on biodiversity and nature conservation.

PPG17 seeks to protect the recreational quality of open spaces and ensure that this is not eroded by 
insensitive development or incremental loss of the site. PPG17 asserts that local authorities should avoid 
any erosion of recreational function and maintain or enhance the character of open spaces; ensure that 
open spaces do not suffer from increased overlooking, traffic flows or other encroachment; protect and 
enhance those parts of the rights of way network that might benefit open space; and consider the impact of 
any development on biodiversity and nature conservation.

Planning Policy Guidance 20 
(PPG20): Coastal Planning (1992)

This guidance sets out the planning policy for the coastal areas of England and Wales. It sets the general 
context for policy and identifies planning policies for the coast and policies for development that require a 
coastal location.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
effects of development and transport 
projects in coastal locations

PPS22: Renewable Energy PPS 22 states that planning authorities should encourage the use of renewable energy sources in new 
development through the development of appropriate policy mechanisms which set targets and explore 
technology options. No precise targets or indicators established.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
encourage energy efficiency and the use 
of renewable energy sources in transport 
developments

Planning Policy Statement 23 
(PPS23): Planning and Pollution 
Control (2004)

PPS23 outlines the importance of planning in determining the location of any given development and the 
subsequent pollutant sources which may be present or generated and that may pose a risk to human 
health or the environment. PPS 23 advises that any consideration of the quality of land, air or water and 
potential impacts arising from development, possibly leading to impacts on health, is capable of being a 
material planning consideration, in so far as it arises or may arise from or may affect any land use.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 
pollution control in terms of land air and 
water pollution which could lead to 
human health effects. Where transport 
infrastructure is to be developed on 
contaminated land remediation should be 
implemented. 

Planning Policy Guidance Note 24 
(PPG24): Planning and Noise (1994)

PPG24 outlines the considerations to be taken into account in determining planning applications both for 
noise-sensitive developments and for those activities which generate noise. It explains the concept of noise 
exposure categories for residential development and recommends appropriate levels for exposure to 
different sources of noise. PPG24 considers that much of the development which is necessary for the 
creation of jobs and the construction and improvement of essential infrastructure will generate noise. 

Transport is one of the main sources of 
noise pollution. The LTP, SA/SEA and 
HIA should consider the effects of 
transport related noise and communities 
and aim to reduce this

Planning Policy Statement 25 
(PPS25):Development and Flood 
Risk (2006)

PPS25 states that the aims of planning policy on development and flood risk are to ensure that flood risk is 
taken into account at all stages in the planning process to avoid inappropriate development in areas at risk 
of flooding and to direct development away from areas at highest risk. Where new development is, 
exceptionally, necessary in such areas, this policy aims to make it safe without increasing flood risk 
elsewhere and where possible, reducing flood risk overall. PPS25 sets out a number of responsibilities for 
developers, which include demonstrating consistency with PPS25 and local development plan policies and 
providing a flood risk assessment to demonstrate whether development is likely to be affected by current or 
future flooding from any source; satisfying the local planning authority that the development is safe; 
demonstrating whether it will increase flooding elsewhere; and the measures proposed to deal with such 
effects and risks.

The LTP and SA/SEA should flood  risk

Regional 

P
age 190

P
age 148



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

100

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
Moving forward – The Northern Way 
(2004)

The Action Plan – Progress Report sets out the key milestones and activities for all the proposals outlined 
in Moving Forward: the Northern Way.

The Plan sets out ten investment priorities, of which Number eight is about transport:
‘invest in creating better integrated public transport services within and between our city regions; these are 
key to efficient labour markets and to enable those living in deprived communities to access jobs 
elsewhere. Bus services will be the dominant mode of travel but it will be essential to extend and upgrade 
light rail systems.’

The plan also sets out four strategic themes for Merseyside:

 a premier destination city region;
 a connected city region;
 a creative and competitive city region;
 a city region of sustainable communities.

The Northern Way encourages 
investment in better integrated public 
transport services enabling deprived 
communities to access jobs and services. 
The LTP and SA/SEA should help 
promote this aim.

Regional Sustainable Development 
Framework – Action for Sustainability

Action for Sustainability is the North West Sustainable Development Framework.  It sets out priorities and 
long-term goals for sustainable development for the Region. The goal for transport states:
‘Sustainable transport and access, reducing the need to travel and allowing access for all to places, goods 
and services’

The LTP and SA/SEA to include 
objectives on sustainable transport and 
accessibility. 

North West Sustainable Development 
Integrated Appraisal Toolkit (June 
2009)

The Integrated Appraisal Toolkit was developed by the North West Assembly based on AfS to provide 
organisations with a consistent approach to sustainability appraisal.

The SA/SEA should consider the 
questions outlined in the toolkit

North West of England Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy to 2021 
(September 2008)

The Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) for North West England provides a framework for development and 
investment in the region over the next fifteen to twenty years. It establishes a broad vision for the region 
and its sub-regions, priorities for growth and regeneration, and policies to achieve sustainable development 
across a wide range of topics – from jobs, housing and transport to climate change, waste and energy.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 
economic development, social 
development and environmental 
protection

RS2010:  Regional Strategy for 
England’s Northwest (2009)

The Northwest Regional Economic Strategy, the Regional Spatial Strategy and the Regional Housing 
Strategy will be combined in the new single Regional Strategy, known as RS2010. The NWDA has joint 
responsibility with 4NW in preparing the single Regional Strategy for the Northwest.
The aim is to develop a strategy that will bring together environmental, social and economic priorities and 
reflect the Northwest’s long-term commitment to sustainable growth. RS2010 will enable the region to carry 
out a more in-depth review of future priorities during 2009.
The Principles and Issues paper outlines some of the major underlaying considerations for the Regional 
Strategy. It also suggests major issues to be considered in developing the strategy, drawing on an
independent assessment of the issues and challenges facing the region from the evidence base to date 
and national/regional policy context.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 
economic development, social 
development and environmental 
protection

Wild about the North West: A 
Biodiversity Audit of North West 
England (1999)

The Audit identifies priority habitats and species of conservation importance at a regional level, it also 
informs the production of Local Biodiversity Action Plans, and provides a basis for targeting the allocation 
of resources as well as strategic regional planning and economic initiatives.
The audit identifies priority and important areas in Merseyside such as the sand dune coast and estuaries 
which are internationally important for their habitats and species, some of the industrial "wasteland", of 
which there is plenty, also supports very interesting and uncommon plant and animal communities. Other 
natural habitats of importance include the saltmarshes, mosslands, heathlands and wooded cloughs, with 
farming having created woods, pasture, hay meadows and ponds. 

LTP and SA/SEA to include objective for 
protecting biodiversity and geo-diversity 
from transport development

P
age 191

P
age 149



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

101

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
North West Cultural Strategy (2002) The Strategy sets out the overall context for the region including its cultural strengths and assets and what 

the NWCC believes can and should be done together with its partners to develop and improve the cultural 
opportunities and add significantly to the well-being of the north west. 
One of the aims of the strategy is that: Culture and creativity are central to economic prosperity and growth 
and we aim to: 

 Develop a sustainable cultural economy and build on the existing clusters of businesses in all parts of 
the region;

 Ensure that more of the region’s citizens gain and sustain employment in the cultural industries through 
promotion and export, and the exchange of ideas, skills and products;

 Promote the benefits of culture and creative innovation to businesses and visitors including the attraction 
of inward investment.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
increase accessibility to cultural assets 
through sustainable transport modes

Investment for Health – A plan for 
North West England (2003)

The potential to improve health is important in the North West, given its relatively poor health and projected 
demographic changes. Policies are required which improve the health of older people, those of working 
age, children and young people.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider the 
health of the population and encourage 
active lifestyles, reduced road traffic 
accidents and access to healthcare 
facilities

North West Regional Development 
Agency – Regional Funding Advice 
(2009)

This RFA advice sets out the region’s priorities for addressing the challenges under each of the funding 
areas as requested by the Government.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
these emerging regional priorities.

North West Economic Strategy 
(2006)

The vision for the regions set out in the RES is ‘A dynamic, sustainable international economy which 
competes on the basis of knowledge, advanced technology and an excellent quality of life for all’.
The RES out priorities for economic growth, culture, environment, community and transport. One of the 
aims for transport is to reduce levels of congestion by increasing use of public transport and reducing peak 
traffic volumes

The SA/SEA should reflect the priorities 
of the RES and include objectives for 
economic growth, culture, environment, 
community and transport. The LTP 
should contribute towards the aim for 
transport 

North West Regional Housing 
Strategy (2009)

The regional housing strategy aims ensure housing strategies are aligned with sub-regional economic and 
transport strategies ensure that developments are located so that the best use is made of existing or 
planned transport infrastructure, particularly that which allows for travel by public transport or other 
sustainable modes such as walking and cycling

The LTP, SA/SEA should promote 
objectives that make use of existing or 
planned transport infrastructure, 
particularly that which allows for travel by 
public transport or other sustainable 
modes such as walking and cycling

Regional Waste Strategy for the 
North West (2004)

This Strategy recommends wholesale changes to the way in which the region regards waste and how it is 
managed. The first message this Strategy must deliver is that there is now an urgent need to reconsider 
how the region views waste and how new methods of waste management can be put in place, including 
new collection and treatment regimes, reprocessing infrastructure and new built developments.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
sustainable waste practices for 
construction and maintenance of 
transport infrastructure

North West Sustainable Energy 
Strategy (July 2006)

The strategy identifies key target groups whose actions can help address the energy challenge and sets 
out a framework within which both the public and private sectors can respond.

The LTP and SA/SEA should encourage 
energy efficiency  and use of renewable 
energy

North West Regional Freight Strategy 
(November 2003)

The Strategy sets the strategic context within which the next round of Local Transport Plans are to be 
developed, the Regional Freight Strategy provides a framework and guidance to assist local authorities in 
the North West to achieve the status of a ‘good’ Local Transport Plan with respect to freight.

Objectives should reflect the need for an 
integrated approach towards the 
movement of freights and the use of 

P
age 192

P
age 150



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

102

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 

The aims and objectives of the Regional Freight Strategy are to:

 Assist the promotion of sustainable economic growth by:

 maximising the efficient use of existing transport infrastructure and services;

 implementing selective enhancements where necessary;

 minimising the environmental and social impacts of freight transport;

 taking full account of the inter-relationship of land-use planning and freight transport; and

 ensuring that all decisions are taken within the context of an integrated

 transport and land-use strategy.

 To underpin the competitiveness of indigenous business, attract and retain inward investment and 
reduce the threat of peripherality in Europe by improving accessibility to, from and within the North West 
for those who use or operate freight transport.

 To provide a vibrant, efficient and safe freight industry in the North West by developing and maintaining a 
range of high quality transport networks and services.

 To involve both private and public sector interests by encouraging partnership working to facilitate a 
better understanding amongst stakeholders of the needs of modern supply chains.

methods of freight movement that reduce 
the associated environmental and social 
impacts

Operation North West England 
Programme under the Regional 
competitiveness and employment 
objective 2007-2013 (2007)

The programme - outside of the least developed regions - is aimed at strengthening the North West 
regional competitiveness and attractiveness by:

 promoting innovation and knowledge transfer 

 stimulating enterprise and supporting successful business 

 ensuring sustainable development, production and consumption 

 building sustainable communities. 

As part of this programme aims to promote clean public transport within towns in the North West

LTP and SA/SEA to promote sustainable 
clean public transport and increase 
access to employment areas

North West Climate Change Action 
Plan 2010-2012

The NW Climate Change Action Plan aims to stimulate and measure the progress of England's Northwest 
towards a low-carbon economy, preparing it for the challenges of a changing climate and expected future 
energy demands, whilst protecting and enhancing quality of life and preserving the Northwest's rich 
environment.
The Action Plans encourages a low carbon transport system, use of innovative technologies and 
sustainable fuels, infrastructure for ultra low carbon vehicles and to adapt to climate change. It also 
encourages walking, cycling and public transport use supported by land use planning, improved local
services and increased use of digital connectivity which reduce the need for travel. 

Transport contributes to climate change 
through vehicle emissions. The LTP and 
SA/SEA should aim to reduce reliance on 
the private car by improving public 
transport and facilitating modal shift

North West Strategic Health Authority 
Annual Report 2008/09

The North West Strategic Health Authority vision for the North West is: 
‘To ensure the NHS delivers the best possible health and the highest quality health care for the people of 
the North West – by operating as a world-class health system’.
The aims to achieve this include:

 improve health and wellbeing for all of the North West population;
 optimise the delivery of quality health care in the most appropriate setting;

The LTP, SA/SA should support the aims 
of the North West Strategic Health 
Authority

P
age 193

P
age 151



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

103

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 

 be recognised as a leading health system.
Strategy for Tourism in England’s 
North West 2003-2010 (2007)

The tourism vision for England’s Northwest is that within ten years, it offers our visitors real excellence and 
superb experiences, wherever they go, and has a thriving visitor economy that is second to none. There 
are six strategic aims including: enhanced communication with the region’s visitors; an improved 
infrastructure for the visitor economy; and for all activity related to tourism and the visitor economy to be 
based on the principles of sustainable development.

The LTP and SA/SA should aim to 
ensure that tourism assets are not 
adversely affected by transport 
infrastructure or congestion effects, and 
that they are accessible by public 
transport

Water for Life and Livelihoods: River 
Basin Management Plan North West 
River Basin District (2009)

The River Basin Management Plan is about the pressures facing the water environment in the North West
district river basin, and the actions that will address them. The Plan focuses on the protection, improvement 
and sustainable use of the water environment. It has been prepared in consultation with a wide range of 
organisations and individuals and is the first of a series of six-year planning cycles.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider the impacts and opportunities on 
water resources and their management.

North West Green Infrastructure 
Guide (2007)

The Guide has been developed to support the Green Infrastructure Policy in the North West Regional 
Spatial Strategy (RSS) by

 Providing detailed information on the concept of Green Infrastructure which appears in the RSS; and
 Provides initial guidance on producing a Green Infrastructure Plan.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider an appropriate level of green 
infrastructure

North West Biodiversity Forum The North West has regional habitat targets which are the regional contribution to UK Biodiversity targets 
and the England Biodiversity Strategy. The Strategy emphasizes the need for large scale habitat 
restoration and better engagement with regional bodies to deliver the targets.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
minimise the impact of development on 
local biodiversity

CCP536 - Countryside Character 
Volume 2: North West

The document presents landscape descriptions and maps which set out the qualities of the countryside in 
the North West. The aim is to protect the countryside and ensure that it can be used and enjoyed by future 
generations. 

THE LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider the impacts and opportunities on 
the landscape.

North West Regional Landscape 
Character Framework 

The North West Landscape Character Framework brings together information about geology, landform, 
biodiversity, history and land use to provide an integrated geographic framework for the North West. The 
Framework maps and describes diverse landscapes at a regional scale.

THE LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider the impacts and opportunities on 
the landscape including, geology, 
landform, biodiversity, history and land 
use.

Local

Merseyside Second Local Transport 
Plan  (2006)

Sets out a 10 year strategy and a 5 year plan to help solve some of the social, economic and 
environmental problems in Merseyside by making the transport system better for the people in Merseyside

The LTP, SA/SEA should build on the 
aims and policies set out in the LTP2

The Liverpool City Region –
Transforming Our Economy: The 
Strategic Proposals

The Economic City Strategy and Action Plan present a strategic and action framework for further 
development. It sets out an initial analysis of the city region and also comprises of the more detailed action 
priorities. The main report is underpinned by a preliminary assessment of the economic prospects for the 
city region (Appendix 2 of the report) and by a separate economic baseline report.

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to support 
the economy of the region and address 
the detailed action priorities where 
appropriate.

P
age 194

P
age 152



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

104

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
Liverpool City Council Air Quality 
Action Plan (June 2007) and update 
(2009)

Liverpool City Council requires an Air Quality Action Plan because it is forecast that annual average 
concentrations of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in two areas of the City will exceed the national target for 2005. In 
accordance with legislation, two Air Quality
Management Areas (AQMAs) have been declared:

 AQMA1 - Liverpool City centre

 AQMA2 - Liverpool M62/ Rocket Junction area

Objectives for the AQAP include:
To pursue the air quality objectives laid down in the National Air Quality Strategy, whilst

 improving the quality of life and health of the residents and workers in Liverpool; 

 acting in a cost-effective manner, through careful selection of options;

 integrating our work with other Council Strategies and the activities of Council Departments; particularly 
LTP2, regional bodies, outside Agencies and other interested parties;

 taking account of the needs and views of local people; and

 acting, where possible, to stimulate local employment and the local economy.

Transport is the major contributor to the 
AQMAs in Liverpool. The LTP, SA/SEA 
and HIA should aim to encourage greater 
use and accessibility of public transport, 
walking and cycling which may help 
reduce reliance on the car and in turn 
reduce emission associated with car 
travel. 

Liverpool 2024: A Thriving 
International City – Sustainable 
Community Strategy

Liverpool’s Sustainable Community Strategy, together with the city’s Local Area Agreement seeks to help 
promote Liverpool as a thriving international city. The document was produced by Liverpool’s local strategic 
partnership, Liverpool First and outline’s the partnerships shared vision and a roadmap for delivery. 
The vision aims to shape Liverpool into a city that is:

 Competitive;
 Connected
 Distinctive;
 Thriving; and

 Healthy.

These are the five strategic drivers that underpin the partnership’s ambitions between now and 2025.

The LTP, SA/SEA should aim to consider 
the five strategic drivers of the strategy in 
order to help reinstate Liverpool as a 
thriving international city.

Knowsley UDP (2006) Policy T6 on ensuring choice of travel to serve new developments aims to ensure good choice of mode of 
travel for all development proposals with an emphasis on waling, cycling and public transport. Policy T8 on 
Transport Assessments (TA) requires that a TA is submitted for large-scale developments likely to 
substantially increase traffic generation. Policy T9 on Travel Plans requires the submission and 
implementation of travel plans for certain types of development.

The LTP should support the policies in 
the UDP by requiring transport 
assessments and travel plans for certain 
thresholds of development

St Helens UDP (1998) Policy GEN9 on car parking and serving requires all new development to make appropriate level of on-site 
provision as well as accommodating the requirements of public transport, cyclists and pedestrians. 

The LTP should support policies in the 
UDP by proving more stringent parking 
standards and facilities for cyclists and 
pedestrians

Liverpool UDP (November 2002) Policy T15 on Transport Impact Assessment requires TIA to be carried out for new development that are 
over certain specified thresholds. The UDP also states that control of car parking is important to reduce 
reliance on the private car, and encourages improvements and expansion of public transport networks and 
facilities.

The LTP should support the policies in 
the UDP through requiring transport 
assessments for certain developments 
and controlling car parking. 

Sefton UDP (June 2006) Policy T1 describes the Council’s priorities for development of the transport network. The policy aims to 
improving strategic access to the Port of Liverpool and reducing the environmental impact of traffic on the 

The LTP and SA/SEA should support the 
core transport priorities in the UDP.

P
age 195

P
age 153



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

105

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
main Port access routes; implementing the Southport and Bootle Transport Strategies; developing Park 
and Ride facilities; implementing bus priority measures set out in the Local Transport Plan; implementing 
the cycle network and the programme for improving pedestrian access; relieving major environmental
problems on the Switch Island to Thornton (A5207) route; safeguarding non-operational railway lines for 
which there is a potential freight or passenger use.

It also states that all transport infrastructure will be designed and implemented in a manner which limits 
harm to the environment as much as possible.

Wirral UDP (February 2000) Policy TRT1 looks at the provision for public transport services and facilities within new developments. 
Policy TRT3 requires that environmental impacts of transport proposals are considered. Policy TR12 
requires that new developments provide differing levels of cycle parking facilities depending on the 
development type. 

The LTP should support the UDP policies 
on transport through requiring new 
development to provide cycle facilities. 

Wirral LDF Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document – Draft 
for consultation (2007)

The Local Development Framework (LDF) will be the key spatial plan for Wirral. The Core Strategy DPD 
will set out the Council's overall vision, objectives and spatial strategy for the Borough, for a period of up to 
ten years. It will also set the wider land use framework for private sector investment and the delivery of 
public services within the area. Wirral Council is currently consulting on the Spatial Options for the Core 
Strategy for the Borough during January and February 2010

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
forthcoming LDF policies on transport. 

Liverpool LDF Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document – Draft 
for consultation (2010)

The Local Development Framework (LDF) will be the key spatial plan for Liverpool and the Core Strategy is 
the primary development plan document. It will establish a planning framework for the City comprising a 
long term spatial vision, strategic objectives and an overall delivery strategy, which will comprise strategic 
policies for delivering the objectives. The council are currently consulting on the Core Strategy between 
February and  March 2010

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
forthcoming LDF policies on transport. 

Sefton LDF Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document – Draft 
for consultation (2009)

The Local Development Framework (LDF) will be the key spatial plan for Sefton. The Core Strategy will set 
out our overall vision, objectives and spatial strategy for the Borough, over the next 15-20 years. It will also 
set the wider land use framework for private sector investment and the delivery of public services within the 
area. Final approval of the core strategy is currently anticipated in 2011.

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
forthcoming LDF policies on transport. 

St. Helens LDF Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document – Draft 
for consultation (2009)

The Local Development Framework (LDF) will be the key spatial plan for St Helens. The Core Strategy is 
the principal document in a framework of documents that will guide the Borough in its local development 
making decisions until 2025. It provides an overall strategy of where development should be located and 
how we meet the needs of the Borough.  It also contains proposals for housing, economy and employment, 
community facilities, quality of life and accessibility are explained for an individual area and the Borough as 
a whole.

The Council is currently considering all representations made during the last consultation exercise in 2009.

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
forthcoming LDF policies on transport. 

Knowsley LDF Core Strategy 
Development Plan Document – Draft 
for consultation (2009)

The Local Development Framework (LDF) will be the key spatial plan for Knowsley and the Core Strategy 
will set out a vision, key objectives and strategic planning policies for Knowsley. The council are currently 
at an early stage of developing this strategy.

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
forthcoming LDF policies on transport. 

‘Liverpool First’ Liverpool Community 
Strategy 2005-2008 

The vision for Liverpool is ‘For Liverpool to become a premier European City. Achieved by building a more 
competitive economy, developing healthier, safer and more inclusive communities and enhancing 

The LTP, SA/SEA should contribute to 
the transport priority through encouraging 

P
age 196

P
age 154



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

106

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
individual life chances.’

Liverpool’s key transport priorities are: improving road safety, access and air quality and reducing 
congestion.

sustainable transport options which will 
help reduce congestion and air pollution

Knowsley: The Borough of Choice -
Sustainable Community Strategy 
2008 – 2023 (2008)

The vision is: ‘Knowsley - the borough of choice’
The aim of the strategy is that by the year 2023, Knowsley will have:

 attractive, sustainable neighbourhoods with a wide choice of housing and excellent community facilities;

 vibrant and welcoming town centres;

 residents and local communities who are able to make positive lifestyle choices;

 high quality employment areas which help to drive economic growth in the Liverpool City Region; and

 narrowed the gap in deprivation levels, both between different parts of the borough and between 
Knowsley and elsewhere.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 
health, economy, community to reflect the 
objectives of the community strategy and 
encourage a sustainable, safe and 
vibrant community

‘A vision for Sefton’ Sefton 
Community Strategy 2006-2011 

This is the third Community Strategy for Sefton. It has been drawn together by the Sefton Borough 
Partnership (the Local Strategic Partnership for Sefton) and reflects the shared vision and commitment of 
key partners who are committed to working together ‘to make Sefton a great place in which to live, work, 
learn, visit and do business’.

The Strategy sets out priorities and targets which have been agreed to improve the quality of life for those 
residing and visiting Sefton and are presented as four main themes:

 Children and Young People;

 Safer and Stronger Communities;

 Healthier Communities and Older People;

 Economic Development and Sustainability.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 
health, economy, community to reflect the 
objectives of the community strategy and 
encourage a sustainable, safe and 
vibrant community

St Helen’s Community Plan 2002-
2012 (Revised 2009)

The vision for St Helens is to make St. Helens a modern, distinctive, economically prosperous and vibrant 
Borough. 
Key objectives of the Plan include:

 A diverse, modern economy, offering a wide range of job opportunities.

 Opportunity and success for all who live, study, train and work in the Borough, through high quality 
lifelong learning experiences and activities.

 A healthy, safe, attractive and rich environment with a choice of good transport facilities for all.

 A wide choice of quality homes for all our residents.

 Reduced crime and fear of crime.

 Improved health and well-being through flexible, responsive health and social care.

 High quality opportunities and facilities for leisure and sport, with a vibrant cultural life.

 Sustainable and stronger communities, narrowing inequalities with better opportunities for disadvantaged 
groups.

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 
health, economy, community to reflect the 
objectives of the community strategy and 
encourage a sustainable, safe and 
vibrant community

‘Getting Better Together’ Wirral The vision for Wirral is to ‘Make Wirral a better place in which to live, work and invest’. The LTP, SA/SEA should consider 

P
age 197

P
age 155



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

107

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
Community Strategy 2003-2013 and 
Consultation Draft Wirral 2025: More 
Equal, More Prosperous (2009)

The aim for transport set out in the strategy states: we want our transport systems to be clean, reliable and 
integrated, and to offer a variety of sustainable transport choices to provide access to key opportunities and 
services.

health, economy, community to reflect the 
objectives of the community strategy and 
encourage a sustainable, safe and 
vibrant community

Liverpool City Region Development 
Programme Update (2006)

The 2006 update to the Liverpool City Region (LCR) Development Programme has been compiled by the 
Sub Regional
Partnership (SRP), guided by The Mersey Partnership
It will form the key strategy statement, for submission to the Northern Way, on the future direction of the 
whole city region and a platform from which partners in the city region can:-

 Promote the city region and its assets

 Provide focus for and help align the various strategies and funding streams

 Help to stimulate private sector involvement and investment

 Influence public investment planning and coordination

 Establish collaborations across the City region

 Identify and develop pan-northern opportunities

The LTP and SA/SEA should 
complement the aims of the development 
programme

Merseyside Noise Study (2004) In April 2003, the Merseyside Transport, Health and Environment Forum, on behalf of the five Merseyside 
Local Authorities and Merseytravel, commissioned an investigations into environmental (or ambient) noise. 
The main purpose of the Merseyside Ambient Noise Study was to address the lack of good quality 
information about environmental noise and its effects on people’s quality of life. Particular attention was 
paid to transport related noise. The Merseyside Noise Study was completed in June 2004 and the results 
were presented to a conference held in Liverpool on the 22nd June 2004.
The results showed that transportation noise especially road traffic noise was the main source of residents 
noise exposure, and that 44% of residents were caused bother, annoyance or disturbance. 

The LTP, SA/SEA should consider noise 
effects on human health from transport 
and aim to reduce this

Code of Practice on Access and 
Mobility (2002)

The Code of Practice was originally compiled and produced by Merseytravel and the five Merseyside 
Authorities in February 1999. It was updated in 2001 and 2002 to take account of changes in legislation 
and good practice documentation. It offers guidance on best practice in designing environments not only to 
meet the needs of disabled people but also of those who may otherwise be restricted by the design of 
buildings, structures, highways or transportation.

The LTP should aim to increase the 
accessibility of new developments for 
cyclists, walkers and disabled people. 
The SA/SEA should include an objective 
on increasing accessibility. 

Liverpool Superport (2008) The strategy for developing SuperPort is based around the Vision to bring together and integrate the 
strengths of the Ports, Airports and Freight Community to create a ‘SuperPort’ for freight and passenger 
operations within the Liverpool City Region that will become a key driver of its economy. In doing so it aims 
to create the most effective and cost efficient environment for freight cargo logistics and passenger transit 
in the UK

The LTP should aim to encourage an 
integrated approach to freight transport 

Liverpool City Region Multi Area 
Agreement (June 2009)

This sets out the vision of Liverpool City Region to establish Liverpool’s status as a thriving international 
City Region by 2030. Of particular importance to transport are the aims to

 Improve transport: will develop a City Region transport network that meets the needs of all stakeholders, 
and is recognised as setting a standard for others to follow. It will be a fully integrated, sustainable and 
safe transport network, which supports economic and social regeneration, ensures good access for all, 
and which is operated to the highest standards to protect the environment and ensure good quality of 
life. 

The LTP and SA/SEA should include 
objectives to provide safe and 
sustainable transport network, provide 
integrated freight infrastructure and cut 
carbon dioxide emissions. 

P
age 198

P
age 156



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

108

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 

 Maximise connectivity: Through the combination of our ports, airport and multi-modal freight and logistics 
infrastructure, will deliver Liverpool SuperPort and significantly improve our position as one of the UK‘s
primary international gateways by 2030. 

 Become a low carbon economy: will become energy self-sufficient and a net energy exporter by the year 
2030, through a combination of greater energy efficiency and renewable supply. This will drive us to 
become the biggest low carbon goods and services City Region economy in the UK. 

Liverpool City Region Housing 
Strategy (May 2007)

The City Region Housing Strategy aims to secure balanced housing markets which will meet locally 
defined needs and provide a choice of housing and neighbourhoods that will underpin economic growth. 
Integral to this vision is a focus on growth of the City Region’s economic assets and the ways in which the 
housing can reinforce their growth while at the same time redressing disparities in socio-economic 
conditions.

To achieve this the strategy outlines the need to identify and create new elements of transport 
infrastructure in tandem with the housing needs of the area

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
transport infrastructure in relation to new 
housing developments to ensure 
accessibility

Liverpool City-Region Economic 
Strategy & Action Plan 2005-2025 

This economic strategy has been produced alongside work on the Regional Spatial and Housing 
Strategies, the Merseyside Local Transport Plan and the review of the North West Regional Economic 
Strategy. It sets out an initial analysis of the city region and presents a strategic and action framework for 
further development.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
economic growth and transport 
infrastructure to achieve this

Economic Impact of EU and UK 
Climate Change Legislation on
Liverpool and Liverpool City Region 
(June 2009)

The report warns that the Liverpool City Region economy faces major challenges from current and future 
climate change legislation and regulation that is needed to push the UK to become a low carbon economy

LTP and SA/SEA to encourage the use of 
public transport and provide objectives 
aimed at reducing carbon dioxide from 
transport.

Liverpool: Active City 2005-2010 The Liverpool Physical Activity Strategy aims to make physical activity an easier choice for people by 
providing a variety of activity opportunities that individuals can choose to suit themselves and their daily 
lifestyle. The strategy aims to promote activities such as walking and cycling.

LTP, SA/SEA should aim to promote 
activities such as walking and cycling to 
increase the health of individuals in the 
region.

NewHeartlands Housing Market 
Renewal Pathfinder

NewHeartlands is one of the Government's ten housing market renewal (HMR) pathfinders. This means 
they are charged with finding new ways to tackle the problems of low demand and housing market collapse 
in neighbourhoods across Merseyside.

The LTP and SA/SEA should consider 
transport infrastructure in relation to new 
housing developments to ensure 
accessibility

Sefton Physical Activity Strategy 
2001 – 2011 (Review 2009)

Sefton produced a physical activity strategy covering the years 2002-2004, this document has reviewed 
and updated this strategy. The local context of the document has changed with the formation of the Sefton 

Public Health Partnership and the physical activity sub-group. The aim of the strategy is to provide a 
strategic overview and set the direction for funding physical activity from various funding organisations.

LTP, SA/SEA should aim to promote 
activities such as walking and cycling to 
increase the health of individuals in the 
region.

Heart of Merseyside Initiative Heart of Mersey [HoM] was first established as a Merseyside coronary heart disease [CHD] prevention 
programme in 2003.  HoM became a registered charity in 2005 and broadened its remit to embrace the 
broader cardiovascular disease [CVD] agenda.
Heart of Mersey aims to add value to local initiatives and programmes by working at local, regional, 
national and European levels to prevent CVD death in the population. Also, to alleviate the health 
inequalities associated with CVD through integrated, evidence-based interventions.  The charity is 
concerned with the key risk factors associated with achieving these aims, including poor diet (excess 
dietary fat, salt and sugar), smoking (including secondhand smoke) and physical inactivity (environment).

LTP, SA/SEA should aim to promote 
activities such as walking and cycling to 
increase the health of individuals in the 
region.

Wirral's Biodiversity Action Plan The Biodiversity Action Plan outlines the work which is needed to protect and enhance natural habitats and The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 

P
age 199

P
age 157



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

109

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
rare species on Wirral. protect and where possible enhance 

biodiversity and geo-diversity
North Merseyside Biodiversity Action 
Plan (BAP) 

The North Merseyside Biodiversity Action Plan aims to help local people become more aware of the area's 
natural environment and the issues facing it.  The North Merseyside BAP is not a single published 
document, but instead comprises a number of individual Species & Habitat Action Plans and a Business 
Plan.  There are a total of 44 habitat and species action plans; each one describing the current status of 
the habitat or species, issues affecting its wellbeing, conservation objectives & targets and actions to meet 
them.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect and where possible enhance 
biodiversity and geo-diversity

Liverpool PCT Liverpool Primary Care Trust has announced ambitious plans for new and improved primary care facilities 
that will deliver enhanced services in an expansion of community-based healthcare in the seven years to 
2014. “A New Health Service for Liverpool” sets out Liverpool PCT’s commitment to:

 Provide more and better services in the community, so people only go to hospital when absolutely 
necessary

 Major investment to improve existing health facilities and to build new centres

 Improved access to healthcare, with extended opening hours and more patient-centred appointment 
systems

 Services in locations that are accessible by public transport and core services within a 15 minute walk for 
everyone in the city

 Investment in more community-based doctors, nurses and other health professionals joined-up health 
services, bringing together more professionals in one location

The PCT Strategic Plan 2006-2014 sets out a vision ‘to achieve transformational improvements in health 
and in service provision and significant reductions in health inequalities’.
Underpinning the vision are five key values:
 Services should be safe and based on recognised clinical standards
 Services should be appropriate in terms of need and accessibility
 Patients should be informed so that they can share in decisions about their treatment and can take 

responsibility for their health
 Interventions should be equitable reflecting need and improving the health of our population
 Services should be integrated with all providers planning and delivering services in cooperation with 

other parts of the health and social care system

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
aims and priorities of the PCT, and help 
improve health by encouraging active 
lifestyles and improving cycling and 
walking facilities and routes

Sefton PCT The Revised Commissioning Strategic Plan 2008-2013 states that the PCTs missions is to:

 Improve health; and
 Reduce inequalities in health
These two key strategic aims are sustained by three supporting strategic aims which are to:

 Ensure quality;
 Provide value;
 Involve local people.
The vision set out in the plan is:
‘By 2014, working with our partners we shall have ensured that the people of Sefton can enjoy a healthier, 
better quality life that is longer than the national average. Health inequalities will have been significantly 
reduced. The people of Sefton will be fully involved in service development and will be assured that we are 
securing for them health care that represents safe, high quality effective care that is good value for money’. 

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
aims and priorities of the PCT, and help 
improve health by encouraging active 
lifestyles and improving cycling and 
walking facilities and routes

Knowsley PCT The Knowsley Strategic Commissioning Plan 2008/13 states that the PCTs shared guiding principle is that The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 

P
age 200

P
age 158



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

110

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
in everything we do we should be Improving People’s Lives. The vision set out in the plan is:
‘The local communities we serve will be more informed and involved in decisions that affect them and 
experience better health and wellbeing and improved health and wellbeing services through:

 Prevention – outcomes with an increasing emphasis on proactive prevention rather than emergency / 
crisis services;

 Empowerment and engagement – enabling people to take control of their own health, and to become 
involved in local decisions about health and wellbeing services;

 Closer to home – providing services in the appropriate setting but closer to home and in neighbourhoods 
where possible;

 Providing quality services – that are personalised and focussing on outcomes that deliver improved 
quality of life.

aims and priorities of the PCT, and help 
improve health by encouraging active 
lifestyles and improving cycling and 
walking facilities and routes

Wirral PCT The Wirral Annual Report 2008/09 states that the PCT vision is:
“Working Together for a Healthier Future”.
Wirral PCT aim:

 To involve and empower people

 To target inequalities through effective partnerships

 To ensure excellence in our health services

 To become a high performance, high reputation organisation.

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
aims and priorities of the PCT, and help 
improve health by encouraging active 
lifestyles and improving cycling and 
walking facilities and routes

Halton and St. Helens PCT The Halton and St. Helens PCT Annual Report 2007/08 states that the PCTs mission is ‘Our contribution to 
the wellbeing of the people we serve in Halton and St Helens is to enable them to have the best possible 
health and health care’.
Overarching objectives for the PCT include:

 To ensure the PCT delivers services as a patient-led organisation;
 Work with the local community and strategic partners to improve health by ensuring clear and effective 

communication which creates efficient partnerships through integration, shared priorities and 
commissioning to tackle health inequalities. In addition, we will work as an active partner contributing to 
the continued viability of the local economy;

 Focus on the strengthening of the organisation capabilities and capacity to develop.

The LTP, SA/SEA should support the 
aims and priorities of the PCT, and help 
improve health by encouraging active 
lifestyles and improving cycling and 
walking facilities and routes

Knowsley Council and Sefton Council 
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment 
(2009)

The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) has been prepared in accordance with government guidance 
in PPS25 “Planning and Flood Risk” (2006) and it’s associated Good Practice Guide. The main purpose of 
the SFRA is to provide a strategic overview of flood risk in Knowsley and Sefton, focusing on future 
development. The SFRA will help direct new development towards sites at the lowest risk of flooding

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider minimising flood risk

Liverpool City Council Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessment (2008)

This SFRA has been carried out by Liverpool City Council Planning Policy Department in order to fulfil the 
requirement set out in PPS25. The SFRA is a tool which plays an important role in delivering sustainable
development for the City of Liverpool, taking account of flood risk issues and climate change. The main 
objectives of the SFRA include (but are not limited to):

 Identifying land at risk of flooding in Liverpool;
 Reduce risk and design mitigation measures; and
 Provide a framework for developers for dealing with flood risk in development proposals

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider minimising flood risk

St. Helens Council Strategic Flood 
Risk Assessment (2009)

The St. Helens SFRA document has been prepared in accordance with PPS25 to summarise the findings 
of the SFRA undertaken for St Helens Borough Council. The purpose of the document is to identify areas 

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider minimising flood risk

P
age 201

P
age 159



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

111

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
susceptible to flooding, to avoid flood risk and if necessary highlight mitigation measures.

The Knowsley Partnership: Local 
Area Agreement Pilot

The Local Area Agreements (LAA) aims are to tackle deprivation and disadvantage in the Borough of 
Knowsley. Furthermore the LAA seeks to improve efficiency, reduce bureaucracy and join up public 
services.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider opportunities for reducing 
deprivation and inequality and aid the 
integration of public services.

Sefton Local Area Agreement 2008 -  
2011

As part of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act, the Council now has a statutory 
duty to prepare a LAA. The model for LAAs involves all partners entering into a robust engagement 
process to ensure realistic and responsive partnership working and joint planning. The Council aims to 
ensure that all stakeholders have the opportunity to participate in and influence the determination and 
delivery of local priorities.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
promote sustainable development inline 
with the LAA

Liverpool Local Area Agreement 
2008 - 2011

Liverpool’s LAA is a three-year contract between government and local authorities, which state how key 
priorities of local people are delivered within their neighborhoods. Priorities include improved health and 
well being, improved connectivity and clean, safe and sustainable neighborhoods.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
promote sustainable development inline 
with the LAA

St. Helens Local Area Agreement 
2008 – 2011

St.Helens LAA is now the agreed delivery vehicle for the St.Helens Sustainable Community Plan. The LAA 
aims to address the most critical actions and targets to improve liveability, achieve better health, and 
reduce worklessness.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
promote sustainable development inline 
with the LAA

Wirral’s Partnership Agreement 
2008/9 – 2010/11 (2008)

Wirral’s LAA is a three-year agreement between the local area and central government.  The LAA sets out 
how local priorities will be met by applying local solutions. Furthermore, the LAA contributes to national  
priorities set out by the government

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
promote sustainable development inline 
with the LAA

The North Biodiversity Action Plan The North Merseyside Biodiversity Action Plan aims to help local people become more aware of the area's 
natural environment and the issues facing it. The Plan is not a single published document, rather it 
comprises a number of individual Species and Habitat Action Plans. 

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider the impacts and opportunities 
for enhancement in terms of  biodiversity

Liverpool World Heritage Site 
Management Plan and 
Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD)

The SPD has been produced to provide detailed guidance for new development, regeneration and conservation in 

the Liverpool - Maritime Mercantile City World Heritage Site (WHS) and its Buffer Zone (the surrounding area and 

setting).  The SPD supplements the ‘saved’ Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and sets out the management of 

the site and acts as a guide to future development in and around the site. It also embodies the principles in the 

existing WHS Management Plan.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
consider the impacts and opportunities on 
the  Liverpool - Maritime Mercantile City 
World Heritage Site and its Buffer Zone.

Merseyside Local Geodiversity Action 
Plan

The Merseyside Local Geodiversity Action Plan aims to set out actions to conserve and enhance the 
geodiversity of the Merseyside Area

The LTP and SA/ SEA should aim to 
consider the impacts and opportunities on 
the geodiversity in the area.

UK Legislation

The Transport Act 2008 (as amended 
by the Local Transport Act 2008)

The Local Transport Act is a key part of the Government's strategy to meet this commitment, empowering 
local authorities to take appropriate steps to meet local transport needs in the light of local circumstances.
The Act will:

 Give local authorities the right mix of powers to improve the quality of local bus services, as proposed in 
Putting Passengers First last December following an extensive bus policy review; 

 Allow for the creation of an influential new bus passenger champion to represent the interests of bus 
passengers; 

 Give local authorities the power to review and propose their own arrangements for local transport 
governance to support more coherent planning and delivery of local transport; 

The LTP should consider the Act in its 
preparation

P
age 202

P
age 160



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

112

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 

 Update existing legal powers so that, where local areas wish to develop proposals for local road pricing 
schemes, they have the freedom and flexibility to do so in a way that best meets local needs - whilst 
ensuring schemes are consistent and interoperable. 

The Act requires local transport authorities to have regard to Government guidance and policies on the 
environment when formulating LTPs and policies.

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 The key UK legislation is the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (WCA 1981) which consolidates and 
amends existing national legislation to implement the EC Directive on the Conservation of Natural Habitats 
and of Wild Fauna and Flora, the Convention on the Conservation of European Wildlife and Natural 
Habitats (Bern Convention) and Council Directive 79/409/EEC on the Conservation of Wild Birds (Birds 
Directive) in Great Britain.  Of particular relevance to the proposed scheme are Schedule 1, which lists bird 
species afforded special protection and Schedules 5, which protect various mammal species including all 
bat species, from injury, killing or disturbance,

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect habitats and species

Countryside & Rights of Way Act 
2000

The Act provides for public access on foot to certain types of land, amends the law relating to public rights 
of way, increases protection for Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) and strengthens wildlife 
enforcement legislation, and provides for better management of Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB). The Act is compliant with the provisions of the European Convention on Human Rights, requiring 
consultation where the rights of the individual may be affected by these measures.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect habitats and species and 
designated landscape areas

The Conservation (Habitats & c.) 
Regulations 1994 (Habitats 
Regulations)

The Conservation (Natural Habitats, and c.) Regulations 1994 (as amended):  This regulation places a duty 
on planning authorities to meet the requirements of the Habitats Directive, and to provide protection for 
priority habitats and species listed in the Habitats Directive outside of protected areas

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect habitats and species

Part IV Environment Act 1995 Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 requires the Secretary of State to publish a national Air Quality 
Strategy and established the system of local air quality management, for the designation of air quality 
management areas, which commenced in 1997.

Transport can affect air quality. The LTP, 
SA/SEA should aim to encourage forms 
of transport that do not contribute to local 
air pollution such as cycling and walking

Air Quality Standards Regulations 
2007

Regulations implement Council Directive 96/62/EC on ambient air quality assessment and management 
and require the attainment of air quality standards in respect of the concentration of various pollutants in 
ambient air.

Transport can affect air quality. The LTP, 
SA/SEA should aim to encourage forms 
of transport that do not contribute to local 
air pollution such as cycling and walking

The Water Environment (Water 
Framework Directive)(England & 
Wales) Regulations 2003

The regulations aim to protect and enhance the quality of surface freshwater (including lakes, streams and 
rivers); groundwaters; groundwater dependant ecosystems; estuaries; and coastal waters out to one mile 
from low-water. 

Surface water run-off from roads and 
hard surfaced areas can cumulatively 
pollute watercourses. The LTP and 
SA/SEA should consider the effects on 
groundwater, surface water and river 
water quality

Planning (Listed Buildings & 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and 
Regulations 2009.

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 is an Act of Parliament of the United 
Kingdom that altered the laws on granting of planning permission for building works, notably including 
those of the listed building system in England and Wales.
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Amendment No. 2) (England) Regulations 2009 
were made on 6 October 2009 and came into force on 2 November 2009. They amend The Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (England) Regulations 1990 as amended (‘the 1990 
Regulations’), by substituting Schedule 4 of the 1990 Regulations (notices that a building has become 
listed or that a building has ceased to be listed), to reflect the fact that English Heritage now compiles lists 

The historic environment can be affected 
by transport in a number of ways, 
including inappropriate street furniture, 
road signs and paving, vibration from 
traffic and visual intrusion. The LTP and 
SA/SEA should aim to conserve the 
historic environment in relation to 
transport impacts.

P
age 203

P
age 161



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

113

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Plan, Policy or Programme Description Implications for the LTP3 and SA/SEA 
of buildings of special architectural or historic interest and the Secretary of State (SoS) is responsible for 
approving them.

The Air Quality Limit Values 
Regulations (2003)

In the UK, the presence of local air quality pollutants in ambient air is managed through legislation and 
Government policy. With respect to particulates (PM10 and PM2.5), nitrogen oxides (NOx) and nitrogen 
dioxide (NO2) a key tool in this management process is the establishment of air quality ‘limit values’ and 
‘objectives’. Air quality limit values and objectives specify the concentration of a pollutant, a time period 
over which that concentration is measured, and a date by which it should be achieved.

Transport can affect air quality. The LTP, 
SA/SEA should aim to encourage forms 
of transport that do not contribute to local 
air pollution such as cycling and walking

Ancient Monuments & Archaeological 
Areas Act 1979

Act provides the legal mechanism for nationally important archaeological sites to be statutorily protected as 
Scheduled Ancient Monuments.

The LTP and SA/SEA should aim to 
protect archaeological assets

Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act is designed to help achieve a rich and diverse natural 
environment and thriving rural communities through modernised and simplified arrangements for delivering 
Government policy.
In relation to biodiversity, Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Communities Act (NERC) 2006 and 
states that: 

“Every public authority must, in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper 
exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity”. 

Biodiversity is a core component of sustainable development, underpinning economic development and 
prosperity, and has an important role to play in developing locally distinctive and sustainable communities.  
From 1 October 2006, all local authorities and other public authorities in England and Wales have a Duty to 
have regard to the conservation of biodiversity in exercising their functions. The Duty aims to raise the 
profile and visibility of biodiversity, to clarify existing commitments with regard to biodiversity and to make it 
a natural and integral part of policy and decision making.  

The LTP and SA/SEA should recognise 
the specific rural issues set out in the Act 
and aim to make public transport more 
accessible in rural locations

P
age 204

P
age 162



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

114

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

SEA Objective 1 - To use energy, water and mineral resources prudently and efficiently, increase 

energy generated from renewable sources and reduce greenhouse gas emissions

Quantity of electricity generated from renewable sources

Total generation at the NW level is second only to the East Region. In the NW landfill gas represents the 

greatest proportion.

Figure C.1: Renewable Energy Generation by English Region, 2007

Source: Restats – Renewable Energy Statistics Database for the United Kingdom
www.restats.org.uk/generation-region.htm

Proportion (%) of electricity generated from renewable sources UK

In 2007, renewable sources represented 5.0% of all electricity generated, increasing from 1.8% in 1990. 

Between 1990 and 2007, generation from non-hydro sources (wind, wave, solar and biofuels) increased 

from being 10% of all renewable electricity generated to over 75% (Source: DEFRA, Sustainable

Development Indicators in your Pocket 2009, 

www.defra.gov.uk/sustainable/government/progress/documents/SDIYP2009_a9.pdf).

Number of existing renewable energy schemes (by type)

Since 2003 (and the 2005 LTP baseline) the number of sites in the NW has increased from under 100 to at 

least 140 in 2007.

Appendix C. Baseline Conditions and Key 
Issues

Page 205Page 163



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

115

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.2: Number of Renewable Energy Sites by English Region, 2007

Source: Restats – Renewable Energy Statistics Database for the United Kingdom

www.restats.org.uk/sites-region.htm

Sefton and Wirral 2008 Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs) make references to renewable energy schemes 

and sites but acknowledge that ‘current monitoring systems do not measure the total capacity of all 

schemes, something we hope to address in future AMRs’.

Renewable Energy Potential (by type)

Figure C.3: Capacity by English Region, 2007

Source: Restats – Renewable Energy Statistics Database for the United Kingdom, www.restats.org.uk/capacity-region.htm

Page 206Page 164



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

116

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Per Capita CO2 Emissions from Transport

The major emissions of carbon dioxide arise from the combustion of fossil fuels in power generation, 

transport, domestic and industrial sectors. 

It is evident that per capita CO2 emissions from transport are highest in Knowsley (2.3t CO2) and lowest in 

Sefton (1.1t CO2) across Merseyside. 

Table C.1: Per Capita CO2 Emissions from Transport

Local Authority
Per capita CO2 emissions from 

transport (t)

Knowsley 2.3

Liverpool 1.4

St. Helens 2.0

Sefton 1.1

Wirral 1.4

Source: Merseytravel, 2010

Amount of secondary/recycled aggregates used

Government guidance contained in MPS1 (Minerals Policy Statement 1) provides for an increasing amount 

of aggregate supply to be met by secondary sources. Previous attempts at collecting information on the 

total sales and reserves of secondary aggregates have been difficult and have produced vague and 

unreliable results due to the poor response from operators. Returns received in the past have been crude 

estimates particularly with regard to construction and demolition wastes 

(www.communities.gov.uk/documents/planningandbuilding/pdf/nwannual2008.pdf).

Per capita reduction in CO2 emissions in the Local Authority area

Table C.2: NI 186 – Percentage per capita reduction in CO2 emissions
AuthorityPlace Survey Indicator

Liverpool Sefton Knowsley St. Helens Wirral

Per capita reduction in CO2 
emissions (%) (NI 186)

0.6% 1.4% 8% 6.8% 2.4%

It is evident that per capita reduction in CO2 emissions are greatest in Knowsley (8%) and least in Liverpool 

0.6%). 

Sustainability Issue

Transport and the demands it places on energy resources, as well as the pollutants the sector emits, are 
strongly linked to climate change. Global climate change is one of the most significant and complex 
cumulative effects arising from an accumulation of multiple actions, each of which is of limited impact but 
together will have serious effects.

Per capita emissions for transport are highest in Knowsley (2.3t CO2) and lowest in Sefton (1.1t CO2) 
across Merseyside. 

Page 207Page 165



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

117

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Opportunity: Mitigation to climate change through:

- Reducing carbon emissions;

- Use of renewable energy to power road signs, lighting, traffic lights etc;

- Making the best use of existing transport infrastructure;

- Increase electric car network and charging points;

- Reducing the need to travel; and

- Shifting necessary travel to more sustainable modes (public rights of way and wider access 
network improvements) and behaviours, and locking in the benefits.

Constraint: Climate change is a global issue. Difficulty in achieving significant modal shift.

SEA Objective 2 - To minimise the production of waste and increase reuse, recycling and recovery 

rates

Total annual volume of waste generated, Municipal waste arisings

Total Municipal Solid Waste (MSW) generated across Merseyside has decreased annually between 

2006/07 (800,000+ tonnes per annum) and 2008/09 (last quarter estimated). The reduction in overall levels 

of MSW seems to be continuing with the comparison of first 3 quarter tonnages showing a 1.45% decrease 

from 06/07 to 07/08 and a 4.02% reduction from 07/08 to 08/09 (MWDA Performance Report, Quarter 3, 

September 2008 – December 2008).

Proportion of waste recycled/disposed by method of disposal

Table C.3: NI 192 - Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting

Name 2007/08 2008/09

Knowsley MD 18.40 25.05

Liverpool MD 22.12 26.39

St Helens MD 20.77 28.78

Sefton MD 30.23 37.66

Wirral MD 31.95 36.31

Source: http://www.wastedataflow.co.uk/htm/datasets.aspx#England, September 2009

2008/09 rates vary across Merseyside from 25.05% in Knowsley to 37.66% in Sefton. But clearly, over 60% 

of household waste currently either is not or cannot be reused, recycled and composted.

Page 208Page 166



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

118

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Sustainability Issue

Generally recycling rates in Merseyside are increasing. Transport can generate waste material through 
maintenance and construction or demolition of transport infrastructure. 

Opportunity: Opportunity to use recycled material in transport infrastructure, and opportunity to re-use 
waste material in other developments.

Constraint: Cost of treating contaminated waste/soils for re-use. Availability of appropriate recycled 
material for purpose.  

SEA Objective 3 - To reduce poverty and social deprivation and secure economic inclusion

Indices of deprivation ranking

Merseyside has seen considerable improvements in the relative deprivation ranking when comparing the 

Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2004 and 2007:

 There are now fewer Merseyside Super Output Areas (SOAs) in the most deprived areas (up to 20%) 

nationally than previously;

 Within Merseyside, four of the five local authorities are less deprived overall, in 2007 than 2004, (when 

compared to the rest of the country), the exception being Liverpool which is still ranked as the most 

deprived district;

 All five of the Merseyside districts experienced more SOAs improving then declining.

However, the gap between the most and least deprived SOAs in Merseyside seems to be widening:

 Overall, the average rank of the 3% most deprived SOAs didn’t change from 2004, whereas, the least 

deprived SOAs improved by over 470 ranks;

 This gap is increasing in five of the seven main deprivation domains;

 All five of the Merseyside districts demonstrated further polarisation between the most disadvantaged 

and their peers;

 The claim of increased polarisation is backed up further when investigating household incomes of the 

two groups, where earnings have increased by a fifth in the least deprived neighbourhoods and not 

changed in the most deprived, over the three years to 2007;

 The average household income in the wealthiest neighbourhoods in Merseyside is £42,200 compared 

to £14,200 in the most underprivileged.

Page 209Page 167



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

119

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.4: Number of LCR SOAs in the 20% Most Deprived Nationally (2004 and 2007)

107

198

254

367

483

89

178

242

341

458

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

1% most deprived
nationally

3% most deprived
nationally

5% most deprived
nationally

10% most deprived
nationally

20% most deprived
nationally

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

S
O

A
s

IMD 2004 IMD 2007

Source: ID2007 and 2004 (CLG) and ‘Polarisation in Deprived Neighbourhoods Across Liverpool City Region’, MM MIS EDSE 

subscribers report.

Percentage of working age population unemployed

Table C.4: Working Age Unemployment Rates by Borough

District Working Age Unemployment rate (Jan – Dec 2008)

Knowsley 8.5

Liverpool 6.9

St. Helens 8.5

Sefton 6.3

Wirral 8.2

NW 6.5

England 6.0

Source: www.nomisweb.co.uk (APS, Jan-Dec2008)

The table above shows the working age unemployment rate for January to December 2008. All Merseyside

districts have an unemployment rate which is higher than the national average (6.0). Sefton is the only 

district which has an unemployment rate which is lower than the regional average.

Page 210Page 168



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

120

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Percentage of population (or numbers) receiving state benefits

Table C.5: Percentage of population receiving state benefits

District
2008 working age 

population
Working age client group –Out of work 

benefit claimants (Feb 2009)
Rate claiming out of work 

benefits (Feb 2009)

Knowsley 93,500 21,660 23.2

Liverpool 285,000 65,810 23.1

St. Helens 108,500 19,510 18.0

Sefton 161,800 25,550 15.8

Wirral 182,300 32,710 17.9

NW 4,238,400 646,890 15.3

England 31,937,600 3,790,570 11.9

Source: www.nomisweb.co.uk (DWP WACG)

The table above shows the volume and rate of out of work benefit claimants (working age) in February 

2009 (with rates based on the 2008 working age population). All Merseyside districts have a claimant rate 

which exceeds the national and regional averages.

The effects of the 2008/09 recession will have an impact on both unemployment and state benefit claimant 

rates and should be taken into consideration when setting LTP3 targets.

Sustainability Issue

Merseyside has seen considerable improvements in the relative deprivation ranking when comparing the 

Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2004 and 2007. However, the gap between the most and least 

deprived SOAs in Merseyside seems to be widening.

Opportunity: Potential to improve accessibility of deprived areas to key centres, services, employment 
opportunities and goods. Potential to increase investment into the area through an improved, more 
efficient and more reliable transport network. The LTP3 could promote improved access to employment 
centres and educational facilities. Opportunity to link new employment development to existing or new
transport infrastructure and particularly to locate such economic development close to existing urban 
population centres in order to reduce transport, especially that by private car.

Constraint: Congestion can reduce the efficiency and reliability of the transport network, hindering 
economic growth.

SEA Objective 4 - To protect, enhance and manage Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, historical 

and built environment and archaeological assets

Merseyside Heritage Assets at Risk

These are proxy indicators from English Heritage, Heritage Counts 2008 – Merseyside Data.

Page 211Page 169



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

121

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table C.6: Proxy indicators from English Heritage

Authority Buildings (comprising grades I, II* and 
scheduled ancient monuments which 

are structures as opposed to 
earthworks)

Scheduled Monuments at high or 
medium risk (includes buildings 

and below ground remains)

Registered Parks 
and Gardens by size 

(hectares)

Knowsley 0 0 950.00

Liverpool 9 2 596.50

St Helens 1 1 147.00

Sefton 3 8 31.00

Wirral 3 5 202.50

Totals 16 16 1,927.00

Regional 
Totals

135 553 9,874.66

Source: Heritage Counts 2008 – Merseyside Data

Registered Battlefields at high or medium risk = none in LADs and Region. Local Authority maintains a 

‘Heritage Assets At Risk Register’ = none in LADs, 1 across Region.

Listed Heritage Assets in Merseyside

These are proxy indicators from English Heritage, Heritage Counts 2008 – Merseyside Data.

Table C.7: Proxy indicators from English Heritage

Listed Buildings Scheduled 
Ancient 

Monuments

Parks & Gardens WHS Battlefields

Gd 
I

Gd 
II*

Gd II Total I II* II Total

Knowsley 1 3 93 97 0 0 0 2 2 0 0

Liverpool 27 101 1,392 1,520 4 0 2 8 10 1* 0

St Helens 2 13 126 141 12 0 0 2 2 0 0

Sefton 1 19 540 560 13 0 1 4 5 0 0

Wirral 8 27 669 704 9 1 1 2 4 0 0

Total 39 163 2,820 3,022 38 1 4 18 23 1 0

*Liverpool World Heritage Site – Maritime Mercantile City (2004)

Number of listed buildings and percentage on English Heritage’s Buildings at Risk Register - BAR

This information requires rationalisation with data published in AMRs. However the English Heritage data is 

published here for reference.

Table C.8: Number of Listed Buildings and percentage at risk by district

Listed Buildings at riskDistrict Number of Listed Buildings

Number %

Knowsley 101 0 0

Liverpool 1531 9 0.6

St. Helens 141 3 2.1

Page 212Page 170



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

122

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Sefton 539 1 0.2

Wirral 705 3 0.4

Merseyside 3,017 16 0.5

Source: English Heritage Buildings at risk register (2009), www.english-heritage.org.uk/server/show/nav.19075 and

Heritage Gateway (Listed Buildings online) http://www.heritagegateway.org.uk/gateway/advanced_search.aspx

Number and total area of conservation areas

These are proxy indicators from English Heritage, Heritage Counts 2008 – Merseyside Data.

Table C.9: Conservation Area data by authority

Authority Number of 
Conservation Areas

Number of Conservation Areas with 
an appraisal in the past 5 years

Number of Conservation Areas 
which have a management plan

Knowsley 15 15 0

Liverpool 35 8 1

St Helens 10 7 5

Sefton 25 10 2

Wirral 24 5 1

Totals 109 45 9

Regional 
Totals

859 309 164

Sustainability Issue

Sensitivities and due legal regard with respect to accessing and potentially harming cultural, historical, 

built environment and archaeological assets will continue to be applied.

Opportunity: Contributing to the social, cultural and economic life of the area by promoting improved 
public access to historic assets. Opportunity to enhance historic character by reinforcing the identity and 
character of an area e.g. by clearing street clutter, street maintenance, and improving street paving or 
furniture.

Constraint: Development can be restricted by heritage assets such as conservation areas, listed 
buildings, scheduled ancient monuments and archaeology as inappropriate development which affects 
their setting is usually not permitted under planning.

SEA Objective 5 - To protect, enhance and manage biodiversity, the viability of endangered 

species, habitats and sites of geological importance

Number and total area of internationally and nationally designated nature conservation & geologically 

important sites and reported condition

Merseyside contains numerous nationally rare species, together with internationally and nationally 

important habitats, mainly found along the coasts and estuaries. SSSIs can span more than one district 

(e.g. the Mersey Estuary) and although there are none in, or spanning Knowsley there are 16 across

Merseyside. Please note that Natural England updated their ‘Nature on the Map’ database service in 2009. 

Page 213Page 171



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

123

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table C.10: Number of SSSI’s by District

District SSSI name Combined unit size (ha)

Knowsley None n/a

Liverpool Mersey Estuary* 6,714.51

St Helens Stanley Bank Meadow 14.50

Hesketh Golf Links 14.88

Mersey Narrows* 116.34

Ribble Estuary 9,348.45
Sefton

Sefton Coast 4,634.05

Dee Cliffs 15.23

Dee Estuary 5,241.16

Dibbinsdale 55.02

Heswall Dales 29.65

Meols Meadows 7.78

New Ferry 73.43

North Wirral Foreshore 1,962.08

Red Rocks 11.44

The Dungeon 1.09

Wirral

Thurstaston Common 72.08

Source: Natural England; *spans >1 district.

It should also be noted that Sefton Coast is a Special Area of Conservation (SAC).  The Ribble and Alt 

Estuaries, Mersey Estuary and the Dee Estuary are also designated Special Protection Areas (SPA) and 

Ramsar sites. 

Reported levels of damage to designated sites

Between 2007 and 2008 there was an increase in the proportion of Merseyside (to 92.50%) SSSIs which 

are either in favourable or unfavourable (but recovering) condition. The 2006 figure for Merseyside was 

91.65%. By 1st September 2009, the Merseyside figure had reached 93.96% according to Natural England.

Number of Locally Designated Sites

Table C.11: Number of Locally Designated Sites

Authority Number of Locally Designated 
Sites

Knowsley 64

Liverpool 25

St. Helens 77

Sefton 55

Wirral 76

Sources: Knowsley Borough Council, Liverpool City Council, St.Helens Council, Sefton Council and Wirral Metropolitan Borough 

Council

Progress against Biodiversity Action Plan targets

Page 214Page 172



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

124

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

A review of the NMBAP’s (North Merseyside BAP) targets and plans was commenced in 2008 and will help 

to decide whether additional habitats and species are priorities for action in North Merseyside. The 

progress of the review indicated that the majority of Habitat Action Plans had been published but some 

were either still to be drafted or were awaiting comments (e.g. Coastal Sand Dunes and Urban Green 

Infrastructure). Likewise most of the Species Action Plan Reviews, covering birds, mammals, invertebrates, 

coastal and other plants have also been published. Further information is available at the Merseyside 

Biodiversity website.

Sustainability Issue

Overall, Merseyside has a rich and diverse range of habitats and species, which are important to 

biodiversity and connections between habitats. The majority of SSSIs are favourable although some 

sites need better management. All sites and connections between them need to be conserved.

It is important for indirect pressures on biodiversity and habitats to be considered, such as fragmentation 

of habitats, impacts of recreational use and water usage and loss of non- designated wildlife and 

landscape areas.

Other key issues include:
- impacts on the natural environment from transport and associated infrastructure;
- poor access to the natural environment; and
- car based visitor pressure affecting protected landscapes and sites of biodiversity value.

Opportunity: Potential exists to integrate sites of nature conservation into the LTP3. However, their 

protection should be borne in mind in any integration. The LTP3 could also promote public access to 

nature conservation sites, where this does not conflict with the nature conservation interest of a site.

Opportunity to use transport infrastructure to provide wildlife corridors, through, for instances, native 

wildflower verge and embankment planting. Opportunities also exist for:
- conserving and enhancing biodiversity (habitats and species) and geo-diversity;
- maintaining and enhancing green infrastructure as part of the transport network for its wide ranging 

contribution to biodiversity; geo-diversity; accessible recreation and associated health benefits; 
adapting to climate change (e.g. carbon storage, drainage and water conservation);

- maintaining and improving the public rights of way and wider access network (through integration with 
and implementation of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan); 

- more sustainable access in rural locations that provide benefits for residents as well as visitors; and
- protect sites becoming exemplars of sustainable transport.

Constraint: The LTP3 will be constrained by the existence of designated and non-designated nature 

conservation sites and the protection of these areas. Impact of implementing LTP3 measures on 

compensation designated habitat created in Merseyside.

SEA Objective 6 - To protect, enhance and manage the local character and accessibility of the 

landscape across the sub-region

Total area of publicly accessible open land/green space and Total area of publicly accessible urban green 

space

Page 215Page 173



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

125

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

The definitions of green space and accessible landscape (including sports areas and parks) can vary and 

evidence submitted in Merseyside AMRs tends to be piecemeal. The following information derived from OS 

mapping and The Civic Trust is consistent across Merseyside.

Table C.12: Data surrounding open space

Total Area 
(ha)

Total open 
spaces (ha)

% of district 
which is open 

space

Number of open 
space polygons

Green 
Flag (ha)

Green Flag (% of 
open space 

hectares)

Knowsley 8,647 2,054 23.8 215 66.0 3.2

Liverpool 11,184 2,287 20.4 323 321.6 14.1

St. Helens 13,638 1,271 9.3 326 79.0 6.2

Sefton 15,314 1,427 9.3 386 315.1 22.1

Wirral 15,705 829 5.3 271 216.5 26.1

Source: Open Space from OS mapping, May 2008. Green Flag status from The Civic Trust (Liverpool), Sept 2008.

Extent of Green Belt and areas of designated landscape value/importance

Approximately 45% of the Merseyside land area is designated green belt. The Regional Strategy for the 

Northwest will bring together its spatial, economic, social and environmental strategies and build a new 

long term vision for the region. However, Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS) for the North West, Policy RDF5 

(Green Belts) stated that ‘overall the general extent of the Region’s Green Belt will be maintained. There is 

no need for any exceptional substantial strategic change to Green Belt and its boundaries in the NW within 

Cheshire, Greater Manchester, Lancashire or Merseyside before 2011 and within Warrington before 2021’.

Total area of woodland/extent of tree cover

Data from OS Mastermap shows woodland coverage (hectares per ward) across Merseyside.

Page 216Page 174



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

126

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.5: Woodland coverage (hectares per ward) for Merseyside

Sustainability Issue

Merseyside has many important local landscapes and coastal landscape areas. Traffic infrastructure can 

affect the landscape through noise and visual intrusion. 

Opportunity: Opportunities exist for:
- conserving and enhancing local landscape (and townscape) character and quality, and local 

distinctiveness (including reducing noise and light pollution;
- maintaining and enhancing green infrastructure as part of the transport network for its wide ranging 

contribution to biodiversity; geo-diversity; accessible recreation and associated health benefits; 
adapting to climate change (e.g. carbon storage, drainage and water conservation);

- maintaining and enhancing access to green and open spaces;
- maintaining and improving the public rights of way and wider access network (through integration with 

and implementation of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan); 
- more sustainable access in rural locations that provide benefits for residents as well as visitors; and
- protected sites becoming exemplars of sustainable transport.

Page 217Page 175



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

127

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Constraint: Protecting the tranquillity and openness of the countryside.

SEA Objective 7 - To protect, improve and where necessary, restore the quality of inland, estuarine 

and coastal waters

Water quality (chemical & biological) classification of rivers, canals, estuaries and coastal waters, Bathing 

water quality

The introduction of the WFD is the most important new European water legislation for many years. A new 

approach to water management is promoted through river basin planning, and it will set the objectives for 

water protection for the future. It requires all inland and coastal water bodies to reach at least ‘good’ status 

by 2015 – subject to certain exemptions. The emphasis is on biological monitoring because this gives a 

broader assessment of the health of rivers.

There will be a transitional period of reporting water quality. When there is enough new data collected for 

the water framework directive, the old water quality indicators (General Quality Assessments - GQA) will be 

replaced with ones that use this new data. The current indicators for England and Wales will be produced 

for several more years, although in England they will be based on fewer monitoring sites. As a 

consequence of this, regional and local level results will no longer automatically be produced as part of the 

process, but in the longer term the Environment Agency will be better able to report on the water 

environment in river basin districts.

The Environment Agency submitted the River Basin Management Plans, which plan on how to protect and 

improve the watercourse, to the Secretary of State for the Department for Environment, Food and Rural 

Affairs and the Welsh Minister.  These were completed in December 2009 and are available from: 

http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/planning/33106.aspx

The latest 2007 River Grades (Biology) shown are therefore at regional and national level only. Consistent 

Merseyside district level GQA is only available for 2006 and earlier.

Table C.13: River Grades (Biology) data

a b c d e f a and b a and b

Very good Good Fairly good Fair Poor Bad Good or better % point change

England 2004 39.1 31.9 16.4 6.5 5.0 1.0 71.0

2005 38.0 33.4 15.9 6.8 4.8 1.0 71.4

2006 38.0 34.1 15.9 6.5 4.4 1.0 72.1

2007 39.6 32.8 15.7 6.6 4.4 1.1 72.3 1.3

NW 2004 21.6 36.1 20.3 10.1 10.3 1.6 57.6

2005 19.4 38.7 18.5 11.6 10.8 1.0 58.1

2006 20.5 39.7 17.6 11.1 9.5 1.6 60.2

2007 23.5 40.3 15.3 10.1 9.1 1.7 63.8 6.2

Source: Environment Agency, www.environment-agency.gov.uk/research/library/data/34391.aspx

Page 218Page 176



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

128

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table C.14: Water Quality data

Beach 
Name

Number 
of 

samples

Water Quality Rating 2007 Water Quality Rating 2008 Overall 
Rating 

2007

Overall 
Rating 

2008

Poor Good Excellent Poor Good Excellent

Sefton

Ainsdale 20 0 9 11 1 7 12 Good Good

Formby 20 0 5 15 0 5 15 Good Good

Southport 20 0 8 12 0 9 11 Good Good

Wirral

Meols 20 0 1 19 0 1 19 Excellent Excellent

Morton 20 0 2 18 0 2 18 Excellent Excellent

New 
Brighton

20 0 1 19 0 2 18 Excellent Excellent

West Kirby 20 0 3 17 0 5 15 Excellent Good

Source: Environment Agency

Sustainability Issue

Road traffic management potentially has a significant role to play in water quality because of the amount 

of pollutants cumulatively entering the water system via surface discharges. However, the actual level of 

contribution is unknown.

Opportunity: Potential to improve and promote public access to the River Mersey and riverside routes. 
Opportunity to further improve existing ferry crossings and use of the River Mersey for transportation.  
Location of transport infrastructure to avoid flood risk areas.

Constraint: LTP3 constrained by the presence of nature conservation designations within and around 
the River Mersey. Existing developments on flood risk areas still need transportation links.

SEA Objective 8 - To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local air quality

Background pollutant concentrations

Table C.15: Summary of continuous PM10 Monitoring Results

Site Year
Annual Average

uLCR-3
No. of Days
>50uLCR-3

No. of Days
>17hours Data

Liverpool Islington 2000 25 3 259

2007 28 3 92

Liverpool Speke 2000 20 2 179

2007 18 11 356

Wirral Tranmere 2000 22 9 223

2007 17 5 356

Source: AEA July 2008.

Page 219Page 177



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

129

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table C.16: Number of days of NO2 above the hourly air quality standard (200 ug/m3) in Merseyside

Year Nitrogen Dioxide

1997 0

1998 0

1999 1

2000 28

2001 25

2002 9

2003 12

2004 0

2005 0

2006 0

2007 0

Source: AEA July, 2008

Number of ‘air pollution days’

Table C.17: Number of ‘Air Pollution Days’ in Merseyside (number of days in the MODERATE band or above)

Pollutant 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Carbon Monoxide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Nitrogen Dioxide 0 0 0 6 7 2 1 0 0 0 0

Ozone 13 8 18 22 30 23 46 18 24 40 19

Particulates (PM10) 17 10 3 25 12 12 19 11 1 3 11

Sulphur Dioxide 9 2 3 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

Total 39 20 24 56 49 39 66 29 25 43 30

Source: AEA July, 2008

Annual quantity of emissions by sector

Air Quality information is further presented by the Merseyside Atmospheric Emissions Inventory with 

mapping of NOX available at 200 metre grid resolution - emissions from transport.

Page 220Page 178



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

130

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.6: Transport NOx Emissions for Merseyside

Source: MAEI 2006 Results

Number and total area of Air Quality Management Areas and population living in AQMAs

There are currently six AQMAs in Merseyside. There is a citywide AQMA for Liverpool designated for NO2. 

There are two AQMAs in St. Helens designated for NO2, at High Street Newton le Willows (A49) between 

the junctions of Ashton Road and Church Street; and the M6 for its entire length within the borough. There 

are three AQMAs in Sefton: 1) Crosby Road North (A565) between the junctions with South Road and 

College Road, designated for PM10; 2) Princess Way (A5036) from Ewart Road flyobver up to and including 

the roundabout and flyover at the junction with Crosby Road South (A565), designated for NO2; 3) Junction 

of Millers Bridge (A5058) and Derby Road, designated for NO2 and PM10. 

The population in each varies widely according to ONS 2006 population estimates ranging from over 

430,000 in Liverpool to between 30 (Crosby Road North) and almost 500 (Princess Way) in the Sefton 

AQMAs.

Number of significant ‘point sources’ – Part A processes

Air Quality information is further presented by the Merseyside Atmospheric Emissions Inventory with 

mapping of PM10 available at 200 metre grid resolution – industrial emissions from permitted processes and 

boilers. 

Page 221Page 179



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

131

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.7: Number of Significant Point Sources (Part A Processes)

Source: MAEI 2006 Results

Traffic volumes (annual average daily and peak hour) on main roads

Estimated traffic flows for all Motor Vehicles have been increasing since 1994 but appear to be levelling off 

in most districts during the last two years.

Page 222Page 180



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

132

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.8: Growth in Traffic volume all day across Merseyside Districts

90

95

100

105

110

115

120

125

130

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

In
d

e
x

Knowsley Liverpool Sefton St. Helens Wirral Merseyside

Source: DfT Traffic Statistics for Local Authorities

The following graph shows peak traffic growth (derived from TiM, fig 4.67) for Liverpool City Centre as a 
proxy for Merseyside.

Figure C.9: Peak traffic growth

Liverpool Centre 8-9 AM Peak Flow

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 (Jan-
Mar)

Year

M
IS

 T
ra

ff
ic

 I
n

d
e

x

Page 223Page 181



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

133

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Sustainability Issue

Transport emissions are a major contributor to air pollution at both the national and the local level. There 

are currently six AQMAs in the Merseyside. The total number of ‘air pollution days’ in Merseyside has 

been tracked since 1997. The latest information shows there were 30 days in 2007 compared to 43 in 

2006 and 25 in 2005. Estimated traffic flows for all Motor Vehicles have been increasing since 1994 but 

appear to be levelling off in most districts during the two years to 2008.

Opportunity: Potential to help reduce air pollution through promotion of sustainable transport modes, 
park and ride sites, and deterrents to using the private car.

Constraint: Difficulty in changing people’s behaviour to use sustainable transport modes rather than the 
private car to create modal shift.

SEA Objective 9 - To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local environmental quality

Number of people reporting disturbance due to environmental noise

The 2005 SEA baseline report included a table containing data on the number of people reporting 

disturbance due to environmental noise. The data within these tables originated from a one-off report 

compiled by Hepworth Acoustics in 2004 titled ‘Ambient Noise on Merseyside’. There is no recent data to 

compare the baseline data with. In response to the lack of published data, noise disturbance data was 

requested from each of the Councils. The most commonly reported noise disturbance was noisy 

neighbours, 66.2% in Sefton and 82.7% in St. Helens. Data for other districts was not supplied.

Table C.18: Noise reporting in Sefton and St. Helens

Sefton St. Helens

Noise Category No. % No. %

Road Traffic 14 1.3 7 0.9

Neighbours 696 66.2 629 82.7

Other people nearby 3 0.3 0 0

Aircraft/airport/airfields 0 0 0 0

Building, construction, 
demolition, renovation or road 
works

71 608 12 1.6

Trains or railway stations 2 0.2 0 0

Sports Events 6 0.6 0 0

Other entertainment or leisure 157 14.9 45 5.9

Community Buildings 5 0.5 3 0.4

Forestry, farming or agriculture 6 0.6 9 1.2

Factories or works 46 4.4 25 3.3

Other commercial premises 45 4.3 25 3.3

Sea, river or canal traffic 0 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 0 0 6 0.8

Total 1051 761

Page 224Page 182



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

134

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Source: “Ambient Noise on Merseyside” Hepworth Acoustics (2004)

Percentage of population exposed to noise levels above acceptable thresholds (to be derived from DEFRA 

noise mapping).

The following examples show the outputs available from http://services.defra.gov.uk/wps/portal/noise.

Figure C.10: Noise Mapping from Liverpool John Lennon Airport

Source: http://services.defra.gov.uk/wps/portal/noise.

Page 225Page 183



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

135

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.11: Noise Mapping from Industry

Source: http://services.defra.gov.uk/wps/portal/noise.

Figure C.12: Noise Mapping from Roads

Source: http://services.defra.gov.uk/wps/portal/noise.

Page 226Page 184



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

136

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.13: Noise Mapping from Railways

Source: http://services.defra.gov.uk/wps/portal/noise.

Extent of (designated) tranquil areas

The Campaign to Protect Rural England (2007) has produced tranquillity maps at the Regional level 

showing areas shaded from most to least tranquil. They show the least tranquil places being those in or 

near metropolitan and other urban areas and/or along arterial highway routes.

% of people who agree that their local area is a place where people from different backgrounds get on well 

together

% of people who are satisfied with their local areas as a place to live

% people aged 65 and over who are satisfied with both home and neighbourhood

The following data and indicators are from the Place Survey Results (2008).  Sefton received the highest 

percentage of people who agree that their local area is a place where people from different backgrounds 

get on well together at 80.9% and the highest percentage of people aged 65 and over who are satisfied 

with both home and their neighbourhood at 88.3%.  Liverpool has the lowest percentages for these two 

national indicators and also for the percentage of people who are satisfied with their local area as a place 

to live.

Table C.19: Place Survey Results for NI 1, NI 5 and NI 138
AuthorityPlace Survey Indicators

Liverpool Sefton Knowsley St. Helens Wirral
% of people who agree that 
their local area is a place 
where people from different 
backgrounds get on well 
together (NI 1)

69.8 80.9 71.9 73.5 79.6

% of people who are satisfied 
with their local areas as a 

71.3 79.3 72.2 74.2 82.2

Page 227Page 185



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

137

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

place to live (NI 5)
% people aged 65 and over 
who are satisfied with both 
home and neighbourhood (NI 
138)

76.1 88.3 83.9 83.2 85.2

Source: Places Analysis Tool

Sustainability Issue

Transport is strongly linked to the local environmental quality by its impact on noise levels and traffic 

intrusion. According to the Hepworth report ‘Ambient Noise on Merseyside’, road traffic, followed by 

neighbours, aircraft/airports and construction/renovation noise featured in the top four sources of noise 

nuisance. However, neighbours and other entertainment/leisure are the main sources cited.

Opportunity: Opportunity to include innovative noise screening and barriers as part of transport 
infrastructure. Encourage use of quieter transport modes such as walking, cycling and electric vehicles.
Locate strategic and primary road routes away from villages. Ensure HGV’s use strategic road networks.

Constraint: Roads need to be located near to residential properties for access.

SEA Objective 10 - To improve health and reduce health inequalities

Coronary Heart Disease (CHD)

Hospital Episode Statistics (HES) and LCR Health Profiles (July 2008) data from the NW Public Health 

Observatory (NWPHO) present the latest situation on CHD. The data is indexed for comparison and it is 

evident that Knowsley is of greatest concern in terms of both measures. Sefton has the lowest incidences 

of CHD HES and early deaths in Merseyside although the latter statistic is combined with stroke. Sefton 

and Wirral are either on a par with regional rates (HES) or lower (early deaths).

Table C.20: Hospital Episode Statistics and Health Profiles data

District
CHD HES (2001/02 to 2005/06)

Early deaths: heart disease & stroke

(Health Profiles 2008)

Knowsley 182.86 123.96

Liverpool 137.68 120.24

St. Helens 140.19 103.89

Sefton 115.92 88.57

Wirral 117.86 91.04

NW 115.91 102.2

Source: NWPHO

Model-Based Estimates of Current Smoking for LADs in England

LCR Health Profiles (July 2008) data from the (NWPHO) show a variety of smoking indicators; in 

pregnancy, in adults and deaths. Across the range of indicators Knowsley and Liverpool share most of the 

higher rates. This is also the case for St.Helens but only for ‘smoking in pregnancy’. Sefton and Wirral tend

to have the lowest rates in Merseyside which are also better than the NW regional rates. The ‘adults who 

Page 228Page 186



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

138

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

smoke’ results echo the Model-Based Estimates produced by the Information Centre for Health and Social 

Care, 2007 (National Centre for Social Research) based on Health Surveys for England 2003 to 2005.

Table C.21: Merseyside Health Profiles and smoking indicators

Smoking in pregnancy Adults who smoke Deaths from smoking Model based estimate %*

Knowsley 24.24 34.19 355.04 34.2

Liverpool 22.99 34.28 349.78 34.3

St. Helens 24.06 25.06 277.32 25.1

Sefton 18.79 23.71 248.27 23.7

Wirral 15.78 22.79 257.37 22.8

NW 20.75 25.96 269.96 26.0

Source: NWPHO and *NatCen

Estimates of Obesity and of overweight children

Knowsley has the highest obesity rates for children and Wirral the lowest. For adults, St. Helens has the 

highest rates and Wirral the lowest although for adults, the overall proportions are higher than for children.

Table C.22: Adult and Children Obesity rates by district

District Obese children Obese adults*

Knowsley 13.11 23.45

Liverpool 10.58 21.92

St.Helens 14.30 25.34

Sefton 11.61 21.98

Wirral 9.13 21.73

NW 10.22 24.48

Source: NWPHO and *NatCen

Table C.23: Child obesity data

Obese Overweight+Obese Obese Overweight+Obese

District
boys (age 
4-5)

girls (4-
5)

boys (4-5) girls (4-5)
boys (10-
11)

girls (10-
11)

boys (10-
11)

girls (10-11)

Knowsley 13.75 13.15 31.84 28.13 20.37 17.35 34.72 34.54

Liverpool 11.05 10.16 24.57 21.79 20.68 14.81 35.58 28.72

St.Helens 15.52 12.34 34.74 31.68 22.84 19.65 38.36 36.48

Sefton 12.00 11.17 28.02 26.45 20.65 15.89 35.41 29.58

Wirral 9.82 8.40 24.27 22.11 20.84 17.88 35.71 33.41

NW 10.96 9.45 25.21 22.65 18.88 15.64 33.01 29.77

Source: NWPHO based on 2006-07 data

Years of healthy life expectancy (NI 137 - healthy life expectancy age 65)

Healthy life expectancy (HLE) at age 65 is also NI137. People are living longer but HLE is not increasing at 

the same rate. It is clearly desirable for increased life expectancy to be spent in good health. The measure 

looks at self-reported health, which captures the effects of the full range of interventions to improve 

objective health status on subjective states of health, and thus whether efforts are being appropriately 

targeted at conditions or behaviours that improve people’s lives. Baselines and targets are set on the basis 

Page 229Page 187



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

139

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

of HLE from the Census 2001 which are up-rated using national average trends in HLE from the annual 

General Household Survey.

Sefton has the highest male and female life expectancy (LE) at birth (76.2 and 81.0 respectively) and 

Liverpool the lowest (73.8 and 78.3). However, HLE at age 65 is highest in Wirral (13.2 years) followed by 

Sefton (13.0). Knowsley and Liverpool share the lowest number of years at 10.9 each.

Table C.24: Life Expectancy by district

District HLE at age 65 Male Life Expectancy: ONS Female Life Expectancy: ONS

Knowsley 10.9 74.4 79.0

Liverpool 10.9 73.8 78.3

St. Helens 11.6 75.3 80.2

Sefton 13.0 76.2 81.0

Wirral 13.2 75.7 80.8

NW 12.6 75.8 80.3

England 13.7 - -

Source: ONS 2002-2006 estimate/NWPHO

Mortality (standardised mortality ratios) by main cause

The all-age all cause mortality rate is also NI120. The indicator is reported and monitored as two separate 

mortality rates – one for males and one for females. Each of these rates is a single figure for all causes and 

all ages combined. Single year rates are used to enable timely reporting. The associated national target is 

assessed using 3-year average figures. The data is sourced from ONS death registrations and population 

statistics, published by the National Centre for Health Outcomes Development. A ‘good’ score is a lower 

score so Sefton demonstrates the lowest all-age all cause mortality in 2007 and 2008 and was also better 

than the NW average in 2007. Liverpool LAD had the highest score in 2008 amongst the Merseyside

districts.

Table C.25: Mortality data

District 1993 2001 2006 2007 2008

Knowsley 1027.3 827.5 756.8 728.1 713.4

Liverpool 968.0 885.4 790.7 775.2 776.1

St. Helens 897.2 794.3 669.9 697.7 677.7

Sefton 862.0 734.4 603.5 624.5 631.1

Wirral 826.7 719.0 652.5 665.6 641.5

NW 880.5 750.0 666.9 661.2 -

England 790.4 667.9 591.6 579.4 -

Source: ONS

The Standardised Mortality Ratio (SMR) is calculated as the number of deaths observed within an area 

divided by the expected number of deaths within that area, this ratio is then multiplied by 100. At MSOA 

level the map shows that there are small areas on Merseyside where the SMR is double that of the 

England average of 100 including Liverpool City Centre. It is also evident that that there are many areas on 

Merseyside where the SMR is less than the English average.

Page 230Page 188



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

140

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.14: All Ages All Cause Mortality data

Source: ONS

% people who think that drug use or drug dealing is a problem in their local area

% people who say their health is good or very good

National indicators relating to drug dealing issues and health for the local authorities covered by the LTP3 

are shown below.

Table C.26: Place Survey Results for NI 42 and NI 119
AuthorityPlace Survey Indicators

Liverpool Sefton Knowsley St. Helens Wirral

% people who think that drug 
use or drug dealing is a 
problem in their local area (NI 
42)

46.4 38.6 47.4 42.1 29.7

% people who say their health 
is good or very good (NI 119)

72.3 74.5 69.4 71.0 73.6

Source: Places Analysis Tool

% adult participation in sport and active recreation

Table C.27: % adult participation in sport and active recreation

Authority % adult participation in sport and active recreation

Liverpool 20.0

Sefton 18.9

Page 231Page 189



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

141

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Authority % adult participation in sport and active recreation

Knowsley 19.3

St Helens 20.1

Wirral 24.5

Source: Places Analysis Tool

Sustainability Issue

Some transport impacts on health are better known and more direct than others, e.g. road traffic 

accidents or annoyance from traffic noise. Evidence of the direct effects of air pollution on mortality and 

respiratory diseases have also emerged in recent years. Children, the elderly, and those with pre-

existing respiratory and cardiac conditions are the most susceptible to the health impacts of transport. 

Also car use (as a driver or as a passenger) is strongly associated with a sedentary lifestyle which is 

viewed as one of the most important risk factors for early mortality in western populations.  

Opportunity: The LTP3 provides a good opportunity to encourage healthy and active lifestyles through 

investment in cycle and pedestrian routes and facilities and public transport.  Aiming to encourage modal 

shift and reduce reliance on cars, this may have other health benefits in terms of air quality.

Constraint: Difficulty in changing people’s behaviour and getting modal hsift from car to non-car modes 
of transport.

SEA Objective 11 - To improve safety and reduce crime, disorder and fear of crime

Numbers of people killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents

The latest Merseyside Road Casualties (Killed or Seriously Injured, All Ages), averages, trajectories and 

targets are shown in the figure below. Data for each of the Merseyside LADs can also be reproduced if 

required.

Page 232Page 190



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

142

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.15: Merseyside Road Casualties

400

450

500

550

600

650

700

750

800

850

900

950

Year

N
u

m
b

e
r

94-98 av 833 833 833 833 833

trajectory 833 809.2 785.4 761.6 737.8 714 690.2 666.4 642.6 618.8 595 571.2 547.4 523.6 499.8

2010 target 500

Actual KSI Recorded 914 811 837 839 764 688 759 699 781 781 770 710 626 542 552

Revised Trajectory in LTP2 770 713 647 588 547 524 500

1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Source: STATS 19/LTPSU

Numbers of children killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents

It should be acknowledged that LTPSU has more up to date child KSI data available (2008) than that 

presented here. This can be requested and reproduced if required.

Numbers and rates are shown below. Rates offer a better comparison because they standardise for 

population although numbers have fallen across Merseyside from 136 in 2003 to 90 in 2007. By 2007 and 

across Merseyside, only the rates in St. Helens (0.1 per 1,000 population) were better than the regional 

and national averages (both 0.3).

Table C.28: Numbers of children killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents

Numbers per LAD 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Knowsley 12 15 15 11 9

Liverpool 68 64 62 43 39

St. Helens 12 14 14 9 3

Sefton 12 19 17 11 15

Wirral 32 26 38 33 24

Merseyside 136 138 146 107 90

Source: DfT/ONS, Knowsley LDF AMR 2008

Page 233Page 191



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

143

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table C.29: Rates of children killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents

Rates per 1,000 population by area 1997 2001 2005 2006 2007

Knowsley 1.0 0.3 0.5 0.3 0.3

Liverpool 0.8 0.6 0.8 0.6 0.5

St. Helens 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.1

Sefton 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.3

Wirral 0.6 0.3 0.6 0.5 0.4

NW 0.7 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.3

England 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.3

Source: DfT/ONS

Recorded crime per 1,000 population

Liverpool LAD experiences both the highest volume of crime (53,949) and the highest rate per 1,000 

population (123.9) across Merseyside. The lowest rate, although not the lowest count is found in Wirral 

(58.9 per 1,000 population).

Table C.30: Recorded Crime Rates

Population 2008 estimate 
(rounded)

Total Recorded Crime Count 
2008/09

Total Recorded Crime Rate per 
1,000 pop 2008/09

Knowsley 150,800 13,093 86.8

Liverpool 434,900 53,949 124.0

St.Helens 177,500 13,798 77.7

Sefton 275,100 18,696 68.0

Wirral 309,500 18,282 59.1

Merseyside 1,347,800 117,818 87.4

Source: ONS 2008 pop estimates, HO CrimSec3 reports

Number of people reporting fear of crime

Fear of crime is no longer a performance indicator. It has been replaced by user and public confidence and 

satisfaction national indicator (NI) surveys. Complete and consistent baselines are not yet available

% people who think that anti-social behaviour is a problem in their local area

% people who agree that the police and other public services are successfully dealing with anti-social 

behaviour and crime in their local area

% people who agree that the police and other local public services seek people’s views about anti-social 

behaviour and crime in their local area

% people who think that drunk and rowdy behaviour is a problem in their local area

National indicators relating to anti-social behaviour, crime and police services for the local authorities 

covered by the LTP3 are shown below.

Page 234Page 192



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

144

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table C.31: Place Survey Results for NI 17, NI 21, NI 27 and NI 41
AuthorityPlace Survey Indicators

Liverpool Sefton Knowsley St. Helens Wirral
% people who think that anti-
social behaviour is a problem 
in their local area (NI 17)

31.4 22.5 27.9 26.2 18.7

% people who agree that the 
police and other public 
services are successfully 
dealing with anti-social 
behaviour and crime in their 
local area (NI 21)

27.4 29.1 26.6 29.0 25.3

% people who agree that the 
police and other local public 
services seek people’s views 
about anti-social behaviour 
and crime in their local area 
(NI 27)

27.5 27.6 26.2 26.5 22.4

% people who think that drunk 
and rowdy behaviour is a 
problem in their local area (NI 
41)

32.8 33.5 30.9 34.0 29.5

Source: Places Analysis Tool

Sustainability Issue

Transport is an important contributor to the objective of improving safety and reducing crime and 

disorder at the national and local level. The risk people are exposed to varies from place to place and 

with mode of travel, (for example young pedestrians are particularly vulnerable). Transport’s links with 

safety are strongly associated with traffic accidents. Transport and crime are strongly linked by issues 

such as car related crimes, safe parking and crime on public transport.

Numbers of people killed/seriously injured in traffic accidents have fallen across Merseyside from 781 in 

2003 to 545 in 2007. By 2007, rates in all LADs except Wirral were better than the regional and national 

averages with St.Helens and Sefton sharing the lowest rates per 1,000 population.

Opportunity: Potential to improve transport related crime and anti-social behaviour through improved 
safety and security measures. Potential to further increase road safety through road safety awareness 
campaigns and road safety measures.

Constraint: Perception of crime in more deprived areas and town centres maybe difficult to change, 
even with increased measures.

SEA Objective 12 - To improve local accessibility of goods, services and amenities and reduce 

community severance

Government defined indicators for access by public transport to education, work, health care and shopping 

centres

The Department for Transport has published statistics on the Core Accessibility Indicators for 2008. The 

Indicators provide a number of measures of accessibility by public transport, walking, cycling and car to 

seven service types: primary schools, secondary schools, further education, GPs, hospitals, food stores 

Page 235Page 193



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

145

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

and employment. With the exception of further education, indicators have also been produced for an 'at-

risk' sub-group of the population.

(See www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/statistics/datatablespublications/ltp/coreaccessindicators2008).

Transport accessibility and mobility – Connectivity Score

Figure C.16: Connectivity scores

Source: Halton LTP3 Evidence Base Review (2010)

Travel time to key services by public transport/walk

Figure C.17: Travel time (minutes) to nearest key service by public transport/walk by unitary authority

Page 236Page 194



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

146

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Source: Halton LTP3 Evidence Base Review (2010)

Access for disabled people to goods, services and amenities

Figure C.18: Disabled persons travel pass ownership

22

78

26

74

35

65

47

53

37

63

29

71

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Has disabled pass No disabled pass

%
 o

f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 m

o
b

il
it

y
 p

ro
b

le
m

s

1987-88

1991-93

1996

2001

2005-06

2008

Source: Countrywide Survey, 2008

Sustainability Issue

Transport is clearly linked with accessibility issues at the national and local level. For example, 89% of 

British households have a bus stop within a six-minute walk. It is also important to understand how much 

travel an individual should be prepared to undertake in order to access a service e.g. work. Given the 

current distribution of opportunities, some people need both the access to services and also to accept 

the need to travel more if they are to be economically included. Accessibility to local goods, services and 

amenities is strongly linked to transport especially in areas where community severance exists.

Opportunity: Opportunity to increase accessibility via sustainable transport modes from residential 
areas to town centres and other key areas of employment, services and goods.

Constraint: Cost of public transport for deprived areas, there needs to be concessions built into public 
transport ticketing, and bike hire schemes.

SEA Objective 13 - To reduce the need to travel and improve choice and use of more sustainable 

transport modes

Trends in public transport fares, motoring costs and the retail price index

Page 237Page 195



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

147

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

It is evident that, particularly in the last 10 years or so, rail and especially bus fares have increased by more 

and at a faster rate than both the RPI and motoring costs.

Figure C.19: Trends in Public Transport Fares, Motoring Costs and the Retail Price Index

Average commercial peak bus fare per mile and average commercial off-peak bus fare per mile (in pence)

The graphic is a proxy measure because it represents average total fares not fares per mile but it 

compares commercial with supported bus and Merseyrail fares. Latest off-peak fares (07/08 and 08/09) by 

commercial bus are of a similar magnitude to average Merseyrail fares.

Page 238Page 196



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

148

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.20: Average Peak Fares & Average Off Peak Fares

Source: Merseytravel Annual Passenger Services Monitor 2008/09

Commercial bus fares per mile from 1986 to 2009 can be seen in the ‘Miles 1’ row in the following tables.

Page 239Page 197



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

149

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.21: Changes in commercial bus fares

Source: Merseytravel Annual Passenger Services Monitor 2008/09

Personal Travel – distances, purposes and modes

The following information is from the Merseyside Countywide Travel Survey 2008. Distances are not 

available but the modal percentage of trips made in each of the surveys from 1987-88 is two, followed by 

four.

Page 240Page 198



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

150

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.22: Trips by Number

16

1

52

5

16

4 3
1 1 1

1

14

1

45

6

19

5 5

2 1
1 1

16

1

45

7

19

4 4

2 1 1 1

14

1

47

7

19

4 4

2 1
0 1

14

1

45

8

18

5 5

1 1
1 0

14

1

46

8

18

4
5

1 1 0 1

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10+

Number of trips made

%
 o

f 
tr

ip
s

 m
a

d
e

 b
y

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 5

+

1987-88

1991-93

1996

2001

2005/06

2008

Source: Merseyside Countywide Travel Survey 2008

The most common purposes for trips are work, shopping and social/recreation although percentages have 

fluctuated between these three purposes over the years of the survey.

Page 241Page 199



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

151

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.23: Trip by Purpose

25

12

17

0

8

0

27

1
2

8

21

12

19

0

9

23

4

1

3

8

20

11

21

6

4

21

5

1
2

8

22

13

20

6

3

21

5

1

2

7

21

11

20

7

4

18

6

1

3

8

21

11

20

7

3

19

7

1

4

8

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

H
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
w

o
rk

H
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n

H
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
s
h

o
p

p
in

g

H
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
e

s
c
o

rt
 c

h
ild

 -
s
c
h

o
o

l

H
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
o

th
e

r 
e

s
c
o

rt

H
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
s
o

c
ia

l/
re

c
re

a
ti
o

n

H
o

m
e

 b
a

s
e

d
o

th
e

r

W
o

rk
 t

o
 w

o
rk

O
th

e
r 

n
o

n
 h

o
m

e
b

a
s
e

d
 w

o
rk

O
th

e
r 

n
o

n
 h

o
m

e
b

a
s
e

d
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
w

o
rk

%
 o

f 
tr

ip
s

 m
a

d
e

 b
y

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

g
e

d
 5

+

1987-88

1991-93

1996

2001

2005-06

2008

Source: Merseyside Countywide Travel Survey 2008

Driving a car and walking have continually been the most common mode of transport for trips over the 

years of the survey.

Page 242Page 200



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

152

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.24: Trips by Mode

29

2

1

32

14

1

3

18

1
0

25

1

0

37

16

2
2

16

1 0

25

2

0

37

16

3 2

15

1
0

25

1 0

38

16

2 2

14

1
0

23

1

0

40

17

1

3

13

0 0

24

1
0

38

17

2
3

14

1 1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Walk Pedal
cycle

Motor
cycle

Car
Driver

Car Pass Taxi Train Bus -
service

Bus -
other

Other

%
 o

f 
tr

ip
s

 m
a

d
e

 b
y

 p
e

rs
o

n
s

 a
g

e
d

 5
+

1987-88

1991-93

1996

2001

2005/06

2008

Source: Merseyside Countywide Travel Survey 2008

Travel to school, work and shops by mode

Walking is the most common mode of transport to school, decreasing only slightly since the 2006/07 

baseline. Comparable figures for work and shops are not presented.

Table C.32: Travel data by mode

Travelled By 
Car

Car share
Public 

Transport
Walking Cycling Other

2006/07 baseline 30.5% 3.0% 17.9% 47.1% 1.1% 0.4%

2007/08 31.0% 3.3% 18.2% 45.8% 1.2% 0.4%

2008/09 30.4% 3.2% 18.4% 46.3% 1.2% 0.4%

2008/09 Change 
from baseline

0.6% 0.3% -0.4% -0.7% 0.1% 0.1%

Source: School Census

Trips for all modes and for all purposes are also available from the CWS.

Page 243Page 201



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

153

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Figure C.25: Trips for all modes and for all purposes

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

Walk Pedal cycle Motorcycle Car/van
(passenger)

Car/van
(driver)

Taxi Train Scheduled
bus

Other coach Other 

T
h

o
u

s
a
n

d
s
 o

f 
T

ri
p

s
 b

y
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g

e
d

 5
+

Other non home based excluding work

Other non home based work

Work to work

Home based other

Home based social/recreation

Home based other escort

Home based escort child - school

Home based shopping

Home based education

Home based work

Source: Merseyside Countywide Travel Survey 2008

Bus and Rail patronage

Bus patronage (millions of passenger trips per year) has decreased in all metropolitan areas since 2001/02 

except in Greater Manchester and also in London.

Table C.33: Bus patronage data

Year
Mersey-

side
West 

Midlands

Greater 
Man-

chester

West 
Yorkshire

South 
Yorkshire

Tyne and 
Wear

All 
Metro-
politan 

Districts

London

2001/02 164 357 213 187 131 145 1,197 1,422

2002/03 161 349 213 187 130 141 1,181 1,527

2003/04 159 335 223 184 122 137 1,160 1,692

2004/05 158 327 220 179 113 131 1,128 1,802

2005/06 156 321 217 179 115 124 1,112 1,881

2006/07 163 323 223 187 117 127 1,140 1,993

2007/08 151 327 226 177 119 120 1,120 2,090

Change 
02/08

-7.9% -8.4% 6.1% -5.4% -9.2% -17.2% -6.4% 47.0%

Source: DfT Regional Transport Statistics 2008

Page 244Page 202



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

154

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Conversely, rail patronage has increased since the 1995/96 baseline in terms of millions of passenger trips 

per year (numbers are lower than bus patronage).

Table C.34: Rail patronage data

Year
Mersey-

side
West 

Midlands
Greater Man-

chester
West 

Yorkshire
South 

Yorkshire

Tyne 
and 

Wear

All Metro-politan 
Districts

2007/08 25.20 31.22 34.95 28.75 10.96 7.00 138.08

Change 
since 
1995/96

37% 63% 57% 70% 43% 19% 19%

Source: Office of Rail Regulation, National Rail Trends

Quality of Bus Fleet (age/engine standard)

It is evident that newer vehicles (2-5 years) have become more prevalent since 2006/07 and that the 

proportion of these vehicles is at its highest since 2004/05. The average age in 2008/09 is just under 9

years compared to 12 years in 1993/94.

Figure C.26: Bus Fleet Profile

Source: Merseytravel Annual Passenger Services Monitor 2008/09

The Merseyside Environmental Standard of Bus Fleet (Euro III or equivalent) was 35% in 2006, increasing 

to 41.3% in 2008/09.

Sustainability Issue

To reduce the need to travel, and improve choice and use of more sustainable transport modes is an 

important national issue. It is now widely recognised that many urban areas cannot provide the road 

space in response to traffic growth projects. Demand management or the reduction of the need to travel 

Page 245Page 203



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

155

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

is now widely accepted. Transport plays a central role in reducing the need to travel and improving the 

choice and use of more sustainable transport modes.

The most common purposes for trips are work, shopping and social/recreation. Driving a car and walking 

have continually been the most common mode of transport for trips over the years of the surveys 

(Countywide travel surveys from 1987-88). Walking is the most common mode of transport to school, 

decreasing only slightly since the 2006/07 baseline. Bus patronage has decreased in all metropolitan 

areas since 2001/02 except in Greater Manchester and also in London. Conversely, rail patronage has 

increased since the 1995/96 baseline in terms of millions of passenger trips per year (although volumes 

are lower than they are for bus).

Opportunity: The LTP3 has the potential to make a large beneficial contribution to reducing congestion 
through improvements to public transport, cycle and walking routes. Promoting rail and water 
transportation for freight. Introducing deterrents to using the private car such as increased car parking 
fees in town centres. Travel planning and initiatives for schools, workplaces and individuals could be 
investigated

Constraint: Changing behaviour to get modal shift away from the private car.

SEA Objective 14 - To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate change including flood risk

Extent of flood risk areas – riverine and coastal

A summary of the area of land and number of properties (residential and/or commercial where available) at 

risk of flooding is available for 3 of the 5 Merseyside LADs.

Table C.35: Flood risk data (area of land and number of properties

Flood Zone (FZ)3 (high 
risk)

FZ2
FZ1 (low 

risk)
Total (ha or no.)

Knowsley*

306 166 - 472

Liverpool

- - - 423

St.Helens

(2,228 properties) - - (2,228 properties)

Sefton
2,290 (3,892 res 

properties)
578 (2,795 res 

properties)
-

2,868 (6,687 res properties + 281 
comm prop)

Wirral
- - - n/a

Source: Merseyside 2008 Annual Monitoring Reports (AMRs). Data relates to 2007 and 2008. *Majority of land at risk is in the green 

belt and should not affect residential or commercial development.

The map shows Merseyside ‘flood zones’ in June 2006. The available data up to now has focused on 

flooding from watercourses, but increasingly the focus is on understanding the potential for flooding from all 

sources, including from groundwater, drains and the sea. All of the Merseyside districts have been 

Page 246Page 204



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

156

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

undertaking Strategic Flood Risk Assessments (SFRA) for their areas and detailed site-specific 

assessments are sometimes required to support development proposals.

The Environment Agency review each planning application thoroughly and provide appropriate responses 

accordingly, and they may object to a planning application when water quality is considered to be at risk of 

being degraded which includes, but is not limited to: pollution at a water abstraction point, pollution to 

surface water and an unsatisfactory means of disposal of sewage.

Figure C.27: Merseyside Flood Zones

Source: Environment Agency

Sustainability Issue

Climate change effects such as increased temperatures, gales, snow and other severe weather 

Page 247Page 205



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

157

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

conditions could have effects on the transport network.

Flood risk is a continued risk to particular areas and a constraint to be considered for new transport 
infrastructure.

Carbon emissions from transport.

Opportunity: Mitigation and adaptation to climate change through:

- Reducing carbon emissions;

- Making the best use of existing transport infrastructure;

- Increase electric car network and charging points;

- Making use of green infrastructure associated with transport networks for climate change 
adaptation e.g. carbon storage, sustainable drainage, energy generation and water 
conservation;

- Reducing the need to travel; and

- Shifting necessary travel to more sustainable modes (public rights of way and wider access 
network improvements) and behaviours, and locking in the benefits.

Constraint: Climate change is a global issue. Cost involved in climate proofing transport infrastructure. 
Difficulty in achieving significant modal shift.

SEA Objective 15 - To protect, manage and restore land, soil quality and geo-diversity

Agricultural land quality classification

Defra’s Agricultural Land Classification (ALC) provides a method for assessing the quality of farmland to 

enable informed choices to be made about its future use within the planning system. After the introduction 

of the ALC system in 1966 the whole of England and Wales was mapped from reconnaissance field 

surveys, to provide general strategic guidance on land quality for planners. This ‘Provisional’ Series of 

maps was published on an Ordnance Survey base (scale 1inch:1mile) in the period 1967 to 1974. These 

maps are not sufficiently accurate for use in assessment of individual fields or development sites, and 

should not be used other than as general guidance. There is no comprehensive programme to survey all 

areas in detail.

Since 1999, the amount of field surveying carried out by Defra has been substantially reduced. Private 

consultants may survey land where it is under consideration for development, especially around the edge 

of towns, to allow comparisons between areas and to inform environmental assessments. Consultations 

are mandatory on planning applications that are not consistent with an adopted local plan and involve the 

loss of twenty hectares or more of the best and most versatile land, which should in theory lead to better 

monitoring of the larger tracts of farmed land.

Merseyside is heavily urbanised, but agricultural land occupies a sizeable proportion of the overall land 

area and includes considerable resources of higher grade soils. However, government guidance seeks to 

protect the best and most versatile agricultural land from irreversible development.

The total farmed area in Merseyside, as a proportion of the NW total has been greater than 1.94% since 

2005 but fell slightly between 2006 (2.06%) and 2007 (2.00%). However, farmed area and number of 

Page 248Page 206



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

158

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

holdings are slightly down in 2007 across the NW and England as a whole. Within Merseyside, St. Helens 

and Liverpool have seen increases in both the farmed area and the number of holdings since 2006.

Table C.36: Farmed area data

District 2005 2006 2007

Farmed area 
(no. holdings)

Set-aside
Farmed area 
(no. holdings)

Set-aside
Farmed area 
(no. holdings)

Set-aside

Knowsley 2,795 (74) 170 3,848 (80) 250 2,634 (65) 97

Liverpool 324 (10) n/a 308(10) n/a 346 (12) n/a

St Helens 6,291 (143) 519 4,967 (138) 384 6,091 (143) 333

Sefton 4,055 (121) 265 5,594 (128) 357 4,906 (110) 182

Wirral 4,050 (128) 168 4,576 (127) n/a 4,381 (123) n/a

Merseyside
17,515 (476)

1,122 (excl 
Liverpool)

19,292 (484)
991 (excl Liv 
& Wirral)

18,359 (453) 612

NW 905,084 
(19,714)

11,291
935,871 
(19,858)

10,612
919,119 
(19,497)

9,125

England 9,278,375 
(174,480)

482,169
9,328,573 
(175,531)

439,030
9,291,357 
(172,424)

366,034

Source: Agricultural Census Survey, farmed area and set-aside shown in hectares (ha)

Location and extent of (potentially) contaminated land - PCL

Previously Developed Land (PDL) and PCL remains a difficult issue due to the legacy of the Industrial 

Revolution throughout Merseyside. PCL has not been collated uniformly across the Merseyside Districts. 

The following text summarises the PCL coverage in each of the Merseyside 2008 AMRs, except Wirral 

where ‘contaminated’ or the ‘contamination’ potential of land was not included.

The Knowsley AMR makes brief mention of Policy ENV5, Contaminated Land and Liverpool highlights the 

subtlety of the wording in use around some of the statistics. For example the AMR states that at March 

2008 there were approximately 10,999 sites in Liverpool of ‘potential concern with regard to land 

contamination’. This is lower than the figure of 11,022 sites in 2007 which is due to some sites having been 

removed from the list following further investigation under Part IIA of the Environmental Protection Act 

1990.

In St. Helens the SHLAA survey ‘found’ 83 new PDL sites, suggesting that all the official PDL/PCL statistics 

are potentially an undercount. Finally, the Sefton AMR lists; UDP policies to be saved and the 

Environmental Protection Policy Number EP3 under the Policy name of ‘Development of Contaminated 

Land’.

Proportion of development on previously used land

The proportion of new dwellings on previously developed land between 1992 and 2007 shows an increase 

across all Merseyside districts since 1992. In 2007, Liverpool had the highest proportion (96%) and 

Knowsley the lowest (80%). All districts, except Sefton, have also seen an increase between 2000-2003 

and 2004-2007, although the Sefton percentage has historically been higher than in other areas.

Table C.37: Proportion of new dwellings

District 1992-1995 1996-1999 2000-2003 2004-2007

Knowsley 67 77 74 80

Page 249Page 207



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

159

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

District 1992-1995 1996-1999 2000-2003 2004-2007

Liverpool 79 89 92 96

St. Helens 72 73 80 82

Sefton 81 89 97 92

Wirral 73 87 85 94

ENGLAND 53 54 63 74

Source: Table P213 Land Use

www.communities.gov.uk/planningandbuilding/planningbuilding/planningstatistics/livetables/landusechange

The area of (and percentage of total) PDL suitable for housing in each of the Merseyside districts in 2005 

and 2007 shows that in 2007 Liverpool had the largest area of PDL available for housing (424ha) although 

the proportion of its total PDL which this area represents fell from 77.3% in 2005. Sefton had the lowest 

proportion in 2005 (5.1%) but this value climbed to 24.1% in 2007, above both Knowsley and Wirral.

Table C.38: The area of PDL suitable for housing

Area suitable (ha) % of total PDLDistrict

2005 2007 2005 2007

Knowsley 45 38 17.2 20.7

Liverpool 510 424 77.3 63.9

St. Helens 127 142 41.1 44.2

Sefton 17 70 5.1 24.1

Wirral 58 60 15.4 17.6

Source: LCR Local Authority District NLUD Returns compiled by MM MIS (Jan 2009)

Sustainability Issue

There are no direct links between transport and soil management at the local level. However, the 

location and extent of (potentially) contaminated land, and the proportion of development on previously 

used land, have prospective implications regarding any new transport-related works.

Opportunity: Upgrading of existing transport infrastructure in preference to new infrastructure. Potential 
to remediate contaminated land as part of transport infrastructure works.

SEA Objective 16 - To provide good quality, affordable and resource efficient housing

Proportion of population in different housing types (owner occupied, rented private sector, social landlord 

etc.)

The following information is taken from the annual Housing Strategy Statistical Appendix (HSSA), which is 

the main tool that informs the development and monitoring of the Regional Housing Strategy.

Page 250Page 208



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

160

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table C.39: Different Housing Type data

District
Local Authority

Registered Social 
Landlord

Other Public Sector Private Sector

Knowsley 0 18,502 17 45,864

Liverpool 0 61,057 153 151,149

St. Helens 0 16,722 0 61,911

Sefton 0 18,663 0 105,319

Wirral 0 22,193 9 122,524

Source: 2008 Housing Strategy Statistical Appendix (HSSA)

Percentage of properties classed as ‘unfit’

HIP Returns data presented in the Liverpool AMR 2008 shows that in 2008, there were 16,885 unfit

dwellings in Liverpool (7.9% of total dwelling stock). This is a decrease from 2007 when 18,076 dwellings 

were unfit (8.6% of the total dwelling stock). Of the unfit dwellings in 2008, 894 are Registered Social 

Landlord dwellings (1.5% of RSL dwellings), 15,893 are owner occupied and private sector dwellings 

(10.5%) and 98 are other public sector dwellings (64%). Data for other Local Authorities in Merseyside was 

not knowingly available.

The HSSA for 2006/07 and 2007/08 has asked questions on housing conditions (fitness) using both the old 

Fitness assessment and the new (from April 2006) Housing Health and Safety Rating System in sections A 

(question 4) and section B (questions 1 to 3).  This was to allow all local authorities to complete returns 

whether or not they had been able to reflect this change of standard in their evidence base and information 

systems for 2006/07 and 2007/08.  In consequence however this data can not be aggregated or compared 

across Local Authorities, or at the regional or national level.  It has therefore been decided not to publish 

the information returned by Local Authorities during this interim period.

Thermal efficiency of housing stock

The table below shows the average SAP1 rating of the private sector (non RSL) dwellings. This is the most 

complete dataset in the 2008 HSSA which reports on thermal efficiency for the Merseyside Authorities.

Table C.40: Average SAP rating for private sector dwellings by district

District Average SAP rating of the private sector (non RSL) dwellings

Knowsley 59

Liverpool 56

Sefton 56

St. Helens 51

Wirral 51

Source: 2008 Housing Strategy Statistical Appendix (HSSA)

_________________________

1 SAP stands for Standard Assessment Procedure, also known as Energy Ratings. Houses are rated from 0 - 100, 0 being 

very inefficient and 100 being highly efficient.

Page 251Page 209



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

161

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Fuel Poverty

The percentage of households in fuel poverty at equivalised full and basic incomes shows that Liverpool 

has the highest proportions of both across Merseyside. Sefton has the lowest proportion of households in 

fuel poverty in terms of full and basic income according to the data available.

Table C.41: Percentage of households in fuel poverty

District % in Fuel Poverty - Full Income (equivalised) % in Fuel Poverty - Basic Income (equivalised)

Knowsley 6.48 7.89

Liverpool 7.16 8.51

St Helens 5.88 7.07

Sefton 5.86 6.48

Wirral 5.90 6.63

Merseyside 6.37 7.41

Source: Fuel Poverty Indicator (www.fuelpovertyindicator.org.uk )
2

Sustainability Issue

There are few direct links between transport and the provision of good quality affordable and resource 

efficient housing. The location of housing in relation to provision of public transport, and the level of car 

parking provided with housing units, can help contribute towards use of more resource efficient modes of 

transport.

Opportunity: Link planned new housing developments with new or existing transport infrastructure, 
especially public transport, and cycle and pedestrian routes.

_________________________

2 The Fuel Poverty Indicator is a statistical model of fuel poverty based on the 2003 English House Condition Survey (EHCS) 

and 2001 Census. The EHCS was used to predict the risk of fuel poverty for different household types, the results were then 

applied to the 2001 Census to predict the level of fuel poverty for all Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAs) in England.

Page 252Page 210



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

162

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Appendix D. Appraisal Tables 

Page 253Page 211



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

163

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.1. Goal One Appraisal
LTP3 Goal One: Ensure the transport system supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region and its Local Strategic Partnerships

LTP3 Actions and InterventionsSA/SEA Objectives
Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance

+ Moderate High Highly 
Significant

1. To use energy, water and mineral resources prudently and 
efficiently, increase energy generated from renewable sources 
and reduce greenhouse gas emissions Comments

Partnership working was considered important to work towards national and regional strategic priorities, such as a Low Carbon 
Economy. In addition, the development of the Super Port was identified as a significant opportunity for sustainable resource use. 

Relevant partners identified: Liverpool vision; Environment Agency; Merseyside Environment Trust; The Peel Group; Local 
Authorities; Utility companies;  Liverpool universities (University of Liverpool, Liverpool John Moores University, Liverpool Hope 
University and Edge Hill University); Defra; Non-governmental organisations; Friends of the Earth; Manufacturers; and Local 
Strategic Partnerships.

Consultation with citizen and voluntary groups was considered important to guide sustainable resource use in Merseyside, 
supporting the Government Big Society approach. 

+ Moderate High Highly 
Significant

2. To minimise the production of waste and increase reuse, 
recycling and recovery rates

Comments
Recycling was considered a particularly significant issue by stakeholders, identifying a potential to work with local partners to 
recycle local resources. One such example included collecting cooking oil for bio-fuels.

Partnership working was considered important to work towards national and regional strategic waste and recycling priorities. In 
addition, the development of the Super Port was identified as a significant opportunity for waste management. 

Relevant partners identified: Environment Agency; Merseyside Environment Trust; The Peel Group; Local Authorities; 
Merseyside waste disposal authority; The Development of bio-fuel partnerships

Consultation with citizen and voluntary groups was considered important to guide waste management in Merseyside, supporting 
the Government Big Society approach.  Policies and targets outlined in the Joint Municipal Waste Management Strategy for 
Merseyside (2008) should also be considered.

+ Minor Medium Significant3. To reduce poverty and social deprivation and secure 
economic inclusion Comments

Reducing poverty and social deprivation should be about ‘reducing the gap’ so that the social gradient between the ‘haves’ and 
the ‘have nots’ is flattened. The objective should be reducing socio-economic inequalities. 

Transport can and does play a part in tackling poverty / social deprivation; it is one part of a wider jigsaw so working together 
collaboratively with other community / governance structures will help to realise benefits. As such, there is a potential positive 
interaction. 

Magnitude was considered minor as working with partners was not considered the way in which the LTP could bring about most 
change in terms of social deprivation. 

Working with partners to help deliver low carbon economy ambitions through the provision of efficient public transport services 

P
age 254

P
age 212



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

164

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal One: Ensure the transport system supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region and its Local Strategic Partnerships

LTP3 Actions and InterventionsSA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance

will help socially deprived areas in which there is generally less access to private transport. Reduced emissions will also be 
positive for socially deprived groups, who tend to experience poorer health outcomes. 

Exploring broader and deeper engagement with citizens in line with the Government’s Big Society approach – could provide a 
voice to local people and will help to encourage cohesion. It will also help to identify the transport issues and needs for deprived 
communities more easily. Steps could be taken, for example, to secure more access from deprived communities to employment 
locations if these links are identified as lacking.

Continuing to develop joint approaches to ensure good land use and transport integration, as well as encouraging other modes 
via the LTP and LDFs – this is quite likely to have a positive impact on deprived communities because a joined up approach 
could deliver employment sites that are well-served by public transport where access is not reliant on private car use; the latter 
tends to discriminate those on lower incomes who have less access to their own transport.

+ Minor High Significant4. To protect, enhance and manage Merseyside’s rich 
diversity of cultural, historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets

Comments
Cultural heritage is already heavily protected by legislation and controlled through the planning process, therefore focused 
partnership working would add little to the management of such impacts.

Relevant partners identified: Liverpool vision; Groundwork: in the Northwest; Merseyside Environment Trust; The Peel Group;  
Local Authorities; Liverpool universities Defra; Non government organisations; Local Strategic Partnerships.

Consultation with citizen and voluntary groups was considered important to preserving cultural heritage in Merseyside, 
supporting the Government Big Society approach.

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

5. To protect, enhance and manage biodiversity, the viability 
of endangered species, habitats and sites of geological 
importance Comments

Relevant partners identified: Liverpool vision; Environment Agency; Merseyside Environment Trust; Local Authorities; Liverpool 
universities; Defra; Non-governmental organisations; Friends of the earth; and Local Strategic Partnerships

Consultation with citizen and voluntary groups was considered important to guide biodiversity impact management in 
Merseyside, supporting the Government Big Society approach

+ Moderate High Highly 
Significant

6. To protect, enhance and manage the local character and 
accessibility of the landscape across the sub-region

Comments
Partnership working is likely to generate moderate measurable positive outcomes for the region and is essential to work towards 
national and regional strategic priorities. In addition, the development of the Super Port was identified as a significant opportunity 
for managing the impact on landscape. 

Relevant partners identified: Liverpool vision;  Environment Agency; Merseyside Environment Trust; Local Authorities; Liverpool 
universities; Defra; Non-governmental organisations; Local Strategic Partnerships; and The Peel Group.

7. To protect, improve and where necessary, restore the 
quality of inland, estuarine and coastal waters

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

P
age 255

P
age 213



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

165

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal One: Ensure the transport system supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region and its Local Strategic Partnerships

LTP3 Actions and InterventionsSA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance

Comments
Partnership working was considered important to work towards national and regional strategic water quality priorities. In addition, 
the development of the Super Port was identified as a significant opportunity for water quality. 

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high, due to national statutory requirements (such as the 
Water Framework Directive) and the major human health, quality of life and environmental effects associated with water quality.

Relevant partners identified: Liverpool vision; Environment Agency; Merseyside Environment Trust; Local Authorities; Liverpool 
universities; Defra; Non-governmental organisations; Local Strategic Partnerships; The Peel Group; and Friends of the Earth

08. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local 
air quality Comments

Whilst collaborative working is encouraged, the actions set out in goal one are not likely to have a direct effect on air quality. 
Improvements in local air quality can only be achieved through the implementation of schemes that discourage car use and 
focus on the reduction of vehicles on the road. A priority for the region is for the development of a key public transport 
interchange, of which would encourage the use of more sustainable modes of transport and help to improve local air quality.

09. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local 
environmental quality (noise, light nuisance) Comments

Whilst collaborative working is encouraged, the actions set out in goal one are not likely to have a direct effect on overall 
environmental quality. Liaison with the local development planning process is likely to be the most effective way to secure 
benefits to local environmental quality.  

+ Minor High Significant10. To improve health and reduce health inequalities

Comments
A transport system that supports the priorities of the local region is likely to provide an indirect benefit to improving health and to 
reducing health inequalities. The extent to which the Goal contributes toward the objective is influenced by the role / priority of 
health in each of the partnership strategies and policies. Therefore, the health sector has a role to play in influencing LSP 
priorities, MAA, emerging LEPs, and the local development planning process. There is existing uncertainty around how the new 
public health service (working with local authorities and GP consortia) will function. Once established it may be that there is an 
opportunity for more direct liaison between the transport system and the health (and education) sectors, rather than through 
alternative partnerships.  

D Minor Medium-High Significant11. To improve safety and reduce crime, disorder and fear of 
crime Comments

The Goal’s purpose is not to improve safety and reduce crime so interaction is low, however, if there is close working with other 
partners, positive interactions could be realised in future. Hence, it is dependent on implementation. 

It was not considered that LSPs do much to address improvements in crime and safety and, therefore, joint working with the LSP 
would not make much of a difference in this regard. This Goal was rated as high in importance because crime and safety and 
anti-social behaviour are relevant in terms of people’s confidence to travel. 

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

12. To improve local accessibility of goods, services and 
amenities and reduce community severance

Comments
This Goal was not assessed in detail, but many of the points raised for Objective 3 of this Goal are also relevant. Transport is 

P
age 256

P
age 214



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

166

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal One: Ensure the transport system supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region and its Local Strategic Partnerships

LTP3 Actions and InterventionsSA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance

seen as playing a big role in local accessibility, but working with partners is not necessarily the main way in which the LTP hopes 
to fulfil the objective. Therefore, whilst the interaction is potentially positive the magnitude is low. The importance of delivering 
accessibility would, however, be high on the agenda in any partnership working.

LEP, MAA and LSP priorities are likely to include objectives around accessibility, and therefore synergy with these governance 
bodies / strategies will help to maximise delivery against these goals. 

The issues around the Big Society approach and ensuring good land use and transport integration are also relevant here in that  
providing more of a voice to local people will help to highlight where accessibility needs to be improved and where community 
severance is presently an issue.

Continuing to develop joint approaches to land use and transport integration via the LTP and LDFs is also likely to have a 
positive impact on improving local accessibility.

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

13. To reduce the need to travel and improve choice and use 
of more sustainable transport modes

Comments
In order to improve choice and encourage the use of more sustainable modes, joint partnerships are essential to ensure that all 
transport priorities are delivered, particularly those that encourage the use of more sustainable modes, such as walking and 
cycling.

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate change including 
flood risk

Comments
Partnership working was considered important to work towards national and regional strategic priorities, such as a Low Carbon 
Economy. In addition, the development of the Super Port was identified as a significant opportunity for climate change 
management. 

Strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and 
non-governmental organisations. 

Relevant partners identified: Environment Agency; Merseyside Environment Trust; Local Authorities; Liverpool universities; 
Defra: Non-governmental organisations; Local Strategic Partnerships; Friends of the earth; UK Climate Impacts Programme; 
and; Met Office

15. To protect, manage and restore land, soil quality and geo-
diversity

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

P
age 257

P
age 215



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

167

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal One: Ensure the transport system supports the priorities of the Liverpool City Region and its Local Strategic Partnerships

LTP3 Actions and InterventionsSA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance

Comments
Partnership working was considered important to work towards national and regional strategic priorities, and considered 
important to work towards national and regional strategic land and soil quality priorities. 

Relevant partners identified: Liverpool vision; Environment Agency; Merseyside Environment Trust; Local Authorities; Liverpool 
universities; Defra; Non-governmental organisations; Local Strategic Partnerships; The Peel Group; Friends of the earth; and 
Groundwork: in the Northwest

Consultation with citizen and voluntary groups was considered important to guide land and soil quality impact management in 
Merseyside, supporting the Government Big Society approach. However, strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, 
such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and non-governmental organisations. 

P
age 258

P
age 216



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

168

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.2. Goal Two Appraisal (Part 1)

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Traffic 2. Modal Shift 3. Public Transport
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

+ Moderate High Highly 
Significant

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

1. To use energy, 
water and mineral 
resources prudently 
and efficiently, 
increase energy 
generated from 
renewable sources 
and reduce 
greenhouse gas 
emissions

Comments
The success of electric vehicle measures were heavily 
dependant on the proportion of electricity generated from 
renewable resources. The public sector is likely to play 
an important strategic planning role, while the private 
sector was a key funding source. 

The impact on water was considered to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

Comments
Such measures are likely to be beneficial, however the 
potential magnitude of their impact in reducing emissions 
was limited. Therefore, smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes should not be the sole method of 
encouraging modal shift.

The aim of smarter choices and behavioural change 
programmes is to implement soft measures that would 
influence people's travel behaviour towards more 
sustainable options. However, in Merseyside the 
success of such measures is likely to depend heavily on 
infrastructure improvements, particularly for cycling. 

Smarter choices and behavioural change programmes 
also require consideration of options. Measures are 
required to focus on outcomes through the 
implementation of the Best Practical Environmental 
Option (BPEO). The monitoring and evaluation of the 
successes of such programmes also contributes to the 
identification of Smarter Choices and behavioural 
change programme BPEOs.

The impact on water was considered by to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas; however there 
may be hidden water use through the manufacturing of 
vehicles for example.

Comments
Public transport efficiency improvements were identified 
as a key priority, such as a reduction in the number of 
poorly used bus services and the smart ticketing system.

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by to be low in comparison to other resource 
use areas.

0 0 02. To minimise the 
production of waste 
and increase reuse, 
recycling and 
recovery rates

3. To reduce 
poverty and social 

0 + Moderate Low
Not 

Significant
+ Moderate Low

Not 
Significant

P
age 259

P
age 217



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

169

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Traffic 2. Modal Shift 3. Public Transport
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance
deprivation and 
secure economic 
inclusion

Comments
Infrastructure to support higher levels of walking and 
cycling will be beneficial for all population groups, and in 
particular for non-car owners, who are disproportionately 
from deprived communities. Cycling and walking 
provision will be positive for low income groups.

Comments
The promotion and provision of a low carbon transport 
system is unlikely to have a significant effect on poverty 
and social deprivation; however general improvements 
to the public transport system will benefit socially 
deprived communities due to their reliance on public 
modes.

The proposed Smartcard system would require people to 
have their own bank account, something that socially 
deprived groups are unlikely to have; this could, 
therefore, potentially marginalise these groups.

The proposal to encourage Merseyrail Electrics to 
decarbonise their energy supply is likely to improve local 
air quality and this could benefit socially deprived groups 
who traditionally experience more from health 
inequalities.

0 D 04. To protect, 
enhance and 
manage 
Merseyside’s rich 
diversity of cultural, 
historical and built 
environment and 
archaeological 
assets

Comments
The successful implementation of Smarter Choices and 
behavioural change programmes is likely to require 
infrastructure improvement. Such infrastructure 
improvements, if implemented have the potential to 
negatively impact cultural heritage.
However, infrastructure improvements could also have a 
positive effect if mitigated against - a transport scheme 
like pedestrainisation or public realm improvements may 
enhance the setting of a cultural/historical site.

5. To protect, D D D

P
age 260

P
age 218



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

170

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Traffic 2. Modal Shift 3. Public Transport
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance
enhance and 
manage 
biodiversity, the 
viability of 
endangered 
species, habitats 
and sites of 
geological 
importance

Comments
Actions to provide a clean and low carbon transport 
system are likely to have a positive effect on biodiversity, 
as this will involve travel by low emission vehicles and 
reduce noise, air and light pollution. However, habitats 
may be lost as a result of the land-take required for the 
provision of an electric charging infrastructure.

Comments
The successful implementation of smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes was considered to 
require infrastructure improvement. Such infrastructure 
improvements if implemented have the potential to 
negatively impact biodiversity.

Comments
Dependant up on the actions implemented to provide 
and promote a clean and low carbon transport system, 
there may be both positive and negative effects on 
biodiversity. There may be improvements in air and 
noise quality that may arise from a modal shift or there 
could be the potential for negative impacts from 
insensitive maintenance measures or from land take.

D D D6. To protect, 
enhance and 
manage the local 
character and 
accessibility of the 
landscape across 
the sub-region

Comments
The provision of electric charging infrastructure and a 
strategy to deliver the infrastructure required to support 
electric vehicles may help improve access to the 
landscape, even if such actions may have a negative 
impact on the landscape itself.

Comments
The successful implementation of Smarter Choices and 
behavioural change programmes was considered to 
require infrastructure improvement. Such infrastructure 
improvements, if implemented have the potential to 
negatively impact landscape
However, infrastructure improvements and public 
transport information provision may help improve access 
to the landscape, even if such actions may have a 
negative impact on the landscape itself.

Comments
The provision of public transport may help improve 
access to the landscape, even if such actions may have 
a negative impact on the landscape itself.

0 D 07. To protect, 
improve and where 
necessary, restore 
the quality of inland, 
estuarine and 
coastal waters

Comments
The successful implementation of Smarter Choices and 
behavioural change programmes was considered to 
require infrastructure improvement. Such infrastructure, 
improvements if implemented have the potential to 
negatively impact water quality. 

+ Minor Low
Not 

Significant
+ Major

Medium -
High

Highly 
Significant

+ Major
Medium -

High
Highly 

Significant

8. To protect, 
manage and, where 
necessary, improve 
local air quality

Comments
Actions to provide a clean and low carbon transport 
system are likely to have a positive effect on air quality, 
as this is likely to involve travel by less-polluting forms of 
transport.

Improved infrastructure will lead to electric cars being a 
more viable alternative and therefore encourage greater 
use, switching away from modes that are more polluting. 

Comments
Any change in modal shift will have a positive effect in 
reducing the number of private vehicle modes and is 
also likely to lead to improvements in air quality. 

Education on efficient driving techniques would have a 
positive effect, as hard acceleration causes higher 
emissions.

Comments
Providing better public transport services and increasing 
patronage is likely to help reduce use if motorised 
vehicles. Actions to reduce CO2 are likely to also help 
reduce nitrogen dioxide and particulate matter and 
therefore improve local air quality.

P
age 261

P
age 219



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

171

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Traffic 2. Modal Shift 3. Public Transport
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance
D

+
Major Medium Highly 

Significant
+

Moderate Medium Significant
9. To protect, 
manage and, where 
necessary, improve 
local environmental 
quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

Comments
The contribution to the local environment depends on the 
design and placement of the infrastructure. Electric 
vehicles are likely to be cleaner and quieter and 
therefore contribute to a more pleasant environment. 
The actions are investigative in nature, rather than 
practical at this stage. 

Comments
Achieving a modal shift away from motor vehicles is 
likely to improve local environmental quality. Less traffic 
is likely to make the urban environment more attractive 
and a more usable space for other road users (cyclists, 
pedestrians, etc). 

Generally, noise is likely to decrease too.

Comments
Increasing public transport patronage is likely to lead to a 
more critical mass of users which may mean that 
investment in infrastructure and maintenance will be 
improved. This is likely to have a direct impact on the 
streetscape and vehicle technology which is likely to 
have subsequent benefits for environmental quality.

Generally, noise is likely to decrease too. However, there 
may be localised increases along arterial public transport 
routes. 

+
Negligible Low Not 

Significant
+

Major Medium Highly 
Significant

+
Moderate Medium Significant10. To improve 

health and reduce 
health inequalities Comments

The provision of electric vehicles and alternative fuels is 
not likely to have a measurable effect on the health 
baseline. However, the uptake of these technologies in 
the longer term is expected to help to improve air quality.

Comments
A modal shift from motorised transport to more active 
forms of travel such as cycling and walking is likely to 
have long term health benefits for the population. Active 
travel is part of a health lifestyle, contributing to 
improvements in physical health and mental health. 

Providing education can help people make informed 
choices about their travel modes, increasing the 
likelihood that more sustainable (including less polluting) 
modes are considered.

Comments
A low carbon world is generally good for public health. 
Actions to promote public transport as a sustainable 
travel mode may help to improve traveller choice and 
improve patronage. 
Low emission and quieter vehicles can help contribute to 
a cleaner, quieter and more pleasant local environment.

0 0 011. To improve 
safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and 
fear of crime

12. To improve 
local accessibility of 

D + Negligible Low
Not 

Significant
D

P
age 262

P
age 220



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

172

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Traffic 2. Modal Shift 3. Public Transport
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance
goods, services and 
amenities and 
reduce community 
severance

Comments
The provision of a charging network for electric cars 
could have a positive effect on local accessibility if 
charging points are located where there are local 
services and amenities. 

Local incentives for the use of electric vehicles, such as 
free parking at local centres could further improve 
access to amenities. However, the magnitude of this 
impact is not likely to result in a measurable effect on the 
baseline conditions.

Comments
Encouraging modal shift through improvements to 
walking and cycling facilities could help to boost access 
to local services.  

Comments
Improvements to bus services could help to increase 
access to local services, if appropriately targeted at 
communities where accessibility is currently low.

Replacing poorly used services with alternative services 
that are more responsive to users’ needs (for example 
taxi services) would mitigate any negative impacts and 
could actually increase usage and local accessibility

- Moderate High Highly 
Significant

+ Moderate High Highly 
Significant

+ Moderate High Highly 
Significant

13. To reduce the 
need to travel and 
improve choice and 
use of more 
sustainable 
transport modes

Comments
The promotion of electric vehicles will promote the use of 
more sustainable modes of transport; however this 
measure will not reduce the need to travel and may still 
encourage the use of private, single occupancy modes.

Comments
A modal shift is likely to discourage the use of private 
transport modes and encourage users to travel using 
more sustainable, active modes such as walking and 
cycling.

Comments
Improvements in the choice of public transport modes 
available will promote multi-modal journeys. A wider 
choice in sustainable modes of public transport is also 
likely to increase patronage and could also seek to 
reduce the repetition of services and instead, create 
opportunities to access other areas across Merseyside.

14. To mitigate, 
reduce and adapt to 

+ Major High Highly 
Significant

+ Moderate Medium Significant + Major High Highly 
Significant

P
age 263

P
age 221



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

173

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Traffic 2. Modal Shift 3. Public Transport
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance Interaction Magnitude Importance Significance
climate change 
including flood risk

Comments
The success of electric vehicle measures were heavily 
dependant on the proportion of electricity generated from 
renewable resources. The public sector is likely to play 
an important strategic planning role, while the private 
sector was a key funding source. 

Comments
A modal shift from private vehicles to other modes is 
likely to reduce the number of cars on the road and 
associated congestion.

Stakeholders believed such measures were beneficial, 
however the potential magnitude of their impact in 
reducing emissions was limited. Therefore, there should 
not be a focus on smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes. 

Infrastructure development presented an opportunity to 
integrate climate change adaptation measures into 
transport systems.

The aim of smarter choices and behavioural change 
programmes are implementing soft measures in 
influencing people's travel behaviour towards more 
sustainable options. However in Merseyside 
stakeholders outlined that the success of such measures 
depended heavily on infrastructure improvements, 
particularly for cycling. 

Comments
Any new transport projects should be designed to adapt 
to the predicted effects of climate change, including an 
increased risk of flooding.

0 D 015. To protect, 
manage and restore 
land, soil quality 
and geo-diversity

Comments
The successful implementation of Smarter Choices and 
behavioural change programmes was considered to 
require infrastructure improvements. Such infrastructure
improvements, if implemented have the potential to 
negatively impact land and soil quality.

P
age 264

P
age 222



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

174

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.3. Goal Two Appraisal (Part 2)
LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system

LTP3 Actions and Interventions
4. Fleet Vehicles 5. Freight Traffic 6. Land-Use Planning 7. Network Maintenance & Management

SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

+ D Moderate High + Major High + Major High + Neg Low
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant

1. To use energy, 
water and mineral 
resources 
prudently and 
efficiently, increase 
energy generated 
from renewable 
sources and 
reduce 
greenhouse gas 
emissions

Comments
The success of this strategy depended on 
implementing the most appropriate 
scheme for each transport mode.

Any positive measurable changes may be 
limited without the support of legislation
and funding. 

The impact on water and mineral resource 
was considered by stakeholders to be low 
in comparison to other resource use areas

Funds from developer offsetting may 
contribute to this goal

Comments
Legislation and planning policy is needed 
to support the success of such actions.
The impact on water and mineral resource 
was considered by stakeholders to be low 
in comparison to other resource use 
areas.

Comments
During the workshop it was identified that 
land-use planning measures needed to be 
integrated into national, as well as local 
and regional planning policy in order to 
achieve this objective.

Comments
The careful planning of future transport 
projects could involve measures, such as 
the recycling of aggregates to help reduce 
carbon output and energy use.

0 0 0 + Minor Low

Significance: Significance: Significance: Significance: Not Significant

2. To minimise the 
production of 
waste and 
increase reuse, 
recycling and 
recovery rates

Comments
There is a potential for aggregate materials 
to be recycled and re-used in the 
maintenance of the network and highways 
assets that could help to reduce carbon 
output.

0 0 + Minor Low 0
Significance: Significance: Significance: Not Significant Significance:

3. To reduce 
poverty and social 
deprivation and 
secure economic 
inclusion

Comments
Sustainable transport commitments made 
by developers may ensure that deprived 
social groups have better access to 
services, especially where there is 
affordable housing.

P
age 265

P
age 223



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

175

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fleet Vehicles 5. Freight Traffic 6. Land-Use Planning 7. Network Maintenance & Management
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
0 - Major High + Minor High + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant Significance:  Significant Significance: Highly Significant

4. To protect, 
enhance and 
manage 
Merseyside’s rich 
diversity of cultural, 
historical and built 
environment and 
archaeological 
assets

Comments
The development of consolidation centres 
is likely to have a significant potential to 
impact negatively on Merseyside’s cultural 
heritage. Measures should be taken to 
ensure the development consolidation 
centres do not affect local cultural 
heritage. 
Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, as there 
are national statutory requirements and 
major quality of life effects associated with 
cultural heritage.

Comments
It was considered that measures to 
integrate sustainable transport and 
design, and Low Emission Strategy 
principles into the planning process would 
produce positive outcomes for cultural 
heritage. Strategic planning was identified 
as crucially important to this projected 
outcome. 
These actions are likely to have the 
potential to produce slight measurable 
changes in cultural heritage. Stakeholders 
identified that such measures would be 
beneficial, although some national 
legalisation is already in place to protect 
cultural heritage.  

Comments
Measures to ensure that the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the 
environment and future climatic conditions 
would have the potential to produce 
substantial measurable outcomes for 
cultural heritage. 

Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, due to 
national statutory requirements and major 
quality of life effects associated with 
cultural heritage. 

0 + D Minor Low + Major High + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant Significance:  Significant Significance: Highly Significant

5. To protect, 
enhance and 
manage 
biodiversity, the 
viability of 
endangered 
species, habitats 
and sites of 
geological 
importance

Comments
The detailed actions set out under Freight 
seek to promote best practice and 
improve environmental performance; and 
develop procurement policies that support 
the uptake of low emission vehicles and 
fuels. As a result, it is likely that freight 
related transport emissions will reduce 
and air quality levels will improve. 

One of the actions is to consider the 
feasibility of consolidation centres and if 
they are implemented without giving due 
regard to the natural environment this 
could result in negative impacts on 
biodiversity. Consolidation centres will, 
however reduce the number of freight 
vehicles on the road, resulting in less 
congestion and improved levels of air 
quality.

Comments
Strategic planning was identified as 
crucially important to this projected 
outcome as the greening of routes would 
enhance biodiversity and through careful 
land-use planning habitats and sites of 
geological importance could be 
preserved.

Such measures would be beneficial, 
although some national legalisation is 
already in place to protect Merseyside’s 
landscape. 

Comments
Measures to ensure that the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the 
environment would have the potential to 
produce substantial measurable outcomes 
for biodiversity

Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, due to 
national statutory requirements and major 
human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with 
biodiversity.

P
age 266

P
age 224



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

176

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fleet Vehicles 5. Freight Traffic 6. Land-Use Planning 7. Network Maintenance & Management
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
0 + Major High + Major High + Minor High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant Significance:  Highly Significant Significance: Significant
6. To protect, 
enhance and 
manage the local 
character and 
accessibility of the 
landscape across 
the sub-region

Comments
The development of consolidation centres 
is likely to have a significant potential to 
impact Merseyside’s landscape heritage. 
Measures needed to be taken to ensure 
the development consolidation centres did 
not impact local landscape.

Comments
Measures to integrate sustainable 
transport planning and design and Low 
Emission Strategy principles into the 
planning process would produce positive 
outcomes for Merseyside’s landscape. 
Strategic planning was identified as 
crucially important to this projected 
outcome. 

These actions were considered to have 
potential to produce slight measurable 
changes in Merseyside’s landscape. 
Stakeholders identified that such 
measures would be beneficial, although 
some national legalisation is already in 
place to protect Merseyside’s landscape.  

Comments
Measures to ensure that the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the 
environment would have the potential to 
produce substantial measurable outcomes 
for landscape.

0 0 + Minor High + Major High

Significance: Significance: Significance:  Significant Significance: Highly Significant

7. To protect, 
improve and where 
necessary, restore 
the quality of 
inland, estuarine 
and coastal waters

Comments
Stakeholders considered measures to 
integrate sustainable transport planning 
and design and Low Emission Strategy 
principles into the planning process would 
produce positive outcomes for water
quality. Strategic planning was identified 
as crucially important to this projected 
outcome. 
These actions were considered to have 
potential to produce slight measurable 
changes in water quality. Stakeholders 
identified that such measures would be 
beneficial, although some national 
legalisation is already in place to protect 
water quality.  
Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, as there 
are national statutory requirements and 
major quality of life effects associated with
water quality.

Comments
Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, due to 
national statutory requirements and major 
human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with 
water quality.

P
age 267

P
age 225



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

177

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fleet Vehicles 5. Freight Traffic 6. Land-Use Planning 7. Network Maintenance & Management
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ Minor Medium + Moderate High + Minor Low 0

Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance:

8. To protect, 
manage and, 
where necessary, 
improve local air 
quality

Comments
Improving environmental performance, 
including reducing emissions, is likely to 
lead to improved air quality

Comments
HGVs make a large contribution to urban 
air pollution and therefore reducing HGV 
movements in AQMAs would make a 
positive contribution to local air quality. 
Whilst the use of consolidation centres 
may reduce the overall number of HGV 
trips, although the area around the 
consolidation centre may experience a 
decrease in air quality.  
Greater use of low emission vehicles 
would also have a positive effect on air 
quality.

Comments
Considering air quality effects of proposed 
development through land use planning is 
an effective way to help limit future 
deteriorations in local air quality. Low 
Emission Strategies will also make a 
positive contribution

+ Minor Low + Moderate Low + Moderate Low + Minor Medium

Significance: Not Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significant

9. To protect, 
manage and, 
where necessary, 
improve local 
environmental 
quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

Comments
Improving environmental performance, 
including reducing emissions, is likely to 
lead to improved environmental quality, 
such as reductions in the levels of noise.

Comments
A reduction in HGV traffic is likely to 
improve local environmental quality. A 
reduction in volume and frequency of 
large vehicles can help the urban and 
rural streetscape appear more attractive 
and safer to other road users. HGVs are 
also associated with air and noise 
pollution, especially in urban areas and 
this influences people’s perceptions of 
their local environment.   

Comments
One of the key roles of the local planning 
system is to consider the local 
environment and amenity of communities. 

Actions to consider design and greening 
of routes will help to make sure that future 
transport provision contributes to 
environmental quality, rather than 
detracting from it. 

Low Emission Strategies will also make a 
positive contribution

Comments
The asset management programme 
includes actions to improving local 
environmental quality through fixing 
highway assets, maintaining and improving 
lighting (which can help reduce the fear of 
crime), providing safer pathways, highway 
cleaning regimes and facilitating 
recreational access (by maintaining public 
rights of way).

0 + Minor Low + Moderate Medium + Moderate Medium

Significance: Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significant Significance: Significant

10. To improve 
health and reduce 
health inequalities

Comments
The actions identified are investigative in 
nature and therefore any benefit is likely 
to be indirect and small. Alternatives to 
current freight use or changes to the 
routeing of freight traffic could have 
positive effects on local environmental 
and air quality, which influences health. 

Consider alternatives to freight use

Comments
Targeting the planning system to provide 
sustainable travel choices for new 
development will help to tackle the source 
of potential negative effects on health and 
to maximise positive effects.  

Greening of routes and Low Emission 
Strategy principles would help to improve 
the quality of the local environment 

Comments
Actions to maintain and manage the 
network have the potential to facilitate 
benefits to factors that influence health. 
This includes actions to reduce accidents, 
improving local environmental quality (e.g. 
fixing highway assets), reducing the fear of 
crime (e.g. street lighting), promoting health 
lifestyles (safer pathways for cycling) and 
facilitating recreational access (e.g. 

P
age 268

P
age 226



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

178

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fleet Vehicles 5. Freight Traffic 6. Land-Use Planning 7. Network Maintenance & Management
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

Consider changes to the routeing of 
freight traffic

(including air quality) which may 
encourage more active and healthy 
(outdoor) lifestyles.

maintaining public rights of way). 

0 0 0 + Minor Low
Significance: Significance: Significance: Significance: Not Significant

11. To improve 
safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and 
fear of crime

Comments
Actions to maintain and improve the 
transportation network are likely to reduce 
the fear of crime and improve safety. 
Improvements in lighting will help to reduce 
the fear of crime and improvements to 
footways and cycle routes may allow for 
the opportunity to design out crime, such 
as installing CCTV.

+ Minor Low 0 + Moderate Medium + Moderate High

Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant

12. To improve 
local accessibility 
of goods, services 
and amenities and 
reduce community 
severance

Comments
An increase in the capacity and choice of 
sustainable fleet vehicles is likely to have 
a minor, positive effect on the local 
accessibility of goods and services. 
Improvements in the environmental 
performance of fleet vehicles may 
increase efficiency in the services 
provided, particularly for those who have 
a high reliance on public transport.

Comments
Careful land-use planning is likely to 
identify and target areas across 
Merseyside where access is currently 
limited. The consideration of sustainable 
transport and design is likely to assist in 
the improvement of local access to goods 
and services through more efficient, 
environmentally sound modes.

Comments
It is likely that improvements to footways 
and cycle tracks would promote 
accessibility, in particular for non-car 
owners who can be from deprived 
communities and have associated health 
problems. Accessibility can also be 
improved through well-maintained 
pavements, particularly for those who find 
mobility difficult.

+ Minor Low + Minor Low + Major High + Moderate Medium
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

13. To reduce the 
need to travel and 
improve choice 
and use of more 
sustainable 
transport modes

Comments
Improving the environmental performance 
of sustainable fleet vehicles, including 
buses, taxis and freight vehicles is likely 
to lead to improved environmental quality 
and an increase in the use of more 
sustainable transport modes

Comments
Freight should be encouraged to use rail 
rather road to promote the use of more 
sustainable and lower emission transport 
modes

Comments
Measures to engage with planners to 
consider and encourage the integration of 
sustainable transport modes is likely to 
have a major, positive effect on the choice 
and use of more sustainable transport 
modes. Careful land-use planning can 
also reduce the need to travel if high trip 
generating development is encouraged in 
areas where public transport accessibility 
levels are high.

Comments
Maintenance and management of the 
transportation network is important for 
ensuring that the infrastructure remains 
open for traffic, therefore these measures 
would result in a minor, positive effect on 
sustainable transport. It is also important 
that footways and cycle paths are well 
maintained to increase the use of more 
sustainable modes of travel, such as 
walking and cycling.

P
age 269

P
age 227



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

179

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fleet Vehicles 5. Freight Traffic 6. Land-Use Planning 7. Network Maintenance & Management
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ Major High + Major High + Major High + Major High

Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

14. To mitigate, 
reduce and adapt 
to climate change 
including flood risk Comments

Working with bus, taxi and freight fleet 
operators to improve environmental 
performance was considered by 
stakeholders to positively contribute to the 
development of a low carbon transport 
system. However the success of this 
strategy depended on implementing the 
most appropriate scheme for each 
transport mode.   

These actions were considered to have 
potential to produce measurable changes 
in emissions. Although, stakeholders 
believed that such measures would be 
limited without the support of legislation 
and funding. Funds from developer 
offsetting may contribute to this goal.

Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high as there 
are national statutory requirements and 
major human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with 
greenhouse gas reductions.

Comments
Public procurement policies to support the 
uptake of low emission vehicles were 
considered to positively contribute to the 
development of a low carbon transport 
system. The development of consolidation 
centres transferring goods to low 
emissions vehicles were also considered 
by stakeholders to contribute to this goal. 
However, legislation and planning policy 
is needed to support the success of such 
actions.

These actions were considered to have 
potential to produce substantial 
measurable changes in emissions. 

Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, as there 
are national statutory requirements and 
major human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with 
climate change mitigation.

Comments
Measures to integrate sustainable 
transport planning and design and Low 
Emission Strategy principles into the 
planning process would produce positive 
outcomes for climate change 
management.

These actions were considered to have 
potential to produce substantial 
measurable changes in emissions, and 
provide the opportunity to integrate 
climate change adaptation measures into 
design. However, stakeholders identified 
that such measures needed to be 
integrated into national, as well as local 
and regional planning policy.
Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, due to 
national statutory requirements and major 
human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with 
resource use.

Comments
Stakeholders considered measures to 
ensure the transport system takes account 
of future climatic conditions would 
potentially produce  substantial measurable 
improvements in the resilience of the 
transport network to climate change 
impacts. 

Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, as there 
are national statutory requirements and 
major human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with 
climate change impacts.

0 - Major High + Major High + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

15. To protect, 
manage and 
restore land, soil 
quality and geo-
diversity

Comments
Stakeholders considered the development 
of consolidation centres to have 
significant potential to impact 
Merseyside’s land and soil quality. 
Measures needed to be taken to ensure 
the development consolidation centres did 
not impact local land and soil quality. The 
development of derelict land was highlight 
as a key issue for this action.

Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, as there 

Comments
Stakeholders considered that measures to 
integrate sustainable transport planning 
and design and Low Emission Strategy 
principles into planning would produce 
positive outcomes for land and soil 
quality. Strategic planning was identified 
as crucially important to this projected 
outcome. 

These actions were considered to have 
potential to produce slight measurable 
changes in land and soil quality. 

Comments
Measures to ensure that the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the 
environment would have the potential to 
produce substantial measurable outcomes 
for land and soil quality. 
Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, as there 
are national statutory requirements and 
major human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with land 
and soil quality.

P
age 270

P
age 228



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

180

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Two: Provide and promote a clean and low carbon transport system
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fleet Vehicles 5. Freight Traffic 6. Land-Use Planning 7. Network Maintenance & Management
SA/SEA 
Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
are national statutory requirements and 
major quality of life effects associated with 
land and soil quality.

Stakeholders identified that such 
measures would be beneficial, although 
some national legalisation is already in 
place to protect land and soil quality.  

Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, due to 
national statutory requirements and major 
human health effects associated with land 
and soil quality.

P
age 271

P
age 229



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

181

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.4. Goal Three Appraisal 

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

+ Moderate Low - Minor Low 0
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance:

1. To use energy, water and mineral 
resources prudently and efficiently, 
increase energy generated from 
renewable sources and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions

Comments
Improving the cycling and walking network, with 
the aim of improving health and well-being, would 
potentially generate measurable reductions in 
emissions from travel. 

Although there are human health, quality of life 
and environmental effects associated with 
resource use; stakeholders valued the importance 
of responding to this issue as low in regard to the 
aim of improving health and well-being. 

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

Comments
Some road safety strategies, such as extending 
the network of low speed zones across 
Merseyside, were considered by stakeholders to 
produce negative outcomes for resource use. 

Stakeholder considered the traffic calming 
measures used in low speed zones created stop 
start driving cultures and congestion, which has 
the potential to result in slight measurable 
increases in emissions from travel. It was believed 
that other traffic calming measure should be 
considered which take account the impact on 
emissions.   

Although there are human health, quality of life 
and environmental effects associated with 
resource use; stakeholders valued the importance 
of responding to this issue as low in regard to the 
aim of improving health and well-being. 

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance:

2. To minimise the production of 
waste and increase reuse, recycling 
and recovery rates

+ Moderate High + Major High D Moderate High
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

3. To reduce poverty and social 
deprivation and secure economic 
inclusion Comments

Encouraging walking and cycling in socially 
deprived areas may contribute to overall 
improvements in health, as well as reduce health 
inequalities, already associated with social and 
economic disadvantage. The promotion of group 
walking initiatives has the potential to encourage 
community cohesion.

Increasing the network of cycling and walking 

Comments
Accident rates and child causalities in particular, 
are generally higher in socially deprived areas. 
Efforts to improve road safety, such as an 
extension of low speed zones across Merseyside 
could help to reduce the number of casualties in 
socially deprived areas.

Ensuring spending on road safety remains at 2010 
levels will help to reduce road accidents and 

Comments
The effect on poverty and deprivation depends on 
the actions that arise as a result of the transport/ 
health impact assessment for major development 
proposals. 

Examining the potential for all major development 
proposals to be subject to a transport/health 
impact assessment as part of the transport SPD is 
likely to have a positive impact on socially 

P
age 272

P
age 230



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

182

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
routes, based on programmes identified in the 
Active Travel Strategy, is also likely to contribute 
to this objective. Dedicated and well known routes 
also increase the feeling of security so more 
people are likely to participate. 

Expanding cycle and rail integration is likely to 
increase cycle use and rail patronage. Provision 
for cycles either at stations or on trains could help 
to ensure access. Measures such as this can help 
to reduce journey costs. 

Cycle training to schoolchildren, students and 
adults is also likely to have positive health 
benefits, promoting better outcomes for lower 
income groups. Free or low cost cycle provision is 
also likely to improve health outcomes for more 
deprived communities.

increase safety and the feeling of being safe in 
these areas. 

deprived groups.  

- D Minor Low 0 0

Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance:

4. To protect, enhance and manage 
Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, 
historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets

Comments
Improving the cycling and walking network, with 
the aim of improving health and well-being, was 
considered to generate negative outcomes for 
cultural heritage. 

The development of infrastructure required to 
sufficiently improve the cycling and walking 
network to meet this goal, has the potential to 
produce slight measurable impacts on cultural 
heritage. The use of travel wise, smarter choices 
and behavioural change programmes to achieve 
this goal has the potential to lessen this impact; 
although these measures are not considered a 
solution.

The effects on Heritage Assets are also scheme 
dependent as some routes may aid accessibility to 
a cultural heritage site. The use of old railway 
lines as an example, may aid cultural and 
historical interpretation of the route with the 
provision of information about the route etc, and 
access to railway structures.

P
age 273

P
age 231



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

183

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ - Minor Low 0 0

Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance:
5. To protect, enhance and manage 
biodiversity, the viability of 
endangered species, habitats and 
sites of geological importance

Comments
Improving the cycling and walking network, with 
the aim of improving health and well-being was 
considered by stakeholders to generate both 
positive and negative outcomes for biodiversity. 
However, walking and cycling infrastructure is 
likely to have less of a negative impact on 
biodiversity in comparison to other types of 
infrastructure. Improvements to the cycling and 
walking network are likely to encourage a modal 
shift and thus reduce the number of vehicles on 
the road, resulting in improvements to the natural 
environment, including a reduction in emissions 
and levels of noise.

The development of infrastructure required to 
sufficiently improve the cycling and walking 
network, to meet this goal, has the potential to 
produce slight measurable impacts on 
biodiversity. The use of travel wise, smarter 
choices and behavioural change programmes to 
achieve this goal has the potential to lessen this 
impact.

Although there are human health, quality of life 
and environmental effects associated with 
biodiversity; stakeholders valued the importance 
of responding to this issue as low in regard to the 
aim of improving health and well-being. 

+ - Minor Low 0 0
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance:

6. To protect, enhance and manage 
the local character and accessibility of 
the landscape across the sub-region Comments

Improving the cycling and walking network, with 
the aim of improving health and well-being, was 
considered by stakeholders to generate both 
positive and negative outcomes for landscape.

The development of infrastructure required to 
sufficiently improve the cycling and walking 
network, to meet this goal, has the potential to 
produce slight measurable impacts on landscape. 

P
age 274

P
age 232



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

184

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
The use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes to achieve this 
goal has the potential to lessen this impact.

Although there are quality of life effects associated 
with landscape; stakeholders valued the 
importance of responding to this issue as low in 
regard to the aim of improving health and well-
being.

- Minor Low 0 0
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance:

7. To protect, improve and where 
necessary, restore the quality of 
inland, estuarine and coastal waters Comments

Partnership working was considered important to 
work towards national and regional strategic water 
quality priorities. In addition, the development of 
the Super Port was identified as a significant 
opportunity for water quality. 

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding 
to this issue as high, due to national statutory 
requirements (such as the Water Framework 
Directive) and the major human health, quality of 
life and environmental effects associated with 
water quality.

Relevant partners identified include: Liverpool 
vision; Environment Agency; Merseyside 
Environment Trust; Local Authorities; Liverpool 
universities; Defra; Non-governmental 
organisations; Local Strategic Partnerships; The 
Peel Group; and Friends of the Earth

+ Minor Medium + Negligible Low 0
Significance: Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance:

8. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local air quality

Comments
Air quality directly influences health so actions to 
improve health can often be achieved through 
improving air quality. The proposed actions could 
result in a modal shift away from motorised 
transport which would improve air quality. 

Comments
Improved road safety could encourage greater 
use of non-motorised transport and therefore 
result in a modal shift. However, any changes are 
likely to be small.

+ Moderate High + Minor High 09. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Significant Significance:

P
age 275

P
age 233



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

185

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

Comments
The proposed actions could result in a modal shift 
away from motorised transport which would 
benefit local environmental quality. Reducing the 
numbers of cars, vans and lorries would provide a 
quieter environment and make the streetscape 
more accessible for pedestrians and cyclists. 

Comments
Perceptions of road safety are important factors in 
considering local environmental quality. Low 
speed zones could help to improve a sense of 
ownership of local streets, shifting the emphasis 
away from severance caused by car traffic.

+ Moderate Medium  + Minor High + Minor High 
Significance: Significant Significance: Significant Significance: Significant

10. To improve health and reduce 
health inequalities

Comments
Actions to increase the amount of cycling and 
walking will have direct health benefits, for both 
physical and mental health. Implementing 
strategies such as the Active Travel Strategy, 
Travelwise and Bikeability will help to ensure a 
coordinated approach. Provision of new cycle and 
walk routes and cycle infrastructure (e.g. cycle 
parking) will help to provide long term benefits. 
Most health benefit is associated with leisure time 
and exercise, so it may not be that walking and 
cycling are an appropriate travel solution. 

The actions set out in the LTP3 should be tailored 
to the needs of areas within the LCR. They are 
unlikely to be equally effective throughout the 
LCR. Geography and remoteness are key issues 
in the areas outside of Liverpool. There are also 
areas with higher proportions of the population 
who are less mobile, where cycling may not be an 
option. Plans to implement free or low cost cycle 
provision scheme will help those who are on low 
incomes. 

Training programmes targeted at children will help 
to improve the rates of cycling. This behavioural 
change could have longer term benefits for health. 

Comments
Road accidents and road safety have an obvious 
relationship with health; fatalities, long term and 
short term injuries. 

Funding for road safety measures should remain a 
high priority, with spending being “at least” that of 
2010 levels.

The actions do not set out the detail of the 
priorities or schemes so it is difficult to assess 
whether there are likely to be health inequality 
issues. Road safety measures can provide great 
benefit to health outcomes, through education, 
enforcement, and infrastructure changes (to 
address accident blackspots). Especially in 
protecting children and creating safer 
environments, which low speed networks 

Comments
Explicit consideration of health issues in transport 
planning, the transport SPD and major 
developments is to be welcomed. 

Making journeys can be more difficult for 
vulnerable groups. Complying with Equalities 
legislation is unlikely to lead to a change in the 
baseline for health. 

Safety: + Major High
+ Minor

Medium -
High Crime: D Minor Low

D
Moderate -

Major
Medium

Safety: Significance: Significant

11. To improve safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and fear of crime

Significance: Significant
Crime: Significance: Not Significant

Significance: Significant – Highly Significant

P
age 276

P
age 234



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

186

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Comments
The promotion of walking and cycling in an area 
may increase usage of public spaces and 
therefore the sense of personal security.  This 
potentially will result in minor safety improvements 
and minor reductions in crime. 

However: 
- Encouraging walking and cycling could also 

encourage anti-social behaviour by some 
social groups. 

- Some people may feel safer in certain areas 
in their cars and consequently will be 
reluctant to walk or cycle. 

Expanding cycle and rail integration including the 
provision of secure cycle parking facilities at rail 
stations, carriage of cycles on trains and cycle hire 
are likely to help reduce theft. 

Group cycling activities increase the opportunities 
for collective travel which can feel and be safer 
than travelling alone. 

Comments
Safety – There is likely to be a major, positive 
effect on safety.  

Crime - Improvements in safety and security 
measures by designing out crime are likely to 
reduce instances of anti-social behaviour and 
transport related crime. Although the capacity of 
the LTP3 to make significant impact on this 
problem is limited.  

Maintaining spending on road safety at the 
equivalent of 2010 levels, and ensuring police 
partnership within road safety is maintained at 
LTP2 levels will both ensure a continuing 
commitment to road safety.  

Comments
Improvements in safety and a reduction in crime 
depend on the actions that will be implemented as 
a result of the health/equality assessments. 
Certain social groups, such as older people, are 
likely to be targeted by transport providers.

All actions are in part governed by the need to 
meet developing Equalities legislation. While 
Equalities legislation does not explicitly include 
specific references to crime, many members of 
equality groups (such as women, children, older 
people, disabled people and BAME people) tend 
to express greater fear of crime, particularly in 
relation to transport, public transport and public 
transport use at night. Ensuring compliance with 
equalities legislation will therefore help to ensure 
that transport planning has the interests of groups 
at risk from, or with increased concerns about 
crime.

+ Major High - D Minor Low + Moderate Medium

Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significant

12. To improve local accessibility of 
goods, services and amenities and 
reduce community severance

Comments
Improving pavement surfaces may benefit 
disabled people and older people who traditionally 
experience accessibility issues, by making them 
easier to traverse.

Improvements to walking may disproportionally 
enhance accessibility for certain equality groups 
(younger people; BAME groups; women) who use 
this mode more.  

Expanding cycle and rail integration (as above) 
are, as above, likely to benefit younger people 
who cycle. Measures such as this are likely to 
improve access to a wider area and provide more 
options for most social, economic and cultural 
activities. 

Comments
There is a potential for road safety measures to 
impede the local accessibility of an area; however 
this is likely to be dependant upon the specific 
actions that are implemented. The implementation 
of guard rails could restrict access to certain areas 
and act as a barrier. Certain traffic calming 
measures, for example speed humps can worsen 
the health of certain equality groups and may also 
increase the risk of falls and trips. 

Low speed zones are likely to have a positive 
effect on the local accessibility of vulnerable road 
users, such as cyclists and walkers and in 
particular the elderly.

Comments
The Equality Bill of 2010 has been introduced to 
ensure that public sector duties to give due regard 
to certain equality groups (on the grounds of 
gender, race and disability) is extended to cover 
all seven key equality groups. 

The proposal to ensure that all actions are 
governed by the need to meet equalities 
legislation therefore has the potential to deliver 
positive accessibility improvement to equality 
groups.

P
age 277

P
age 235



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

187

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

+ Major High + - Minor Low 0

Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance:

13. To reduce the need to travel and 
improve choice and use of more 
sustainable transport modes Comments

The actions outlined to support this Goal with 
regards to cycling and walking, including the 
provision for an increased network of cycle and 
walk routes is likely to reduce the need to travel 
via other sustainable modes; and also increase 
the health and well-being of the Merseyside 
population. 

In order to reduce the need to travel it is essential 
that planning and transport are integrated. Where 
travel is necessary, cycling and walking should be 
promoted in the first instance as the most 
sustainable modes.

Comments
A reduction in the need to travel may produce 
slight benefits for health and reduce traffic 
casualties due to a reduction in the number of 
people travelling, resulting in less congestion; or 
through the use of other modes such as public 
transport. This however, may be offset due to the 
vulnerability of active travel users for instance to 
road casualties.

+ Moderate High - Minor Low 0
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance:

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to 
climate change including flood risk

Comments
Improving the cycling and walking network, with 
the aim of improving health and well-being, was 
considered by stakeholders to indirectly generate 
positive outcomes for climate change mitigation. 
These actions were considered to potentially 
produce measurable reductions in emissions from 
travel. 

Stakeholders also considered any infrastructure 
improvement to be an opportunity to incorporate 
climate change adaptation measures into design.

Although there are human health, quality of life 
and environmental effects associated with climate 
change; stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as low in regard to the 
aim of improving health and well-being.

Comments
Some road safety strategies, such as extending 
the network of low speed zones across 
Merseyside, were considered by stakeholders to 
produce negative outcomes for climate change. 

Stakeholder considered the traffic calming 
measures used in low speed zones created stop 
start driving cultures and congestion, which has 
the potential to result in slight measurable 
increases in emissions from travel. 

Although there are human health, quality of life 
and environmental effects associated with 
resource use; stakeholders valued the importance 
of responding to this issue as low in regard to the 
aim of improving health and well-being. 

- Minor Low 0 0
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance:

15. To protect, manage and restore 
land, soil quality and geo-diversity

Improving the cycling and walking network, with 
the aim of improving health and well-being, was 
considered by stakeholders to generate negative 
outcomes for land and soil quality. 

P
age 278

P
age 236



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

188

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Three: Ensure the transport system promotes and enables improved health well-being
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Cycling and Walking 2. Road Safety 3. Health/Equality
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

The development of infrastructure required to 
sufficiently improve the cycling and walking 
network has the potential to produce slight 
measurable impacts on land and soil quality. The 
use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes to achieve this 
goal has the potential to lessen this impact; 
although these measures are not considered a 
solution.

Although there are quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with land and 
soil quality; stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as low in regard to the 
aim of improving health and well-being.P

age 279
P

age 237



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

189

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.5. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 1)

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Access to Employment 2. Access to Healthcare 3. Access to Education
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

+ Major High + Moderate Medium + Major High
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant

1. To use energy, water and mineral 
resources prudently and efficiently, 
increase energy generated from 
renewable sources and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions

Comments
A focus on sustainable transport methods to 
support access to employment has a potential to 
achieve substantial measurable reductions in 
emissions from travel, due to the high journey 
volumes associated with employment travel. 
Travel wise, smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes were identified as key 
measures that could improve access to 
employment while also reducing emissions. . 

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

Comments
Travel wise, smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes were identified as key 
measures that could improve access to healthcare 
while also reducing emissions. 

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in comparison 
to other resource use areas.

Comments
Similarly to employment, access to education is 
considered a key area for consideration in terms 
of emission reduction. This is due to the high 
travel volumes associated with education.

Travel wise, smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes were identified as key 
measures that could improve access to education 
while also reducing emissions.

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance:

2. To minimise the production of 
waste and increase reuse, recycling 
and recovery rates

+ Major High + Major High +
Minor-

Moderate 
High

Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Significant - Highly Significant

3. To reduce poverty and social 
deprivation and secure economic 
inclusion

Comments
Increasing access to employment through 
integration with individual actions in the City 
Employment Strategy is highly likely to reduce 
poverty and social deprivation in disadvantaged 
areas. Specific actions such as the provision of 
free cycles to those in disadvantaged areas, 
along with improvements to connect the cycle 
ways will assist people to overcome transport 
barriers to employment.

The proposed targeted action plans for 
disadvantaged areas to determine what 
improvements are needed is a significant positive 
impact for people from deprived communities. 

Comments
Equitable access to healthcare is likely to have a 
major, positive effect on areas where levels of 
poverty and social deprivation are already high. A 
greater commissioning of joint services to improve 
access to healthcare will further help to reduce the 
health inequalities experienced by socially deprived 
communities. 

The promotion of walking and cycling will help 
those who are reliant on non-private modes of 
transport; in addition these active modes will help to 
increase health and well-being of deprived 
communities.

Comments
Improvements in access to education are likely to 
have a moderate, positive effect on poverty and 
social deprivation within Merseyside.  Enabling 
children to get to an appropriate school or college, 
without necessarily having to rely on the closest 
one due to access issues is important in terms of 
tackling lower educational attainment in poorer 
communities. Long term this could also assist with 
efforts to promote community cohesion and the 
employability of disadvantaged and vulnerable 
groups.

Proposals to improve pedestrian links to and 
install secure cycle facilities at schools will also 
benefit those on lower incomes who tend to make 

P
age 280

P
age 238



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

190

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Access to Employment 2. Access to Healthcare 3. Access to Education
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
The planned continuation of the Let’s Get Moving 
initiative to assist workless residents to overcome 
transport barriers is directly relevant to improving 
economic inclusion. 

fewer private car journeys.

Examining pooled resources with education sector 
providers to assist with travel costs to schools for 
those on low incomes will be directly beneficial to 
deprived groups.  

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance:

4. To protect, enhance and manage 
Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, 
historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance:

5. To protect, enhance and manage 
biodiversity, the viability of 
endangered species, habitats and 
sites of geological importance

0 0 0

Significance: Significance: Significance:

6. To protect, enhance and manage 
the local character and accessibility of 
the landscape across the sub-region

0 0 0

Significance: Significance: Significance:

7. To protect, improve and where 
necessary, restore the quality of 
inland, estuarine and coastal waters

+ Minor Low + Negligible Low + Minor Medium
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significant

8. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local air quality

Comments
Improving connections and accessibility to 
employment sites could result in a modal shift 
away from motorised transport towards more 
sustainable modes, such as public transport. 
However, the actions are targeted at 
disadvantaged communities who are less likely to 
be car owners. Therefore any effect is likely to be 
small.  Include "Public Transport" as an 
improvement in modal shift - as opposed to just 
walking and cycling.

Comments
These actions have the potential to result in a 
modal shift toward public transport and cycling and 
walking. This would improve air quality. However, 
the total number of trips is likely to be small and 
therefore changes to local air quality would be 
small.

Comments
These actions have the potential to result in a 
modal shift towards more sustainable modes, 
such as public transport and cycling and walking. 
This would improve air quality. Journeys to access 
education – e.g. the school run – are a large 
component of peak traffic and a reduction in car 
use for this purpose is likely to benefit local air 
quality

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance:

9. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local 
environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

P
age 281

P
age 239



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

191

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Access to Employment 2. Access to Healthcare 3. Access to Education
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ Minor High + Minor Low + Minor High

Significance: Significant Significance:  Not Significant Significance: Significant

10. To improve health and reduce 
health inequalities

Comments
Transport can provide physical access to 
employment opportunities as well as enabling 
people to access training facilities that 
subsequently lead to employment opportunities. 
Employment can lead to improved mental well 
being and higher levels of income also contribute 
to better physical health.

Specific actions to target workless residents and 
those living in disadvantaged areas (action plans 
and free cycles), would help to tackle social 
deprivation, secure economic inclusion and 
reduce unemployment. This would also help to 
reduce health inequalities.

Comments
Whilst the promotion of walking and cycling will 
have health benefits, these are not always the best 
travel modes for people to access services for 
healthcare, particularly if feeling unwell or for food 
shopping. 

Coordinating resources and commissioning will 
help to match the needs of patients with the 
provision of transport. However, there is an 
opportunity for wider work with the PCTs. This 
could be to reduce the need for travel (by delivering 
services locally) or by influencing travel providers 
(e.g. operators of bus services).

No specific actions to reduce health inequalities are 
proposed.

Comments
Actions to promote more active forms of travel to 
schools will help to promote healthier lifestyles 
and provide a safe and healthy environment for 
children.

+ Minor Low 0 D
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance:

11. To improve safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and fear of crime

Comments
Greater access to employment is likely to have a 
positive, indirect effect on crime and safety. High 
levels of crime and anti-social behaviour are often 
associated with areas where unemployment rates 
are high. Improvements in access to employment 
are likely to open up the number of job 
opportunities and reduce the levels of 
unemployment across the region. 

Links between deprivation and crime are well 
established. Improving conditions and 
opportunities in the most deprived areas is likely 
to contribute to a reduction in levels of crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

Comments
Improvements in safety and crime will be 
dependant upon the measures implemented 
through the adoption of the LTP3 to increase 
access to education in the Merseyside region. 
Through partnerships with schools, safer, 
accessible routes could be promoted and 
coordinated through school travel plans, 
particularly where younger school pupils are 
concerned. Secure storage facilities for cycles 
within the school grounds will encourage cycling 
and deter anti-social behaviour and crime. 
New educational opportunities may arise as a 
result of the improvements in access to education 
facilities, such as further education and access to 
new schools. This is likely to increase the number 
of people in full and part-time education, which 
may indirectly reduce anti-social behaviour, 
resulting in lower levels of crime, disorder and fear 
of crime.

P
age 282

P
age 240



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

192

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Access to Employment 2. Access to Healthcare 3. Access to Education
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ Major High + Major High + Major High

Significance:  Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

12. To improve local accessibility of 
goods, services and amenities and 
reduce community severance

Comments
Improvements in accessibility and connectivity 
through investment in a high quality, sustainable 
transport system will have significant benefits in 
terms of improving local accessibility to goods, 
services and amenities through easier 
commuting. 

Comments
Improvements links and connectivity with 
healthcare facilities will increase access to vital 
services. In terms of this objective significant 
interaction and positive impacts are likely.

Working with bus operators will ensure that the 
timing of bus services coincide with hospital 
appointments, particularly for the elderly and other 
vulnerable groups

Comments
Improvements in access to education have a 
direct positive interaction with improving 
accessibility to local services and amenities. 

+ Minor Low 0 0
Significance:  Not Significant Significance: Significance:

13. To reduce the need to travel and 
improve choice and use of more 
sustainable transport modes Comments

Reducing the need to travel can be facilitated 
through home-working however this action can 
only be promoted through partnerships with local 
companies and businesses that are willing to 
encourage home-working.

+ Major High + Moderate Medium + Major High
Significance:  Highly Significant Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to 
climate change including flood risk

Comments
A focus on sustainable transport methods to 
support access to employment has a potential to 
achieve substantial measurable reductions in 
emissions from private car travel, due to the high 
journey volumes associated with employment 
travel.

Travel wise, smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes were identified as key 
measures that could improve access to 
employment while also reducing emissions.

Comments
Travel wise, smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes were identified as key 
measures that could improve access to healthcare 
and facilitate modal shift, while also reducing 
emissions associated with private car use. The 
specialist nature of healthcare services 
necessitates travel to a healthcare facility, 
especially by private car. 

Comments
Similarly to employment, access to education is 
considered a key area for consideration in terms 
of emission reduction. 

Travel wise, smarter choices and behavioural 
change programmes were identified as key 
measures that could improve access to education 
and facilitate modal shift, while also reducing 
emissions associated with private car use.

P
age 283

P
age 241



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

193

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Access to Employment 2. Access to Healthcare 3. Access to Education
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
0 0 015. To protect, manage and restore 

land, soil quality and geo-diversity Significance: Significance: Significance:  

P
age 284

P
age 242



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

194

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.6. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 2)

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fares, Information & Ticketing 5. Taxis & Community Transport 6. Public Transport
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

+ Moderate High 0 + Major High
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Significance:  Highly Significant

1. To use energy, water and mineral 
resources prudently and efficiently, 
increase energy generated from 
renewable sources and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions

Comments
Improvements in fares and ticketing are likely to 
improve accessibility and encourage public 
transport use. These actions were considered to 
have a potential to produce measurable 
reductions in emissions from travel.

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

Comments
Improvements in the accessibility of the public 
transport system were considered by stakeholders 
to generate positive outcomes for resource use. 
Such improvements were highlighted as having 
the potential to produce substantial measurable 
reductions in emissions from travel.

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance:  

2. To minimise the production of 
waste and increase reuse, recycling 
and recovery rates

D Moderate High + Major High + D Moderate Medium
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance:  Significant

3. To reduce poverty and social 
deprivation and secure economic 
inclusion Comments

Improvements in access to information at the 
local level are important to help people make 
informed choices, particularly in disadvantaged 
communities where travel horizons are limited. 
However, the level of interaction is likely to 
depend on the measures implemented and which 
areas of Merseyside are targeted. Discounted 
tickets would have a positive impact but may not 
be introduced if independent bus operators who 
influence the price of tickets do not buy-in.

Comments
An increase in the number of taxi and community 
transport services is particularly likely to have a 
positive effect on socially deprived areas. Taxi use 
is often highly associated with disability groups as 
they can be easily accessed. Taxis and community 
minibuses would provide a more cost effective way 
to travel, particularly if the same service can be 
offered to a small group of people. They can 
provide a service that is not only cost effective but 
one that is flexible and could help to promote social 
and economic inclusion in socially deprived areas.

Comments
Public transport budget and savings measures 
could indirectly assist in the reduction of poverty 
and social deprivation however, this is likely to be 
dependant on the where efficiency savings are 
made. In addition, the LTP3  only has a certain 
level of influence in terms of resources, as the bus 
services are run by private operators

0 0 04. To protect, enhance and manage 
Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, Significance:  Significance: Significance:

P
age 285

P
age 243



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

195

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fares, Information & Ticketing 5. Taxis & Community Transport 6. Public Transport
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets

0 0 + - Minor Low
Significance: Significance: Significance:  Not Significant

5. To protect, enhance and manage 
biodiversity, the viability of 
endangered species, habitats and 
sites of geological importance

Comments
Actions to promote and encourage the use of 
public transport are likely to result in a modal shift 
away from private modes of transport, which is 
also likely to improve local air and noise quality in 
the long-term. There may however, be negative 
impacts on the natural environment that could 
arise from land take or insensitive maintenance 
measures.

0 0 + - Minor Low
Significance: Significance: Significance:  Not Significant

6. To protect, enhance and manage 
the local character and accessibility of 
the landscape across the sub-region Comments

The local character and accessibility of the 
landscape could be both positively and negatively 
affected through the provision of a clean and low 
carbon transport system. A modal shift is likely to 
reduce the number of single occupancy vehicles 
on the road and thus reduce congestion. However, 
the provision of new infrastructure to support a low 
carbon transport system may result in significant 
adverse effects on the landscape.

0 0 0

Significance: Significance: Significance:  

7. To protect, improve and where 
necessary, restore the quality of 
inland, estuarine and coastal waters

+ Moderate High + Negligible Low + Negligible Low
Significance:  Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance: Not Significant

8. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local air quality

Comments
These actions have the potential to result in a 
modal shift away from motorised transport. This 
would improve air quality. 

Comments
Greater use of community transport or multi-trip 
transport (such as taxis) could remove the need for 
some individual trips and therefore have a positive 
effect on local air quality.

Comments
These actions have the potential to result in a 
modal shift away from motorised transport. This 
would improve air quality. 

0 0 09. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local Significance: Significance: Significance:  

P
age 286

P
age 244



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

196

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fares, Information & Ticketing 5. Taxis & Community Transport 6. Public Transport
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

+ Moderate High + Minor Low D

Significance:  Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance:

10. To improve health and reduce 
health inequalities

Comments
Actions to improve the affordability of public 
transport are likely to have positive effects in
making public transport accessible (by providing 
flexibility) and in reducing health inequalities, 
especially as these measures are targeted at low 
income households. People on low incomes are 
often those less able to take advantage of the 
most cost-effective tickets.

Information and education can help people on 
how to use the bus or make the best financial 
choices for public transport use.

Comments
Actions to facilitate the role of community 
organisations in the transport system are welcome 
– they can provide access to healthcare and 
services for those that are in need. A key issue is 
likely to be the longer term financial viability of 
these services. 

Taxis can prolong independence and provide an 
alternative for those groups that who may be 
considering giving up driving. 

Comments
The actions set out are not specific enough to 
determine whether they will result in health 
benefits or tackle health inequalities. 

+ Moderate High + Moderate Low + Minor Low
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant Significance:  Not Significant

11. To improve safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and fear of crime

Comments

Ticket pre-pay schemes have the potential to 
reduce crime by reducing the need to carry cash 
on public transport. 

Comments

The door-to-door travel that community transport 
and taxi services offer is likely to reduce personal 
safety concerns (as compared to other public 
modes).

In the long term, if a single taxi licensing authority 
for Merseyside was established it would help to 
ensure that all licensed taxi drivers are held on 
record, and that a single licence format could be 
made available, which the public could be made 
aware of. This would reduce the risk from bogus 
taxi drivers, help to protect both drivers and 
passengers and reduce the fear of crime 
particularly among women.

Comments
Travel training has the potential to make public 
transport users more aware of all aspects of public 
transport use, including awareness of personal 
security and crime. However, this will only be 
successful if such training is targeted at the right 
audiences.

P
age 287

P
age 245



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

197

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Fares, Information & Ticketing 5. Taxis & Community Transport 6. Public Transport
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
D + Major High + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant Significance:  Highly Significant
12. To improve local accessibility of 
goods, services and amenities and 
reduce community severance Comments

Developing a range of affordable ticketing 
opportunities to assist low income households will 
help to open up more opportunities for accessing 
local services and amenities. This will help to 
ensure that access improvements are made for 
those who need them most.

Comments
Through expanding the use of community transport 
and taxi use as part of the wider public transport 
offer, there will be more opportunities to tailor 
services so that they provide access to essential 
local services. This will be particularly beneficial for 
those population groups who traditionally 
experience more accessibility problems than the 
population per se; notably older people and 
disabled people.

Comments
Sharing services with providers in other sectors is 
likely to improve accessibility across the 
Merseyside region and reduce community 
severance. Neighbourhood Travel Teams will 
support people to use public transport. They will 
also seek to identify what services people require 
and give good advice on how to access local 
services and amenities.

+ Minor Medium + Major High + Major High
Significance: Significant Significance:  Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

13. To reduce the need to travel and 
improve choice and use of more 
sustainable transport modes Comments

Measures to improve ticketing, the provision of 
information and fares can help to inform people’s 
choice and use of more sustainable transport 
modes. Consequently, the operation of public 
transport modes is likely to be more efficient if 
such measures of the existing public transport 
system are enhanced, which will encourage the 
use of more sustainable modes

Comments
Taxis and community transport, including car share 
schemes should be promoted in order to reduce 
the number of single occupancy vehicles and 
reduce congestion. In areas of low accessibility, 
taxi and community transport should be promoted 
as the preferred method of travel.

Comments
Although measures to improve public transport will 
not reduce the need to travel, they will however 
seek to reduce the number of single occupancy 
trips made. 

+ Moderate High 0 + Moderate High
Significance: Highly Significant Significance:  Significance: Highly Significant

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to 
climate change including flood risk

Comments
Improvements in fares and ticketing are likely to 
improve accessibility and encourage public 
transport use. These actions were considered to 
have a potential to produce measurable 
reductions in emissions from travel.

Comments
Improvements in the accessibility of the public 
transport system were considered by stakeholders 
to generate positive outcomes for climate change 
mitigation. Such improvements were highlighted as 
having the potential to produce substantial 
measurable reductions in emissions from travel.

0 0 0
Significance: Significance:  Significance:

15. To protect, manage and restore 
land, soil quality and geo-diversity

P
age 288

P
age 246



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

198

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.7. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 3)
LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with  employment, services and social activities

LTP3 Actions and Interventions
7. Joint Working to address Common Objectives

SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ Moderate High

Significance: Highly Significant

1. To use energy, water and mineral 
resources prudently and efficiently, 
increase energy generated from 
renewable sources and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions

Comments
Joint working had the potential to ensure that transport takes regard of resource use issues, enabling the consideration of the minimisation or sustainable 
resource use in the improvement of the transport system. Stakeholders considered there to be a potential to generate measurable positive changes for the 
region. 

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high, due to national statutory requirements and major human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with sustainable resource use.

Stakeholders identified that joint working should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and non-
government organisations. Also, joint working with resource use organisations could provide funding opportunities.

The impact on water resources was considered to be low in comparison to other resource use areas.
+ Moderate High

Significance: Highly Significant
2. To minimise the production of waste 
and increase reuse, recycling and 
recovery rates Comments

Similarly to resource use, stakeholders also identified that joint working should ensure that transport takes appropriate consideration of waste minimisation, 
potentially producing measurable positive changes for the region. Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high as there are national 
statutory requirements and major human health, quality of life and environmental effects associated with waste.

Recycling was considered a particularly significant issue by stakeholders. They identified potential in the development the transport system to work locally to 
recycle resources. One such example included collecting cooking oil for bio-fuels locally.

Stakeholders thought that strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and non 
government organisations. Stakeholders also highlighted that working in partnership with waste organisations could provide funding opportunities.

+ Minor High3. To reduce poverty and social 
deprivation and secure economic Significance: Significant

P
age 289

P
age 247



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

199

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with  employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

7. Joint Working to address Common Objectives
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance
inclusion Comments

Reducing poverty and social deprivation should be about ‘reducing the gap’ so that the social gradient between the ‘haves’ and the ‘have nots’ is flattened. The 
objective should be to reduce the socio-economic inequalities. 

Transport can, and does play a part in tackling poverty / social deprivation; it is one part of a wider jigsaw, so working together collaboratively will help to 
realise benefits. As such, there is a potential positive interaction. 

Magnitude was considered minor as working with partners was not the way in which the LTP could bring about most change in terms of social deprivation. 

Working with partners to help deliver Low Carbon Economy ambitions through the provision of efficient public transport services will help socially deprived 
areas where there is generally less access to private transport. Reduced emissions will also be positive for socially deprived groups, who tend to experience 
poorer health outcomes. 

Continuing to work collaboratively will help to integrate transport planning with wider objectives, which is likely to lead to positive outcomes in turn, reducing 
poverty and tackling deprivation / economic inclusion. 

Continue to develop joint approaches to ensure good land use and transport integration via the LTP and LDF’s –a joined up approach could deliver 
employment sites that are well-served by public transport where access is not reliant on private car use; the latter tends to discriminate those on lower incomes 
who have less access to their own transport.

+ Moderate High
Significance: Highly Significant

4. To protect, enhance and manage 
Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, 
historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets

Comments
Stakeholders identified that joint working could ensure that transport takes appropriate consideration of cultural heritage issues to potentially produce 
measurable positive outcomes in the enhancement of the transport system.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high. There are national statutory requirements and quality of life impacts associated with 
the management of cultural heritage. However, cultural heritage is already heavily protected by legislation and controlled through the planning process; 
therefore focused joint working in addition to this would add little to the management of cultural heritage impacts.

Stakeholders thought that strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and non 
government organisations. Stakeholders also highlighted that working in partnership with cultural heritage organisations could provide funding opportunities.

+ Major High5. To protect, enhance and manage 
biodiversity, the viability of Significance: Highly Significant

P
age 290

P
age 248



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

200

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with  employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

7. Joint Working to address Common Objectives
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance
endangered species, habitats and 
sites of geological importance

Comments
Stakeholders outlined that joint working would ensure that the improvements of transport system takes appropriate consideration of the impacts on biodiversity, 
potentially producing measurable positive outcomes in the enhancement of the transport system.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high, as there are national statutory requirements (such as Green Infrastructure and 
biodiversity actions plans) and major human health, quality of life and environmental effects associated with biodiversity management.

It was considered that strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and non 
government organisations. In addition, working in partnership with biodiversity organisations could provide funding opportunities.

+ Moderate High
Significance: Highly Significant

6. To protect, enhance and manage 
the local character and accessibility of 
the landscape across the sub-region Comments

Stakeholders identified that joint working would ensure that improvements to the transport system takes appropriate consideration of the impact on landscape, 
potentially generating measurable positive changes for the region. Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high, as there are 
national statutory requirements and quality of life effects associated with landscape management.

Stakeholders identified that strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and non 
government organisations. These groups also highlighted that working in partnership with landscape management organisations could provide funding 
opportunities.

+ Major High

Significance: Highly Significant

7. To protect, improve and where 
necessary, restore the quality of 
inland, estuarine and coastal waters Comments

Stakeholders identified that joint working would ensure that improvements to the transport system takes appropriate consideration of the impact on water 
quality, potentially generating substantial measurable positive changes for the region. Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high, 
as there are international statutory requirements (such as the Water Framework Directive) and major human health, quality of life and environmental effects 
associated with water quality management.

Stakeholder identified that strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and non 
government organisations. In addition, working in partnership with resource use organisations could provide funding opportunities.

+ Moderate High
Significance: Highly Significant

8. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local air quality

Comments
Joint working to confirm commitments to sustainable travel and environmental improvement have the potential to result in a modal shift away from motorised 
transport. This would improve local air quality.

+ Major High
Significance: Highly Significant

9. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local 
environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

Comments
Joint working to is likely to prove beneficial to achieving a high quality local environment as this should be a common objective across all organisations. 
Specifically, the outcomes of the Liverpool Transport and Land Use study should identify those issues where transport and the environment positively interact 
and opportunities to improve local environmental quality can be pursued.

10. To improve health and reduce + Moderate High

P
age 291

P
age 249



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

201

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with  employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

7. Joint Working to address Common Objectives
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance
Significance: Highly Significanthealth inequalities
Comments
There are many social determinants of health, so coordinating and integrating travel and accessibility with other strategies is fundamental to addressing these 
influencing issues to achieve better health outcomes.

Highlighting strategies such as the City Region Child and Family Poverty Framework will help to tackle existing social and health inequalities.
D Minor Medium-High

Significance: Significant

11. To improve safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and fear of crime

Comments
The LTP’s purpose is not to improve safety and reduce crime, so interaction is low, however, if there is close working with other partners, positive interactions 
could be realised in future. Hence, it is dependent on implementation. 

It may be that in the MAA and with the LSPs their focus is not on crime and anti – social behaviour, therefore they are unlikely to address such issues with 
importance.

+ Major High

Significance: Highly Significant

12. To improve local accessibility of 
goods, services and amenities and 
reduce community severance

Comments
Transport is seen to play a big role in local accessibility; however joint working is not necessarily the main way in which the LTP hopes to fulfil this objective. 
Therefore, whilst the interaction is potentially positive the magnitude is low. The importance of delivering accessibility would, however, be high on the agenda 
in any partnership working.

MAA and LSP priorities are likely to include objectives around accessibility, and therefore synergy with these governance bodies / strategies will help to 
maximise delivery against this goal.

+ Major High
Significance: Highly Significant

13. To reduce the need to travel and 
improve choice and use of more 
sustainable transport modes Comments

Through joint working, the integration of transport and land-use planning is likely to be successful and thus, reduce the need to travel. Efforts should be made 
to ensure that new development, particularly housing is centred on town centres to encourage a range of high trip generating uses in town centres. This is 
because town centres often tend to be the places with best access by public transport. Also, locating different uses together often reduces the number of 
different journeys that have to be made.

+ Minor High
Significance: Highly Significant

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to 
climate change including flood risk

Comments
Stakeholders identified that joint working would ensure that improvements to the transport system takes appropriate consideration of climate change, 
potentially generating substantial measurable positive changes for the region. In addition, stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as 
high, as there are international statutory requirements and major human health, quality of life and environmental effects associated with climate change 
management.

Stakeholders considered that strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and 
non government organisations. In addition working in partnership with climate change organisations could provide funding opportunities.

P
age 292

P
age 250



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

202

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Four: Ensure the transport system supports equality of travel opportunity by ensuring people can connect easily with  employment, services and social activities
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

7. Joint Working to address Common Objectives
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ Minor High

Significance: Significant

15. To protect, manage and restore 
land, soil quality and geo-diversity

Comments
Stakeholders identified that joint working would ensure that improvements to the transport system takes appropriate consideration of land and soil quality, 
potentially generating substantial measurable positive change. Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue as high, as there are 
international statutory requirements and major quality of life and environmental effects associated with land and soil quality.

Stakeholders identified sustainable land use planning, particularly the prioritisation of derelict land, as an important consideration concerning the development 
of the transport system. Stakeholders identified sustainable land use planning joint working had significant potential to produce positive outcomes in regard to 
land and soil quality.

Stakeholders highlighted that strategic partnerships should focus on the ‘big players’, such as non-departmental public bodies, government departments and 
non government organisations. In addition, joint working with land and soil quality organisations could provide funding opportunities.

P
age 293

P
age 251



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

203

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.8. Goal Five Appraisal
LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods

LTP3 Actions and Interventions
1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling

SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

+ Moderate High + Major High + Moderate High

Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

1. To use energy, water and mineral 
resources prudently and efficiently, 
increase energy generated from 
renewable sources and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions

Comments
The provision of park and ride facilities in 
Merseyside was supported by stakeholders as a 
measure to encourage public transport use and in 
turn reduce transport emissions. Stakeholders 
outlined that park and ride facilities should be 
developed to support a modal shift from private 
car. Therefore, sites should be strategically placed 
in areas of high private car use and provide 
access to key facilities. Some stakeholders 
believed that many park and ride services were 
not focused on key impact areas and were located 
in areas already well served by public transport, 
such as train stations. It was also suggested that 
park and ride sites should not be located in areas 
of deprevation, where levels of air quality are 
already likely to be poor. 

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

Comments
Stakeholders believed that targeted legislation and 
planning policy was needed to support the success 
of such actions. It was therefore important that 
freight is integrated into the land use planning 
process across Merseyside, aiming to support 
environmental agendas.

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

Comments
Current walking and cycling infrastructure was
considered to be insufficient. Stakeholders 
illustrated that the success of such measures was 
considered heavily dependant on the provision of 
supporting infrastructure. In addition, the 
development of cycle and walking facilities 
required strategic planning, with a focus on 
supporting short journeys to public transport 
facilities. 

The application of the Manual for Streets in the 
improvement of the cycling and walking network 
was considered by stakeholders to generate 
measurable positive outcomes for resource use. 
Stakeholders that the cycling and walking network 
in Merseyside required significant infrastructure 
improvements. The application of the Manual for 
Streets recommendations in the development of 
such infrastructure would enable the consideration 
of materials and resource use into design.

The impact on water and was considered by 
stakeholders to be low in comparison to other 
resource use areas.

+ Minor Low + Moderate High 02. To minimise the production of 
waste and increase reuse, recycling Significance: Not Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: 

P
age 294

P
age 252



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

204

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
and recovery rates Comments

The introduction of new technologies for public 
transport, such as the use of bio-fuel from waste 
oil could produce positive outcomes for the local
economy, and attract new businesses to the area.

Comments
Stakeholders considered working with the Freight 
Quality Partnership to promote best practice and 
support environmental agendas would produce 
measurable waste management benefits. This 
measure would enable consideration of and action 
to support waste management issues, particularly 
recycling.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding 
to this issue as high, as there are national statutory 
requirements and major human health and 
environmental effects associated with waste 
management.

Comments

D Negligible Low-Medium 0 D Negligible Low
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance: Not Significant

3. To reduce poverty and social 
deprivation and secure economic 
inclusion Comments

Improvements in the accessibility of the rail 
network could have a positive effect on socially 
deprived areas, as access to rail services in 
deprived areas is currently very poor. This would 
be dependent on location of stations.

Tram measures in particular could help to reduce 
poverty and promote social inclusion; however 
careful consideration will need to be given to the 
location of tram stops to ensure that socially 
deprived areas have access to services.

Actions to improve ticketing, information and 
accessibility of services are likely to have positive 
effects on the less affluent areas of Merseyside 
through the provision of more cost effective ways 
to travel.

The provision of high quality and more frequent 
bus services is likely to promote social inclusion 
and improve access to services and jobs. 

Investment in public transport generally results in 
positive impacts for economically deprived groups.  

Providing enhanced cycling and walking facilities 

Comments Comments
Through integration with other sustainable modes 
of public transport, cycling can further increase 
beneficial impacts on socially deprived 
communities within Merseyside by boosting non –
private travel opportunities.

The provision of enhanced cycling facilities 
whenever possible is likely to improve accessibility 
from socially deprived areas however the impacts 
would be dependant on the location of any new 
connections.

P
age 295

P
age 253



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

205

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
whenever possible is likely to improve accessibility 
from socially deprived areas.

Enhancing the role of community transport and 
voluntary sector organisations may benefit those 
from more deprived socio economic groups and 
help to reduce the impact of social exclusion.

- Minor High + Moderate High + Moderate High

Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

4. To protect, enhance and manage 
Merseyside’s rich diversity of cultural, 
historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets

Comments
The development required to sufficiently improve 
public transport, cycling and walking infrastructure 
to meet this goal is likely to impact on cultural 
heritage. However, the scale of the impact is 
expected to be low due to the provision of cultural 
heritage management legislation.

The use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes may lessen this 
impact; although these measures are not 
considered a solution as some infrastructure 
development is considered to be required.

Comments
Stakeholders considered working with the Freight 
Quality Partnership to promote best practice and 
support environmental agendas would produce 
measurable cultural heritage benefits. This 
measure would enable to consideration of and 
action to support cultural heritage issues. 

Comments
Stakeholders felt that the cycling and walking 
network in Merseyside required significant 
infrastructure improvements. The application of the 
Manual for Streets recommendations in the 
development of such infrastructure would enable 
the consideration cultural heritage into design.

+ - Minor High + Moderate High + - Minor High
Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Significant

5. To protect, enhance and manage 
biodiversity, the viability of 
endangered species, habitats and 
sites of geological importance

Comments
The development required to sufficiently improve 
public transport, cycling and walking infrastructure 
to meet this goal may have both positive and
negative impacts on biodiversity. However, the 
scale of the impact is expected to be low due to 
compliance with biodiversity management 
legislation.

The use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes may lessen this 
impact; although these measures are not 
considered a solution as some infrastructure 
development is considered to be required.

Comments
Stakeholders considered working with the Freight 
Quality Partnership to promote best practice and 
support environmental agendas would produce 
measurable biodiversity benefits. This measure 
would enable to consideration of and action to
support biodiversity issues. 

Comments
The development required to sufficiently improve 
public transport, cycling and walking infrastructure 
to meet this goal is likely to impact biodiversity. 
However, the scale of the impact is expected to be 
low due to the provision of biodiversity 
management legislation.

The use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes may lessen this 
impact; although these measures are not 
considered a solution as some infrastructure 
development is considered to be required.

P
age 296

P
age 254



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

206

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

+ = Minor High + Moderate High + - Moderate High

Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

6. To protect, enhance and manage 
the local character and accessibility of 
the landscape across the sub-region Comments

The development required to sufficiently improve 
public transport, cycling and walking infrastructure 
to meet this goal is likely to impact biodiversity. As 
outlined in Goal 2 under the Public Transport 
action measures to improve the public transport 
system to ensure the efficient movement of people 
and goods have the potential to improve visual 
amenity or affect the existing landscape. However, 
the scale of the impact is expected to be low due 
to the provision of landscape management 
legislation.

The use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes may lessen this 
impact; although these measures are not 
considered a solution as some infrastructure 
development is considered to be required.

Comments
Stakeholders considered working with the Freight 
Quality Partnership to promote best practice and 
support environmental agendas would produce 
measurable landscape benefits. This measure 
would enable to consideration of and action to 
support landscape issues. 

Comments
Stakeholders felt that the cycling and walking 
network in Merseyside required significant 
infrastructure improvements. The application of the 
Manual for Streets recommendations in the 
development of such infrastructure would enable 
the consideration landscape issues into design.

- Minor High + Moderate High + Moderate High

Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

7. To protect, improve and where 
necessary, restore the quality of 
inland, estuarine and coastal waters Comments

The development required to sufficiently improve 
public transport, cycling and walking infrastructure 
to meet this goal is likely to impact biodiversity. 
However, the scale of the impact is expected to be 
low due to the provision of water quality 
management legislation.

The use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes may lessen this 
impact; although these measures are not 
considered a solution as some infrastructure 
development is considered to be required.

Comments
Stakeholders considered working with the Freight 
Quality Partnership to promote best practice and 
support environmental agendas would produce 
measurable water quality benefits. This measure 
would enable consideration of and action to 
support water quality issues. 

Comments
Stakeholders felt that the cycling and walking 
network in Merseyside required significant 
infrastructure improvements. The application of the 
Manual for Streets recommendations in the 
development of such infrastructure, such as the 
implementation of Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDS) would benefit water quality.

+ Moderate High + Moderate High + Negligible Low8. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local air quality Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant

P
age 297

P
age 255



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

207

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Comments
An efficient public transport system will have the 
aim of achieving modal shift at its core. Where 
there is a modal shift away from motorised 
transport, local air quality is likely to improve.

The provision of more public transport services 
(bus, rail, tram) has the potential to remove other 
vehicle trips from the road and therefore improve 
air quality. 

Park and ride schemes are aimed at reducing 
vehicle movements in areas where they are 
needed the most. The effects of park and ride 
schemes on air quality are generally positive, 
although there could be deteriorations locally

Comments
HGVs make a large contribution to urban air 
pollution and therefore reducing HGV movements 
in AQMAs would make a positive contribution to 
local air quality. Whilst the use of consolidation 
centres may reduce the overall number of HGV 
trips, although the area around the consolidation 
centre may experience a decrease in air quality.  

Greater use of low emission vehicles would also 
have a positive effect on air quality

Comments
Improvements in cycling provision have the 
potential to reduce vehicle numbers and improve 
air quality. However, the changes are likely to be 
very small

+ Moderate Low + Moderate High + Negligible Low
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant

9. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local 
environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

Comments
An efficient public transport system will help 
improve local environmental quality by reducing 
the amount of motorised traffic. This has benefits 
for reducing noise. Increased patronage is likely to 
create demand for better infrastructure and 
services which could mean that upgraded and 
smarter bus stops, rail stations and routes are 
commissioned, helping to improve environmental 
quality

Comments
HGVs make a large contribution to road noise and 
therefore reducing HGV movements would make a 
positive contribution to local environmental quality. 
Whilst the use of consolidation centres may reduce 
the overall number of HGV trips, although the area 
around the consolidation centre may experience a 
increase in noise, particularly at night

Comments
Cycling is likely to have positive effects on local 
environmental quality, as low levels of noise are 
associated with this mode of transport. There may 
however be an increase in lighting along 
cycleways. Although the provision of linkages with 
Green Infrastructure could provide benefits to the 
local community

+ Moderate Low + Moderate High + Minor Low10. To improve health and reduce 
health inequalities Significance: Not Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Not Significant

P
age 298

P
age 256



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

208

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Comments
There are a number of actions proposed that will 
help support the economic success of the LCR. 
These actions may have direct health benefits 
themselves, and achieving the goal will help to 
address social determinants of health including 
poverty reduction, economic inclusion and 
increased employment. 

Reducing the number of poorly used services is 
likely to have negative effects on those people that 
rely on these services to access services. Tram 
and Park and Ride measures are not likely to have 
any effect on health. 
Actions to improve ticketing, information and 
accessibility of services are likely to have positive 
effects on health by providing more cost effective 
ways to travel, either to work or to training 
opportunities

The investigation into the use of flexible bus 
services should consider replacement services to 
meet the needs of t travellers currently using 
services that would be reduced. 

The provision of high quality and more frequent 
bus services is considered to have positive effects 
for health.

Comments
Actions to manage the volume of freight traffic and 
investigate consolidation centres are likely to have 
a positive effect on health. A targeted approach to 
addressing the issue within existing Air Quality 
Management Areas will help to improve air quality 
and improve the health of people already exposed 
to pollutants that could be damaging to health.

Comments
Actions to consider cycling in the development 
planning process are likely to produce the most 
benefits to health. 

Improving connections for active travellers is likely 
to help promote healthy lifestyles through 
recreational activity. Similarly, access to Green 
Infrastructure will have a positive, but less direct, 
effect on health by improving accessibility to open 
spaces.  

0 0 + Minor
Medium-

High
Significance: Significance: Significance: Significant

11. To improve safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and fear of crime

Comments
The promotion of walking and cycling in an area 
may increase usage of public spaces and therefore 
the sense of personal security in those areas, 
resulting in minor safety improvements and minor 
reductions in crime. 

Training programmes for children in particular will 
improve their confidence and safety when using a 
bike.

However encouraging walking and cycling could 

P
age 299

P
age 257



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

209

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
also encourage anti-social behaviour by some 
social groups.. 

Provide connections between cycle and pedestrian 
friendly areas to create routes for active travellers 
– such link have potential to enhance safety and 
security. 

Seeking funding to ensure cycle training is 
available to secondary school children and adults, 
Bikeability level 2 training is available to primary 
school children, and cycle maintenance training is 
available to all is likely to reduce the risk of 
accidents involving cyclists due to poorly 
maintained cycles.

+ Negligible Low 0 + Moderate High

Significance: NotSignificant Significance: Significance: Highly Significant

12. To improve local accessibility of 
goods, services and amenities and 
reduce community severance

Comments
It was highlighted that rail is the least likely of all 
public transport modes to improve the local 
accessibility to goods, services and amenities. 

The MerseyTram system, if implemented is likely 
to increase the capacity of those travelling by PT 
and has the opportunity to link smaller towns and 
villages to major services; however these links 
would only be to the services that are located 
along the specific tram corridors.

Transport measures are dependent on the specific 
scheme, though are likely to provide a benefit. The 
impact of the transport measure is likely to be 
dependent on the concentration and types of 
services that a particular transport measure may 
serve.

Comments
Provide connections between cycle and pedestrian 
friendly areas to create routes for active travellers. 
This has links with Green Infrastructure initiatives. 
All cycling initiatives are likely to have a positive 
impact on young people as they make more 
journeys by bike than any other age group. 

+ Moderate High + Major High + Major High
13. To reduce the need to travel and 
improve choice and use of more 

Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

P
age 300

P
age 258



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

210

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
sustainable transport modes Comments

Improvements in existing public transport modes 
and infrastructure are highly likely to increase the 
use and choice of modes available.

Expanding Merseyrail is likely to positively impact 
on groups which rely on rail services. In addition 
this may encourage more people to use the rail 
service, which may lead to a modal shift away 
from the private car to more sustainable modes of 
transport. 

Better ticketing and real-time information on public 
transport services will contribute to an increased 
use.

Comments
Efforts should be made to encourage the use of 
more sustainable transport modes for the 
transportation of freight. More sustainable 
transport modes such as railways and inland 
waterways should be favoured over other modes. 
Freight should however be integrated into the land-
use planning process to ensure that the 
infrastructure exists to support the use of more 
sustainable modes.

Consolidation centres, whereby goods are 
transferred to low emission vehicles could 
potentially reduce the number of journeys made by 
less sustainable modes of transport. 

Comments
Cycling is one of the most sustainable modes of 
transport and can help to decrease congestion on 
the roads, cut exhaust emissions and improve 
people’s health and well-being.

Improvements to the cycling network are likely to 
encourage people to make short trips using this 
environmentally friendly mode and consequently 
reduce the need to travel by car.

+ Major High + Major High + Moderate High14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to 
climate change including flood risk Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

P
age 301

P
age 259



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

211

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Comments
The integration of cycle and walking facilities with 
public transport to encourage multi-modal journeys 
was considered by stakeholders to produce 
measurable reductions in emissions from travel. 
However, current walking and cycling 
infrastructure was considered to be insufficient. 
Stakeholders illustrated that the success of such 
measures was considered heavily dependant on 
the provision of supporting infrastructure. In 
addition, the development of cycle and walking 
facilities required strategic planning, with a focus 
on supporting short journeys to public transport 
facilities. 

Proposals for rail expansion capacity 
improvements in Merseyside were not a priority as 
a high level of rail infrastructure was already in 
place. Although, such measures would improve 
accessibility and encourage public transport use, 
in turn producing reductions in travel emissions. In 
addition, stakeholders outlined that the 
electrification and decarbonisation of the Mersey 
ail energy supply would also generate significant 
emission reductions.

Improvements in fares and ticketing and in 
particular smart ticketing were considered by 
stakeholders to improve accessibility and 
encourage public transport use. These actions 
were considered to potentially produce 
measurable reductions in emissions from travel.

Comments
The development of consolidation centres, 
transferring goods to low emissions vehicles and 
the implementation of carbon reduction action 
plans across Merseyside were considered by 
stakeholders reduce transport emissions. 
However, stakeholders believed that targeted 
legislation and planning policy was needed to 
support the success of such actions. It was 
therefore important that freight is integrated into 
the land use planning process across Merseyside, 
aiming to support climate change mitigation and 
adaptation agendas.

Comments
Improving the cycling and walking network and 
programme to encourage cycling were considered 
to potentially produce measurable reductions in 
transport greenhouse gas emissions.

Stakeholders also considered any infrastructure 
improvement as an opportunity to incorporate 
climate change adaptation measures into design.

P
age 302

P
age 260



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

212

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Measures to Increase the efficiency of bus 
services were considered by stakeholders to 
produce reductions in emissions from travel.

The provision of park and ride facilities in 
Merseyside was supported by stakeholders as a 
measure to encourage public transport use and in 
turn reduce transport emissions. Stakeholders 
outlined that park and ride facilities should be 
developed to support a modal shift from private 
car. Therefore, sites should be strategically placed 
in areas of high private car use and provide 
access to key facilities. Some stakeholders 
believed that many park and ride services were 
not focused on key impact areas and were 
instead, located in areas already well served by 
public transport, such as train stations.

Stakeholders considered any infrastructure 
improvement an opportunity incorporate climate 
change adaptation measures into design.

Improvements in the accessibility and 
sustainability of the public transport system, with 
the aim of encouraging the efficient movement of 
people and goods, were considered by 
stakeholders to generate positive outcomes for
climate change. These improvements were 
highlighted as having the potential to produce 
substantial measurable reductions in emissions 
from travel.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding 
to this issue as high, as there are national 
statutory requirements in regard to encouraging 
the use of sustainable transport. In addition, 
human health, quality of life and environmental 
effects associated with greenhouse gas emissions.

- Minor High + Moderate High 015. To protect, manage and restore 
land, soil quality and geo-diversity Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: 

P
age 303

P
age 261



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

213

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Public Transport 2. Goods 3. Cycling
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Comments
The development required to sufficiently improve 
public transport, cycling and walking infrastructure 
to meet this goal is likely to impact biodiversity. 
However, the scale of the impact is expected to be 
low due to the provision of land and soil quality 
management legislation.

The use of travel wise, smarter choices and 
behavioural change programmes may lessen this 
impact; although these measures are not 
considered a solution as some infrastructure 
development is considered to be required.

Comments
Stakeholders considered working with the Freight 
Quality Partnership to promote best practice and 
support environmental agendas would produce 
measurable land and soil quality benefits. This 
measure would enable consideration of and action 
to support land and soil quality issues. The 
utilisation of derelict land was a key issues raised 
in this area by stakeholders.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding 
to this issue as high, as there are national statutory 
requirements and major human health, quality of 
life and environmental effects associated with land 
and soil quality.

Comments

P
age 304

P
age 262



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

214

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.9. Goal Five Appraisal (Part 2)
LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods

LTP3 Actions and Interventions
4. Maintenance 5. Traffic 6. Travelwise

SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
+ Minor Low + Moderate High + Major High

Significance: Not Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant
1. To use energy, water and mineral 
resources prudently and efficiently, 
increase energy generated from 
renewable sources and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions

Comments
There is a potential for recycled aggregates to be 
used for the resurfacing of roads and footpaths, 
reducing energy and water consumption.

Comments
Working with partners to educate and provide 
information on sustainable vehicle choice and fuel 
efficient driving techniques was considered by 
stakeholders to potentially produce measurable 
reductions in transport emissions.

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

Comments
The implementation of travel plans, targeted 
behavioural change programmes and smarter 
choices were considered by stakeholders as likely 
to produce measurable reductions in transport 
emissions.

The impact on water and mineral resource was 
considered by stakeholders to be low in 
comparison to other resource use areas.

+ Minor Low 0 0
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance: 

2. To minimise the production of 
waste and increase reuse, recycling 
and recovery rates Comments

There is a potential for recycled aggregates to be 
used for the resurfacing of roads and footpaths.

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance: 

3. To reduce poverty and social 
deprivation and secure economic 
inclusion

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance: 

4. To protect, enhance and manage 
Merseyside’s rich diversity of 
cultural, historical and built 
environment and archaeological 
assets

0 + Minor Low 0
Significance: Significance: Not Significant Significance: 

5. To protect, enhance and manage 
biodiversity, the viability of 
endangered species, habitats and 
sites of geological importance

Alternatively fuelled taxis are likely to result in 
improvements in air quality and again, reduce the 
number of private vehicles on the road through 
sustainable vehicle choice.

0 + Negligible Low 06. To protect, enhance and manage 
the local character and accessibility Significance: Significance: Not Significant Significance: 

P
age 305

P
age 263



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

215

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Maintenance 5. Traffic 6. Travelwise
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
of the landscape across the sub-
region

Positive effects may include greening the 
landscape of new routes to make them more 
attractive through the promotion of sustainable 
design.

0 0 0

Significance: Significance: Significance: 
7. To protect, improve and where 
necessary, restore the quality of 
inland, estuarine and coastal waters

0 + Minor High + Minor High
Significance: Significance: Significant Significance: Significant

8. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local air quality

Comments
Cleaner fuels and less erratic driving would reduce 
emissions and improve air quality

Comments
Actions to help people make sustainable travel 
choices and to make more use of the public 
transport system will help to reduce reliance on 
motorised transport and have a positive effect on 
air quality.

+ Moderate High 0 + Minor High
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Significance: Significant

9. To protect, manage and, where 
necessary, improve local 
environmental quality (noise, light 
nuisance)

Comments
The asset management programme includes 
actions to improve local environmental quality 
through fixing highway assets, maintaining and 
improving lighting (which can help reduce the fear 
of crime), providing safer pathways, highway 
cleaning regimes and facilitating recreational 
access (by maintaining public rights of way).

If these actions were not implemented, there 
would be a detrimental effect on local 
environmental quality.

Comments
Actions to help people make sustainable travel 
choices and to make more use of the public 
transport system will help to reduce reliance on 
motorised transport and have a positive effect on 
local environmental quality

+ Minor Low 0 + Moderate High

Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance: Highly Significant

10. To improve health and reduce 
health inequalities

Comments
Many components of the asset maintenance plans 
have the potential to facilitate benefits to factors 
that influence health. 

Comments
Travelwise initiatives have the potential to help to 
tackle existing health inequalities. Actions on 
Smarter Choices and Personal Travel Planning to 
target disadvantaged communities are likely to 

P
age 306

P
age 264



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

216

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Maintenance 5. Traffic 6. Travelwise
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
This includes actions to reduce accidents, 
improving local environmental quality (e.g. fixing 
highway assets), reducing the fear of crime (e.g. 
street lighting), promoting health lifestyles (safer 
pathways for cycling) and facilitating recreational 
access (e.g. maintaining public rights of way).
It is assumed that the needs of vulnerable 
members of society will continue to be considered; 
for example, by providing crossing facilities that 
are accessible for all equality groups.

Many of the actions that are likely to form part of 
the asset management programme have the 
potential to facilitate benefits to factors that 
influence health. The health benefits associated 
with each asset maintenance action could be 
explicitly identified and taking into account in 
prioritising the programme. Similar to the 
proposals to take account of climate change.

have the most direct effects on health by assisting 
social and economic  inclusion and providing 
equitable access to health, social, education and 
welfare services

+ Minor Low 0 + Minor Low
Significance: Not Significant Significance: Significance: Not Significant

11. To improve safety and reduce 
crime, disorder and fear of crime

Comments
A regularly, well maintained and efficient network 
is likely to be safer for all users and modes of 
transport. Good maintenance should also deter 
anti-social behaviour and vandalism, as people 
generally take more pride in areas that are well 
looked after. However, regular maintenance can 
potentially cause temporary disruptions to traffic 
flows but such enhancements, in the long-term will 
outweigh the short-term negative traffic 
disruptions. 

Comments Comments
Smarter Choices and initiatives such as Travelsafe 
may help reduce the fear of crime on Public 
Transport.

+ Moderate Medium 0 + Moderate Medium

Significance: Significant Significance: Significance: Significant

12. To improve local accessibility of 
goods, services and amenities and 
reduce community severance

Comments
A well maintained and enhanced network is likely 
to lead to increased accessibility to local goods 
and services, and promote a network that is more 
efficient on a day to day basis. There is likely to be 
a wider choice of modes available if all of the 
infrastructure and vehicles are kept in good 

Comments Comments
Smarter Choices information targeting is likely to 
increase access, particularly for those in deprived 
areas as their choices will be more informed and 
such information provision will enable them to 
identify a variety of ways in which to travel to 
access the services they need. 

P
age 307

P
age 265



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

217

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Five: Ensure the Transport System Supports the Economic Success of the LCR by the Efficient Movement of People and Goods
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

4. Maintenance 5. Traffic 6. Travelwise
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
condition on a regular basis, which is also likely to 
improve access to key services and reduce 
community severance. 

Information on Smarter Choices should be 
targeted towards groups that are less informed 
and also to all local communities to increase 
access for all.

0 + Minor High + Major High
Significance: Significance: Significant Significance: Highly Significant

13. To reduce the need to travel 
and improve choice and use of 
more sustainable transport modes Comments

The effective targeting of education and 
information on sustainable vehicle choice is likely 
to increase the use of more sustainable modes of 
transport and reduce the need to travel by car. 
Efforts should be concentrated on areas within 
Merseyside that currently have high levels of 
private car use to help influence behaviour and 
encourage them to adopt a mores sustainable 
travel pattern by highlighting the benefits 
associated with mores environmentally friendly 
modes, such as walking and cycling.

Comments
Travelwise initiatives have the potential to 
discourage the use of less environmentally friendly 
modes of transport through effective marketing 
and the promotion of more sustainable modes. 
Smarter Choices and public transport marketing 
will help people to make more informed choices 
and enable them to identify the direct benefits 
associated with such modes.

+ Major High + Moderate High + Major High
Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to 
climate change including flood risk

Comments
Stakeholders considered measures to ensure the 
transport system takes account of future climatic 
conditions would produce positive outcomes for 
climate change adaptation.

These actions were considered to have potential 
major positive outcomes, producing substantial 
measurable improvements in the resilience of the 
transport network to climate change impacts. 

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding 
to this issue as high, as there are national 
statutory requirements and major human health, 
quality of life and environmental effects associated 
with climate change impacts.

Comments
Working with partners to educate and provide 
information on sustainable vehicle choice and fuel 
efficient driving techniques are likely to produce 
measurable reductions in transport emissions.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding 
to this issue as high, as there are national 
statutory requirements and major human health, 
quality of life and environmental effects associated 
with reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

Comments
The implementation of travel plans, targeted 
behavioural change programmes and smarter 
choices were considered by stakeholders as likely 
to produce measurable reductions in transport 
emissions.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding 
to this issue as high, as there are national 
statutory requirements and major human health, 
quality of life and environmental effects associated 
with reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

0 0 0
Significance: Significance: Significance: 

15. To protect, manage and restore 
land, soil quality and geo-diversity

P
age 308

P
age 266



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

218

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

D.10. Goal Six Appraisal

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High Standard
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Complete Asset Management Register 2. Produce effective asset management programme
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
0 0

Significance: Significance:
1. To use energy, water and mineral resources prudently 
and efficiently, increase energy generated from renewable 
sources and reduce greenhouse gas emissions

0 0

Significance: Significance:

2. To minimise the production of waste and increase reuse, 
recycling and recovery rates

0 0

Significance: Significance:

3. To reduce poverty and social deprivation and secure 
economic inclusion

0 + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant

4. To protect, enhance and manage Merseyside’s rich 
diversity of cultural, historical and built environment and 
archaeological assets Comments

Stakeholders considered that measures to ensure that the 
transport system takes account of the impact on the 
environment would produce positive outcomes for cultural 
heritage. These actions were considered to have potential 
major positive outcomes, producing substantial measurable 
changes for cultural heritage. Stakeholders valued the 
importance of responding to this issue as high, due to national 
statutory requirements and major quality of life effects 
associated with cultural heritage.

0 + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant

5. To protect, enhance and manage biodiversity, the 
viability of endangered species, habitats and sites of 
geological importance Comments

Stakeholders considered that measures to ensure the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the environment would 
produce positive outcomes for biodiversity. These actions were 
considered to have potential major positive outcomes, 
producing substantial measurable changes for biodiversity. 
Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue 
as high, due to national statutory requirements and major 
human health, quality of life and environmental effects 
associated with biodiversity.

0 + Major High6. To protect, enhance and manage the local character and 
accessibility of the landscape across the sub-region Significance: Significance: Highly Significant

P
age 309

P
age 267



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

219

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High Standard
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Complete Asset Management Register 2. Produce effective asset management programme
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Comments
Stakeholders considered that measures to ensure the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the environment would 
produce positive outcomes for landscape. These actions were 
considered to potentially result in major positive outcomes, 
producing substantial measurable changes for landscape. 
Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue 
as high, due to national statutory requirements and major 
human health and quality of life effects associated with 
landscape.

0 + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant

7. To protect, improve and where necessary, restore the 
quality of inland, estuarine and coastal waters

Comments
Stakeholders considered that measures to ensure the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the environment would 
produce positive outcomes for water quality. These actions 
were considered to potentially result in major positive 
outcomes, producing substantial measurable changes for 
water quality. Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, due to national statutory 
requirements and major human health, quality of life and 
environmental effects associated with water quality.

0 0

Significance: Significance: 

8. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local 
air quality

0 + Minor Low

Significance: Significance: Not Significant

9. To protect, manage and, where necessary, improve local 
environmental quality (noise, light nuisance)

Comments
The asset management programme includes actions to 
improving local environmental quality through fixing highway 
assets, maintaining and improving lighting (which can help 
reduce the fear of crime), providing safer pathways, highway 
cleaning regimes and facilitating recreational access (by 
maintaining public rights of way).

0 + Moderte Medium10. To improve health and reduce health inequalities
Significance: Significance: Significant

P
age 310

P
age 268



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

220

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High Standard
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Complete Asset Management Register 2. Produce effective asset management programme
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance
Comments Comments

The asset management programme includes actions to reduce 
accidents, improving local environmental quality (e.g. fixing 
highway assets), reducing the fear of crime (e.g. street 
lighting), promoting health lifestyles (safer pathways for 
cycling) and facilitating recreational access (e.g. maintaining 
public rights of way).

It is assumed that the needs of vulnerable members of society 
will continue to be considered; for example, by providing 
crossing facilities that are accessible for all equality groups.

Many of the actions that are likely to form part of the asset 
management programme have the potential to facilitate 
benefits to factors that influence health. The health benefits 
associated with each asset maintenance action could be 
explicitly identified and taking into account in prioritising the 
programme. Similar to the proposals to take account of climate 
change.

0 0

Significance: Significance: 

11. To improve safety and reduce crime, disorder and fear 
of crime

0 012. To improve local accessibility of goods, services and 
amenities and reduce community severance Significance: Significance: 

0 + Moderate Medium

Significance: Significance: Significant

13. To reduce the need to travel and improve choice and 
use of more sustainable transport modes

Asset maintenance actions and preservation of Merseytram 
Line 1 are likely to promote sustainable transport. 

+ Major High + Major High

Significance: Highly Significant Significance: Highly Significant

14. To mitigate, reduce and adapt to climate change 
including flood risk

Comments
Stakeholders considered that measures to ensure the transport 
system takes account of future climatic conditions would 
produce positive outcomes for climate change adaptation.

These actions were considered to have potential major positive 
outcomes, producing substantial measurable improvements in 
the resilience of the transport network to climate change 
impacts. 

Comments
Stakeholders considered that measures to ensure the transport 
system takes account of future climatic conditions would 
produce positive outcomes for climate change adaptation.

These actions were considered to have potential major positive 
outcomes, producing substantial measurable improvements in 
the resilience of the transport network to climate change 
impacts. 

P
age 311

P
age 269



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

221

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

LTP3 Goal Six: Maintain our Assets to a High Standard
LTP3 Actions and Interventions

1. Complete Asset Management Register 2. Produce effective asset management programme
SA/SEA Objectives

Interaction Magnitude Importance Interaction Magnitude Importance

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue 
as high, as there are national statutory requirements and major 
human health, quality of life and environmental effects 
associated with climate change impacts.

Stakeholders valued the importance of responding to this issue 
as high, as there are national statutory requirements and major 
human health, quality of life and environmental effects 
associated with climate change impacts.

0 + Major High

Significance: Significance: Highly Significant

15. To protect, manage and restore land, soil quality and 
geo-diversity

Comments
Stakeholders considered that measures to ensure the transport 
system takes account of the impact on the environment would 
produce positive outcomes for land and soil quality. These 
actions were considered to have potential major positive 
outcomes, producing substantial measurable changes for land 
and soil quality. Stakeholders valued the importance of 
responding to this issue as high, as there are national statutory 
requirements and major quality of life and environmental 
effects associated with land and soil quality.

P
age 312

P
age 270



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

222

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Appendix E. SA/SEA Consultation 
Reponses

Page 313Page 271



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

223

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Table E.1: SA/SEA Consultation Comments

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

Letter dated 23rd November 2010, from Clare Warburton, Natural England.

Methodology

We welcome and support the efforts made by the Merseyside Transport Partnership in preparing the SA Report 
and we are pleased to see that our comments made at the SEA Scoping stage have been taken forward (as 
detailed in Appendix A of the SA Report). We are pleased to see Natural England’s comments on issues and 
opportunities have been incorporated into Table 4.4 and that the SA/SEA objectives have been amended to 
take account of our comments.  

No action required.

The SA Report is well laid out and the Non-Technical Summary provides a clear summary of the findings of the 
assessment, although we do have some reservations relating to the lack of identification of the significant 
effects that have been predicted to result from the implementation of the LTP (see more detailed comment on 
this issue below).

No action required. Significant effects addressed below.

With respect to the assessment of the LTP3 Strategy we note that a very thorough appraisal of the LTP3 goals 
and major schemes has been undertaken using a workshop format and we welcome this robust approach to 
identification and prediction of effects. However we are concerned that there is no clarity as to which of the 
identified effects are considered to be significant. It is a requirement of the SEA Regulations to identify, describe 
and evaluate the likely significant effects on the environment of implementing the plan and therefore as it stands 
the SEA does not fully accord with the Regulations.

A column will be added to the Appraisal tables to determine the significance of the 
effect.

When undertaking the initial appraisal on the LTP3 Strategic options (Section 6) it has clearly been identified 
which of the effects were considered to be significant using the ‘+++’ and ‘---‘ nomenclature. Unfortunately the 
more detailed appraisal of the LTP3 strategy that followed has not taken forward this approach and it is 
therefore not clear whether an individual appraisal result (e.g. ‘-’ ‘major’ ‘medium’ as identified in relation to 
Merseytram Line 1 for SA/SEA objective 5) is considered significant or not. 

As above.

The need to describe the significant effects identified in the appraisal is recognised in Section 10 of the SA 
Report, i.e. “Monitoring the significant sustainability effects of implementing the LTP3 is an essential ongoing 
element of the SA/SEA process.” and “… the monitoring proposals outlined in Table 10.1 have been selected 
from SA/SEA indicators presented in Table 4.6 and focus on significant affects …”. However it is not clear from 
Table 10.1 what significant effects are to be monitored, as the proposed indicators are linked to SA/SEA 
objectives rather than being associated with identified significant effects.

Monitoring proposals have been reviewed against the actions/interventions that 
were identified as producing negative significant effects and Table 10.1 has been 
updated to reflect this.

P
age 314

P
age 272



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

224

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

On a point of clarity, the description of the methodology at the start of Section 7 makes reference to the “DfT 
Sustainability Appraisal methodology” on which the appraisal has been based. We note that the only DfT 
guidance document included in the References (Section 11) is the ‘Draft: Strategic Environmental Assessment 
for Transport Plans and Programmes – TAG Unit 2.11’. This guidance does not use the methodology that you 
have adopted and we would therefore welcome clarification as to which DfT methodology is being referred to 
here.

The methodology adopted is based on the DfT Tag Unit 2.11D Guidance and 
Merseytravel’s methodology, as adopted in the LTP2. Section 7 will be updated to 
reflect this.

Objectives and Indicators

With regard to indicators we would like SA/SEA objective 13 to include a target on the length (km) of new 
access routes for walkers, cyclists and horseriders that are proposed to be created through the LTP.

An indicator for Objective 13 has been added that includes a target on the length 
of new access routes for walkers, cyclists and horse riders. .

Appraisal

With regard to the findings of the assessment against the biodiversity objective (SA/SEA objective 5) there 
appears to be some inconsistency when compared to the findings of the HRA, specifically in relation to the 
LTP’s support for the SuperPort under Goal 1. Task 1 of the HRA has concluded that there is the potential for 
Likely Significant Effects (alone and in-combination) on the Mersey Narrows and North Wirral Foreshore 
proposed SPA and Ramsar; Liverpool Bay SPA; and Mersey Estuary SPA and Ramsar as a result of the LTP’s 
support for the SuperPort project. However the SA/SEA assessment for Goal 1 against the biodiversity 
objective makes no reference to the potential adverse effects. We would welcome clarity on this issue.  There 
are similar inconsistencies with the Easter Access Transport Corridor which is assessed in the HRA but not in 
the SEA.

The action to support SuperPort was assessed collectively with the other actions 
under Goal 1. The Eastern Access Transport Corridor is an action under Goal 5 
and has been accessed collectively under the ‘Goods’ topic. More information on 
the nature and scale of the EATC is now available and the HRA has been updated 
to state that there will no likely significant effects.

P
age 315

P
age 273



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

225

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

We think that some impacts on biodiversity and landscape have not been included and would suggest 
modifications to the Appraisal Results.  We believe the following actions in the LTP could have a positive and 
negative effect on biodiversity and landscape.  The positives arise mainly from the modal shift that would 
potentially take cars off the road thereby potentially improving air quality, noise, and visuals impacts and with 
consequent effects on the natural environment and the landscape. However many of the above have the 
potential for negative impacts from land take or insensitive maintenance measures.  

Goal 2:   

Traffic                              Biodiversity D

          Landscape D

Public Transport          Biodiversity D

Freight          Biodiversity +

Goal 3: 

Cycling and Walking       Biodiversity    +/-

Landscape        +/-

Goal 4:

Public Transport          Biodiversity       +/-

         Landscape        +/-

Goal 5:

Public transport/cycling/Maintenance                Biodiversity     +/-

Landscape      +/-

Traffic Biodiversity     +

Landscape      +

Goal 6:  We would like recognition of the potential negative impacts on biodiversity (see also comments below).

We think it is misleading to assess the cumulative effects of all the LTP3 goals on the biodiversity and 
landscape objectives as neutral, as this does not take into account the assessment of major schemes.  It is also 
difficult to assess whether this is a accurate conclusion given that there has been no assessment of the 
significance of the impacts.  

For the major schemes we notice that the SuperPort is not included in this list.  We are not sure if this is an LTP 
project or not.  We would also prefer to see acknowledgment that there could be negative biodiversity impacts 
from the Edge Lane scheme and the Hall Lane Strategic Gateway due to landtake.  We would also suggest that 
the Access to the Port of Liverpool scheme is likely to have negative effects on biodiversity and landscape.   

The modifications suggested by Natural England have been made to the Appraisal 
results for Goals 2, 3, 4 and 5 with regards to the effects on biodiversity and 
landscape. However, under Goal 5, we believe that it is unlikely that there will be 
no negative effects on either landscape or biodiversity as, according to the 
individual actions of the LTP3 there will be no land-take as they largely refer to the 
upgrading and maintenance of the infrastructure. 

We do agree, however that there may be positive, negligible effects on biodiversity 
and the landscape, as a well maintained transport infrastructure is likely to result in 
a reduction in carbon emissions due to an efficient transportation network; and 
improvements in environmental quality.

Goal 6

The actions specified in the LTP3 under Goal 6 largely refer to a review of the 
existing policy and policy areas. There are no individual actions that refer to 
infrastructure improvements and therefore it is unlikely that there will be any 
negative effects on biodiversity and landscape. 

The assessment has been split into each of the six goals and then was further split 
into the action/intervention topics. Although each individual action was not 
assessed, they have each been considered during the assessment.

As stated above, a significance column has been added to the assessment tables.

SuperPort is not considered to be a Major Scheme, as it is more of a concept that 
has locational elements attached to it. The separate elements, for example access 
to the port of Liverpool and Liverpool John Lennon Airport would be subject to a 
separate assessment outside of the remit of the LTP. We have reviewed the 
assessment of the three major schemes (Edge Lane, Hall Lane Strategic 
Gateway and Access to the Port of Liverpool) and have changed the 
assessment to ‘D – Dependant on Implementation’. A high level review of all 
three areas revealed that they each have low ecological value as they are all 

P
age 316

P
age 274



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

226

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

Mitigation and Enhancement

We are pleased to see that the SA Report recommends a wide range of mitigation and enhancement measures 
and we look forward to these being incorporated into the final LTP3. 

We note that there are no biodiversity or landscape mitigation and enhancement measures proposed for the 
following goals, and would suggest the following additional measures are included:

Major schemes:  

Additional measures for the biodiversity and landscape objectives: the need to recognise the importance of 
protecting and enhancing the natural environment, including biodiversity, landscape, geodiversity and soils, by 
avoiding, mitigating or compensating for negative impacts of traffic and transport infrastructure, where possible 
securing environmental gain from all activities affecting the maintenance, operation and improvement of the 
transport networks.

Goal 2: Modal Shift

An additional measure under landscape:  public transport should provide options for travel to the natural 
environment as well as to other facilities and services.

Goal 3 : Walking and cycling  and Goal 5: Cycling

An additional measure under landscape:  cycling and walking networks (including the ROW network) should 
improve access to the local countryside and greenspaces close to where people live.  

An additional measure under health:  recognising the mental and physical health benefits associated with 
access to the natural environment. 

Goal 4:

An additional measure under objective 13 ‘more sustainable modes’:  recognising the role that walking and 
cycling (including Rights of Way) can play in accessing employment, education and healthcare. 

Goal 6:

This goal has the potential to have a negative effect on biodiversity.  Making the network more resilient to 
climate change can, if not done carefully, impact negatively on wildlife.  A mitigation measure would be 
welcome on this. 

Transport networks can also play a role in providing valuable ecosystem services that can actually assist in the 
management of, and adaptation to climate change.  For example, linear transport features (such as canal 
towpaths, PROW, road verges, cycle routes and railway embankments) are well suited to enhancing wildlife 
connectivity across our countryside, as well as providing areas for carbon storage, enabling better water 
conservation, and in towns and cities, providing valuable cooling systems.  This is recognised in the recent 
Lawton review, ‘Making Space for Nature’.  An enhancement measure recognising this would be welcome.

located in built up areas. However, some trees and open space may be lost 
depending on the nature of the works.

All of the suggested additional measures have been included in Section 8.1.

A mitigation measure on this issue has been added.

An enhancement measure on this issue has been added

P
age 317

P
age 275



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

227

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

Letter dated 30th November 2010, from Cllr Malcolm Kennedy Cabinet Member for Regeneration and 
Transport, Liverpool City Council.

There is still uncertainty regarding the long term future of the RSS.  The RSS has been included within the 
SA/SEA because much of the LTP3 development has been influenced by the policies. Despite the ongoing 
uncertainty, the document may need to review current policy developments in line with the localism agenda.   

Local planning policy has been reviewed in the SA/SEA. Priorities may change as 
a result of the localism agenda and the LTP3 should be reviewed in light of any 
changes. 

Not all of the major schemes have been referenced in the SA/SEA with North Liverpool and International 
Gateway the main omissions. Monitoring the significant sustainability effects of implementing the LTP3 is an 
essential ongoing element of the SA/SEA process. However, despite detailing a comprehensive monitoring 
programme and identifying potential data sources, it does not say who will be accountable or who will oversee 
the results.

North Liverpool and International Gateway are not classified as major schemes in 
the LTP3 and were therefore not assessed.

Section 10 of this report has been updated to include information on who is 
responsible for the monitoring process.

Email dated 16th November 2010, from Sarah Jolly, Climate Change Officer, Merseyside LTP Support Unit.

Some comments on the Integrated Assessment and a couple of spellings I noticed. How do the proposed 
SA/SEA monitoring indicators relate to the ones which Motts are looking at for LTP3? There seem to be an 
awful lot of them as it stands.

The proposed SA/SEA monitoring indicators have been cross checked against the 
proposed 17 LTP3 monitoring indicators that were discussed in a workshop on 
Friday 17

th
 December. The list of SA/SEA indicators has been revised and 

updated to ensure that the relevant indicators were taken forward where 
significant negative effects were identified for each action/intervention.

Pg. ix, 1st paragraph, lines 1-3:        

Don’t think we can claim that electric charging infrastructure will improve accessibility given the high upfront 
cost of purchase

Comment addressed. Sentence amended to include ‘…modal shift and the 
provision of a charging network for electric and low emission vehicles…’

Pg. ix, 2nd paragraph, line 4:            

Should read ‘examining funding streams for cycle training’

Comment addressed.

Pg. ix, 2nd paragraph, line 15:          

Missing word - ‘what road safety measures are implemented’

Comment addressed

Pg. x, 2nd paragraph, lines 8-9:        

‘Actions to improve the movement of people and goods are likely to promote the use of more environmentally 
friendly modes’ doesn’t sound right, could it be removed or changed to ‘Actions to improve the movement of 
people and goods focus on promoting the use of more environmentally friendly modes’.

Comment addressed

Pg. xi, 3rd paragraph, line 7:            

Should read ‘Therefore, an overall neutral effect…’

Comment addressed

P
age 318

P
age 276



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

228

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

Pg. xii, 1st paragraph, lines 1-3:       

Agree that landtake, habitat loss, waste generation, resource use are likely to happen, but whilst disturbance to 
heritage assets could happen I wouldn’t think that it is likely.

We believe that there is a potential for heritage assets to be disturbed as the 
provision of new transport infrastructure could (depending upon implementation) 
impact the setting of heritage assets or disturb undiscovered archaeological 
remains. Therefore, based on this reasoned justification this particular comment 
has not been addressed.

Pg 17, 4th paragraph, line 1:            

Should read ‘reducing the need to travel and encouraging accessible public transport.’

Comment addressed.

Pg 22, 1st row, 3rd column:               

Could we alter the 2nd point to read ‘Increase electric charging point network and infrastructure for low emission 
vehicles and fuels’

Comment addressed.

Pg 23, 4th row, 3rd column:               

Might be worth including something about freight here as it is a significant contributor to air quality problems in 
certain areas

Comment addressed. The following, in relation to freight has been included:

Opportunities to reduce freight movements;

Encourage alternative fuels and modes; and

Encourage strategic freight networks.

Pg 25, 2nd row, 3rd column:               

As above, can we alter the point about electric vehicles to include other low emission vehicles and fuels?
Nothing about climate change adaptation currently.

Comment addressed.

Climate Change Adaptation is already covered in the same section:

‘Making use of green infrastructure associated with transport networks for 
climate change adaptation e.g. carbon storage, sustainable drainage, energy 
generation and water conservation’.

Pg 40, 2nd paragraph, line 1:            

The sub-topic is focussed on delivering infrastructure for low emission vehicles and fuels, not just electric 
vehicles. Can we make sure that the IA refers to both not just electric vehicles?

Comment addressed.

Pg 40, 2nd paragraph, lines 6-7:       

As above, I don’t think that electric cars would have a positive effect on accessibility.

Comment addressed.

Pg 46, 3rd paragraph, line 6:            

Table 7.5 shows that the Travelwise actions are likely to have positive effects on a number of SEA objectives 
but only air quality is picked out in this sentence – reduced reliance on motorised transport would have a 
positive impact on resource use, sustainable transport and climate change also.

This summarised section has been updated to include the comment about 
resource use, sustainable transport and climate change. 

Pg 58, Table 8.1:                                

Not clear on what is meant by ‘in the short-term the LTP3 should highlight the impacts of not encouraging the 
development of infrastructure for electric vehicles’ – perhaps the sentence could be clarified. Also think that the 
point should be under Goal 2 rather than Goal 1.

Sentence deleted as the LTP3 already addresses the benefits of low emission and 
electric vehicles.

P
age 319

P
age 277



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

229

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

Pg 58, table 8.2:                                

A lot of these points don’t seem to relate to the actions under the goal; I’ve identified a few below but there are 
quite a lot:

Row 1. Traffic

‘ensure smart ticketing does not inadvertently discriminate against people from deprived backgrounds…’ 
shouldn’t be in the traffic section, more applicable to row 3. Public transport. ‘cycling and walking to help ensure 
potential safety blackspots are addressed’ - move to row 2. Modal shift.

‘cost of using public transport can be a barrier to those on lower incomes’ move to row 3. Public transport.

Row. 2. Modal Shift

‘SUDS and other measures may act as mitigation measures’ – move to row 7. Network maintenance and 
management.

                                                           

As above, the references to electric vehicles need changing to include other low emission vehicles and fuels.

All points have been moved to the most appropriate actions, as mentioned, 

I would also say that some of the points are reiterations of the actions proposed within LTP3 rather than 
enhancements or mitigations, and needs some more work e.g. Row 3. Public Transport ‘procurement of low 
emission buses, decarbonisation of the rail network’. There’s also some evidence of this in other tables e.g. 
Table 8.3 Row 2. Road Safety ‘consider low speed zones’.

The mitigation and enhancement measures have been cross0checked against the 
actions in the LTP3 and updated where appropriate to avoid duplication.

Pg 64, 3rd bullet point                      

As above, this point could be clearer – it also needs clarification that the actions in LTP3 refers to electric and 
low emission vehicles not just electric vehicles.

All points that reference electric vehicles have been updated to consider low 
emission vehicles also.

Pg 67, Table 10.1                               

Row 1, could we include reduced GHG emissions from transport as an indicator as we already have the 
information through the Merseyside Atmospheric Emissions Inventory?

Indicator added.

Email dated 22nd November 2010, from Judith Nelson, English Heritage.

Thank you for your email sent on the 1st November 2010 consulting English Heritage on the above report.  EH 
has produced guidance on SEA/SA and the historic environment see http://www.helm.org.uk/upload/pdf/Strat-
env-ass.pdf?1290424305

This guidance includes a list of relevant plans and programmes and critically for Merseyside the UNESCO 
World Heritage Convention is missing as is the Liverpool WHS management plan and SPD.

Appendix B of this report has been updated to include a review of the UNESCO 

World Heritage Convention is missing as is the Liverpool WHS management plan 

and SPD.

The appraisal includes objectives relating to the historic environment and local character (4&6) but goes on to 
find that the "effect depends on implementation". (table 6.1).  The report could have helpfully drawn out or given 
examples of how interventions could be implemented in ways which avoided or minimised and mitigated 
harmful impacts and maximised opportunities for enhancing the historic environment, i.e. building on table 4.4.

Section 8 of this report details specific examples of mitigation and enhancement 
measures that relate to the historic environment.

P
age 320

P
age 278



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

230

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Consultation Comments Received Mott MacDonald response

The appraisal results in section 7.2 highlight some potential negative impacts for heritage assets but the 
reasons why are not explained in the commentary. For example why should better walking and cycling routes 
harm heritage assets.  Making sympathetic improvements to the public realm, maintaining and decluttering 
streetscapes can both enhance the historic environment and make places more pleasant to walk in.  If there are 
harmful impacts what can be done about them.    

The effects on Heritage Assets are also scheme dependent as some routes may 
aid accessibility to a cultural heritage site. The use of old railway lines as an 
example, may aid cultural and historical interpretation of the route with the 
provision of information about the route etc, and access to railway structures.

The report highlights potential negative impacts on the Historic environment from the proposed Merseytram 
lines.  It will be important that early consultation is had with both English Heritage and Liverpool/Merseyside 
conservation staff about this matter. The appraisal report could highlight this for inclusion in the LTP and the 
need for development and proposals to safeguard the significance of heritage assets and their setting.

A mitigation and enhancement table has been included in Section 8 for the Major 
Schemes and this comment has been highlighted in the table as a potential 
mitigation measure to safeguard the significance of heritage assets and their 
setting.

P
age 321

P
age 279



269445/EVT/EMS/002/B 17 December 2010
http://pims01/pims/llisapi.dll/properties/1457505112

231

Merseyside Local Transport Plan 3 Sustainability Appraisal Report

Page 322Page 280



Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee

Tuesday, 7th September 2021

REPORT TITLE: WEED CONTROL MEASURES OPTIONS 
APPRAISAL

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES

REPORT SUMMARY

This report provides Committee with an overview of the appraisal exercise 
undertaken to consider options future weed control across the borough. The report 
recommends the option of using a competitive tender process to secure the 
Council’s weed control function as the current contractual arrangement for weed 
control at the end of 2021. It is proposed that the new weed control contract will run 
for a 4-year period beginning in January 2022, with a conditional extension option of 
a further year.  

Securing the appropriate and effective management of weed control contributes to 
the Wirral Plan 2025 theme to promote a Sustainable Environment and create a 
cleaner, greener borough which protects and improves Wirral’s environment.
 
Weed control is carried out across all Wards and this report has been classed as a 
Key Decision and as such included on the Council’s Forward Plan.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Environment, Climate Emergency & Transport 
Committee:

(1) The option to use a competitive tender process to secure the future 
supplier of the weed control service, beginning January 2022 until 
January 2025, with the option of a further year is preferred;

(2) the tender process for the procurement of the weed control service be 
commenced; and 

(3) the Director of Neighbourhood Services be delegated to award the 
contract within approved budget and to the highest scoring tender within 
approved budget and in accordance with the Most Economically 
Advantageous Tender (MEAT) criteria.

Page 281

Agenda Item 7



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1.1 The weed control service needs to be re-tendered due to the current contract 
concluding this year with no provision for extension. Awarding the contract 
through an open competitive tender exercise represents the most 
economically advantageous option and is fully compliant the corporate 
procurement rules, the contract tender offers the opportunity to explore the 
marketplace to identify new and innovative approaches to weed control, 
including alternative methods to the use of glyphosate. 

1.2 Wirral Council is committed to a performance and evidence-based approach 
to social value based on the National TOMs. The TOMs within this tender 
process reflect the specific needs of Wirral Council. Bidders will be required to 
complete a social value submission for any given tender.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 A working group made up of officers from a range of service areas, including 
finance and procurement, considered a total of 7 options for future weed 
control provision, with five being shortlisted for detailed appraisal. A full 
breakdown of the appraisal exercise is set out in Appendix 1. 

2.2 Two in-house options were explored in detail, one using Glyphosate and 
another using ‘Nomix Dual.’ ‘Nomix Dual’ is a product that reduces the 
Glyphosate usage by 53%, as detailed in Appendix 2. 

           Following completion and conclusion of the appraisal exercise, the total costs 
to bring the weed control service in-house were found to be considerably 
higher than the current contract, due to staffing costs and the first-year start-
up costs that included the capitalisation of the core assets such as quad bikes 
and vehicles. The comparison cost for both in-house options, alongside the 
current contract cost, can be seen in the table below:

Options Comparison In-house 
operation 

using 
Glyphosate 

In-house 
operation 

using 
Nomix 
Dual 

Current 
contract

Total cost of service 
provision (year 1) £330,046 £444,544 £249,000

Total cost of service 
provision year 2 £324,435 £434,986 £249,000
Total cost of service 
provision year 3 £324,435 £434,986 £249,000
Total Costs (for 3 
years) £978,916 £1,314,516 £747,000

Page 282



2.3 The working group considered an option of varying the current Refuse 
Collection and Street Cleaning contract, the incumbent being Biffa, to include 
the weed control service. The rationale behind this option was to streamline 
weed control and control operations, as Biffa are responsible for the control of 
weeds as part of their contract with the Council. Biffa work closely with the 
incumbent weed control contractor, Man Coed, to synchronise weed control 
following control application. 

2.4 Meetings were held with Biffa to discuss this option, however the discussions 
proved to be inconclusive as to whether this option was viable. As a result, the 
option on varying the contract with Biffa was not pursued further as part of the 
exercise. Biffa may choose to tender for the weed control contract when the 
tendering opportunity comes around.

2.5 As previously reported to Committee, the Council is continuing to conduct trial 
exercise to consider alternative methods to the use of Glyphosate for weed 
control. The trials of such alternatives were considered as part of the options 
appraisal exercise, these included ‘Foamstream’ (hot foam), hand 
weeding/scraping (utilising community groups and volunteers), Nomix Dual 
and compared against the current Glyphosate application. 

2.6 Pelargonic acid was requested by a committee member to be part of the trials. 
There are currently two pelargonic acid products on the market. However, 
after undertaking research into these products, it was determined that the 
Health and Safety Executive (HSE) official guidance confirms that this product 
does not have approval for use on hard surfaces. Although there is approval 
for products used by non-professionals which can be used on hard surfaces, 
for example around a domestic patio or driveway. These products could not 
be used on the commercial scale required for this contract.

2.7 The trials of weed control methods concluded that Glyphosate remains the 
most effective and affordable method of treating weeds on the scale required 
for the delivery of the Weed Control Contract. The Council will continue to 
identify alternative weed control measures to trial as part of the objective and 
commitment to eradicate the use of glyphosate, once a viable and affordable 
alternative is found. A breakdown of the results of the weed control trials can 
be found in Appendix 1.

2.8 Officers also explored the possibility of engaging with local community groups 
and volunteers to carry out weed control. One of the issues that arose was 
that the manual hand scraping method used by community groups generated 
a significant potential health and safety risk, with volunteers at the alternative 
method trials complaining of back pain after relatively short periods of 
weeding. There were also health and safety concerns identified relating to the 
risks associated with volunteers working near or on the highway. It is evident 
therefore that the use of volunteers to carry out weed control would not be 
viable to keep the 100,000km of roads and pavements free of weeds. 
However, involving community groups and volunteers in weed control in a 

Page 283



supporting way is welcomed and should be promoted (with appropriate risk 
assessment and support from officers).

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Highway Infrastructure:

When the weed control was undertaken in-house by the Highways Service 
during 2012-2017, it was to treat a measured area of 1,479,000 m2. This was 
the historical measurement used by the service. The service used two teams 
of two individuals to spray this entire area at a cost of £120,000 per year as 
per the measurement against projected productivity. There were significant 
issues in managing this operation, with the teams being unable to properly 
carry out the weed control to acceptable standard. An operational decision 
was made that the service should go out to Tender, with the winning tender 
from Man Coed VM Ltd with a yearly cost of £87,000. Within the first year of 
the contract, 2018, it was clear that the contract was failing and that following 
discussions with the contractor they presented evidence that with the 
measurement they had tendered for was significantly smaller than the actual 
areas that require weed control. The previous Director requested the 
measurement to be re-checked. As a result of this, it was confirmed that the 
measure was in fact 4,896,168m2. This being nearly 3.5 times as larger than 
the original measurement included in the tender. The cost of the contract held 
by Man Coed VM Ltd then rose to £249,000 to accommodate the increased 
area that required weed control. The revised measurement has been used for 
weed control provision for several years now.

3.2 Reduction of Glyphosate:

3.3 Wirral Council made a commitment on 15th July 2019 to phase out the use of 
Glyphosate and reduce the amount used until a viable and affordable 
alternative is found. Since the resolution of 2019, officers have been exploring 
the best alternatives and after significant efforts have concluded that at this 
time, there is currently no available alternative that has both the same 
effectiveness and comparable cost to Glyphosate, with some options explored 
the method would increase the cost significantly. Details on how this 
conclusion was made can be found in Appendix 1.  

3.4 Steps have been taken by the Parks & Countryside Service to reduce the 
amount of herbicides and pesticides used in weed control. Residual 
herbicides are no longer in use as part of Wirral’s highway hard surface weed 
control.

 
4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Man Coed VM Ltd is the current incumbent contractor for weed control 
services to the Council and the contract is due to expire on at the end of 2021. 
The annual price of the current contract is £249,000, following the re-
measurement exercise referred to above. It is expected that any tendered 

Page 284



contract secured via the proposed option would offer a competitive price 
relative to the current.

4.2 By going out to tender as proposed, the initial year one costs and investment 
required to bring the service in-house, would not be required. The estimated 
year one costs of bringing the service in-house using Glyphosate is £440,800. 
The year one cost of using Nomix Dual is higher, at £555,370. The financial 
implications of the necessary capitalisation of assets associated with an in-
house service make the overall costs incomparable with the estimated costs 
of a tendered service, although some economy of scale could be realised 
through workforce utilisation. The in-house provision would also require the 
additional employment of a team of weed control operatives, as the is not the 
capacity within the existing grounds maintenance workforce to undertake 
weed control operations. Therefore, an in-house model is financially 
prohibitive, full details of the costs projected for in-house options are set out in 
Appendix 2. 

4.3 The total value of works projected for this contract would be in the order of 
£250,000 per annum (an estimate based on the cost of the current contract), 
funded from the relevant service area revenue budgets: Parks and 
Environment, Highways and Infrastructure and Asset Management. Ratios 
have not yet been calculated due to contract bids not yet being received. The 
Council is not contractually committed to issue any particular value of work. 
Task order instruction will be managed within each service using a risk-based 
prioritisation approach.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 Since 01/01/2021, the United Kingdom has taken responsibility for its own 
regulatory decisions and rules regarding weed control by departing from the 
EU. Under the new regime, the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) remains 
the national regulator for the UK, via its specialist Chemical Regulation 
Division (CRD). The Plant Protection Products (Miscellaneous Amendments) 
(EU Exit) Regulations 2019 states that active substances which were due to 
expire in the EU within 3 years of the end of the transition period will be 
granted a 3-year extension under the new GB regime. This means that 
glyphosate is approved for 5 more years in Great Britain until at least 15 
December 2025. 

5.2 Under public contract regulation, once a contract had reached its term limits 
and has had no extension provision, the contract must end and be retendered. 

5.3 The award of contract will be made on the basis of the most economically 
advantageous tender (MEAT) scoring. The meaning of MEAT is currently 
governed by the Public Contract Regulations 2015. As a criteria for the 
assessment of tenders on the basis of the best price-quality ratio, MEAT will 
always predominantly contain a cost or quality element, but the MEAT criteria 
may also include assessment on the basis of various other criteria linked to the 
subject-matter of the contract in question, including lifecycle costing and 

Page 285



environmental or social aspects. For example, particular award criteria may 
take into account the inclusion of vulnerable and disadvantaged people, local 
wealth building, training and educational aspects or the use of non-toxic 
substances in the production process to deliver the requirement. The Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules (Standing Orders) set out how contracts are to be 
awarded by the Council, which will include reference to the Council’s 
Procurement Strategy and Social Value Policy. 

5.4 Should the authorised Director wish to award the contract via a tender which 
does not hold the highest MEAT score or where the costs of the award will 
exceed the relevant budget, the matter will be referred back to this Committee 
for consideration. 

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 ICT: there are no additional ICT implications.

6.2 Staffing: The Council’s contract management team will be provided from 
current staffing resources. The team that coordinates the tendering process 
will be assembled from the relevant service areas and directorates. 

6.3 Assets: there are no additional assets implications.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 As part of the evaluation process all necessary quality management, health 
and safety and environmental accreditations, together with: economic and 
financial viability, employment legislation, Modern Slavey Act compliance and 
insurance checks have been undertaken for the chosen supplier.

7.2 The estimated procurement timescale of 16-20 weeks could prove to be tight. 
However, because of there being a select number of suppliers who could offer 
this service, a restriction stage is not required and the SSQ can be issued 
post evaluation.

7.3 Even with this considered however, any delays to the decision and/or 
procurement process still poses a critical risk to the re-tendering of the 
contract in time and being ready for the next weed control season.

7.4 There is a risk of damage to the highway infrastructure and public safety 
through tripping hazards if weeds are not tackled and become established.

7.5 The Council has made a public declaration committing to eradicate the use of 
Glyphosate from Council operations when a viable alternative can be located. 
Though efforts have been made to identify a viable and cost-effective 
alternative, the decision to go out to tender and potentially secure a contract 
using Glyphosate could pose a reputational risk to the Council. Therefore, the 

Page 286



Council must continue to update residents on the exercises to find a 
Glyphosate alternative.  

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 When looking into alternates to Glyphosate application for weed control, 
requests to trial certain solutions or methods were considered and 
investigated fully, as set out in Appendix 1. 

8.2 Any potential contract specification can require aspects of consultation and 
community engagement to be included in order to determine local 
prioritisation and choice. An example of this could be the development of 
performance indicators that produce customer satisfaction surveys to be 
completed by the contractor on a periodic basis. 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help Council services identify steps they can take to 
ensure equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, 
decision, or activity.

9.2 This report is concerned with a potential contract award and the associated 
procurement and legal processes so there are no direct equality implications 
arising from this report.  Equality considerations will be part of the 
procurement and contract award processes 

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The pursuit of alternative viable methods for weed control to Glyphosate to 
facilitate the eradication of its use, is in line with the Council’s Environment 
and Climate Emergency Policy and the Council’s commitment to enhance 
Wirral’s biodiversity. The Council has committed to eradicate the use of 
Glyphosate once a viable and affordable alternative to control weeds is found. 

REPORT AUTHOR:
                         Colin Clayton 

                                 Assistant Director – Parks & Environment
                                 colinclayton@wirral.gov.uk;      

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Weed Removal Options Appraisal 
Appendix 2: Nomix Dual and Glyphosate usage breakdown 

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Page 287

mailto:colinclayton@wirral.gov.uk


Progress report on future alternatives to Glyphosate for Weed Control (28th November 
2019) 

Update on the exercise to trial alternatives to glyphosate in the use of weed control 
(3rd December 2020)

Manufacturer’s method statements and instructions for the weed control methods 
trialled.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date
Full Council 

Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee

15th July 2019

28th November 2019

3rd December 2020

Page 288



-PARKS AND ENVIRONMENT STRATEGIC 
BUSINESS CASE-

The purpose of the Strategic Outline Case (SOC) is to confirm the strategic context of the 
proposal (a potential programme or project) and provide an early indication of the 
preferred way forward, but not the preferred solution option.  The SOC template briefly 
considers:

1. Strategic Direction of travel, strategic fit and case for change
2. Economic The range of options
3. Commercial The preferred procurement strategy
4. Financial Estimated costs/savings 
5. Management Proposed management arrangements

Programme/Project 
Name: Weed Operations Options & Appraisal 

Programme/Project 
Sponsor:
Programme/Project 
Manager:

Contact 
Details:

Programme/Project 
Board:

Financial Accountant: TBA

Management 
Accountant: TBA

Author: 

Date Drafted:

Date of consideration by 
Leadership:
Record the  GATE 1 
Decision by Leadership:

Page 289

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This Strategic Outline Case (SOC) sets out the case for a new delivery model for 
the removal of weeds in Wirral from January 2022. The initial contract will be for 2 
years, with the option to renew for a period of 12 months at same price originally 
offered (or price offered plus increase agreed / in line with increase in CPI 
maximum, to maximum of 3 years duration in total.

The measurements in which the model will operate from are as follows;

Roadside Kerbs/Pavements, 
Pathways & Adopted 
Alleyways

4,699,426 m2

Shopping Areas & Precincts 15,994 m2
Un-adopted Alleyways 76,000 m2
Car park areas 104,748 m2

(Due to variations in the width of footways and paths throughout the borough the 
calculation of their length is an average value. These calculations are based upon 
a standard footpath width of 1.80 metres.)

The license in which we can use Glyphosate is up until December 2025, meaning 
looking into potential alternatives at this time could be beneficial to a smoother 
transition further down the line, when the need for change is immediate. 

Since 1st January 2021, Great Britain has taken responsibility for its own 
regulatory decisions and rules regarding weed removal by departing from the EU. 
Under the new regime, the Health and Safety Executive (HSE)1 remains the 
national regulator for the UK, via its specialist Chemical Regulation Division 
(CRD). The Plant Protection Products (Miscellaneous Amendments) (EU Exit) 
Regulations 2019 states that active substances which were due to expire in the 
EU within 3 years of the end of the transition period will be granted a 3-year 
extension under the new GB regime. This means that glyphosate is approved for 5 
more years in Great Britain until at least 15 December 2025.

With the closure of the current weed spraying contract in January 2022, it was 
decided that new arrangements for this service would be an opportunity to both 
secure a value for money solution and potentially reduce Glyphosate usage, with 
numerous options available as to how to proceed. 

Seven options were identified and subsequently appraised:

A – Renew with Man Coed VM Ltd  

1 https://www.hse.gov.uk/pesticides/using-pesticides/general/glyphosate-faqs.htm 

Page 290

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/
https://www.hse.gov.uk/pesticides/using-pesticides/general/glyphosate-faqs.htm


B – Full in-house operation:
a) with Glyphosate  
b) with Nomix solution 

C – Variance to the current BIFFA street cleaning contract   
D – Joint contract with other local authorities 
E – Competitive tender exercise 
F – Community engagement

After initial investigations into the possibility of sharing the operation with another 
local authority, it became apparent that the option was not realistic to pursue. In 
the case of Cheshire West, a report was due to be taken to Members in early 2021 
recommending internalisation their highways service from Oct 2022. This was 
including weed spraying/removal, currently contracted-out to Ringway. Concerns 
over the level of influence Wirral would have in a joint-operation with Liverpool City 
Council was also an early issue. It was apparent that there was no appetite to offer 
a shared service under current arrangements, thus this option was not looked into 
further than this initial contact. 

The options appraisal process concluded that the most viable options to take 
forward for further evaluation were options Ba, Bb, , Band E. 

2.0 STRATEGIC CASE 

This section details the strategic context and case for change for Wirral Council’s 
weed removal provision. 

2.1 Service overview

Wirral Council is responsible for the removal and monitoring of weed removal in 
public areas. The scope of weed removal in all necessary areas of the Borough 
ties into aspects of Highways, Park & Environment as well as strategies such as 
the Climate & Emergency Action Plan. The specific use of Glyphosate usage, and 
it’s eventual eradication in Wirral, came as part of the Climate and Environment 
Emergency Declaration in July 2019.  

2.2 Strategic drivers

In terms of the Wirral Council Plan 2025, the weed removal service directly 
contributes to the intended outcome of ‘Wirral Residents Live Sustainably’. 
‘Improving street cleanliness’ is stated as an action we will do in order to help 
achieve this outcome, the removal of weeds is directly relevant to this cleanliness. 
Action 8.2 in the Carbon Capture tab of the Climate Emergency Action Plan 
(CEAP); ‘Review use of herbicides and pesticides at a site specific level each year 
to reduce negative impact on pollinators’ is the strategic objective behind the wish 
to reduce Glyphosate used where practical. 

2.3 The case for change 

Page 291

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


2.3.1 Current arrangements

The current contract holder is Man Coed VM Ltd , who are tendered to spray the 
entire 4,896,168 m2 area, using Glyphosate.

2.3.2 Cost of Service Provision

The original cost of the contract to Man Coed VM Ltd  had a yearly cost of 
£87,000. However, once the new measurements were applied, this cost nearly 
tripled to £249,000 per year to accommodate. 

2.3.3 Performance

During the first year (2018) of the incumbent contract, it was brought to attention 
that something was seriously wrong with the measurements we had provided. 
Highways were requested to check the measurements and confirm the correct 
measurements. It was confirmed in January 2019 that the true measurement was 
4,896,168 m2 – nearly three and a half times more than the original 
measurements provided, 1,479,000 m2.

This had a severe impact on performance initially as Man Coed VM Ltd  had only 
the resources to cover a third of the Borough.

2.4 Business Need 

The contract with Man Coed VM Ltd , worth £249,000 per year will come to an end 
on January 2022. Coupled with the extension of the Glyphosate license until 2025, 
an opportunity is provided to Wirral Council to assess the current delivery model in 
line with other alternative models and industry best practice to select a model that 
will:

 Be operational from January 2022
 Deliver the strategic objectives of the service
 Potentially reduce the amount of Glyphosate usage

2.5 Strategic Objectives for Weed Removal  

 Deliver a customer focused, quality service
 Maintain a safe and serviceable highway network
 Deliver cost effective asset management
 Deliver value for money
 Respect the environment

2.6 Constraints

 Funding/finances

Page 292

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


 Political acceptability 
 Timescales and deadlines associated with 2015 Public Contract 

Regulations (OJEU)
 Practicality of Glyphosate alternatives

2.7 Dependencies

 Cold weather can slow the rate of weed growth

2.8 Opportunities

 Potential to reduce Glyphosate usage 
 Reduced cost of provision 

2.9 Strategic Risks

Risk Type Strategic Risk Mitigation
Operational  Preferred model fails to deliver 

required levels of service/fails to 
deliver any service.



 Ensure critical success factors that the 
options will be measured against are 
adequate.



Financial  Preferred model fails to meet 
financial expectations.

 Robust financial accounting, 
forecasting/modelling relating to option 
appraisal and operational business.
Effective financial controls.

Strategic  Preferred model fails to deliver 
against strategic objectives.

 Ensure critical success factors that the 
options will be measured against are 
adequate.

Governance/
Legal

 Inadequate governance resulting 
in poor decision making.



Governance Structure in place for:

 Speed/effectiveness of decision 
making processes.

 Clarity of purpose.
 Clear roles and responsibility.
 Appropriate legal advice on 

governance and legal requirements

Timeframe  Failure to implement preferred 
model within the timeframe.

 Robust project management

Political  Lack of political buy-in
 Reputational damage.

 Work with portfolio holder and relevant 
members.

 Communication, branding and imaging 
is handled via an effective Marketing 
and Communication Policy.

Page 293

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


3.0 ECONOMIC CASE

The Economic Case sets out the Critical Success Factors (CSF’s) for the decision, 
first of all appraising a long list of potential options before outlining the indicative 
costs of the short-listed options in order to indicate a preferred way forward. 

3.1 Critical Success Factors

Based on the strategic drivers, business needs and constraints, the following 
Critical Success Factors have been identified.  

• Strategic – aligns with strategic aims
• Sustainable – adheres to climate commitments
• Affordable – delivered within budget 

3.2 Long List Options Appraisal

A long list of potential delivery models for the provision of weed removal was put 
together and appraised by senior officers from numerous Council services; Parks 
and Environment, Procurement, Legal, Waste, Climate Emergency. The long list is 
as follows:

A – Renew with Man Coed VM Ltd  (do nothing)
B – Full in-house operation:

a) with Glyphosate  
b) with Nomix solution  

C – Variance to the current BIFFA street cleaning contract   
D – Joint contract with other local authorities 
E – Competitive tender exercise
F – Community engagement

Due to feedback of option D not being suitable, the indicative costs were not 
drawn up and appraised in line with the original long list outlined in 1.0. 

3.3 Short List Options Appraisal

Following the appraisal period, 4 options were shortlisted for further review: 

Ba – Full in-house operation with Glyphosate  
Bb – Full in-house operation with Nomix Dual 
C – Variance to the current BIFFA street cleaning contract 
E – Competitive tender exercise
F – Community engagement

The following provides an overview of the four options shortlisted during the 
appraisal stage. 

Option Ba – Full in house operation with Glyphosate 

Page 294

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


The main area of concern regarding bringing any weed removal operation in-house is the 
heavy first year costs. The actual removal operation, using Glyphosate, is estimated to be 
£288,689 per year. However, due to the need to capitalise on the core assets such as 
vehicles, trailers, and applicators, the first year cost would be £440,800. A full financial 
breakdown is detailed further in Appendix 1.

Work was done to identify other methods to reduce Glyphosate. A variety of trials were 
conducted to test the credibility and potential for alternatives.

4 roads were chosen to track the results of both Glyphosate and 4 alternatives, as shown 
below:

 Glyphosate – Fifth Avenue
 Nomix Dual (Residual herbicide) – Edgemoor Close
 Foamstream (Hot Foam) – Esher Close
 Hand weeding/scraping (Community involvement) – Enerby Close

Pelargonic acid was requested to be part of the trials. There are currently two pelargonic 
acid products on the market. Unfortunately after looking into these products, the HSE 
database confirms they carry no approval for use on hard surfaces. There are amateur 
approvals which allow hard surface use – for example around a domestic patio or driveway 
however we would not be able to use these products as a professional user.

The results of the trials ultimately displayed the superior effectiveness and value of 
Glyphosate over the other options. This conclusion was echoed by numerous APSE 
member Councils who have also been trialling methods alternate to Glyphosate. The 
collection of responses to the query of ‘Innovative ways of treating / controlling weeds on the 
Highway’ is shown in Appendix 3.

Strengths Weaknesses
 Familiarity with process 
 Control over provision 
 Single point of responsibility 
 Knowledge retained In-house
 Consistent approach to delivery of 

services
 Generally no requirement to tender the 

services
 Proven to be an effective method

 Does not reduce our Glyphosate usage
 License runs out in 2025

(as with Bb – issues relevant to being in-
house regardless of method used)

 Need to start from scratch using the 
latest measurement based on the need 
for 3 sprays a year. This would result in 
a heavy first year cost.

 Not enough licenced or trained staff 
available to operate the necessary 
equipment 

 Seasonal staff - risk of staff investment 
and training in October but not returning 
in March

 No pool of operatives to call upon if staff 
register annual leave or sickness leave. 

 Additional pay would be required to 
catch up on work missed in inclement 
weather.

 Ongoing staff recruitment, retention and 
absenteeism issues for Council 

Page 295

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


 Management time to manage incoming 
workforce and complexities in managing 
various terms and conditions. 

 Management resource required to lead 
this workforce to deliver. Workforce may 
be disengaged. 

Option Bb – Full in-house provision with Nomix Dual solution 
In an attempt to lower the amount of Glyphosate used, Nomix Dual solution was explored as 
a potential substitute. It is key to note that Nomix Dual does still contain a lower level of 
Glyphosate within it. 

Nomix Dual does have hard surface approval, but is limited due to Glyphosate hard surface 
restrictions – therefore Nomix Dual can only be used via targeted application (as opposed to 
a blanket treatment) due to the residual. Optimising the benefits of the residual element can 
be difficult as well as briefing. 

This solution would be used as part of an in-house operation with Nomix Dual supplying the 
solution used. Nomix Dual is primarily designed for application using handheld CDA lances 
on foot. 

As with the Glyphosate option, the first year cost of using Nomix Dual in an in-house 
operation would result in a high year 1 cost due to capitalisation of core assets. The yearly 
cost of the weed removal using Nomix is £399,240, however year 1 has the cost of 
£555,370. A financial breakdown of this option is shown in Appendix 2.

Again, it is important to stress that this option is not a completely ‘Glyphosate free’ option, 
but does see a reduced amount used in comparison to the method of solely using 
Glyphosate. 

Strengths

 Reduces amount of Glyphosate
 Residual action could reduce 

number of sprays required and 
works as a ‘prevention’ as well as a 
‘cure’

Weaknesses

 Considerably expensive
 Residual effects difficult to optimise and brief 

to operators
 Can be used only in targeted application
 Takes longer to activate than Glyphosate

(as with Ba – issues relevant to being in-house 
regardless of method used)

 Need to start from scratch using the latest 
measurement based on the need for 3 sprays 
a year. 

 Not enough licenced or trained staff available 
to operate the necessary equipment 

 Seasonal staff - risk of staff investment and 
training in October but not returning in March

 No pool of operatives to call upon if staff 
register annual leave or sickness leave. 

 Additional pay would be required to catch up 
on work missed in inclement weather.

Page 296

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


 Ongoing staff recruitment, retention and 
absenteeism issues for Council 

 Management time to manage incoming 
workforce and complexities in managing 
various terms and conditions.

 Management resource required to lead this 
workforce to deliver. Workforce may be 
disengaged.

Option C – Variance to the current BIFFA street cleaning contract
The possibility of extending the current street cleaning contract, held by Biffa, to also include 
weed removal was suggested – as the two services go hand in hand. This had the potential 
to increase the overall efficiency and consistency of the whole service.

A meeting with legal services was had to establish what was possible within exploring the 
variance on the current Biffa contract. It was confirmed that extending the current contract 
with Biffa for weed removal was indeed possible and would run to the end of the main 
contract if pursued. 

The initial meeting with Biffa contacts were hesitant. Concerns over the nature of weed 
removal (not being their main area of work) and potential financial inefficiencies was cited. 
After more dialogue, this option was removed for further investigation. 

Strengths Weaknesses
• BIFFA are trusted contractors
• Streamline the wider street cleaning 

process
• Potential savings related to direct 

procurement to contractors 

• Weed removal is not BIFFA’s usual area of 
work 

• Is not a reduced-Glyphosate option 
• Public perception 

Option E – Competitive Tender Exercise
The Council retain the option for the Weed Removal and Control service to be subject to 
and awarded by competitive tender. The subsequent tender will be managed under the 
revised Public Contract Regulations 2020.

The 2020 Regulations are a directive from the Cabinet Office to confirm public 
expenditure will be managed under the same thresholds previously applied for the 
European Directives (OJEU). The Directives will now be managed under the Cabinet 
Office “Find a Tender Service” which now supersedes the OJEU process.
Confirmation this contract would exceed the Cabinet Office threshold for Services at 
£189,330.00.

A Restricted tender process would be recommended if this option is followed. The 
Restricted process is 2 parts and has been widely used by the Council. The Restricted 
process  allows for a short listing of bidders who will then receive the opportunity to submit 
the Invitation to Tender. The Restricted Tender process will take an approximate 16 - 20 
weeks for completion and will be managed via the council’s tendering portal “the Chest”.

Strengths Weaknesses

Page 297

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


 Fully Compliant process
 Open to attract a strong quality 

selection of bidders.
 Inclusion of Social Value will 

provide the focus on the local 
economy.

 Well documented and fully 
auditable

 Council are experienced 
practitioners in tendering Services

 Allow for the marketplace to bring 
ideas and innovation forward.

 Tendering will subject the budget 
to  a competitive market

 This will be the longest time period before 
an award.

 The tender process will require Officer 
resources over the set period.

 Local Contractors will be in direct 
competition with National Suppliers.

Option F – Full provision using community engagement 
The encouragement of community involvement by removing weeds by hand was 
investigated further as Glyphosate is not applied using the scraping method. 

On the surface, this option provided many opportunities to explore. Incentives such as a 
‘best street award’ could be used as both motivation for communities but also act as good 
news stories for the Communications team and social media. Furthermore, the hand 
scraping method used by community groups is manual and has zero Glyphosate usage. 

However, major risk factors were flagged both before and during the trial period of this 
method. Initially, the groups who had originally agreed to participate did not attend. This 
flagged the long-term sustainability and stability risks. __ stepped in to trial the actual hand-
scraping method. Though the hand scraping gave good removal results, the process is very 
slow and requires a lot of manual effort. One volunteer was in considerable pain after only 
an hour of scraping. This method posed too many health and safety risks, as well as 
legitimate sustainability risks, to be considered as the main provider of our weed removal 
provision. 

It was noted through appraisal discussions that though this option is overall extremely 
unsustainable for the whole Borough, community engagement could be used to supplement 
and support all the other proposed options. Encouraging community hand scraping in the 
most engaged areas could still contribute to the reduction of Glyphosate. As each street 
comes on board, that street can then be taken off the Borough wide spraying programme 
(and re-added if they become disengaged). 

It is therefore recommended that this option be considered only as a supplement option in 
the most dedicated areas. 

Strengths Weaknesses
 Reduces use of Glyphosate 
 Presents engagement opportunities 
 Involves local community groups
 Offers ‘good press’ opportunities 

 Incredibly unsustainable as the main focus of 
the provision of weed removal Borough wide

 Major health and safety risk factors 
 Long-term commitment of volunteers is not 

guaranteed 

3.4 Indicative costs 

Page 298

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


The indicative costs below allow a financial comparison to be made between the 4 
options.

Options Full in 
house 

operation 
with 

Glyphosate 
(Ba)

Full in 
house 

operation 
WITH 
Nomix 
Dual 
(Bb)

Competitive 
Tender 

Exercise
(E)

Current 
contract

Total cost of service 
provision (year 1) £440,800 £555,370

Unknown 
until 

awarded. 
£249,000

Total cost of service 
provision year 2, 
(potentially 3)

£288,689 £399,240
Unknown 

until 
awarded. 

£249,000

Total Costs (for 3 
years)

£1,018,178 £1,353,850 Competitive £747,000

The indicative costs for the first year of options Ba and Bb factor in the 
capitalisation of assets such as such as vehicles, trailers & quadbikes. The costs 
of these assets for an operation using Glyphosate is totalled at £146,500 and for 
Nomix Dual it is £149,965. A breakdown of where these assets will be capitalised 
can be found in Appendix 1, 2. 

The indicative costs for an in-house operation using Nomix Dual can be reduced 
given the possibility of spraying twice, instead of 3 times a year. This is due to the 
residual nature of the solution, but it is advised still that the full 3 sprays are 
undertaken in the first year. 

Taking into account the strengths, weaknesses and indicative costs for each one 
of the short listed options along with the critical factors for success; Option Ba, Bb 
and E emerged as the most viable options for further review.

4.0 COMMERCIAL CASE

All procurement, financial and legal negotiations will be handled in line with 
corporate guidelines.

At this stage there has been no assessment of market interest in relation to the 
different complexities of operational provision. This will be progressed on approval 
of this SOC.

5.0 FINANCIAL CASE

This Financial Case indicates the budgetary, financial and affordability 
considerations of both viable in-house options and a tendered approach.

Page 299

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


5.1 Financial Appraisal

The indicative financial implications to the Council of the preferred options are as 
follows:

Preferred Option Ba – In House using Glyphosate £
Staffing 208,750
Vehicles (inc Diesel based on 75 litres @ £1.20 per ltr per 
vehicle per wk. based on 40 wks and Petrol based on 35 
litres @ £1.20 per ltr per week on 40 weeks)

176,260

Glyphosate and water 31,065
Other equipment inc PPE 17,012
Training 7,213
Admin 500

Total 444,800 (year 1)

Preferred Option Bb - In House using Nomix Dual £m
Staffing 208,750
Vehicles (inc Diesel based on 75 litres @ £1.20 per ltr per 
vehicle per wk. based on 40 wks and Petrol based on 35 
litres @ £1.20 per ltr per week on 40 weeks) and Genesis 
units 

179,725

Nomix solution (inc tank cleaner) 142,802
PPE 16,308
Training 7,213
Admin 500

Total 555,298 (year 1)

Preferred Option E – Out to tender £m
Not applicable at this time

Total 

This SOC is looking to provide an urgent solution to the business requirement to 
deliver in the timescales set out in section 6.2.

The SOC therefore only considers one off costs in year one for each model. For 
both in-house models, these year one costs are significant but immediately 
necessary for implementation.  

Upon appraisal, the cost of bringing the operation in-house are significantly higher 
than tender options. Investigation and conclusions to this can be attributed to the 
following reasons:

Staffing numbers – the competitiveness of the private sector leads to an 
aggressive pricing structure leading to less staff required.

Pension liabilities – with in an insourced contract all staff are eligible for LGPS.  
A contractor or Council owned Company may choose to have admitted body 
status for the staff TUPE’ing over that are existing members of an LGPS.  All other 
staff will be enrolled in a low cost Workplace Pension Scheme.  

Page 300

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


Terms and Conditions – Council T&C’s such as holiday, sickness pay 
entitlements, are far more generous.

Corporate Services – The Council would pay on average an additional 7% of the 
total contract price to fund the additional corporate support.

5.2 Internal Staffing Costs

It is anticipated that the following support will be required from the following 
business areas;

Service area Explanation
Parks Staffing
Procurement Procurement requirements / tender
Financial Budgets, income, expenditure, staffing costs
HR Support staffing requirements eg employee 

engagement/training

5.3 External staffing costs

There may be a requirement to bring in external support to provide advice and 
guidance relating to the steps and costs association with bringing the entire 
operations in-house, relating to options Ba and Bb.

5.4 Financial Savings

Currently, only option E provides the opportunity to make a financial saving on the 
current contract due to the first year costs to bring the operation in house. 

6.0 MANAGEMENT CASE

This SOC Management Case provides the high level details around the project 
management, governance, implementation, risk management and benefits 
realisation that will be required to ensure successful delivery.

6.1 Project Management Arrangements

Project management arrangements for both in-house and tender options are to be 
decided. 

6.2 Implementation Plan

The major milestones for both in-house options and tendered options are shown 
below.  Further work will be carried out to identify the activities once the SOC has 
been approved. These timelines may be subject to change but give a good 
understanding of what the process will look like and the expected timescales. 

Page 301

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


In-House options (Ba, Bb) Date/timescale Responsible 
Team(s)

Purchasing of core equipment (quadbikes, vehicles) ASAP/12 
weeks lead up 

time
Procurement

Recruitment - TUPE ASAP/7 weeks HR
Training 2 weeks Parks/OD/

External
Hand Over Period – optional Ongoing (6 

weeks)
Go Live – Contract Start Date January

 2022

Procurement options (E) Date Responsible 
Team(s)

Completion and return of Smartform – will not commence with 
procurement process unless there is confirmation of budget.

August Contracting 
Department

Develop Tender documentation, Inc. scope, specification and 
evaluation criteria. This documentation must be ready and 
available from day 1 of the procurement process.

August Contracting 
Department/ 
Procurement

Issue of Tender Documents via The Chest - Must allow a 
minimum of 30 days for return of tender, by tender agreement.

August Procurement

Return of Tender Documents via The Chest – Legal to open 
seal.

September

Tender Evaluation – Use evaluation matrix and award criteria 
(with weightings) to score providers.

September Contracting 
Department

Complete and Issue SSQ- Via the Chest to provider who is 
winning on the evaluation matrix.

October ALL

Return of SSQ October
Issue of Reference Questionnaires & Financial Checks – 
allow 2 weeks for return of questionnaires.

October Procurement

Complete Smartform to Award October Contracting 
Department

Award of Contract – Issue successful & unsuccessful letters via 
the Chest.
Clarify Terms and Conditions with Colin Hughes (unless 
provider(s) accepts our own).

November

ALL

Alcatel Ruling, 10 Day stand still – starts midnight after award 
letters are sent out and ends midnight 10 days letter (must end 
on a working day).

November

Formulation of contract- Director of Law, HR & Asset 
Management to draw up contract once all documentation has 
been sent over. 

November Contracting 
Department/ 

Legal 
Services

Award Notice to OJEU Mid- 
November

Procurement

Hand Over Period – optional Ongoing (6 
weeks)

Go Live – Contract Start Date January 
2022

6.3 Governance Arrangements

Page 302

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


Governance arrangements for both in-house or a tendered options have not been 
decided at this time. 

6.4 Risk Management Arrangements

The strategy, framework and plan for dealing with the management of risks are 
contained within the Council’s Risk Management Policy.

Risks identified so far are shown in the table below;

 

6.5 Stakeholder Engagement

Appendix 5 shows the key stakeholders and their relevance to the weed removal 
provision.

6.6 Conclusion

This Management Case has proposed the implementation, governance and risk 
management arrangements that will be in place to enable successful delivery of 
the most suitable methods for Wirral Council’s weed removal provision.
 

Appendices

Appendix 1 – Financial breakdown for full In-house provision using Glyphosate  
Appendix 2 – Financial breakdown for full In-house provision using Nomix Dual 

Risks
Description Action Required Owner
Financial estimations in SOC are 
severely mis-calculated 

Ensure all figures are shared 
with immediate stakeholders 
including finance for feedback.

Project 
Manager

Failure to demobilise the current 
contract, impacting on the successful 
mobilisation of any new option used.

A full demobilisation/ 
mobilisation plan developed in 
co-operation with the method 
chosen to proceed with.

Project 
Manager

Levels of Glyphosate (and/other 
herbicides and pesticides) increases 
with new arrangements 

Continued reviews and trials of 
alternatives, as well as 
initiatives such as the ‘No 
Glyphosate in Parks’ to 
maintain the gradual reduction 
across the borough.

Potential alternatives to Glyphosate 
that are less used on this scale may 
fail to remove weeds and cause them 
to become persistent. This can lead to 
tripping hazards on highways.

Properly trial all proposed 
alternatives, as well as reach 
out to other Local Authorities in 
order to be in a strong position 
to advocate one of the 
alternatives. 

Page 303

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


Appendix 3 – APSE network query responses - Innovative ways of treating/controlling 
weeds on the Highway
Appendix 4 – Stakeholder analysis

Page 304

http://wbcnet.admin.ad.wirral.gov.uk/


 

       
      

       
      

       
      

     

           
          

         

                             

                                                           

                                      

                 
        
            

          
        
           
        
            

          
           
       

          
           
       

                 
        
            

                 

          
           
       

                 
        
            

      
        
           
         
             

          
           
       

          
           
       

Page 305



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee

Tuesday, 7th September 2021

To run an in-house operation based on 3 sprays per year going forward we would 
have to start from scratch using the latest measurement. This would incur a heavy 
cost in the first year see table below.

1st year resourcing/setting up.
Required Individual 

cost
Total costs

1 x supervisor F Grade 
(full time) To carry out 
monitoring and admin 
work

£30,367
Inc on costs

£30,367

2 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (full time)

£26,965
Inc on costs

£53,930

4 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (seasonal 
x 40 wks.) 

£20,742
Inc on costs

£82,969

2 x GMO E Grade (foot 
soldiers seasonal x 40 
weeks)

£20,742
Inc on costs

£41,484

1 x small belingo van for 
supervisor

£10,500
Inc yr. 
approx. 
Maintenance

£10,500

3 x LWB enclosed vans £17,000
Inc yr. 
approx. 
Maintenance

£51,000

1 x SWB enclosed van 
(foot soldiers)

£10,500
Inc yr. 
approx. 
Maintenance

£10,500

Diesel for vehicles x 
based on 75 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per vehicle 
per wk. based on 40 wks.

£3,600
per vehicle 
per year

5 vehicles
£18,000

3 x Long trailers 3.5T (to 
carry 2 quads each

£5,000
Per trailer

£15,000

7 x Quad bikes fully 
equipped with spraying kit

£8,500
 per Quad

£59,500

Petrol for Quad Bikes 
based on 35 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per week on 
40 weeks

£1,680
Per quad 
per year

7 Quads
£11,760

Page 307



Chemical (Glyphosate) £29 per 5 
Litres

Calculations 

Chemical rate = 3.6 Litres will cover 1 
Hectare, 1 Hectare= 10,000 Sqm 

Area to be treated 4,896,168 Sqm, 
three treatments will be needed.

4,896,168/10,000 x3.6=1762Litres 

1762 x 3 sprays= 5287 Litres 

Costs 

5287 Litres 
Chemical is purchased in 5litre 
containers at a cost of £29.

5287L / 5L= 1058 containers 

1058 x £29 
= £30,669 + Vat 

Water required (approx.) £1.70 per 
cubic metre

Water costs
75 litres of water required for every ltr 
of Chemical.
Each spray requires 1762 ltr of 
Chemical = 1762 x 75 = 132,150 litres 
of water per spray
3 sprays x 132,150 = 396,450 litres of 
water required in total
There are 1,700 litres of water to cubic 
metre of water.

396,450/1,700 = 233 cubic metres of 
water
233 x £1.70

£396
40mm Standpipe (hire) / 
keys and bars

£452.00 per 
year

£452 

28mm /Tap / bayonet 
outlet

£252.00 per 
year

£252 

P.P.E. – suits, mask, 
gloves, coats, trousers 
etc

£1,812 per 
person year

9 operatives
£16,308

Training courses PA1, 
PA2 & PA6

£801.00
Per 
operative

Pesticide PA1 and PA6 is a 2-day 
training course, followed by a half day 
NPTC assessment. Can accommodate 
up to 6 candidates on the course.

Page 308



The cost of this 2-day course is 
£200+VAT per person and the NPTC 
assessment is an additional £200 per 
person, VAT exempt. So, a total of 
£400 per person ex VAT.

Pesticide PA2 is a 1-day training 
course, again followed by a half day 
NPTC assessment. Can accommodate 
up to 6 candidates on the course.

The cost of this course is £125+VAT 
per person and the NPTC assessment 
is an additional £125 per person, VAT 
exempt. So, a total of £250 per person 
ex VAT.

Sit astride ATV training is a Lantra 
accredited 1 day course for a maximum 
of 4 candidates. Candidates are 
assessed for competence as part of the 
training day.

The cost of the course is £575+VAT for 
the 1-day course with up to 4 
candidates, plus Lantra fee of £31+VAT 
per person. So, with 4 candidates, the 
total cost of the course is £606 ex VAT.

£7,213
Admin costs – printing of 
plans etc

£500 per 
year £500.00

Total cost / outlay
£440,800

Although the total for 1st year is £440,800 by capitalising assets such as vehicles, 
trailers & quads which totals £146,500 the total to do in house will be £294,300

3 full time staff can carry out weed removal by hand during winter period.

Costs for years below are using year 1 costs – a % would have to be added each 
year to allow for inflation potentially. 

2nd 3rd 4th & 5th years (vehicles and quads would require changing in year 6)

Page 309



Required Individual 
cost

Total costs

1 x supervisor F Grade 
(full time) To carry out 
monitoring and admin 
work

£30,367
Inc on costs

£30,367

2 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (full time)

£26,965
Inc on costs

£53,930

4 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (seasonal 
x 40 wks.)

£20,742
Inc on costs

£82,969

2 x GMO E Grade (foot 
soldiers seasonal x 40 
weeks)

£20,742
Inc on costs

£41,484

Diesel for vehicles x 
based on 75 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per vehicle 
per wk. based on 40 wks.

£3,600
per vehicle 
per year

5 vehicles
£18,000

Petrol for Quad Bikes 
based on 35 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per week on 
40 weeks

£1,680
Per quad 
per year

7 Quads
£11,760

Chemical (Glyphosate) £29 per 5 
Litres

Calculations 

Chemical rate = 3.6 Litres will cover 1 
Hectare, 1 Hectare= 10,000 Sqm 

Area to be treated 4,896,168 Sqm, 
three treatments will be needed.

4,896,168/10,000 x3.6=1762Litres 

1762 x 3 sprays= 5287 Litres 

Costs 

5287 Litres 
Chemical is purchased in 5litre 
containers at a cost of £29.

5287L / 5L= 1058 containers 

1058 x £29 
= £30,669 + Vat 

Water required (approx.) £1.70 per 
cubic metre

Water costs
75 litres of water required for every ltr of 
Chemical.

Page 310



Each spray requires 1762 litres of 
Chemical = 1762 x 75 = 132,150 litres 
of water per spray
3 sprays x 132,150 = 396,450 litres of 
water required in total
There is 1,700 litres of water to a cubic 
metre of water.

396,450/1,700 = 233 cubic metres of 
water
233 x £1.70

£396
40mm Standpipe (hire) / 
keys and bars

£452.00 per 
year

£452

28mm /Tap / bayonet 
outlet

£252.00 per 
year

£252

P.P.E. – suits, mask, 
gloves, coats, trousers etc

£1,812 per 
person year

9 operatives
£16,308

Training courses PA1, 
PA2 & PA6

£801.00
Per 
operative

Allow for up to 2 new starters.
£1,602

Admin costs – printing of 
plans etc

£500 per 
year

£500

Total cost
£288,689

Page 311



This page is intentionally left blank



Briefing to carry out Weed Control inhouse  

Using Nomix Dual

1st year resourcing/setting up.
Required Individual 

cost
Total costs

1 x supervisor F Grade 
(full time) To carry out 
monitoring and admin 
work

£30,367
Inc on costs

£30,367

2 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (full time)

£26,965
Inc on costs

£53,930

4 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (seasonal 
x 40 wks.) 

£20,742
Inc on costs

£82,969

2 x GMO E Grade (foot 
soldiers seasonal x 40 
weeks)

£20,742
Inc on costs

£41,484

1 x small belingo van for 
supervisor

£10,500
Inc yr. 
approx. 
Maintenance

£10,500

3 x LWB enclosed vans £17,000
Inc yr. 
approx. 
Maintenance

£51,000

1 x SWB enclosed van 
(foot soldiers)

£10,500
Inc yr. 
approx. 
Maintenance

£10,500

Diesel for vehicles x 
based on 75 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per vehicle 
per wk. based on 40 wks.

£3,600
per vehicle 
per year

5 vehicles
£18,000

3 x Long trailers 3.5T (to 
carry 2 quads each

£5,000
Per trailer

£15,000

7 x Quad bikes fully 
roadworthy

£7,000
 per Quad

£49,000

7 x Genesis units to go 
on Quad Bike (specialist 
unit to enable to spray 
Nomix) 

£1,995 
per unit

£13,965

Petrol for Quad Bikes 
based on 35 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per week on 
40 weeks

£1,680
Per quad 
per year

7 Quads
£11,760

Chemical (Nomix Dual) Calculations 

Page 313



£112.75 per 
Ltr (Dual)

£9.15 per Ltr 
(Nomix G)

£4.82 per Ltr 
(Universal 
Cleaner) 

Costs 
1200 Litres of Dual  
Chemical is purchased in 1 litre 
containers at a cost of £112.75.

1200L / 1L= 1200 containers 

1200 x £112.75 
= £135,300 + Vat 
In addition, you will need to use Nomix 
G.

800 Litres of Nomix G (in 1 ltr 
containers)
 800L / 1L = 800 containers
800 x £9.15
= £7,320 + Vat
£135,300 + £7,320 =£142,320

Tank Cleaner £4.82 per Ltr Universal tank Cleaner required for 
Genesis Units.
100 ltrs required per year

100/£4.82 
= £482

P.P.E. – suits, mask, 
gloves, coats, trousers 
etc

£1,812 per 
person year

9 operatives
£16,308

Training courses PA1, 
PA2 & PA6

£801.00
Per 
operative

Pesticide PA1 and PA6 is a 2-day 
training course, followed by a half day 
NPTC assessment. Can accommodate 
up to 6 candidates on the course.

The cost of this 2-day course is 
£200+VAT per person and the NPTC 
assessment is an additional £200 per 
person, VAT exempt. So, a total of 
£400 per person ex VAT.

Pesticide PA2 is a 1-day training 
course, again followed by a half day 
NPTC assessment. Can accommodate 
up to 6 candidates on the course.

The cost of this course is £125+VAT 
per person and the NPTC assessment 
is an additional £125 per person, VAT 

Page 314



exempt. So, a total of £250 per person 
ex VAT.

Sit astride ATV training is a Lantra 
accredited 1 day course for a maximum 
of 4 candidates. Candidates are 
assessed for competence as part of the 
training day.

The cost of the course is £575+VAT for 
the 1-day course with up to 4 
candidates, plus Lantra fee of £31+VAT 
per person. So, with 4 candidates, the 
total cost of the course is £606 ex VAT.

£7,213
Admin costs – printing of 
plans etc

£500 per 
year £500.00

Total cost / outlay
£555,298

Although the total for 1st year is £555,370 by capitalising assets such as vehicles, 
trailers & quads which totals £149,965 the total to do in house will be £405,405.

3 full time staff can carry out weed removal by hand during winter period.

Costs for years below are using year 1 costs – a % would have to be added each 
year to allow for inflation potentially. 

2nd 3rd 4th & 5th years (vehicles and quads would require changing in year 6)

Required Individual 
cost

Total costs

1 x supervisor F Grade 
(full time) To carry out 
monitoring and admin 
work

£30,367
Inc on costs

£30,367

2 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (full time)

£26,965
Inc on costs

£53,930

4 x GMO E Grade Quad 
bike operatives (seasonal 
x 40 wks.)

£20,742
Inc on costs

£82,969

2 x GMO E Grade (foot 
soldiers seasonal x 40 
weeks)

£20,742
Inc on costs

£41,484

Page 315



Diesel for vehicles x 
based on 75 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per vehicle 
per wk. based on 40 wks.

£3,600
per vehicle 
per year

5 vehicles
£18,000

Petrol for Quad Bikes 
based on 35 litres @ 
£1.20 per ltr per week on 
40 weeks

£1,680
Per quad 
per year

7 Quads
£11,760

Chemical (Nomix Dual) £112.75 per 
Ltr (Dual)

£9.15 per 
Ltr (Nomix 
G)

£4.82 per 
Ltr 
(Universal 
Cleaner)

Calculations 

Costs 
1200 Litres of Dual  
Chemical is purchased in 1 litre 
containers at a cost of £112.75.

1200L / 1L= 1200 containers 

1200 x £112.75 
= £135,300 + Vat 
In addition, you will need to use Nomix 
G.

800 Litres of Nomix G (in 1 ltr 
containers)
 800L / 1L = 800 containers
800 x £9.15
= £7,320 + Vat
£135,300 + £7,320 =£142,320

P.P.E. – suits, mask, 
gloves, coats, trousers etc

£1,812 per 
person year

9 operatives
£16,308

Training courses PA1, 
PA2 & PA6

£801.00
Per 
operative

Allow for up to 2 new starters.
£1,602

Admin costs – printing of 
plans etc

£500 per 
year

£500

Total cost
£399,240

Page 316



Network query responses
Query Title: GM0758 - Innovative ways of treating / controlling weeds 

on the Highway - 100920

Description:  
This APSE member council is considering innovative ways to treat 
weeds on the highway. They would be interested to hear from any 
other APSE Member councils that have successfully introduced new 
methods of weed control / treatment. They would be particularly 
interested to hear from any member council who has utilised 
brushes on sweepers as a means of weed control / management.

Responses

Authority: Orkney Islands Council

Name: John Wrigley

Date:

Email: John.Wrigley@orkney.gov.ukTelephone: 01856 872311 ext 243

Response:
This topic is one that has created much consternation within my team. This year we reluctantly resumed 
treatment using Nomix, though I have said we need to find a new way for next year. 

I would therefore be very interested to hear what other authorities have tried (both successfully and 
unsuccessfully) to hopefully get a steer on a value for money option for us to prepare to take forward in 
2021.
.

Authority: Cheltenham Borough Council

Name: Karen Watson

Date:

Email: Karen.Watson@cheltenham.gov.ukTelephone: 01242 264397

Response:
We are looking at this also – have trialled foam, electric, strimming etc – no one solution seems to do it at 
the moment and manual clearance takes a lot longer than weed spraying.
.

Authority: Midlothian Council

Name: Justin Venton

Date:

Email: Justin.Venton@midlothian.gov.ukTelephone:

Response:
At Midlothian we have trialled sweeping small areas to control weeds and debris. This has involved fitting 
wire brush heads to the street sweepers from Johnstons and utilising wire brush heads on our pedestrian 
grass cutting machinery. Also utilising hand blowers to blow back debris onto grass areas.
We have some indicative costs that would benefit from a comparison with others.

We will be undertaking further trials this Autumn.

Areas of block paving are an issue as mechanical collecting cannot be utilised without lifting sand and 
paving!
.

25 September 2020 Page 1 of 6Page 317



Authority: Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council

Name: Neil Garnett

Date:

Email: neilgarnett@wirral.gov.ukTelephone: 07867 500563

Response:
I am responding to your request for information about alternative methods to using Glyphosate in local 
Authorities.

For the last 12 months Wirral Borough council have been really proactive in their approach to finding 
alternatives to Glyphosate and have trialled many methods, please see list below for the method and brief 
description.

Alltec fully electric machine , this method uses heat to kill the cells in the vegetation, instantly see weeds 
wilt but they soon spring back up and this method has little effect on the removal of weeds

Maxwind Pedestrian steam with nylon brush,  steam is used to again kill the cells in the vegetation, little 
effect on killing weeds 

Johnston CN101 1m2 Sub-compact sweeper(carbon fibre brushes), had little effect on picking up larger 
weeds and only shreds the leave of the main stem. Using a nylon brush ensures that the infrastructure of 
the path are not damaged.

Foam- Requires considerable setup  & running costs and heavy goods vehicle to transport. Slow, very little 
control of areas treated during application. Restricted to certain sites.

Manually Removing weeds, This method is very time consuming and labour intensive, scraping weeds will 
not completely kill the weed as the root will still be in the ground and the weed will simply grow back.

Green Gobbler 30% Vinegar- following on from positive results from our contractors trials, we have now 
begun a programme of testing this on our highways.

.

Authority: Wyre Forest District Council

Name: Paul Allen

Date:

Email: Paul.Allen@wyreforestdc.gov.ukTelephone: 01562 732971

Response:
We here at Wyre Forest have not actually tried anything innovative but would really like to join the 
conversation.

We are also looking at have to make general verge maintenance more environmental friendly and are 
considering cut reduction, cut and collect and the introduction of bio digesters.
.

Authority: Calderdale Metropolitan Borough Council

Name: Samantha Ward

Date:

Email: Samantha.Ward@calderdale.gov.ukTelephone: 07544 656 769

Response:
We currently have C201 Mini Sweepers, which change brushes in certain areas/routes from the full poly 
front brush to the wire poly brush. We haven’t gone for the full wire brushes as this impacts on the 
integrity of certain surfaces

It works on some of the smaller weeds but its not effective on those above 10cm.
.

25 September 2020 Page 2 of 6Page 318



Authority: Newcastle-Under-Lyme Borough Council

Name: Lyndon Ryder

Date:

Email: Lyndon.Ryder@newcastle-staffs.gov.ukTelephone: 01782 717717 ex 4776

Response:
Newcastle-u-Lyme’s highways are owned by Staffordshire County Highways and they contract out the 
weed control. 

For many years NBC used an outside contractor to treat with glyphosate using knapsacks. 

Streetscene Operations then took over the contract (in house) and we fitted the “Nomix” system to our 
mechanical sweepers. The operation consisted of the machine sweeping the highway then the glyphosate 
mixture being apply via a droplet spray from the rear of the suction bucket. Any pavements or obstacles 
(grass verges/lamp columns/road sign/street furniture etc.) that were not accessible by the sweepers 
would then be treated by knapsack. The sweeping programme was adjusted to allow 2 applications 
throughout the season. We found this to be very efficient and the most cost effective way of controlling 
highway weeds.

NBC are no longer the preferred contractor to control weeds for Staffs County Highways.

Before Streetscene Operations was set up (2007) our Street Cleansing department trailed weed ripping 
brushes that would replace the normal channel brush on the mechanical sweeper. This does a reasonable 
cleanse, but not as good as a normal brush. The downsides of using these brushes are that due to the 
increased weight they caused damage to the brush arms/linkages, thus down time in repair. Also the cost 
per brush was up to 3 times the price of a normal channel brush. Also this was only a cosmetic solution 
compared to a glyphosate treatment. 

We have not since trailed any other alternative .
.

Authority: Fermanagh and Omagh District Council

Name: Stewart Burns

Date:

Email: stewart.burns@fermanaghomagh.comTelephone: 0300 303 1777 - Ext. 21505

Response:
We purchased two BCS 630 power units with 1metre brush attachment on the front. They are pedestrian 
operated and will be able to clean footpaths throughout the district. The brush attachment will be able 
remove weeds, moss and debris. 

Also, we are undertaking a trial of FoamStream to assess it's effectiveness as an alternative to 
glyphosphate weed killers. 
.

Authority: Blackpool Council

Name: Jez Evans

Date:

Email: jez.evans@blackpool.gov.ukTelephone:

Response:
Blackpool has suffered this year more than other years as the normal treatment via quad and glysophate 
has been extremely restricted to parked vehicles during lockdown and the window of opportunity of the 
fine early spring weather, together with resource pressure.

We do have 2 compact sweepers with PKS weed sprayers (operators will require PA1 + PA2AR training 
modules)  fitted using Vanquish biactive, which has helped control in the high footfall areas.

The issue has a big impact on cleanliness perception and if there is a magic solution please share.
.

25 September 2020 Page 3 of 6Page 319



Authority: London Borough of Redbridge

Name: Stephanie Orrell

Date:

Email: Stephanie.Orrell@redbridge.gov.ukTelephone:

Response:
At the London Borough of Redbridge we still use a glyphosate based weed killer as treatment on the 
weeds. We only treat areas as needed, so some areas only receive 2 treatments per year, whilst others 
have up to 5 treatments per year.
 
In 2017 we trialled a vinegar based treatment, called New Way Spray.  Unfortunately, this treatment did 
not fully kill off the weeds and we ended up having to abandon the trial at the beginning of the second 
treatment and revert back to the glyphosate weed killer.
 
Due to the number of parked cars within the borough, using brushes to remove the weeds would not be 
feasible in many areas due to access problems.
.

Authority: Royal Borough of Greenwich

Name: Asya Mircheva

Date:

Email: Asya.Mircheva@royalgreenwich.gov.ukTelephone: 075 2591 6393

Response:
The Royal Borough of Greenwich Street Cleansing service uses glyphosate for the treatment and control of 
weeds. 

We have commissioned a contractor to treat weeds on the public highway. We are confident that the 
chemical is legal to use and carefully follow regulations and instructions regarding its use. We have not 
tried any new ways of treating the weeds on public highway but we will be interested to find out if any 
other local authorities have as we are due to renew our weed spraying contract.
.

Authority: Northumberland County Council

Name: Sam Talbot

Date:

Email: sam.talbot@northumberland.gov.ukTelephone: 01670 625583

Response:
We are also looking into alternatives to herbicide but unfortunately our forays into the use of sweeper 
brushes a few years ago were not very successful. As a council with a lot of rural roads, the weed removing 
brushes on a road sweeper were trialled at Northumberland County Council as a potentially cost effective 
method of removing weeds with less staff, less chemical and only a slight amendment to existing 
resources. 

Unfortunately the outcome was that the brushes, whilst effective at removing roadside weeds, were also 
rather effective at removing the tarmac at the edge of the road and resulted in unexpected erosion of the 
Highway edge, large tip-off fees with the extra weight and extra repairs to the Highway. Any cost saving in 
herbicide and any environmental benefits of not using it were offset or eclipsed by the extra tarmac 
repairs required and the haulage / tipping off costs due to removing of Highway surface. 

Back to the drawing board, unfortunately.

We would be very interested in any solutions others have come up with!
.

25 September 2020 Page 4 of 6Page 320



Authority: NORSE Commercial Services

Name: Martyn Ward

Date:

Email: Martyn.Ward@ncsgrp.co.ukTelephone: 07824 545820

Response:
There are options to use a Polly / wire or wire / Polly mix of brushes to help remove weeds and a total wire 
brush as well, these all depend on the sweeper manufacturer approving the sweeper and brush motor to 
operate with the additional brush weight on their equipment.
 
We generally find the wire Polly mix is the best option to keep the brush shape and to remove light / dead 
weeds and to optimise the standard of sweeping in general, the poly wire mix bends to much as the 
plastic bristle does on the outside and the total wire option is too heavy for most sweeper brush motors.

I hope this helps.
.

Authority: Exeter City Council

Name: Nick Mead

Date:

Email: Nick.Mead@exeter.gov.ukTelephone: 07712 544621

Response:  
We have reduced the amount of highways sprays from 3 sprays per year to 2 sprays per year, which has 
only been possible off the back of introducing an integrated weed approach, i.e. use of alternative 
methods like the weed ripping machine (Nimos – Mosquito II) and deep clean teams (Utilising Gluton 
Hoover machines) city wide for the removal of detritus over a 12 month rolling schedule, removing 
growth material and emergent weeds. Both alternative methods have proven very effective.

We have trialled the Foamstream method of weed control and found the cost and time to be much more 
expensive and time consuming than that of our current methods. Additionally, the diesel consumption, 
fumes and hot steam were a concern for us from an operational as well as a carbon footprint point of view.

We have looked at applicability, efficacy, cost and environmental impact of chemical alternatives, 
pelargonic acid and acetic vinegar. These solutions have a limited environmental impact and efficacy is 
poor as they are contact herbicide only, killing soft leaves and not root systems, meaning re-emergence is 
high. At a minimum additional cost of 4x that of existing regimes, they are not currently a cost effective or 
financially viable option.

We have introduced a trial 'opt out'  scheme for residents for the highways spray and are looking to roll 
this out city wide next year. A majority of residents within a road must agree to keep weed growth to a 
minimum, to an 'A'  grade standard and provide photographic evidence in order to be removed from the 
spray list.
.

25 September 2020 Page 5 of 6Page 321



Authority: Swansea City & County

Name: Dean Howard

Date:

Email: Dean.Howard@swansea.gov.ukTelephone: 01792 841675

Response:
As a Glyphosate alternative, it is always worth considering the other non-herbicide control options that 
exist, but they can pose some considerable issues for any insect that finds itself in the path of the 
application equipment. The vast majority of alternative systems are based upon the application of heat to 
the weed, this can be a direct flame, hot water or foam. Very obviously any insect when exposed to such 
extreme heat will not survive. By comparison the slow decomposition of a weed (using Glyphosate) allows 
for even the slowest moving insects to relocate to another environment. Other alternative control options 
include, rotating wire brushes, which of course are equally damaging to any life that exists within weed 
growth and also impacts the longevity of the tarmacadam.

Swansea Council are currently using a company that utilises the “Weed It” technology to apply herbicides 
only to the weeds as a spot treatment and the actual amounts of active ingredient are miniscule in 
comparison to the 1,100 kilometres of footways treated throughout the area. 

Swansea have previously trialled a number of “new “ treatments as small area trials with little success, 
nevertheless we would be very interested in any new methods that could reduce the amount of weed 
killer used. 
.

Authority: South Lanarkshire Council

Name: Ian Guild

Date:

Email: Ian.Guild@southlanarkshire.gov.ukTelephone: 07795 090416

Response:
Nothing new being tried in South Lanarkshire although we have reviewed where we are using glyphosate 
and reduced.

Less use around obstacles and grass edges for instance.

We have a reasonable fleet of mechanical sweepers and where possible target paths rather than gutters/ 
drainage channels.

Continue to work with other local authorities re best practise via APSE’s Litter Managers Network
.

25 September 2020 Page 6 of 6Page 322



Stakeholders relevant to the provision of weed removal in Wirral

Number Stakeholder Internal/
External

Influence Intere
st 

Comment

1 Parks & 
Environment

Internal High High The weed removal service 
remains under the 
responsibility of the Parks 
and Gardens team, 
accountability for any 
decision will rest here. 
If the service goes in-house, 
this could have a direct 
implication on staffing.
Officers from Parks and 
Gardens have been 
undertaking and monitoring 
trial experiments to 
investigate potential 
alternatives to Glyphosate, 
this will be key to the 
appraisal process. Specialist 
knowledge and experience 
of the service is also within 
this team, they will have to 
play a large part in the 
decision making process 
and presentation to 
committee. 

2

 

Climate 
Emergency 
Team

Internal Medium High The reduction of Glyphosate 
is an action listed within the 
Climate Emergency Action 
Plan and is associated with 
wider environmental issues. 
They have an interest in 
how this will proceed and 
will need to be involved in 
the appraisal process 
throughout. 

3 Highways Internal Medium High The weed removal service is 
directly linked to Highways, 
ensuring that Wirral 
highways and roads stay 
free from weeds is a shared 
priority. 

4 Corporate 
Procurement 

Internal Low Low The procurement team will 
have a key role to play if a 
tender option is considered. 
They will need to be present 
in the appraisal to properly 
advise on what this option 

Page 323



will look like, and commit 
resources to go ahead with 
the process if chosen.

5 Residents External Low Mediu
m

Keeping the borough neat, 
tidy and free of weeds is a 
priority of the weed removal 
service. Ensuring that 
residents have clean, weed 
free streets is a priority. Any 
method will first and 
foremost deliver on this 
priority. The effectiveness, 
duration and efficiency is 
key when considering how 
we approach this service.

6 Community 
groups

External Medium High Glyphosate is a topic that 
causes strong feelings and 
opposition, understandably, 
with certain local groups. 
The continuation of using 
Glyphosate will no doubt be 
unpopular, no matter the 
justification used in regards 
to alternatives. The potential 
inclusion of small-scale 
involvement via scraping 
could be a bridge, however, 
as found in the trial 
investigations, manual 
scraping can have health 
and safety risks along with 
commitment levels of 
volunteers long term.

7 Council Internal High High The reduction and removal 
of Glyphosate was a 
commitment made in July 
2019 and is a key issue for 
Members. The commitment 
to remove Glyphosate from 
the service is conditional to 
a viable (effectiveness, cost, 
efficiency, safety) 
alternative. Long trials and 
in depth investigations into 
alternatives has not yet 
produced an alternative that 
we consider to be viable – 
detailed in the options 
appraisal.
In-house options, even with 

Page 324



Glyphosate, will need to be 
seriously investigated to 
bring to Councillors, as 
there is an interest in 
looking into it to deliver 
Wirral’s weed removal 
service. 

8 Service 
Providers 
(including 
incumbent)

External Low High The option to re-tender the 
service externally remains a 
strong option. We’d expect 
this contract to welcome a 
competitive pool of bidders 
with strong bids. It provides 
an opportunity for providers 
to secure an attractive 
contract, provided the bid 
satisfies Council needs also. 

9 Wider 
environmenta
l networks, eg 
APSE

External Low Mediu
m 

The issue of reducing 
Glyphosate is a key 
discussion in wider 
networks, including APSE. 
We have a responsibility as 
an APSE member Council 
to be involved in the 
conversation and pass on 
any relevant information to 
the wider network if deemed 
necessary or useful. 

10 Nomix Dual 
representativ
es

External
 

Low High This is a lower Glyphosate 
(but not free) alternative that 
has been mentioned early 
as one worth investigating 
further. Meetings have been 
arranged with their experts 
and the option will likely be 
considered on the final 
shortlist. Their 
representatives will be 
interested in how we choose 
to proceed. 

Page 325



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee

Tuesday, 7th September 2021

REPORT TITLE: BUDGET MONITORING QUARTER 1 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOODS

REPORT SUMMARY
This report sets out the financial monitoring information for the Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee as at quarter 1 (Apr – Jun) of 2021-22. The report 
provides Members with an overview of budget performance to enable the Committee to take 
ownership of their specific budgets and provide robust challenge and scrutiny to Officers on 
the performance of those budgets. 

The Committee is accountable for ensuring that the committee budgets remain within the 
relevant envelope and will take collective responsibility via the Policy and Resources 
Committee to ensure that the whole Council budget remains in balance at all times, by 
agreeing mitigating actions to bring the budget back in line, should a deficit be forecast.

RECOMMENDATION/S

The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is requested to;

1. Note the projected year-end revenue forecast position of £0.850m adverse, as 
reported at quarter 1 (Apr – Jun) of 2021-22  

2. Note progress on the achievement of approved savings and the projected year end 
forecast position at quarter 1 (Apr – Jun) of 2021-22

3. Note the reserves allocated to the Committee for future one-off commitments.
4. Note the projected year-end capital forecast position of £1.143m adverse, as reported 

at quarter 1 (Apr – Jun) of 2021-22  

Page 327

Agenda Item 8



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 Regular monitoring and reporting of revenue and capital budgets, reserves, savings 
achievements and Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) position enables 
decisions to be taken faster, which may produce revenue benefits and will improve 
financial control of Wirral Council.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Other reporting frequencies could be considered, but quarterly reporting is standard 
practice.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Revenue Forecast Position

3.1 This section provides a summary of the projected year-end revenue position as at
the end of Quarter 1, Month 3 (June 2021) of 2021/22 financial year.

3.2 As at the end of June 21 (Quarter 1), the forecast year end position for Environment, 
Climate Emergency and Transport is an adverse variance of £0.850m against a 
budget of £66.549m 

3.3 The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is currently predicting 
an adverse variance of £0.850m as at Quarter 1.    This includes the mitigation 
available from the Sales, Fees and Charges income loss compensation scheme.  

3.4 The overall projections at Quarter 1 depend on no further restrictions being imposed.  
As case rates within the Borough remain high, localised decisions have been taken 
based on Public Health advice which means some restrictions will remain in place after 
the government road map date of 19th July.  There are risks associated with this and 
this decision could have an adverse effect on projected income targets and some 
2021/22 savings targets.  This will be kept under review throughout the year and will 
be to mitigated if necessary.

Page 328



TABLE 1: 2021/22 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport – Service Budget & 
Forecast
 Budget Forecast Variance Adv/ Fav
 (+ Fav / - Adv)  
 £000 £000 £000 %  

Environment (including Parks and 
Open Spaces)

7,619 7,619 0 0%
Highways Management and 
Infrastructure 6,257 7,107 -850 -14% Adverse

Climate Emergency 30,480 30,480 0 0%

Transport Levy 22,193 22,193 0 0%

  
Surplus / (Deficit) 66,549 67,399 -850 -1% Adverse

3.5 Highways and Infrastructure: An adverse variance of £0.850m is reported for 2021-
22.  An adverse forecast variance of £0.850m is reported for 2021-22. Charging for car 
parking has now resumed, however as footfall is expected to be at 75% of the pre-
pandemic levels this has adversely impacted income, however income is available 
from the sales, fees and charges income loss compensation scheme for Quarter 1.  
The 2021/22 saving associated with Car Parking will not be fully achieved this year 
due to delays in implementation.  The full year impact of the saving equates to £1.0m 
and consists of £0.5m relating to standardisation of fees and £0.5m relating to £0.5m 
relating to charges at new sites.  In August 2021 the Decision Review Committee in 
agreed to implement the savings. The standardisation will be implemented from mid-
August, however as this has been delayed by four and a half months this results in a 
forecast pressure of £0.2m.  The remaining saving relating to charges at new sites will 
take longer to implement as it will be necessary to carry out capital works.  Therefore, 
this element of the saving is unlikely to be realised before the end so the year.  This 
will result in an additional forecast pressure of £0.5m. Overall pressures from car 
parking in 2021/22 equate to £0.7m, although it is expected that the saving will be fully 
achieved in 2022/23.

3.6 The remaining part of the adverse variance is due to under recovery of income with the 
Design Team which equates to £0.150m as some staff are not directly chargeable to 
capital schemes.  Income opportunities within this area are being explored in order to 
mitigate this.

3.7 A restructure of the of the service is currently underway, this will assist in mitigating the 
overall adverse variance within the service.

Page 329



3.8     Parks & Environment: A balanced position is reported for 2021-22
Income streams relating to Garden Waste Subscriptions and Parks Income were 
impacted by COVID-19 in 2020/21.  Garden Waste is not expected to be impacted in 
2021/22 as the service has returned to normal and 2021/22 charges to subscribers 
reflect this. The service is expected to achieve at least 40,000 subscribers this year, 
however the direct debit system was implemented in 2020/21 and the impact of this on 
subscriber numbers will become apparent at the end of Quarter 2.

3.9 As at Quarter 1 income from Parks is expected to be impacted by COVID-19. Services 
relating to pitch hire have resumed, however income in relation to events has been 
affected which has resulted in a shortfall in income.  This is mitigated by income from 
the sales, fees and charges income loss compensation scheme and favourable 
variances against expenditure.  However, this depends on there being no further 
restrictions later in the year.  This will be reviewed during the year, and losses will be 
mitigated through a reduction in expenditure within other areas of Waste and 
Environment. 

3.10 Transport Levy: A balanced position is reported for 2021/22
This was budgeted based on the levy allocated to Wirral by Merseytravel for this year 
and is currently reporting a balanced position.

TABLE 2: 2021/22 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport – Subjective 
Budget & Forecast
 Budget Outturn Variance Adv/ Fav
 (+ Fav / - Adv)  

 £000 £000 £000 %  
      
Income -17,507 -16,657 -850 -5% Adverse
    
Expenditure:    
Employee 14,982 14,144 838 6% Favourable
Non Pay 65,063 65,901 -838 -1% Adverse
Cost of Care 0 0 0 0%
Total Expenditure 80,045 80,045 -0 0%
    
Surplus / (Deficit) 62,538 63,388 -850 -1% Adverse
    
Support/Admin Building Overhead 4,011 4,011 0 0% Favourable
    
Total Surplus/ (Deficit) 66,549 67,399 -850 -1% Adverse
      

Page 330



Budget Saving Achievement Progress

3.11 Within each Committee’s revenue budget there are a number of savings proposals, 
that were based on either actual known figures or best estimates available at the time. 
At any point during the year, these estimated figures could change and need to be 
monitored closely to ensure, if adverse, mitigating actions can be taken immediately to 
ensure a balanced forecast budget can be reported to the end of the year.

TABLE 3: 2021/22 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Budget Savings
Saving Title Agreed 

Value
Forecast 
Value

RAG 
Rating

Comments

LED savings £0.4m £0.4m Green The 21/22 saving originated 
from the business case for 
LED replacement in 2018/19 
and was the anticipated 
achievable saving at the 
time.

Additional and 
increased car 
parking charges

£1.0m £0.3m Amber The options paper to 
determine how the saving 
was be made presented to 
June Committee and this was 
subsequently called in twice.  
This has resulted in a part 
year delay.  The saving will 
be fully achieved in 2022/23

Targeted and 
Discretionary 
Environmental 
Enforcement

£0.15m £0.15m Green The options paper to 
determine how the saving will 
be made was  presented to 
June Committee, resulting in 
a part year delay. Any 
shortfall this year will be 
mitigated from in year 
savings resulting from 
additional EVRs

Royden Park Commercial 
Development

£0.08m £0.08m Green Saving will not be achieved 
this year due to the 
requirement for consultation.  
Any shortfall this year will be 
mitigated from in year 
savings resulting from 
additional EVRs

Reduction in grass cutting 
and maintenance of 
verges

£0.25m £0.25m Green The options paper to 
determine how the saving will 
be made was presented to 
June Committee, resulting in 
a part year delay. Any 
shortfall this year will be 
mitigated from in year 
savings resulting from 
additional EVRs

Page 331



Amenity space 
maintenance cessation

£0.1m £0.1m Green The options paper to 
determine how the saving will 
be made was presented to 
June Committee, resulting in 
a part year delay. Any 
shortfall this year will be 
mitigated from in year 
savings resulting from 
additional EVRs

Review of the 
Neighbourhood Services 
Directorate

£0.35m £0.35m Green On target to be achieved

Contract efficiency 
savings with BIFFA

£0.075m £0.075m Green On target to be achieved

Total £2.41m £1.71m

3.12 Most savings are on track to be achieved as at Quarter 1.  Car Parking is rated Amber 
due to delays in implementing the charges.  Current projections are based on flat rate 
charges being implemented from mid-August following the outcome of the Decision 
Review Committee. Introduction of charges at new sites will be delayed until 2022/23 
as it will take time to purchase and install the ticket machines.

Earmarked Reserves

3.13 Earmarked reserves are amounts set aside for a specific purpose or projects. 

TABLE 4: 2021/22 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport – Earmarked 
Reserves
Reserve Opening 

Balance    
£000

Use of 
Reserve 

£000

Contribution 
to Reserve 

£000

Closing 
Balance 

£000
Health & Safety Flood 
Prevention -455   -455

Parks Tree Maintenance -374 374 0
Environmental Health -300   -300
Climate Emergency -100   -100
Litter Enforcement - 
development of initiatives -49   -49

Weed Spraying : Mitigate 
against additional costs -41   -41

Coastal Protection -35   -35
Environmental Health 
F.S.A. Backlog -28   -28

Trading Standards -25   -25
Health & Safety Armed 
Forces Welfare Pathway -14   -14

BikeSafe -10   -10
Repairs & Maintenance 
upgrades on Public -8   -8

Page 332



Conveniences
LAMPS to Concerto system 
replacement -2   -2

     
Total -1,441 374 0 -1,067

3.14 At Quarter 1 reserves Parks and in Environment are expected to be fully utilised in 
2021/22.  This relates to funding for Tree Maintenance works that are projected in 
addition to the revenue budget available.

Capital Forecast Position

3.15 Capital budgets are the monies allocated for spend on providing or improving non-
current assets, which include land, buildings and equipment, which will be of use or 
benefit in providing services for more than one financial year.

TABLE 5: 2021/22 Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport – Capital Budget 
and Forecast

2021/22  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26
Budget Forecast Variance  Budget Budget Budget BudgetCapital 

Programme
£000 £000 £000  £000 £000 £000 £000

Buildings 900 450 450 450 0 0 0
CCTV 0 233 -233 0 0 0 0
Flood Prevention 7,115 3,776 3,389 3,339 0 0 0
Parks 901 909 -8 0 0 0 0
Roads and Bridges 5,449 8,490 -3041 1,000 0 0 0
Street Lighting 4,067 5,567 -1,500 0 0 0 0
Travel and 
Transport 3,625 3,775 -150 1,000 0 0 0

Tree Strategy 640 640 0 57 34 0 0
Waste 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
 Total 22,697 23,840 -1,143 5,846 34 0 0

3.16 Table 5 summarises the forecast expenditure against Capital Budgets.  A full 
breakdown of each Capital Scheme with details can be found in Appendix A.  The 
forecast adverse variance of £1.143m is due to increases in Street Lighting (£1.500m) 
and Roads and Bridges (£3.041m) which is grant funded.  In addition to this several 
schemes relating to Flood Prevention are reporting favourable variances.  This is due 
to expenditure being slipped into future years due to delays in commencement.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1     This is the revenue budget monitoring report that provides information on the forecast 
outturn for the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee for 
2021/22. The Council has robust methods for reporting and forecasting budgets in 
place and alongside formal Quarterly reporting to the Policy & Resources Committee, 
the financial position is routinely reported at Directorate Management Team meetings 
and corporately at the Strategic Leadership Team (SLT). In the event of any early 

Page 333



warning highlighting pressures and potential overspends, the SLT take collective 
responsibility to identify solutions to resolve these to ensure a balanced budget can be 
reported at the end of the year.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1      Sections 25 to 29 of the Local Government Act 2003 impose duties on the Council in 
relation to how it sets and monitors its budget. These provisions require the Council to 
make prudent allowance for the risk and uncertainties in its budget and regularly 
monitor its finances during the year. The legislation leaves discretion to the Council 
about the allowances to be made and action to be taken.

5.2      The provisions of section 25, Local Government Act 2003 require that, when the 
Council is making the calculation of its budget requirement, it must have regard to the 
report of the chief finance (s.151) officer as to the robustness of the estimates made 
for the purposes of the calculations and the adequacy of the proposed financial 
reserves. This is in addition to the personal duty on the Chief Finance (Section 151) 
Officer to make a report, if it appears to them that the expenditure of the authority 
incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) in a financial year is likely to 
exceed the resources (including sums borrowed) available to it to meet that 
expenditure.

5.3      It is essential, as a matter of prudence that the financial position continues to be 
closely monitored. In particular, Members must satisfy themselves that sufficient 
mechanisms are in place to ensure both that savings are delivered and that new 
expenditure is contained within the available resources.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1     There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The possible failure to deliver the Revenue Budget is being mitigated by: 
1. Senior Leadership / Directorate Teams regularly reviewing the financial 

position.
2. Availability of General Fund Balances.
3. Review of existing services and service provision.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The themes in the Wirral Plan were initially informed by stakeholder engagement 
carried out in 2019, as part of the development of the Wirral Plan 2025. These themes 
have remained the same, however further engagement has be sought over the past 
year aligned to the refreshed Wirral Plan 2021 - 2026 to ensure social and economic 
changes as a result of the pandemic and other factors are reflected.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

Page 334



9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it carries 
out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact Assessment is a 
tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure equality for anyone 
who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

9.2 There are no equality implications arising specifically from this report.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The Wirral Plan includes five themed areas. One of which is focused on creating a 
‘Sustainable Environment’, which outlines our ambitions and priorities for tackling the 
climate emergency. These are based on developing and delivering action plans that 
will improve the environment for Wirral residents. The performance report will include 
information on key areas where environment and climate related outcomes are 
delivered.

10.2 No direct implications. The content and/or recommendations contained within this 
report are expected to have no impact on emissions of Greenhouse Gases.

REPORT AUTHOR: Sarah Cox
Senior Finance Business Partner
telephone: 0151 666 3421
email: sarahcox@wirral.gov.uk 

APPENDICES

Appendix A – Detailed breakdown of Capital Schemes

BACKGROUND PAPERS
 2021/22 BUDGET MONITORING AND 22/23 BUDGET PROCESS
 P&R Budget Monitoring 2021/22 Quarter 1

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee

Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee

22 October 2020

3 December 2020

1 February 2021

16 March 2021

Page 335

mailto:sarahcox@wirral.gov.uk


Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee

14 June 2021

Page 336



Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee

Tuesday, 7th September 2021

REPORT TITLE: BUDGET MONITORING QUARTER 1 

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF NEIGHBOURHOODS

Appendix A – Breakdown of Capital Expenditure

Area Scheme

2021/22 
Budget

£000

2021/22 
Forecast

£000

2021/22 
Variance

£000

2022/23 
Budget

£000

2023/24  
Budget

£000

2024/25 
Budget

£000
Buildings Energy efficient buildings 900 450 -450 450 0 0

CCTV
Removal of remaining analogue 
CCTV circuits 0 233 233 0 0 0

Flood Prevention
Connecting Wirral Waters: Detailed 
Design 610 610 0 0 0 0

 
Coronation Park Sustainable 
Drainage 182 182 0 0 0 0

 Moreton Sandbrook Drainage 440 440 0 0 0 0
 Quick Win Levy 16-17 45 45 0 0 0 0

 
SUD - Leasowe to Seacombe 
Corridor 529 529 0 0 0 0

 
Surface Water Management 
Scheme 90 90 0 0 0 0

 West Kirby Flood alleviation 5,139 1,800 -3,339 3,339 0 0

P
age 337



 Woodchurch Rd Drainage 80 80 0 0 0 0
Parks Allotment Sites Expansion 127 127 0 0 0 0

 
Beach Cleaning - Replacement of 
equipment 122 122 0 0 0 0

 
Birkenhead Park World Heritage 
Project Team 85 85 0 0 0 0

 
Cemetery Extension & 
Improvements (Frankby) 171 171 0 0 0 0

 Landican Chapels 71 119 48 0 0 0
 North Wirral Coastal Park 40 0 -40 0 0 0

 
Plymyard Cemetery Welfare & 
Storage 75 75 0 0 0 0

 West Kirby Marine Lake Study 0 0 0 0 0 0

 
Wirral Country Park Car Park 
Surfacing 210 210 0 0 0 0

Roads and Bridges Aids to Navigation 40 40 0 0 0 0
 Bridges-Lingham Lane Bridge 350 350 0 0 0 0
 Bridges-Network rail 401 401 0 0 0 0
 Dock Bridges replacement 517 517 0 0 0 0
 Highway Maintenance 773 4,277 3,504 0 0 0

 

Highways Asset Management 
System - procurement of integrated 
asset management system 133 133 0 0 0 0

 Key Route Network 88 88 0 0 0 0

 

Key Route Network (LGF3) - 
Operate Key Roads / Routes 
Efficiently 361 361 0 0 0 0

 Key Route Network 21/22 0 537 537 0 0 0

 
Lyndale Ave Parking & Safety 
Measures 150 150 0 0 0 0

P
age 338



 

Major Infrastructure Development & 
Strategic Transport Forward 
Planning - Traffic Management 462 462 0 0 0 0

 Modernisation of CCTV System 170 170 0 0 0 0
 Monks Ferry Slipway 40 40 0 0 0 0
 New cycle infrastructure 1,000 0 -1,000 1,000 0 0
 Northbank West Cycle Scheme 0 0 0    

 
Onstreet Residential Chargepoint 
Scheme 102 102 0 0 0 0

 TAG Bus Case-A41 Corridor North 265 265 0 0 0 0
 TAG Bus Case-Wirral Waters outline 131 131 0 0 0 0

 

Tower Road National Productivity 
Investment Fund (NPIF) - ease 
congestion / upgrade national or 
local networks 134 134 0 0 0 0

 Town Link Viaduct 332 332 0 0 0 0

Street Lighting
Street Lighting Column - 
Replacement or Upgrade 3,703 5,203 1,500 0 0 0

 
Street Lighting -Illuminated Lighting 
and Signage 364 364 0 0 0 0

Travel and Transport Active Travel Tranche 1 188 188 0 0 0 0
 Active Travel Tranche 2 681 681 0 0 0 0

 
Combined Authority Transport Plan 
(CATP) 1,509 1,659 150 1,000 0 0

 
Green Travel Corridors Sustainable 
Urban Development 612 612 0 0 0 0

 STEP 625 625 0 0 0 0
 Thermal mapping 10 10 0 0 0 0
Tree Strategy Tree Strategy 115 115 0 57 34 0

P
age 339



 Urban Tree Challenge Fund 525 525 0 0 0 0
Waste Wheelie Bin Purchase 0 0 0 0 0 0
Grand Total  22,697 23,840 1,143 5,846 34 0

P
age 340



ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 7 September 2021 

REPORT TITLE: APPOINTMENT TO HILBRE ISLAND NATURE 
RESERVE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to enable the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee to review the continuing need for the Hilbre Island Nature Reserve Management 
Committee and if necessary to appoint Members, and possibly named deputies, to serve on 
it in 2021/2022. 

This is not a Key Decision and has no direct Ward implications. 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee is requested to authorise 
the Monitoring Officer as proper officer to carry out the wishes of the Group Leaders in 
allocating Members to membership of the Hilbre Island Nature Reserve Management 
Committee and to appoint those Members with effect from the date at which the proper 
officer is advised of the names of such Members.

Page 341

Agenda Item 9



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION

1.1 The Committee is required to appoint the membership of various advisory 
committees which fall under its remit at the start of each Municipal Year. The 
members for the Hilbre Island Nature Reserve Management Committee were to be 
appointed by the Tourism, Communities, Culture and Leisure Committee who 
referred it to this Committee as it fell within this Committee’s terms of reference.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 Potential options which the Committee could consider, and potential consequences, 
include: 

2.1.1 Not being involved in the Management Committee on either an officer or Member 
level, although it does provide an opportunity for stakeholders to meet to discuss 
issues with Council officers and Members regarding the island. 

2.1.2 Not include Members on the Management Committee, although the inclusion of 
Members allows the Committee to ensure that any developments are in line with the 
wider aims of the Council. The Management Committee could also continue in the 
absence of Councillors.

2.1.3 A less formal Members focus or working group, which the Management Committee 
could report into.

2.1.4 To vary the numbers of Members. That is a decision to be made by this Committee 
and would then require a change to the Council’s Constitution. A politically 
proportionate number would be:

3 Labour
2 Conservative
1 Liberal Democrat
1 Green
1 Independent

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3.1 The existence of the Management Committee stems from the Management Plan 
which states: The Friends group and other partners are involved in management 
decisions affecting the islands through the Hilbre Islands Management Committee. 

3.2 The Management Committee is made up of elected members, council officers, Hilbre 
Bird Observatory, leaseholders and The Friends of Hilbre Islands, Archaeological 
group and the Island’s residents (holiday homes). 

3.3 The Management Committee make recommendations and highlight possible 
priorities.  As Hilbre sits in a Site of Special Scientific Interest, many agencies have 
regulatory control over the area and proposals have to be mindful of legal 
obligations.  Any recommendations are passed to Parks and Countryside officers 

Page 342



who manage the island and provide required funding. It usually met every 3-4 times 
a year before the COVID pandemic but has not met since. 

3.5 The membership for 2020/2021, for information, was:

Councillor Christina Muspratt
Councillor Jerry Williams
Councillor Tony Cox 
Councillor Jeff Green
Councillor Andrew Hodson
Councillor Alison Wright
Councillor Allan Brame
Councillor Andy Corkhill

3.6 On 16 June 2021 the Tourism, Communities, Culture and Leisure Committee 
considered appointments to the Management Committee and resolved: ‘That a 
report on the continuance and composition of the Hilbre Island Nature Reserve 
Management Committee be referred to the Environment, Climate Emergency and 
Transport Committee for consideration since it more naturally falls within that 
Committee’s terms of reference which include responsibility for the Council’s duties 
as coastal protection authority. Pending consideration of this matter by that 
Committee the membership of the Management Committee shall remain as 
presently constituted in respect of those persons who are Members of the Council; 
any vacancies to be appointed by the Monitoring Officer who shall carry out the 
wishes of the Group Leader of the former Member.’

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There is a requirement under the Council’s Constitution to appoint Members to 
various panels, advisory committees and working parties which fall within the remit of 
each Committee. The meeting of full Council on 26 May 2021 resolved to delegate 
responsibility for this to individual Committees.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are none arising directly from this report as the Management Committee 
is arranged and serviced using existing staff resources. 

6.2 If any of the options in section 2 were progressed this may increase the resource 
implications.

Page 343



7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 As this is a non-statutory Management Committee, the only risk identified from the 
recommendation was reputational, if the Management Committee acted in a way 
contrary to the wider aims of this Committee and the Council, or if the Council chose 
not to be a part of the Management Committee.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 It is for political groups to decide how they wish to allocate their Management 
Committee places.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity. 
There are no equality implications arising directly from this report.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 There are none arising directly from this report, although the Management 
Committee could assist in implementing any Council policies on climate change 
where Hilbre Island was involved.

11.0 COMMUNITY WEALTH IMPLICATIONS

11.1 There are no implications for Community Wealth arising directly from the 
appointments.

REPORT AUTHOR: Mike Jones, Principal Democratic Services Officer
telephone: 0151 691 8363  
email:  michaeljones1@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None

BACKGROUND PAPERS

 The Council’s Constitution.

The Hilbre Island Nature Reserve Management Plan

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 344



Tourism, Communities, Culture and Leisure 
Committee Minute 11

Council (APPOINTMENTS AND NOMINATIONS TO 
OTHER BODIES AND ORGANISATIONS)

Council (APPOINTMENT OF PANELS, STATUTORY / 
ADVISORY COMMITTEES AND WORKING PARTIES; 
AND MISCELLANEOUS APPOINTMENTS 2019 / 2020)

16 June 2021

28 September 2020

14 May 2019

Page 345



This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT COMMITTEE
Tuesday 7 September 2021

REPORT TITLE: ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND 
TRANSPORT COMMITEE WORK PROGRAMME 
UPDATE

REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT SUMMARY

The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee, in co-operation with the 
other Policy and Service Committees, is responsible for proposing and delivering an annual 
committee work programme. This work programme should align with the corporate priorities 
of the Council, in particular the delivery of the key decisions which are within the remit of 
the Committee.  It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination 
of key decisions, standing items and requested officer reports. This report provides the 
Committee with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal 
year. The work programme for the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee is attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

RECOMMENDATION/S 

Members are invited to note and comment on the proposed Environment, Climate 
Emergency and Transport Committee work programme for the remainder of the 2021/22 
municipal year.

Page 347

Agenda Item 10



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

1.1 To ensure Members of the Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport 
Committee have the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work 
programme. 

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

2.1 A number of workplan formats were explored, with the current framework open to 
amendment to match the requirements of the Committee. 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

3.1 The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its partners. 
The programme will be informed by: 

 The Council Plan 
  The Council’s transformation programme 
  The Council’s Forward Plan 
  Service performance information 
  Risk management information 
  Public or service user feedback 
 Referrals from Council Terms of Reference 

The Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee has responsibility for 
parks and open spaces, highways management and infrastructure, coastal protection 
and flood defence and environment and waste matters. It is the Committee that leads on 
behalf of the Council in responding to and matters concerning the Climate Emergency. 

The Committee is charged by full Council to undertake responsibility for the Council’s 
role and functions: 

(a) in co-ordinating the response to cross-cutting sustainability issues such as 
reducing carbon emissions, climate change response, improving resource 
efficiency and developing sustainable energy;  

(b) in relation to all highways matters and as highway authority, street authority, 
bridge authority, including but not limited to public open spaces, street furniture 
on the highway and open spaces or parts of open spaces immediately adjacent 
to the highway;

(c) in relation to traffic management and transport and as traffic authority, including 
but not limited to public passenger transport and the co-ordination of transport for 
service users, traffic orders and rights of way issues;

Page 348



(d) in relation to parking, including on and off-street parking and civil parking 
enforcement; 

(e) in respect of parks, open spaces, countryside management, allotments, 
playgrounds and cemeteries, including arboricultural, gardening and warden 
services; 

(f)  in relation to the management of authorised and unauthorised sites and 
encampments, this to include all activities necessary or incidental to the 
Council’s performance of its responsibilities in relation to Gypsies, Roma and 
Travellers; 

(g) in relation to waste and as waste collection authority, litter authority, including but 
not limited to dealing with litter, street cleansing, abandoned vehicles and dog 
fouling, and the Council’s relationship with Merseyside Recycling & Waste 
Authority (MRWA) as the joint waste disposal authority;

(h) as coast protection authority and lead local flood authority; 

(i) in respect of emergency planning and community resilience (infrastructure and 
contract services); 

(j) providing a view of performance, budget monitoring and risk management in 
relation to the Committee’s functions; and undertaking the development and 
implementation of policy in relation to the Committee’s functions, incorporating 
the assessment of outcomes, review of effectiveness and formulation of 
recommendations to the Council, partners and other bodies, which shall include 
any decision relating to the above functions.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 This report is for information and planning purposes only, therefore there are no 
direct financial implication arising. However, there may be financial implications 
arising as a result of work programme items. 

5.0   LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, there may be 
legal implications arising as a result of work programme items. 

6.0    RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS 

6.1 There are no direct implications to staffing, ICT or Assets. 

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The Committee’s ability to undertake its responsibility to provide strategic direction to 
the operation of the Council, make decisions on policies, co-ordinate spend, and 
maintain a strategic overview of outcomes, performance, risk management and 

Page 349



budgets may be compromised if it does not have the opportunity to plan and 
regularly review its work across the municipal year. 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1  Not applicable 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity. 
This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality 
implications. 

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct environment and 
climate implications. 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Anna Perrett: Senior Democratic Services Officer 
telephone:  0151 691 8564 
email:  annaperret@wirral.gov.uk 

APPENDICES Appendix 1: Environment, Climate Emergency and Transport Committee 
Work Plan 

BACKGROUND PAPERS  

http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13641&path=0

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) Council Meeting Date

Council Meeting Date
 
Environment, Climate Emergency and 
Transport Committee

22nd October 2020

3rd December 2021

1st February 2021

Page 350

mailto:annaperret@wirral.gov.uk
http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13641&path=0


ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND TRANSPORT 
COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

Contact Officer/s: Mike Jones

Anna Perrett

PROPOSED AGENDA FOR ENVIRONMENT, CLIMATE EMERGENCY AND HIGHWAYS 
COMMITTEE

September agenda

Item Key 
Decision 

Lead Departmental 
Officer

P&R referral 

Yes/No

Weed Control 
Options Business 
Case

Yes Colin Clayton/Mike 
Cockburn

No

Road Safety 
Update 

No Simon Fox No

Appointment to 
the Hilbre Island 
Nature Reserve 
Management 
Committee

No Mike Jones No

Q1 Financial 
Monitoring

No Sarah Cox Yes

Work Programme 
Update

No Anna Perrett No

Page 351



 

KEY DECISIONS – On forward plan to be scheduled 

Item Key 
Deci
sion 
Yes/
No

Lead Departmental Officer Wirral Plan Priority

Dog Control 
PSPO
Dog Fouling 
Strategy

Yes Mark Cockburn/Clare 
Brandwood

Sustainable 
Environment

Acceptance of 
tenders for 
highway services 
contracts (‘A’ 
contracts);

Yes Simon Fox Sustainable 
Envrionment

West Kirby Flood 
alleviation 

Yes Colin Clayton/Neil Thomas Sustainable 
Environment 

Wallasey 
Embankment 
Reinforcement

Yes Colin Clayton/Neil Thomas Sustainable 
Environment 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS – WAITING TO BE SCHEDULED 

Item Approximate timescale Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Street Lighting Update 2021/22 Simon Fox
Marine Lake Update 2021/22 Colin Clayton
Pollinators update 2021/22 Colin Clayton

 

STANDING ITEMS AND MONITORING REPORTS  

Item Reporting Frequency  Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Page 352



Budget Monitoring Every Cycle Sarah Cox
Performance dashboard Commencing Oct 2022 Nicki Butterworth
Carbon Budget 
Performance Report

Annually in June Andrew Snow

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE 

Item Format Timescale Lead 
Officer  

Progress 

Working Groups/ Sub Committees

Car Parking Charges Working Group Nov 2020 Simon Fox Completed
Road Safety Working Group Jan-Feb 

2021
Simon Fox Complete 

Hoylake Beach Working Group Feb 2021 Colin 
Clayton/Neil 
Thomas

Completed

Climate Emergency Working Group December 
2020

Mike 
Cockburn

Completed

Active Travel TBC TBC Julie Barnes Ongoing
Task and Finish work
Allotment provision Task & 
Finish

Workshop and 
Report

October 
2020

Alex 
Davidson

Complete

Spotlight sessions / workshops

Corporate scrutiny / Other 

Page 353



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Road Safety Programme Update
	Appendix 1: LTP 3 Integrated Assessment
	9 COMBINED AUTHORITY TRANSPORT PLAN (INTEGRATED TRANSPORT BLOCK) PROGRAMME 2021/22
	LTP3 Integrated Assessment
	1. Introduction
	1.1 Terms of Reference
	1.2 Purpose of SA/SEA and the SA Report
	1.3 Structure of the SA Report
	1.3.1 Components that make up the SA Report

	1.4 Limitations of the SA/SEA

	2. Approach to the SA/SEA
	2.1 Strategic Environmental Assessment Legislative Requirements
	2.2 Sustainability Appraisal Legislative Requirements
	2.3 Integrating NATA into the SA/SEA Process
	2.4 Integrated Assessment Project Team
	2.5 Merseyside LTP3 SA/SEA Timetable
	2.6 SA/SEA Methodology
	2.7 Scoping Consultation Results
	2.8 SA Report Consultation Results

	3. LTP3 Context
	3.1 Context and Background
	3.2 Merseyside LTP3 Vision and Goals

	4. Stage A Scoping Results
	4.1 Relationship with other Plans and Programmes
	4.1.1 Introduction
	4.1.2 Policy Context

	4.2 Baseline Conditions and Sustainability Issues
	4.2.1 Baseline Conditions
	4.2.2 Evolution of the Baseline
	4.2.3 Key Issues

	4.3 Developing the SA/SEA Framework
	4.3.1 Developing SA/SEA Objectives
	4.3.2 Developing SA/SEA Indicators


	5. Compatibility of LTP3 and SA/SEA Objectives
	5.1 Testing the LTP3 Objectives against the SA/SEA Objectives
	5.2 Compatibility Summary

	6. Development and Appraisal of LTP3 Strategic Options
	6.1 Development of LTP3 Preferred Strategy
	6.2 Appraisal of LTP3 Strategic Options

	7. Appraisal of LTP3 Strategy
	7.1 Assessment Workshop
	7.2 Appraisal Results
	7.2.1 LTP3 Goal One Appraisal
	7.2.2 LTP3 Goal One Summary
	7.2.3 LTP3 Goal Two Appraisal
	7.2.4 LTP3 Goal Two Summary
	7.2.5 LTP3 Goal Three Appraisal
	7.2.6 LTP3 Goal Three Summary
	7.2.7 LTP3 Goal Four Appraisal
	7.2.8 LTP3 Goal Four Summary
	7.2.9 LTP3 Goal Five Appraisal
	7.2.10 LTP3 Goal Five Summary
	7.2.11 LTP3 Goal Six Appraisal
	7.2.12 LTP3 Goal Six Summary

	7.3 Cumulative Assessment
	7.3.1 Cumulative effects on each goal
	7.3.2 Cumulative effects on each SA/SEA objective

	7.4 Assessment of the LTP3 Major Schemes
	7.5 Risks, Uncertainties and Assumptions

	8. SA/SEA Mitigation and Enhancement
	9. Conclusions
	10. Implementation and Monitoring
	11. References
	8.1 Mitigation and Enhancement Measures
	8.2 Major Schemes Mitigation and Enhancement
	9.1 Overall Conclusions
	9.2 Incorporating the Results of the SA/SEA into the LTP3
	9.2.1 Informing development of the LTP3
	9.2.2 Mitigation and Enhancement Measures following Implementation of the LTP3

	10.1 Links to Other Tiers of Plans, Programmes and the Project Level
	10.2 Proposals for Monitoring
	Appendix A. Scoping Report Comments
	Appendix B. Policies, Plans, Programmes and Environmental Objectives relevant to the Merseyside LTP3
	Appendix C. Baseline Conditions and Key Issues
	Appendix D. Appraisal Tables
	Appendix E. SA/SEA Consultation Reponses
	D.1. Goal One Appraisal
	D.2. Goal Two Appraisal (Part 1)
	D.3. Goal Two Appraisal (Part 2)
	D.4. Goal Three Appraisal
	D.5. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 1)
	D.6. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 2)
	D.7. Goal Four Appraisal (Part 3)
	D.8. Goal Five Appraisal
	D.9. Goal Five Appraisal (Part 2)
	D.10. Goal Six Appraisal







	7 Weed Control Options Appraisal
	Appendix 1 - Weed Control Options Business Case June 2021 (003)
	Appendix 2 - Nomix Dual Glyphosate usage breakdown (002)
	SOC Appendix 1 - Financial breakdown for full In-house provision using Glyphosate (002)
	SOC Appendix 2 - Financial breakdown for full In-house provision using Nomix Dual (002)
	SOC Appendix 3 - APSE network query responses (002)
	SOC Appendix 4 - Stakeholder Analysis (002)

	8 QUARTER 1 BUDGET MONITORING
	ECET Committee - Appendix A

	9 Appointment to Hilbre Island Nature Reserve Management Committee
	10 Work Programme Update
	Enc. 1 for Work Programme Update - Final


